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VISION
“Together with communities and partners striving for
sustainable livelihoods and economic growth for all”

MISSION STATEMENT
“Together with all communities, we will provide sustainable
service delivery, skills development and alleviate poverty
through the integrated development plan”

BROAD DEVELOPMENT
STRATEGIES AND GOALS
Sustainable basic service delivery
Access to free basic services
Institutional Development and Transformation
Economic Development Transformation and growth with special
emphasis
on agriculture
Housing provision
Special Programmes with the emphasis on addressing HIV/Aids
Health
Municipal Financial Viability and Management
Sound Governance
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CHAPTER 1.
INTRODUCTION AND OVERVIEW

4

“Together with all communities, we will
provide sustainable service delivery, skills
development and alleviate poverty
through the Integrated Development
Plan.”

MAYOR: W TIKANA
1.1 MAYORS FORWARD
2008/2009 has brought with it many challenges but when referring back to the
previous year I am overcome with a sense of great pride. The ANC’s Election
Manifestos rings loudly in my ear “ Making Local Government Work Better” and as
the political leader I have great pride in being able to acknowledge that this is exactly
what has happened.
One of the biggest challenges facing Sakhisizwe Municipality is the high rate of
unemployment within this region. This directly retards the ability of people to pay for
services, which then retards economic growth even further. This in turn impacts on
our other challenges not the least of which is ageing infrastructure with the burden
of ongoing and costly maintenance. Financial constraints, resource constraints
generally and the technical skills shortages, are the most pressing constraints and
every effort and focus this past year has been to address these challenges in order to
ensure the ongoing sustainability of Sakhisizwe Municipality.
Notwithstanding the great strides that have been made within the organization’s
administrative and financial management, every focus in the year ahead will have to
address the concerns and issues raised within the Auditor General’s report.
Our focus within this municipality is everything about “the political commitment to
promote sustainable, economic and social development”, supported by the provision
of quality. The needs of the community we serve will continue to guide our decisionmaking so as to ensure that the will of the people is addressed through ongoing
review of the IDP. In efforts to “grow the seeds of democracy” our focus has and
will continue to be the involvement and participation of the communities.
Communication is the key and we have begun to cement the foundations of a longterm relationship with our communities and stakeholders through the establishment
of communication and participation strategies, participation forums, and
opportunities for consultation.
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The HIV/AIDS pandemic touches and affects us all and continues to erode an already
ailing economy. However we will continue to focus on assisting communities and
families to manage the impact of this pandemic and to contribute towards reducing
its growth.
The capacity of our human resources remains an ongoing challenge and it is
acknowledged that this needs to be addressed in a systematic manner over time.
Notwithstanding, we have to acknowledge that our administration has grown
tremendously over this past year in terms of capacity and development and this is
evidenced by the level of improvements that have occurred over this past year.
It is only through improved capacity and increased resources that we will be able to
ensure effective, efficient and cost effective services that can be sustained. Our
political commitment reinforces this sentiment and requires that we “promote
sustainable, economic and social development”, supported by the provision of
quality.
We have been faced with some trying times over this last year but diligence and
determination to succeed by Councillors and municipal staff has helped and allowed
us to move forward, despite the circumstances we have faced. It remains our
intention to grow and develop Sakhisizwe Municipality so that it becomes strong
enough to withstand the local and regional economic impacts and to enable it to
adjust to the infrastructure and operational needs, in order that the community
needs as identified within the IDP are addressed.
It is against this background and mindful of both our achievements over the period
under review and the challenges that we face, that I present to you Sakhisizwe
Municipality’s Annual Report for the 2008/2009 period. In doing so it would be
extremely remiss of me not to express my deep appreciation and gratitude to my
fellow Councillors, the Municipal Manager and all municipal employees for their
continued efforts and for the contribution each of them have made in assisting this
municipality to make significant progress.
May we continue to grow and to improve our ability to meet the needs of the
community with a common goal and quest --- that of improving our quality of life
through effective service provision.

----------------------------Ms W. TIKANA
MAYOR

Date :………………………….
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“That the air is full of impurities does not
mean we should not breathe, forward we
march until we enhance the ideal of pushing
back the frontiers of poverty”.
Author unknown.

MUNICIPAL MANAGER : T SAMUEL
1.1.

MUNICIPAL MANAGER’S REPORT
It is with mixed feelings that I present my report for the 2008/2009 year. It is
clearly undisputed that Sakhisizwe Municipality has been able to gain
considerable ground in respect of the manner in which it has been able to
manage its finances. This is a great achievement and must not be understated.
However this achievement must be considered within the greater context and
in this regard progress must be seen as part of an ongoing commitment and
strategy towards meeting the required strategic objectives. As per the old
adage, “Rome was not built in a day” and a structured process will need to be
followed in order to achieve operational and performance excellence.
Of noteworthy mention is the financial health of the municipality and more
specifically the following issues:
-

The GRAP conversion has been completed;
All assets have been valued and the Assets Register converted in order to
be GRAP compliant.
Investments now total R16.9 million;
The valuations completed have raised 5200 accounts and this has
increased the revenue base;
The SDBIP has been compiled;
All financial policies have been developed and approved.

From a governance and administrative perspective the following
achievements are noted:
-

A Performance Management Policy has been approved by Council;
A Leave Policy and Procedure have been approved by Council;
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-

-

-

A Leave Audit has been conducted by consultants --- however the results
of this have not been well received and it is possible that in-house
investigations and reporting within this sphere will be accepted;
A Scarce Skills Policy and Strategy has been approved by Council;
A Recruitment and Selection Policy and Manual have been developed and
approved;
A Disciplinary and Grievance Policy has been compiled and approved and
related training has been undertaken to an initial group;
Generally policy development has occurred and developmental
programmes have been undertaken;
Great strides have been made within the Communications Department
and accordingly a relationship has been established with Vukani
Community Radio --- having been allocated specific time slots for usage.
Additionally information days have been provided. From a public
participation perspective the benefits have been overwhelming and from
an initial “2 ward involvement”, the municipality experienced 7 ward
meetings that were held during the IDP Review and Budget process
(although minimal input was obtained);
From the communications and public participation perspectives it must be
noted that branding materials have been developed and are successfully
utilized for community outreach programmes; the State of the Province
address was hosted in Cala on the “big screen” as a collaborative effort
and partnership with the Premiers office.

On the Technical Services front it is noted that;
-

MIG grant funding totalling R6.6 million was received for Infrastructure
Projects/Access Roads;
The tar road between Bashee Street (Cala Pep to Cala Hospital) has been
built using this funding; and
The balance of this grant funding has been used to approve 9 land use
applications.

Challenges although not insurmountable include the following:
•

•

•
•

Institutional capacity is still our most significant challenge. This needs to
be addressed holistically in order to be really effective. The appointment
of members of the management team (IPED, Technical, Corporate
Services and Financial) during the 2007/2008 period has created a sense of
stability through the governance structure. Notwithstanding ongoing
capacitation of all staff and Councillors is required in order to enhance
capacity at every level.
A Human Resources Turnaround Strategy will have to be developed and
implemented. Whilst the organogram has been reviewed the
implementation thereof is more challenging and clarity on many areas is
required. Recruitment strategies (Retention and Scarce Skills), will be
required to be addressed in order to remedy the critical skills shortages
that exist.
Ongoing Councillor Development.
No LED Strategy informs and facilitates economic development;
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•
•
•
•
•
•
•

•

•
•

•

•

•

Many IDP projects were planned but grant funding was only approved
significantly later than the IDP was approved;
The Spatial Development Framework requires review and consultants
have been appointed to facilitate this process;
Absence of a Waste Plan
The Traffic Department is not managed or controlled effectively. Statistics
are in most cases non-existent or poor;
Departmental reporting from managers and staff (quality and quantity) is
extremely poor;
Risk Management is not being managed and although the Risk
Management Policy exists it is clearly not being implemented; and
Although Performance Management is being conducted in respect of the
policy (new regulations) and currently applicable only to the s57
managers, the lack of auditing of these reported results and activities has
resulted in the Auditor General suggesting that nothing had been
completed in respect of Performance Management. Clearly this is not in
essence a true reflection of the current status.
In order to attract the calibre of staff required to address the service
delivery essentials and to ensure retention of such staff, finalisation of the
related projects of: TASK Job Evaluation Results and Implementation of
Wage/Salary Curves needs to take place. TASK Benchmarking and
alignment of all posts also needs to be completed, reliance on wage
curves and resultant implementation rest with SALGBC.
The skills shortage needs to be addressed in critical and technical areas by
means of finalising conditions of service, performance management
contracts and retention strategies.
The Performance Management System (PMS) needs to be extended to
lower levels of staff as a phased-in approach with commensurate rewards
and incentives. The introduction of an electronic PMS linked to SDBIP’s,
together with more effective monitoring and evaluation systems to ensure
the implementation and reporting on financial systems and projects is
then required.
Compliance with the Skills Development and Employment Equity plans.
Good governance requires compliance in all areas and continued
monitoring and evaluation. To ensure compliance, a systematic and
holistic approach to the development of systems is required that will lead
to documented policies, procedures and controls that will in turn be
required to be developed.
The optimal utilisation of existing skills, assisted by the necessary expert
interventions of Deloitte, DBSA – Mr P McEwen and Charmaine van
Schalkwyk Consulting and other external parties, will assist in reducing the
concerns of the Auditor-General.
During the year under review, a forensic audit was commissioned into the
conduct of the affairs of the former Chief Financial Officer in the running
of the municipal finances and a second special investigation concerning
the remuneration of Councillors. The results of these reports are pending.
On the communications front, there seems to be a much-improved
relationship between Councillors and officials at the Municipality and with
our new head of Corporate Services and Communications Officer, we look
forward to a formal communications policy.
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•

•

On the financial front, the appointment of Mr P. Mc Ewen
(Financial/Municipal Mentor) to provide continued expert guidance and
support has directly resulted in the capacitation and mentorship of the
Municipal Manager in financial and local government issues.
The appointment of the Chief Financial Officer has resulted positively on
the financial state of this organisation during the 2008/2009 financial year.
Whilst it is important to highlight that it will take quite some time to
resolve the issues and troubles facing this organisation, it must be
acknowledged that great strides have already been made. Whilst
improvement has occurred in the areas of finance, the backlogs and
inherited problems will still take some time.

Notwithstanding the very real improvements on the financial front it remains
very clear that there is still much work to be done in respect of administration
in order to reach the desired standards and reach the expectations of the
Auditor-General.
In conclusion and as I present this Annual Report let me place on record my
heartfelt thanks and appreciation to all stakeholders that have assisted me in
this past year. A special note of appreciation goes out to the DBSA team and
specifically Mr Mc Ewen. My sincere appreciation is extended to the Council,
Committee and our Mayor, Ms W Tikana, for their continued support and
guidance. To my staff who have worked tirelessly and who have shown
unwavering support and commitment during difficult times, please note that
this has not gone unnoticed and your efforts have been instrumental in
allowing us to achieve in the areas that we have.
During the year ahead may you all continue to grow from a personal and
professional perspective, and as Sakhisizwe Municipality may we be
transformed and successful in our transformation towards a leading entity.

……………………………..
T SAMUEL
MUNICIPAL MANAGER

……………………………..
DATE
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1.2.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Since the inception of Sakhisizwe Municipality in December 2000, a tremendous
challenge was to deliver on its constitutional mandate. Meeting the needs and
expectations of the community whilst taking into account the institutional capacity,
budgetary constraints, staff shortages, amongst other requirements, will always
remain a challenge not to mention a focused goal.
An efficient and effective administration is critical to ensuring a successful political
leadership and is ultimately responsible for assisting in the elimination of poverty and
inequalities.
During the period under review Sakhisizwe Municipality has attained a measure of
stability within the administrative arena, as the appointment of the following
personnel (s57 managers) remained constant as the core management team:
•
•
•
•

Corporate Services Manager – May 2008
Technical Services Manager - May 2008
IPED Manager – May 2008
Chief Financial Officer - June 2008

•

The financial “turn around” has resulted in the development of certain
financial policies and Councillors have received training on these. The financial
“turn around” attributed to Mr P McEwen, whose expertise, guidance and
support has been instrumental in “turning around” Sakhisizwe Municipality
into a more viable state, this Municipality has investments totalling
R16.9Million as at June 2008 in contrast to R1.7 Million at year-end June 2007

•

Implementation of Benchmarking and in order to address parity to a degree
with regard to remuneration structures and,

•

The implementation of Performance Management at a system, which is
applied to s57 appointments. A Remuneration Committee has been
appointed to deal with implementation and Performance Management
System Auditing. Financial constraints have prevented this system from being
cascaded further.

•

Seven By-Laws have been developed and 5 of these have been gazetted.
Training on implementation thereof has been received, but it is the capacity to
enforce these laws that requires particular attention this will be perused
during the 2007/2008 financial year,

•

VAT claims from SARS still yield results in claim benefits.

•

The Housing Projects that were previously blocked by DPHLG have been
revived and both the Mayor and Municipal Manager have attended training
through Wits University in order to capacitate them in these areas.
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•

During 2006/2007 financial year five (5) new vehicles were purchased and
during 2007/2008 financial year a further 9 vehicles have been secured
through the tender process in order to assist on an operational level.

•

A Strategic Plan has been drafted in order to address backlogs and problems
identified but this will require resources such as Time, Human and Financial, in
order to resolve and correct these overall.

•

Two (2) Interns (Finance young professionals) have been appointed/deployed
through DBSA and are utilized to assist the Municipality in the financial field.

•

A Communications Officer was appointed during the 2007/2008 financial year,
in order to improve Communications (internally and externally). Whilst this
has improved Public Participation, relationships with external customers and
the like, this is required to be addressed more thoroughly. In order to facilitate
this process, a Communications Strategy will be drafted and implemented
during the 2008/2009 Financial Year.

•

Projects such as: Organogram/Restructuring, Placement of Staff and updated
Job Descriptions will be undertaken with DBSA funding during 2008/2009 in
order to facilitate administrative and financial improvements.

•

Other issues requiring attention and have commenced are as follows:

•

Data cleansing (such as the property and land valuations exercise) – this will
be completed in the 2008/2009 financial year;

•

Credit Control Systems;

•

Improved administrative functioning;

•

Development and implementation of Human Resources and Financial
procedures and policies;

•

Training of staff and Councillors;

•

Completion and finalization of Job Evaluation which has affected morale

In an effort to optimise performance and resource management internally,
development and capacity-building programmes initiated have focused on improving
people management; developing systems and processes; and on introducing better
monitoring and evaluation processes.
As with any form of growth and development, leadership and learning become
paramount for success. In order to positively foster all elements of change, every
effort has been made to formally engage in change management practices and
processes; and to use innovation and creativity to further facilitate the positive
effects of change and a new leadership style, by ensuring that conditions for
increased motivation and capacity building are created.
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In so doing, partnerships and alliance building between divisions and sections are
encouraged, both to improve operational functioning and to create a climate of
service excellence.
As with all aspects of growth and ensuring heightened service delivery within the
municipal context, an even greater challenge is the ability to ensure sustainable
development and growth within this context.
Through improved communication networks and processes (both internally and
externally), efforts and plans have been made and undertaken in order to ensure that
all involved and affected parties have a thorough understanding of the
developmental challenges facing Sakhisizwe Municipality in respect of its service
delivery mandate. In this manner strategic plans have been put in place to ensure
sustainable development and growth. Interventions by DBSA – beginning with the
appointment of a Financial/Municipal Mentor will ensure that all programmes
identified continue to be phased-in over time and will contribute towards a
turnaround strategy for the Municipality.
As always our focus will be to ensure that strategies are developed, together with
revitalization plans, sectoral plans and key policies, in order to ensure that Sakhisizwe
Municipality is in a position to maintain and uplift existing infrastructure and
resources, whilst ensuring effective service delivery provision to the rural areas.
Over the 2008/2009 period, officials and politicians will be required work at great
lengths in order to ensure that short- and long-term objectives are met in the most
efficient and cost-effective manner,
Notwithstanding, challenges remain and it is imperative that the organisation
remains focused and committed towards addressing these challenges and fulfilling
ongoing legislative commitments.
It is the intention of the Executive Summary to provide you with a statement and
account of the overall goals, priorities and direction of this Municipality. In this
manner, a clear understanding will be obtained regarding the organizations direction
and focus and the manner in which it is intended that this will impact positively on
the community. An account of the financial health of this Municipality will also be
provided together with a narrative on administrative issues and considerations,
which have impact on the overall operations within this Municipality.
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STRATEGIC DIRECTION FOR SAKHISIZWE
The following priority issues were identified during the community outreach
programmes and consultation both with the Council and senior management during
the 2007/2008 financial year. It takes into account issues also raised during the needs
analysis of the original IDP and issued raised in the original strategic plan:
The Sakhisizwe IDP Steering committee and Representative Forum changed the
formerly identified development priorities to the following , they also take into
account the needs analysis of the original IDP :













Priority 1: Roads and Stormwater
Priority 2: Water and Sanitation
Priority 3: Housing
Priority 4: Electrification
Priority 5: Local Economic Development
Priority 6: Social and Recreational Facilities
Priority 7: Health
Priority 8: Safety and Security
Priority 9: Education
Priority 10: Land and Environmental Management
Priority 11:Disaster Management
Priority 12 Special Programmes –HIV/Aids, Youth, Elderly People, Women
and Disabled

The Development Priorities
These Development priorities will be examined further as follows:
(1)

Roads and Stormwater
Investigations revealed that the lack of a proper road network was identified as
having the single most negative impact on business growth and
communication. Additionally, the inadequate stormwater drainage system in
itself continues to contribute to the bad condition of the available roads.

(2)

Water and Sanitation
Of particular concern remains the large number of households that remain
without basic water and sanitation services.

(3)

Housing
While the large housing backlog is cause for extreme concern, this situation is
exacerbated by the shortage of available land, the level of technical services,
not to mention the inadequate infrastructure – which requires extensive
upgrades.

14

(4)

Electrification
Electrification continues to be considered as a fundamental right for all.

(5)

LED
Unemployment and slow economic growth results in one of the largest
challenges for LED. Efforts to remedy these factors will require interventions
to alleviate poverty and combat the social problems associated with this. It
will be the intention to facilitate and monitor the provision of agricultural
activities and to facilitate with DOA the support of emerging farmers.

(6)

Social and Recreational Facilities
The serious lack of adequate sports and social facilities within the entire area
was acknowledged as requiring focus, and this included the provision of
service centres to complement the existing municipal and health services. The
need to provide information centres to assist economic growth initiatives was
also identified.

(7)

Health
Due to the nature of the environment and the rural nature of the communities
every effort was to be made to increase availability of all health facilities to all
families – together with the necessary support structures. The need to plan
and administer all emergency services in order to reach all inhabitants of the
area was identified.

(8)

Safety and Security
Safety and security remain focus areas and it was required that improvements
to infrastructure occur, community policing forums be established and
improved communication measures be undertaken.

(9)

Education
A dire need for additional educational facilities has been identified as well as a
need for proper maintenance of existing educational infrastructure.

(10)

Land Environmental Management
Many challenges exist when attempting to ensure a safe and healthy
environment. This may be achieved by ensuring that land, natural resources,
and the atmosphere are not contaminated.

(11)

Disaster Management
The need to upgrade the existing fire fighting and disaster management
programs and procedures was also identified.
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(12)

Special Programmes: HIV/Aids, Youth, Elderly People, Women, and Disabled
•
•
•

2.3

The prevalence of HIV/Aids and its associated problems is cause for
extreme concern and requires that the appropriate action is taken.
With special programmes every effort has and will be made to ensure that
the youth, elderly, disabled and women become involved with
development and planning issues.
Empowerment of these groups is focussed on the planning and financial
responsibilities of Council.

Summary
An analysis of the current reality details that the municipality is required to
focus on two nodes. This in itself requires that basic services and health and
community services are required to be provided to the community at great
cost to Council.
This in turn has resulted in certain areas lacking specific services and facilities.
Additionally the municipality is required to face the additional costs associated
with maintenance and ensuring that facilities remain in good working order.
This undoubtedly puts additional strain of the institutional capacity of the
municipality and results in its ability to sustain quality services being severely
tested.
In an effort to achieve these areas of prioritisation, it is imperative to ensure
that all parties understand, own and act appropriately to the following core
values:
•

Diligence and performance excellence (self-driven public representative
and management team, commitment to serving the people, assertive in
representing the interests of Sakhisizwe inhabitants)

•

Promptness (responding to matters of public and citizens interests within
reasonable time including acknowledging and keeping people informed of
processes)

•

Integrity, honesty and respect (transparency, honesty, good democracy
ethics, impartial of matters of public good and interest and building a
pubic service that transcends political and social boundaries)

•

Accountability and Transparency
(responsible, taking ownership,
discipline efficient and implanting a culture of a demand driven
development paradigm)

•

Participation and empowerment (building a reciprocal relationship
between management and all internal stakeholders, between council and
administration, between labour and organizational leadership, and
between the municipality and its citizens)

•

Responsive and Quality of service (building a customer friendly municipal
environment, ensuring a proactive, flexible, creative and quality conscious
service delivery environment)
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•

Considerate – People first – Batho Pele (implanting a culture of
compassionate, caring and emotional intelligent municipal environment
that prioritises its inhabitants, employees and councillors)

By providing good quality and affordable services and by focusing on the
enhancement of capacity of Sakhisizwe Municipality at all levels, the overriding
objective remains to promote sustainable economic and social development.
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FINANCIAL HEALTH

UNSIGNED AUDIT REPORT

Sakhisizwe Municipality has focused very heavily on attempting to improve the
financial viability of the organisation. With assistance from Deloittes they
successfully achieved their GRAP conversion and were able to compile their financial
statements. All accounts were reconciled and the ledger balances were cleared.
Notwithstanding and having achieved the timeframes for submission of the financial
statements for auditing, (prior to 31 August 2008 as per the MFMA), the AuditorGeneral awarded a qualified audit report and a disclaimer was received. Reference is
made to the Auditor-General’s Report (as detailed within Chapter 4).
Notwithstanding the timeous submission of the required financial statements and
reporting, certain qualifications were received from the Auditor-General’s Report and
as per the Audit Response, every effort is being made to ensure that these issues are
correctly addressed.
Notwithstanding these qualifications, we must commend the Financial Department
for the great strides made within this section and their ability to improve their
financial viability (a move from R1.7 million year end investments June 2007 to R16.9
million as at June 2009).
Whilst it must be acknowledged that the contribution from DBSA and the
appointment of the mentor (Mr P McEwen) has resulted in tremendously positive
steps being made within the financial area of Sakhisizwe Municipality, it must also be
acknowledged that it will be a very likely possibility that a qualified audit report will
be obtained during the following financial year. Whilst every effort will be made to
address the inherited problems and to correct all identified problems, these are so
vast, that in all likelihood it could take longer than one year to resolve these issues in
totality.
Our intention will be to ensure that we resolve the issues contained within the audit
report and that we try to obtain an unqualified audit report for 2009/2010 financial
year. Again we acknowledge Mr P McEwen who, together with DBSA backing, has
assisted us in turning our financial department around – never forgetting that this
progress is still in its infancy.
ADMINISTRATIVE CONSIDERATIONS
Administrative issues and those of governance will be best addressed with the
implementation of an Integrated Performance Management System, which will move
from the senior (s57) management levels right down to the line managers – after a
phased in approach for application.
Linkages between this, the IDP and additionally through the SDBIP will ensure that
the strategic objectives are contained and filtered throughout the organisation –
enabling strategic priorities to be met through performance optimisation being
displayed and achieved at every level.
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Administrative and legislative compliance will be maintained through the application
of the Performance Management System and SDBIP planning and reporting.
1.4

GEOGRAPHICAL CONTEXT
Sakhisizwe Municipality was established during December 2000, as a
result of the amalgamation of the following Local Authorities and towns :
φ Cala;
φ Elliot;

The Municipality covers an area of 2556 km². A unique feature of this
Municipality has beautiful mountains and beautiful rivers and dams to lay
claim to, and with many game-fishing opportunities the potential for tourism
within the area is an opportunity that requires nurturing.

DEMOGRAPHICS
Population
The demographic data of Sakhisizwe Municipality indicates that the
population is predominantly African, of which more than half (55.23%) of the
population are children. This information is shown in Graph 1 and Graph 2.
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Graph 1

SAKHISIZWE DEMOGRAPHIC DATA
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Graph 2
The economic active population are small in comparison to the elderly and young
children.
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Graph 2: Sakhisizwe Demographic data represented in a pie chart

Racial groups, age distribution per ward

20

The municipal demographic data are reflected below in tabular form.
Table 1: Race Group Distribution per Ward

Sakhisizwe Racial Groups Per Ward
7

5
Wards
3
1
80.00

90.00
African

Coloured

Indian

100.00
White

Other

** Source: Demarcation Board: Municipal Profile for Sakhisizwe Municipality. August 2001

Table 2: Age Group Distribution Per Ward

Sakhisizwe Age Distribution Per Ward
7
6
5
Wards 4
3
2
1
0.00

20.00

40.00

Children

Youth

Middle Aged

60.00
Elderly

Employment and Unemployment
It is estimated that :
•
•
-

35.5% of population formally employed.
64.5% are unemployed.
73.8% households have no steady income
22.4% of households earn less than R1 000 per month.
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The impact of HIV/AIDS
HIV/AIDS is prevalent in the Municipal area; and the organization is itself affected.
HIV/AIDS has an affect on local economic development, health and all other
infrastructure and service delivery.
This epidemic has a devastating economic impact on the community, which has
resulted in increased poverty and more dependency on social grant income resulting
on effectively increasing the number of indigents and reducing the municipal tax
base.
Economic productivity suffers as ill health prevents workers from attending to their
jobs leading to food shortage within households, non payments of school fees
(increasing illiteracy) and increased non-attendance of schools as children care for
siblings and parents. The increase in mortality results in valuable skills loss and
redundant infrastructure.
Mainstreaming the management of HIV/AIDS is as a institutional responsibility and
must be integrated into the IDP`s strategic development priorities so as to avoid
serious impact on its performance.
If HIV and AIDS is not dealt with, its effects on the population will further result in
poverty which may lead again in an increase of infected and affected people.
1.5.

GOVERNANCE AND ADMINISTRATION STRUCTURE
1.5(a) Political Structure
As per Municipal Structures Act 1988, Sakhisizwe Municipality has a Plenary
Executive System.
As a democratically elected Category B Municipality, Sakhisizwe Municipality’s
Council is comprised of elected Ward Councillors and Proportional
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Representation Councillors. Sakhisizwe Municipality was established as a
Plenary Executive Type.
MAYOR
W Tikana

Chairs Council Meetings

Portfolio: Finance, Admin, and
Governance & SPU

Councillors (13 Councillors including Mayor)
















PLENARY
EXECUTIVE
SYSTEM

►

Cllr: S Ntakana – Portfolio: Finance, Admin Governance & SPU
- Ward 1
Chief Whip: Cllr: M Mxhonywa – Chairperson: Portfolio: Social
Needs - Ward 2
Cllr: T Hoza – Portfolio: Social Needs - Ward 3
Cllr: M Sondlo - Portfolio: Infrastructure - Ward 4
Cllr: S Jentile- Chairperson: Portfolio: Infrastructure - Ward 5
Cllr: M Tshona - Portfolio: Finance, Admin Governance & SPU Ward 6
Cllr: F Ngondo - Portfolio: Social Needs - Ward 7
Cllr: N Kutuka - Portfolio: Infrastructure - PR
Cllr: M Mahlombe - Portfolio: Infrastructure - PR
Cllr: M Mzuzu - Portfolio: Social Needs – PR
Cllr: Z Dyonase - Portfolio: Social Needs – PR
Cllr: N Ponoshe – Razilane: Portfolio: Social Needs – PR

MUNICIPAL COUNCIL

►

ELECTS THE MAYOR
THE MAYOR IS THE SPEAKER OF
THE COUNCIL AND CHAIRS THE
COUNCIL MEETINGS

EXECUTIVE POWER IS EXERCISED BY THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL

Standing Committees
Standing Committees have been created in accordance with s79 and s80 of the
Municipal Structures Act (Act 32 of 2000) and s160 of the Constitution.
Standing Committees have been created in order to assist the Mayor and Council in
order to be better informed about issues requiring Council input and decisionmaking. Through the establishment of Ward Committees, Standing Committee
Councillors become more involved and knowledgeable about specific issues affecting
the departments that they represent within these Ward Committees. This process
enables these Councillors to gain additional insight into the challenges, functions, and
23

processes faced by these sections, and ensures that Council is able to make informed
decisions within these areas.
Since 2006/2007 the following Standing Committees have been established:
φ Finance / Admin Governance & SPU
φ Infrastructure
φ Social Needs
Standing Committees are chaired by Standing Committee members and include
members from political parties.
There are 13 Councillors in total. These are made up of 7 Ward Councillors and 6 Party
Representatives.

Ward Committees
Sakhisizwe Local Municipality is a plenary executive system that has ward
participatory system. In a plenary system, executive powers are exercised by a full
meeting of the municipal council – the council takes all executive decisions regarding
the business of council. In this system, the chairperson is the Mayor.
Sakhisizwe is subdivided into seven (7) Ward Committees, which have been
established, as a result of s72 – 78 of the Municipal Structures Act. Each Committee is
chaired by its respective Ward Councillor.
Ward Committees are recognised as “consultative” community forums. Its purpose
being to broaden participation in a democratic process of Council.
Ward Committees do not have any formal powers. Submissions are made to Council
via the respective Ward Councillor. In this manner, a consultative community
structure is created and maintained.
While it is evident that Ward participation has increased dramatically it must be
acknowledged that attendance of meetings has not necessarily increased the level
of community input – during 2008/2009 from an initial “2 ward involvement”, the
municipality experienced 7 ward meetings that were held during the IDP Review and
Budget process (although minimal input was obtained); however still remain
eternally optimistic for the future.
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COUNCILLORS
PROPORTIONAL COUNCILLOR MZUZU
Portfolio Social Needs: PR

PROPORTIONAL COUNCILLOR: KUTUKA
Portfolio: Infrastructure

PROPORTIONAL COUNCILLOR: PONOSHE – RAZILANE
Portfolio Social Needs’

WARD: COUNCILLOR NTAKANA
Portfolio: Finance, Admin, Governance & SPU: WARD 2

COUNCILLOR TSHONA
Portfolio: Finance, Admin, Governance & SPU: WARD 6

HONOURABLE: MAYOR: W TIKANA

Councillors Absent:
M MXHONONYWA: CHIEF WHIP / Chairperson: Portfolio Social Needs: Ward 1
Chairperson :Infrastructure S JENTILE: Ward 5
Portfolio :Infrastructure M Sondlo: Ward45
Chairperson :Infrastructure S JENTILE: Ward 5
Portfolio Infrastructure: M Mahlombe: PR

WARD: COUNCILLOR NGONDO: WARD: 7
Portfolio Social Needs

WARD: COUNCILLOR HOZA: WARD 3
Portfolio Social Needs
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1.5(b) ADMINISTRATIVE STRUCTURE -- CURRENT STRUCTURE

Municipal Manager
T Samuel

IPED
MANAGER

N Saleni

TECHNICAL
SERVICES
MANAGER

FINANCE –
BUDGET &
TREASURY
CFO
P Steyn

X Mntonintshi

CORPORATE

SERVICES
MANAGER
N Mazwayi

COMMUNITY SERVICES
MANAGER
Vacant
SUB – DIRECTORATE – OF
TECHNICAL SERVICES &
IPED

The Municipal administration consists of 4 departments and these section 57
managers report directly to the Municipal Manager.
The IDP determines the organisations strategic focus and prioritised goals are
translated from the IDP to annual priorities, and ultimately the SDBIP – reflecting
required performance within various areas and disciplines over the financial year
ahead.
These managers are responsible for ensuring that the support and administrative
staff work towards achieving the strategic objectives.
Notwithstanding these 4 departments, it must be noted that the practical reality
within Sakhisizwe has required tremendous overlap and sharing of functions due to
the vacancy that existed for the Community Services Manager. These overlaps and
sharing of workload and functions due to this situation have occurred within
disciplines that are in no way compatible and have resulted in situations where the
manager does not have the necessary capacity or insight to manage these areas
effectively. Lack of record keeping has further exacerbated this situation and any
attempt to analyse and evaluate the work context.
The strategic management of this municipality took an unexpected turn during May
and June 2008 when the management team were appointed i.e. IPED, Technical,
Corporate and Financial Department managers. As a very new strategic team, the
level of strategic direction was not as strong as it should have been and efforts are
underway to regain ground within this area having achieved a level of experience and
exposure as the management team.
The reality of this situation is that these departments have not yet achieved the
required levels of functionality and due to the fact that functions have been placed in
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departments where there is not the required competency to manage these, these
functions are not performed as required. Service delivery was and still is affected
dramatically as a direct result of this.
It must also be noted that functions have been placed in incorrect departments as
highlighted within the Organogram above and below (historical) – the Community
Services Department functions as a sub directorate under both the IPED and
Technical Services Department with functions being shared between the IPED
Manager and Technical Services Manager. For example: Health Services, Libraries and
Amenities have been placed under IPED Department, during 2007/2008 this situation
prevailed but same functions were housed in the Corporate Services Department,
whereas these are now logically grouped under Community Services, but not an ideal
situation as a Sub Directorate. Many other examples exist and are indicated further
as follows:
•

The IPED Department manages many functions relating to Community
Services

•

Traffic Services (Law Enforcement) appears almost as a stand-alone
department on existing organizational structure and is placed separately in
Community Services department but managed by the IPED Department.

•

The administrative section of Traffic (eNATIS) was transferred from the
Finance –Budget & Treasury Department to the Community Services sub
directorate under management of the IPED Manager.

•

Note: The many overlaps indicated and dual reporting relationships have
been addressed during the year under review, progress has been made with
realignment and review of the organogram to suitability address these issues
highlighted plans to were put in place to review the organisational structure
to ensure that it is in line with the new political mandate and service delivery
targets. Interventions initiated, to ensure that Service delivery Departments
and the functionality of the whole administration improve.
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FUNCTIONAL STRUCTURE
MUNICIPAL
MANAGER

IPED
DEPARTMENT

TECHNICAL
SERVICES
DEPARTMENT

FINANCIAL
SERVICES
DEPARTMENT
(BUDGET & TREASURY)

CORPORATE
SERVICES
DEPARTMENT

COMMUNITY SERVICES
DEPARTMENT
(SUB DIRECTORATE
OF TECHNICAL & IPED
DEPARTMENTS)

φ
φ
φ
φ
φ
φ
φ

φ
φ

φ

Social
Development
Environmental
Management
Programme
Health
Services/HIV
and Aids
Traffic (Law
Enforcement
Management
Traffic
Administration
(eNatis)
Cleansing
Services (Grass
Cutting, street
cleaning,
maintenance
Sportsfields,
parks & open
spaces etc)
Commonage &
Pound
Management
Libraries and
Amenities
(Halls)
Management
Health
Services/HIV
and Aids

φ
φ
φ
φ

φ
φ

φ
φ

IDP
LED
Tourism
IDP related
facilitation of
housing
projects
Agriculture
development
Solid waste and
associated
Cleansing
(Grass Cutting,
street cleaning,
maintenance
sportsfields,
parks & open
spaces etc)
Commonage &
Pound
Housing

φ

φ
φ
φ
φ
φ
φ
φ

φ

φ
φ
φ
φ
φ

Water &
Sanitation
Services
Provider
Roads
Electricity
Sanitation
Town Planning
Building Control
Spatial
Development
Solid waste and
associated
Cleansing
Services (Grass
Cutting, street
cleaning,
maintenance
sportsfields,
parks & open
spaces etc)
Commonage &
Pound
Facilitation of
Housing

φ
φ
φ

Note:
(Department not
functional – functions
are shared amongst
other Departments
(Functions of Spatial
Development, Housing
and Refuse removal are
shared between the
IPED & Technical
Services Manager

Note:
(Functions of Spatial
Development, Housing
and Refuse removal are
shared between the
IPED & Technical
Services Manager
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Income
Accounting
Expenditure
Budget
Management
Programmes
Supply Chain
Management
Procurement
and Supply
Chain
Internal Audit
and
Information
Technology

φ
φ
φ
φ
φ
φ
φ
φ

Administration
Records &
Archives
Human
Resources
Skills
Development
Council Support
Legal Support
Transport
Management
Organisational
Development
and
Performance
Occupational
Health

1.5(c) THE INTEGRATED DEVELOPMENT PLAN IDP
In compliance with Section 34 of the Municipal Systems Act (Act No 32 of
2000), together with Chapter 2 of the Local Government: Municipal
Planning and Performance Management Regulations, No R796/2001,
Sakhisizwe Municipality completed its first IDP in 2002.
It is a strategic planning instrument that guides and informs all
municipal development in the Municipality. It is the key instrument
that enables the municipality to work towards achieving its
development goals as outlined in the Constitution. It consists of a longterm vision. It details the development priorities and objectives that
contribute toward achieving this vision. It reflects strategies,
which are underwritten by the details in the Budget, which must
be linked to the IDP
A primary objective remains to ensure that all members of the community
receive a basic level of service.
It takes a range of sectors, development activities and actors into
consideration. It also adopts a holistic approach to the tools available to
undertake such a process of planning and, on this basis, attempts to construct
linkages between financial planning, infrastructure investment planning,
service delivery and inter-governmental relations.
IDP is a way of maximising the impacts of all developmental interventions that
government makes.
Poverty Reduction

Sustainable
Services

Poverty Reduction

Social &
Accountable
Community
Economic
Involvement
Government
Development
(partnerships)
Delivery on Objects of Local Government

Poverty Reduction

Safe & Healthy
Environment

IMPLEMENTATION SYSTEMS
Monitoring
(Performance)

IDP

Institutional
Capacity Building

Community
Participation

Analysis
Approval
Strategy
Projects

Integrated
Budget

5 PHASE DRAFTING PROCESS
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The IDP is an essential strategic management tool that drives and focuses the
strategic and operational functioning of Sakhisizwe Municipality. It provides
an integrated, long-term vision for the Municipality, which also enables the
Municipality to meets its developmental goals as outlined within the
Constitution. The IDP document contains the departmental goals and
objectives and incorporates cross-cutting issues.
Identified projects in the IDP are assigned to a specific department of the
Municipality. The Manager of that specific department takes primary
responsibility for the implementation of the project assigned to his /her
department. Input is required from other departments, but it still remains the
responsibility of the department that has been assigned with the primary
responsibility to ensure the project is implemented.
Purpose of Integrated Development Planning
∗

To speed up the delivery of basic services and to ensure that such service
delivery is appropriate in terms of scale and standard of service; and

∗

To provide a financial, institutional and spatial framework for economic
and social development within a Municipality.

The IDP is regarded as a strategic document that is required to change, in
order to accommodate changes in circumstances. It is therefore legislated
that the IDP is reviewed annually and that with the appointment of each new
Council, that a completely new IDP is approved.
As per the provisions of the Municipal Systems Act 32 of 2000 (s34) and the
MFMA, the Municipality initiated the review of the IDP in conjunction with the
2008/2009-budget process.
The key issues for Sakhisizwe Municipality relate to:
Financial Viability
In order for Sakhisizwe to achieve and continue to achieve its mandate, it
needs to maintain financial viability and expand its revenue in relation
to costs. Whilst most of Sakhisizwe’s financial fundamentals have
shown improvement, as well as a level of financial stability and
predictability within the operating budget, there remain serious issues
to be addressed.
Institutional Capacity
Sakhisizwe was established in December 2000 and its establishment
brought together the Transitional Local Authorities of Elliot and Cala, as
well as the rural areas. Since then, substantial work has been
undertaken to structure and re-orientate the municipality on an
operational level.
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SOURCE: SAKHISIZWE: IDP: 2006 / 2011

PHASE 1: ANALYSIS
Compiling Existing
Data

Meetings with Community
and Stakeholder
Representatives

Agreeing on Priority
Issues

Analysing the Context
of Priority Issues

PHASE 2: STRATEGIES

Agreeing on a vision and on objectives

Debate and decision-making on
appropriate strategies

Considering the relevance and
application of policy guidelines in
the local context

PHASE 3: PROJECTS
Formulation of project proposals

PHASE 4: INTEGRATION

Compilation of integrated
programmes

Screening, adjusting,
consolidating and agreeing on
project proposals

PHASE 5: APPROVAL

Inviting and incorporating
comments

Adoption by the council
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The IDP Steering Committee is comprised of a number of stakeholders:
Internal




The Municipal Manager
The IPED Manager
Members of the IDP steering Committee
External
IDP Stakeholders
IDP Representative Forum
Sectors Departments
PIMSS
Intergovernmental Representative Forum (monthly)







The IDP Steering Committee is comprised of the following stakeholders:
Internal




The Municipal Manager
The IPED Manager
Members of the IDP steering Committee
External







IDP Stakeholders
IDP Representative Forum
Sectors Departments
PIMSS
Intergovernmental Representative Forum (monthly)

Public Participation
When reviewing the IDP, the representative forum and outreach programme
served as the primary vehicle for consultation and public participation. Public
participation the period under review has not been conducted at this required
level and has been conducted mainly through Ward Committee Meetings in
conjunction with Community Development Workers. There were no other
mechanisms of involving the community in the affairs of the municipality except
through interaction between councillors and their constituencies. This does pose
a challenge to the municipality on how best to meet its legislative mandate
especially given lack of information on the effectiveness and these committees.

The needs to improve the effectiveness of ward committees and implement
ward based planning will be pursued in the 2008/2009 financial year.
32

During 2008/2009 from an initial “2 ward involvement”, the municipality
experienced 7 ward meetings that were held during the IDP Review and Budget
process (although minimal input was obtained);
From the communications and public participation perspectives it must be
noted that branding materials have been developed and are successfully
utilized for community outreach programmes

It must be noted that no planned IDP projects were implemented during
2008/2009 due to the financial crisis faced by the Municipality. Twenty projects
were registered with MIG, perhaps the most noticeable being the new Cala
Road between Pep stores to Cala Hospital. Funding remains a challenge
notwithstanding the support received.
Notwithstanding, Sakhisizwe Municipality continues to show commitment
towards its IDP objectives and in so doing, to ensure that it accurately meets
the needs of its community. However, due to the difficulties currently
experienced in respect of finances, administration and governance, which in
turn impact on the operational functioning, the meeting of these objectives
remains a enormous challenge. Notwithstanding this, and recognizing these
challenges, Sakhisizwe, are confident that they can overcome them. With the
recent appointments of key strategic personnel s57 Managers) and through the
Performance Management System, Sakhisizwe are able to measure progress,
identify gaps and develop interventions so that our performance will meet
the expectations of the political leadership and community, as reflected
in the IDP and other key municipal strategic documents.
Some of the challenges which confronted us during the period under review
include the need for better integration between different departments and
Administrative Units especially Technical Services, IPED and Community
Services who deal with service delivery and administrative challenges with
regard to Housing and Land and Human Resources.
We will continue to improve our IDP to ensure that it is reflective of community
needs. Furthermore, we also plan to review our organisational structure to
ensure that it is in line with the new political mandate and our service delivery
targets. Interventions have been initiated to ensure that our Service delivery
Departments and the functionality of the whole administration improve.
Appropriate administrative systems, structures and procedures are being
improved so that we can make an even bigger dent in poverty and
unemployment, in line with national service delivery targets.
We will continue to work together with all other spheres of government in
finding solutions to the challenges confronting us. This will be done
collectively with our community.

33

PLANNED IDP PROJECTS: 2008/2009
IDP projects identified to be implemented for the FY 2008/2009, the schedule incorporates all previously identified projects / strategies that were
listed in the initial IDP. Projects are identified by the legend as depicted below.
LEGEND
DORT = DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORT
PC = PROJECT CONSOLIDATE
FMG = FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GRANT
MSIG = MUNICIPAL SYSTEMS IMPROVEMENT GRANT
DPLG = DEPARTMENT OF PROVINCIAL LOCAL GOVERNMENT
SM = SAKHISIZWE MUNICIPALITY
DWAF = DEPARTMENT OF WATER AFFAIRS & FORESTRY
SDF = SPATIAL DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK
CHDM = CHRIS HANI DISTRICT MUNICIPALITY

Light Blue = Project in Planning stages – No Funding

ITEM

Green = funded Projects
Orange = funded with no Targets - progress
Grey = Projects: DPLG
Tables in Yellow: Sector Department Projects
Generally no specific target is set other the an indication of the
FY (2008/2009)

LOCALITY 2008-9

2009-10

2010-11

FUNDER

Ward 5

0

0

0

PUBLIC
WORKS

SM

0

0

0

SM

Ward 5
Ward 2

0

0
0

0

DRT

CONSULTANT

TIMEFRAME

STATUS

2008 – 2009

Planning

TCN

2008 – 2009

Planning

TBA

2008- 2009
2008 – 2008

Planning
Tender

LAND & BUILDINGS
Office
accommodation &
Council Chamber
Rehabilitation of
Town Hall &
Municipal Manager’s
House
Home Affairs Offices
Traffic Offices
Upgrading
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ITEM

LOCALITY 2008-9

2009-10

2010-11

FUNDER

2,000,000

2,000,000

CHDM
/MIG
DORT

CONSULTANT

TIMEFRAME

STATUS

2008/2009

In progress

2008 - 2009

In progress

MBSA

2008 - 2009

Planning

MBSA

2008 – 2009

Planning

2008 – 2009

ROADS &
STORMWATER
Cala Ext 13-15 roads
and storm water
Tsengiwe 3 km regravelling
Tyelibokhwe Access
Road
Tyelibokwe – Nyalasa
15 km re-graveling
Maxhongo's Hoek
Access Road
Maxhongo's Bridge
Farms Access Roads
Manzimdaka To Clinic
Access Road
New Rest Access
Road
New Rest Access
Road
Street Names
Cofimvaba –
Askeaton 54 km regravelling

500,000
1,000,000
Ward 6

0

0

0

4,200,000
Ward 2
Ward 2
Ward 1
Ward 5

DORT
0

0
1100000

0

MBSA

2008 – 2009

0

MBSA

2008 – 2009

Planning

0

0

MBSA

2008 – 2009

Planning

0

200000

0

Ward 4

0

Ward 4
0

11,500,000

MIG

In progress
Planning
Planning

0

Ward 1

MIG

DORT

Planning

DORT
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2008 -2009

Planning

ITEM

LOCALITY 2008-9

2009-10

2010-11

FUNDER

CONSULTANT

TIMEFRAME

STATUS

Manzimdaka To Clinic
Access Road
New Rest Access
Road
Gubenxa 17 km regravelling

Ward 5

0

0

DORT

MBSA

2008 – 2009

Planning

0

0

MBSA

2008 – 2009

Planning

Cala EXT 13,14, 15
Roads & Storm
Water

Ward 5

0

0

9 000 000

2008 - 2009

Started

Ncalukeni Water
Supply
Lapesini Water
Supply
Water

Ward 6

0

0

0

2008 - 2009

Planning

Ward 5

0

0

0

2008 - 2009

Planning

Ward 1

0

0

0

MIG

NOT YET
APPOINTED

2008 - 2009

Planning

Ndyavu Water Supply
Gubenxa - Cengcu ,
Maxongo's Hoek &
Ekuphumleni Water
Supply
Water Supply
Sigangeni Water
Supply
Rhaleni - Mahlungulu
Water Supply
Emazizini Water
Supply

Ward 6
Ward 2

0
0

0
0

0
0

MIG

NOT YET
APPOINTED

2008 - 2009
2007 - 2008

Planning
Planning

Ward 3
Ward 6

0
0

0
0

0
0

MIG

SINTEC

2008 - 2009
2008- 2009

Ongoing
Planning

Ward 6

0

0

0

2008 - 2009

Planning

Ward 6

0

0

0

2008 - 2009

Planning

1100000

Ward 4
5,500,000

MIG
CHDM

WATER

36

ITEM

LOCALITY 2008-9

2009-10

2010-11

FUNDER

CONSULTANT

TIMEFRAME

STATUS

Ward 1

0

0

0

MIG

NOT YET
APPOINTED

2008 - 2009

Planning

484,819

2,500,000

1,500,000

CDM MIG

2008 - 2009

In progress

2008 - 2009

Planning

2008 - 2009
2008 - 2009
2008- 2009
2008- 2009

Planning
Planning
Planning
Planning

WATER
Water
Elliot Water
Treatment Works
SEWERAGE /SEWAGE
Upgrading Of Elliot
Sewerage Ponds

Ward 2

0

0

0

Sanitation
500 V.I.P. Toilets
Public Toilets
Provision Of Toilets
In Rural Areas
Sanitation
Gubenxa - Cengcu,
Maxongo's Hoek &
Ekuphumleni
Sanitation
Sanitation
Cala Sewerage Phase
2&3
Elliot Water
Treatment Works

Ward 1
Ward 5 & 6
SM
Ward 4

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

MIG

Ward 1
Ward 2

0
0

0
0

0
0

MIG

2008 - 2009
2008 - 2009

Planning
Planning

Ward 1
Ward 5

0
0

0
0

0
0

MIG

2008 - 2009
2008 - 2009

Planning
Planning

3 000 000

CHDM

2008 -2011

Planning

Ward 1

DWAF
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ITEM

LOCALITY 2008-9

2009-10

2010-11

FUNDER

CONSULTANT

TIMEFRAME

STATUS

HOUSING
1000 houses in Elliot
Rural Housing
85 Disaster Houses
5,6,2,1,7,4

DHLGT
3,000,000

Planning

DHLGT

ELECTRICITY
Elliot - Phola Park (
electrification of 850
Houses )

Ward 1

0

0

0

200 8- 2009

Planning

WARD 5

0

0

0

2008 - 2009

In progress

2008 - 2009

Planning

STREET LIGHTS
Upgrading Of Cala
Streetlights
Upgrading of bulk
Electricty in Elliot
Upgrading of Elliot Bulk
Supply lines 66/22 CV

WARD 2

3 000 000

DME

3,000,000

2008 -2009

LOCAL ECONOMIC
DEVELOPMENT
Four Nguni Bulls per
ward
Fencing of camps in
Urban areas
EPWP greenig & land
regabilitation
Shearing Sheds - Cala
Pass, Tsengiwe,
Manzimdaka, Tiwane
Lower Lufuta Youth
Project Community
Garden
Expansion Of
Monument Site

SM

1 000 000

CHDM

2008 - 2009

1,000,000

DOGLA/SM

7,000,000

DEAT

Planning
Planning

Ikamva

SM

0

0

0

2008- 2009

Planning

WARD 6

0

0

0

2008 - 2009

Planning

WARD 5

0

0

0

2008 - 2009

Planning

DSRAC

NOT YET
APPOINTED
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ITEM

LOCALITY

2008-9

2009-10

2010-11

FUNDER

Development Centre
Sinethemba Project
Massive Food
Production
Siyakhula Youth
Project
Hawkers Shelters
Led Strategy
Masithembe
Beadwork & Craft CoOp
Wattle Projects
Revitalisation At
Lower Cala Peach
Project
Waste Management
Bus Stop Shelters

WARD 1
WARD 5
SM

0
0

1000000
0
0

0
0

DoA
DoA

WARD 6

0

0

WARD 3 & 6
SM
WARD 5 & 6

0
0
0

WARD 6
WARD 4

TIMEFRAME

STATUS

2008 - 2009
2008 - 2009

Planning
Planning
Planning

0

2008 - 2009

Planning

0
0
0

0
0
0

2008 - 2009
2008 - 2009
2008 - 2009

Planning
Planning
Planning

0

0

0

2008 - 2009
2008 - 2009

Planning
Planning

SM
WARD 1

0

0
1000000

0

2008 - 2009

Planning
Planning

Taxi Rank & Bus Rank

WARD 5

0

0

0

2008 - 2009

Planning

Business Hives
Shelters Taxi Rank
Dipping Tanks
Fencing Of Arable
Land Upper Mnxe,
Tsengiwe,
Sifonondile

WARD 3 & 5
WARD 6
WARD 2 & 4
SM

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

2008 - 2009
2008 - 2009
2008 - 2009
2008 - 2009

Planning
Planning
Planning
Planning

DOT
CHDM

SM /CHDM
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CONSULTANT

NOT YET
APPOINTED
NOT YET
APPOINTED

ITEM

LOCALITY 2008-9

Soil Preservation

WARD 3

500000

2009-10

Provision of
Cemetries
Fencing of Solid
Waste
Truck for the Pound
Fencing of
Commonage
Establishment Of
Quarries
Regravelling of 13 km
Lower Langanci

SM

0

0

WARD 1 & 5

0

WARD 5,1,2
WARD 5

2010-11

FUNDER

CONSULTANT

TIMEFRAME

STATUS

DOA

NOT YET
APPOINTED

2008 - 2009

Planning

0

2008 - 2009

Planning

0

0

2008 - 2009

Planning

0

0

0

2008 -2009
2008 - 2009

Planning
Planning

SM

0

0

0

2008 -2009

Planning

SM

3 500 000

DORT

2008 - 2009

Planning

WARD 1

5000000

DOE

WARD 1

1000000

DOE

WARD 4

0

WARD 1

0

DORT
DoA

SCHOOLS
Phola Park ( 0 - Grade
12 )
Upgrading Of School
( Tsomo Valley )
Construction Of High
School Sifonondile
Fet College

0

0

NOT YET
APPOINTED
NOT YET
APPOINTED
NOT YET
APPOINTED
NOT YET
APPOINTED

DOE
DOE
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Planning
Planning
2007 - 2008

Planning
Planning

ITEM

LOCALITY 2008-9

2009-10

2010-11

Cultural Village
Community Hall
Cala Reserve
Community Hall
Hillview Community
Hall
Old Township
Community Hall
Old Age Home
Community Hall
Orphanage Home

WARD 5
WARD 5
WARD 4

0
0

0
0

0
0

WARD 2

0

0

WARD 2

0

WARD 2
WARD 6
WARD 1

Lower Lufuta
Community Hall
Sports & Social
Facilities
Cala Pass Community
Hall

WARD 2

FUNDER

TIMEFRAME

STATUS

2008 - 2009
2008 - 2009

Planning
Planning

0

2008 - 2009

Planning

0

0

2008 - 2009

Planning

1000000
0
1000000

0

2008 - 2009
2008 - 2009

Planning

0

0

0

2008 - 2009

Planning

2008 - 2009

Planning

2008 - 2009

Planning

SOCIAL DEV.

CONSULTANT

NOT YET
APPOINTED

0

WARD 3

NOT YET
APPOINTED

WARD 3

200 000

SM

WARD 1 & 5

0

0

0

2008 - 2009

Planning

WARD 4

0

0

0

2008 - 2009

Planning

SPORTSFIELD
Sportfield Equipment
And Maintenance
CLINICS
Beestekraal Ekuphumleni
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ITEM

LOCALITY 2008-9

2009-10

2010-11

FUNDER

CONSULTANT

Mhlwazi Clinic
Health ( Clinic )

WARD 4
WARD 3

0
0

0
0

DOH

NOT YET
APPOINTED

Qolombeni Traditional
Hall
Zikhonkwane Clinic
Mnxe Clinic

Ward 4

0
1000000

WARD 3
Ward

0
5 500 000

0

SM
SM
SM
SM
SM
SM
SM
SM

8 000 000
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

SM

220,000

0

0

TIMEFRAME

STATUS

2008 - 2009
2008 - 2009

In progress
Planning

SM

2008 - 2009

Planning

DOH

2008 – 2009
2008 - 2009

Planning
Planning

DBSA/SM

2008 - 2009
2008 - 2009
2008 - 2009
2008 - 2009
2008 - 2009
2008 - 2009
2008 - 2009
2008 - 2009
2008 - 2009

Planning
Planning
Planning
Planning
Planning
Planning
Planning
Planning
Planning

DLG &TA

2008 – 2009

Planning

0

PLANT & EQUIPMENT
Plant machinery
WATER CART
TIPPER TRUCK
FOOT ROLLER
BOMAG
WACKER
PLATE COMPACTOR
SAW CUTTER
BITUMEN SPRAY
DISASTER
MANAGEMENT ICT
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ITEM

LOCALITY 2008-9

2009-10

2010-11

FUNDER

SM

0

0

CONSULTANT

TIMEFRAME

STATUS

DLG & TA

2008 – 2009

Planning

150,000

DBSA/SM

2008 -2009

In progress

SM
SM

50,000
100,000
100,000
100,000
150,000
100,000
342,000
972,000
0
0

0
0

0
0

DLG &TA
DBSA/SM
DLG &TA
DLG &TA
DLG &TA
DLG &TA
DLG &TA
DLG &TA
SM
PC

2008 -2009
2008 -2009
2008 -2009
2008 -2009
2008 -2009
2008 -2009
2008 -2009
2008 -2009
2008 - 2009
2008 - 2009

SM

0

0

0

PC

2008 - 2009

Planning

SM

0

0

0

PC

2008 - 2009

Planning

SM

0

0

0

PC

2008 - 2009

Planning

SM

0

0

0

PC

2008 - 2009

Planning

MUNICIPAL SUPPORT
PROGRAMMES
General Valuation Of
Properties
Indigent Register & Exit
strategy on FBS
Policies
ICT
Books of account
Policies
Basic Service Delivery
Good governance
Financial viability
Cross cutting
Interim Valuation
Database Cleansing,
Debt Collection &
Revenue Enhancement
Institutional Capacity &
Database Free Basic
Services
Systems Security
Enhancements
Finance Policy
Implementation
Support & Maintenance
Contracts

SM

550,000
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In progress

Planning
Planning

ITEM

LOCALITY 2008-9

2009-10

2010-11

FUNDER

TIMEFRAME

STATUS

Compilation Of Annual
Financial Statements
Grap Compliant Asset
Register
Grap/Gamap Compliant
Annual Financial
Statements
Thompson Dam phase
one

SM

92,000

0

0

DLG &TA

2008 - 2009

Complete

SM

0

0

0

MSIG

2008 - 2009

Complete

SM

200000

0

0

MSIG

2008 - 2009

Complete

SM

2 000 000

DEAT

2008 - 2009

Planning

Cala Land Rehabilitation
and Greening
Honey sucker
Upgrading of taxi Ranks
Batandwa Ndondo
Museum
Formulation &
Development Of
Uniform By-Laws
Spatial Development
Framework
Cadastral Survey
Lay out plans
Review , Update &
Refinement Of Sdf
Special Programmes
Unit
IDP Review

SM

5 000 000

DEAT

2008 - 2009

Planning

SM
SM
SM

750 000 00

CHDM
CHDM
NHRC

2008 -2009
2008 - 2009
2008 -2009

Planning
Planning
Planning

SM

100,000

0

0

DLG &TA

2008-2009

In progress

SM

0

0

0

CHDM

2008 - 2009

Started

SM

0

0

DLG&TA

2008-2009

SM

412,500
340,000
0

0

0

PC

2008 – 2009

SM

200 000

2008 – 2009

SM

0

0

SECTOR
DEPTS
CHDM

0

CONSULTANT

Ikamva
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2008 - 2009

Started

Started

SECTOR DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS PLANNED
Objective Strategy
Targets Project Name
Child Care
and
Protection
Services

Training on early
childhood
development

Location

Ward
No

Main actions
2008-09

25

Nobuhle Preschool

Stokwe’s Basin

7

67500

Early child development

34
25
27
27

Masithembe Preschool
Nolitha Preschool
Nomthandazo Preschool
Ikhayalethu Preschool

Upper Tsengiwe
Tsengiwe A/A
Ndondo Square
Ndondo square

4
4
5
5

80784
59400
76032
64152

Early child development
Early child development
Early child development
Early child development

27
27
25
27
27

Nonceba Preschool
Little Star Preschool
Roma Preschool
Siyavuya Preschool
Nkqubela Preschool

7
2
4
7

64152
64152
59400
64152
64152

Early child development
Early child development
Early child development
Early child development
Early child development

25

Ikhwezi

Ethembeni Loc.
Takalani Loc.
Roma A/A
Mgwalana
Bumbana
Loc./Askeaton
Sfonondile

4

59400

Early child development

25

Good Hope Preschool

California

5

59400

Early child development
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Nomzamo Preschool

Vusukhanyo
Building

1

5892

Early child development

35

Qolombeni Preschool

Manzimahle

7

46200

Early child development

36

Masivuke Preschool

Askeaton A/A

7

65520

Early child development

27

Masakhe Preschool

Elliot/Polar Park

2

64152

Early child development

25

Siyavuya Preschool

Manzimdaka

59400

Early child development
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Objective

Strategy

Crime Social
Crime
Prevention
Victim
Empowerment
Program

Targ
ets

Project
Name

Location

27

Mlondolozi
Preschool

Cala Pass

3

64152

Early child development

25

Sizakhele Preschool

Askeaton /Cala

7

59400

Early child development

27

Malukhanye
Preschool

Zikhon
Kwane A/A

64152

Early child development

3

Ingxingwa Skills
Development
Project
Domestic Violence
Unit

Cala Town

5

233000

Crime prevention

Cala Town

5

184663

Domestic Violence

Yibanathi
Developmental
Foster

Elliot Old
Loc.

65000

Crime prevention

2

34

SiyahlumanHCBC

Sifonondile

4

556097

Care and Support to orphans and vulnerable child
due to HIV/Aids

15

Ithunga poultry
project

Manzimdaka

5

500,000

Youth development, sustainable live hood (cooperatives.Institutionarable building and food
security support program.

15

Nceduluntu
Confectionary &
Bakery

Cala Town

5

-

15

Lilitha brick-making

Zikhonkw
ane

5

-

25

Masisebenze food
Security

GubenxaElliot

3

Stokwe’s basin food
security

Ndwana

7

15

5

HIV/AIDS
Eradication
poverty and
promote
income
generating
program for
sustainable
development.

To promote
socio-economic
development and
integration.

25

Ward No

Main actions
2008-09

-

-
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Objective

Strategy

Targ
ets

Project
Name

Location

Ward
No

Main actions

Eradication
poverty and
promote
income
generating
program for
sustainable
development

To promote
socio-economic
development
and integration.

15

Tsomo valley
poultry project

Tsomo valley

2

-

15

Ikhwezi food
security

Cala Town

5

500 000

15

Nonkqubela
women
coop

Roma

4

500 000

25

Siyakhanyisa food
security

Askeaton

7

750 000

25

Khulanathi
Maxongo
food security

Maxongo’s Hoek

2

750 000

25

Siyazama food
security

Polar park-Elliot

2

750 000

25

Masibambisane
food security

Cala Reserve

4

750 000

15

Makukhanye
women coop

Upper Mnxe

4

500 000

15

Yizanisakhe
women coop

Elliot

1

500 000

2008-09
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Youth development, sustainable live hood (cooperatives. Institutionarable building and food security
support program

CHAPTER 2.

PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS
AND
SERVICE DELIVERY APPROACH
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2.1.

PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS
Sakhisizwe Municipality is involved in the provision of many and varied services to its
community. At times these services are provided independently and in other
instances, service provision is completed together with other organisations; spheres
of government; businesses; and/or non-governmental organisations.
This chapter will highlight the services provided by the various departments of
Sakhisizwe Municipality aligned according to National Indicators and will discuss
these within the following table provided :

SERVICE

DEVELOPMENT AND
SERVICE DELIVERY
PRIORITIES

INSTITUTIONAL
DEVELOPMENT &
TRANSFORMATION
COMMUNICATIONS &
CUSTOMER RELATIONS/
CUSTOMER CARE

•

•
MUNICIPAL MANAGER S
OFFICE

External
Communication
Improve customer
relations and
communication
(External & Internal)
Development and
implementation of
communications
strategy

PERFORMANCE
MEASURES AND
KEY SUCCESSES
•

Develop
Communication
Policy &
Communication
strategy &
review

CHALLENGES AND
OPPORTUNITIES

•
•

•
•

•
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Draft developed during year
under review
Presented to local
communicators form and
District communicators
forum
Slow progress in approving
the strategy &
implementation thereof
No committed budget /
Funding constraints &
support systems (staff,
computer software IT
Network) unreliable hence
affects customer relations re
information.
GCIS Communicator
providing support which has
improved Relations with
Government
communications and
information systems

SERVICE

INSTITUTIONAL
DEVELOPMENT &
TRANSFORMATION
Cont

DEVELOPMENT AND
SERVICE DELIVERY
PRIORITIES
•

Media Relations

PERFORMANCE
MEASURES AND
KEY SUCCESSES
•
•

MUNICIPAL MANAGER S
OFFICE

Develop Media
Policy
Establish /
Develop media
relationship in
the interest of
Developmental
Communications

CHALLENGES AND
OPPORTUNITIES
•
•
•
•

•

•

Engage with local
communities as to
their satisfaction
with services
rendered by the
Municipality
(Mayoral Outreach
Programme)

•

Mayoral
Outreach
Programmes

•

Currently public
participation
conducted
through Ward
Committees with
assistance of
Community
Development
Workers

•

•

•
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In progress ,under research
with assistance of GCIS
Established relationship with
Vukani
Successful community Radio
broadcast Presented live
Radio slots include
Information days &
information sessions
Communication through
Mayoral Outreach
Programmes Currently
facilitated through ward
committees such not at the
desired level.
Established local
communications forum with
representation from
Government (as per SALGA
guidelines)
Improved feedback from
communities & strenghting
timely proactive
communications
contributed to building
community confidence of
the Municipality
Branding Materials
developed for outreach

SERVICE

DEVELOPMENT
AND SERVICE
DELIVERY
PRIORITIES

PERFORMANCE
MEASURES AND
KEY
SUCCESSES

INSTITUTIONAL
DEVELOPMENT &
TRANSFORMATION
Cont

CHALLENGES AND
OPPORTUNITIES

•

MUNICIPAL MANAGER S
OFFICE
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Hosted state of Province Big
Screen in Sakhisizwe
Municipality at the Cala
Administrative Unit, in
partnership with Premiers
Office

SERVICE

INSTITUTIONAL
DEVELOPMENT &
TRANSFORMATION
Cont

DEVELOPMENT
AND SERVICE
DELIVERY
PRIORITIES

PERFORMANCE
MEASURES AND
KEY
SUCCESSES

CHALLENGES AND
OPPORTUNITIES

Internal communication
•

Internal
Communication
Strategy

•

MUNICIPAL MANAGER S
OFFICE

Develop &
strengthen
Internal
Communications

•
•
•

•
•

•
•
•

•

Dedicate staff /
support to deal with
Communication and
customer care
issues

•

•

•
•

Strategies to
implemented to
support the
communications
and customer
function

Complaints dealt
with informally –
no records managed
through verbal
instruction
No Monitoring –
follow up
procedure
Develop formal
register where
suggestions and
complaints can
be dealt with.
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•

Large reliance workplace
events
Internal meetings
Lack of Policy guidelines
Channels of communications
are disregarded by
Management and staff a like
Poor feedback in the
workplace
Communications needs to
be filtered throughout the
organisation
Communications Officer
Appointed
No dedicated funding
The high costs of printing
and advertising which limits
the production of
publications and adverts
Strategic notice boards in
the units are utilized for this
purpose

•

Investigate Mechanism to
be put in Monitoring –
follow up procedure

•

Plan to develop formal
register where suggestions
and complaints can be dealt
with.

SERVICE

INSTITUTIONAL
DEVELOPMENT &
TRANSFORMATION
Cont
MUNICIPAL MANAGER
S OFFICE &CFO

DEVELOPMENT
AND SERVICE
DELIVERY
PRIORITIES

•

Utilise the
Municipality’s
website as an
information,
education and
marketing portal

PERFORMANCE
MEASURES AND
KEY
SUCCESSES

•

Website utilised
effectively to
communicate,
educate and
market the
Municipality site

CHALLENGES AND
OPPORTUNITIES

•

•
•
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Website Launched in
2008/2009,the website is
currently not fully functional
and fully compliant with
requirements.
Digital line to be upgraded to
512 K – but network remains
unreliable
Planned to promote the
website & utilize the website
as a
communication/marketing
tool

SERVICE

INSTITUTIONAL
DEVELOPMENT &
TRANSFORMATION
Cont

DEVELOPMENT
AND SERVICE
DELIVERY
PRIORITIES

•

Implementation of
institutional
Performance
Management

PERFORMANCE
MEASURES AND
KEY SUCCESSES

•

•

PERFORMANCE
MANAGEMENT
MUNICIPAL MANAGER
S OFFICE

•
•
•

PMS framework
and Policy
Developed
•

CHALLENGES AND
OPPORTUNITIES

Strategic
Scorecard
Developed and
aligned to SDBIP
SDBIP developed
aligned to Budget - SDBIP requires to
be restructured
and proper aligned
to National
Indicators
Public participation
in PMS

•
•

Capacity constraints
SDBIP requires proper
alignment with National
Indicators

Developed/
requires review
ongoing review
and further
customization
Developed/
requires
review/customizati
on

•

Sakhisizwe for the year
under review adopted the
PMS System as regulated
in August 2006
PMS Framework & Policy
developed in line with
regulations, PMS Policy
workshopped and
approved
Framework requires
ongoing fine-tuning &
review to be developed
Communication strategy
Planned for 2009/2010 on
phasing in/extension of
PMS system
PMS System to be
cascaded to middle
management level
Capacity constraints

•

•
•

•

Plans in place to
phase-in system to
broader spectrum
of employee
Planned phased in
approach to
middle
management
levels
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•
•

SERVICE

INSTITUTIONAL
DEVELOPMENT &
TRANSFORMATION
Cont

DEVELOPMENT
AND SERVICE
DELIVERY
PRIORITIES
•

•

PERFORMANCE
MANAGEMENT
MUNICIPAL MANAGER
S OFFICE

•

PMS Scorecards
populated and
agreements
developed – aligned
to SDBIP
SDBIP indicators
restructured on the
scorecard according
to National Indictors
SDBIP aligned to
PMS

•

PMS /SDBIP Reporting

•

Performance
Evaluations &
Annual reporting

PERFORMANCE
MEASURES AND
KEY SUCCESSES
•

Developed for s57,
plans in place to
phase-in system to
broader spectrum
of employee

CHALLENGES AND
OPPORTUNITIES

•
•

•
•

PMS /SDBIP
reporting
(monitoring
quarterly)

•

•

Annual
Performance
reviews conducted
as required (as per
Approved PMS
policy in line with
PMS regulations)
PMS evaluation
Committee
appointed to
assess
performance
against KPA as
populated in
developed PMS
scorecards against
evidence portfolios

•

•
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•

PMS at s57 level
Agreements developed
PMS scorecards planned to
be developed at middle
management level in
2009/2010 FY
Quarterly Monitoring not
done
Poor performance not
managed (other than
through discipline) as
quarterly reporting and
PDP not done /
/interventions not put
place to address
shortcomings in
Performance

Annual PMS report drafted
– reporting on all areas of
Performance as per the
KPA /KPI`s on populated
scorecards - aligned to
SDBIP and achievement
/non achievement
/challenges deviations are
reported on together with
consolidated scores
Approved and ratified by
council

SERVICE

DEVELOPMENT
AND SERVICE
DELIVERY
PRIORITIES

INSTITUTIONAL
DEVELOPMENT &
TRANSFORMATION
Cont

PERFORMANCE
MEASURES AND
KEY
SUCCESSES
•

PERFORMANCE
MANAGEMENT

•

MUNICIPAL MANAGER
S OFFICE

•

Mid year
Performance
reporting & Annual
Performance
Reporting

•

CHALLENGES AND
OPPORTUNITIES

Results
consolidated and
attached to
ratings applied
as per PMS
Policy
PMS Bonuses (if
awarded) are
attached to
consolidated
score % bonus as
determined by
rating calculator

•

PDP`s not done /
/interventions not put place
to address shortcomings in
Performance

Mid year
performance
report (attached
to Performance

•

Mid year Performance
reporting complied with
(prepared by the CFO with
inputs from Senior
Management –
Annual performance
reporting of individual
performance. DPLG requirements are financially
aligned

•

•

PMS Auditing

•

Not appointed –
currently

•
•
•
•
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Formal PMS audit committee
to be established
Shared function with CHDM
Reliance on CHDM
Absence of PMS Auditing
other than by Internal
Auditor

SERVICE

INSTITUTIONAL
DEVELOPMENT &
TRANSFORMATION
Cont

DEVELOPMENT AND
SERVICE DELIVERY
PRIORITIES

•

MUNICIPAL MANAGER S
OFFICE &ALL S57
MANAGERS

Employment Equity
and skills
development policies
and plans are in place
and reporting
performed as
legislated

PERFORMANCE
MEASURES AND KEY
SUCCESSES

•
•

Legal compliance
Employment Equity
Policy and progress
report as per
legislation

CHALLENGES AND
OPPORTUNITIES

•

•

•

ACCOUNTABILITY
CORPORATE SERVICES
EMPLOYMENT EQUITY
& SKILLS
DEVELOPMENT

•
•
•
•
•
•

•

SWP Plan and
implementation plans
submitted to
LGWSETA

Plan to develop EE Policy
and Annual progress
reports to council -- No EE
policy in place.
Compliance achieved in
respect of Progress
reporting in the legislated
format to EE Registry for
2008/2009 FY
Plans in place to provide
support in correct
reporting in EE as it could
result in penalties
Lack of Capacity
Post of HR Officer Vacant
for one year
Lack of understanding
Lack of consultation
Lack of input from all
HOD’s & staff
Maintenance/
monitoring
reporting

•

Legal compliance
Training
programmes
implemented – not
contributed to staff
development – lack
skills – staff sent on
incorrect training

•

SWP Plan and bi annual
implementation progress
reports - complied with
during 2008/2009 financial
year

•

Management (x1),
Municipal Manager
and Mayor sent on
Management
Development
Programme

•

Development programmes
in place (MM discontinued
due to operational reasons

•

ABET Training
beneficiary 42 staff
members

•

ABET Training Programme
continues in 2008/2009 FY

•

Dedicated Training
Budget

•

No dedicated training
budget - reliance on grant
funding
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SERVICE

INSTITUTIONAL
DEVELOPMENT &
TRANSFORMATION
Cont

(TECHNICAL)
TOWN PLANNING &
BUILDING
CONTROL
(Part of Technical
administrative
service)

DEVELOPMENT AND
SERVICE DELIVERY
PRIORITIES

• To create an
efficient spatial
settlement pattern
• To enforce building
regulations Application of
legislative issues
• Control of land use
• Building safety
• Environmental
protection
• Spatial development

PERFORMANCE
MEASURES & KEY
SUCCESSES

•

•

•
•
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Developed a
spatial
development
framework
Approval and
rezoning done in
conjunction with
District
Municipality
(Chris Hani)
Planned upgrade
and formalize
rural settlements
Plan to facilitate
an investor
friendly
environment
related to land
tenure

CHALLENGES &
OPPORTUNITIES

•

Required to
implement spatial
development
framework

•

Develop land use
management plan and
land settlement plan

•

Prioritize land use
practices and planning

•

Prioritize land
reform/tenure

•

Plan, programme and
link services and
supply networks to
optimize efficiency

•

Access roads to
properties

•

Lack of adequate
houses. Critical to
ensure construction of
quality houses which
are effectively funded
by DPLG.

•

Enforce building
regulations

•

Building Control
Officer to be
appointed

•

9 building plans
approved -increased
in revenue

SERVICE

DEVELOPMENT AND
SERVICE DELIVERY
PRIORITIES

PERFORMANCE
MEASURES & KEY
SUCCESSES

INSTITUTIONAL
DEVELOPMENT &
TRANSFORMATION
Cont

CHALLENGES &
OPPORTUNITIES

•
•
•
•

•

•

•

(TECHNICAL)

To ensure
formulation of an
integrated and
sustainable
disaster
management plan

•

Planned to
formulate a
Disaster
Management
Plan in
partnership with
CHDM and
Provincial
Government

DISASTER
MANAGEMENT
•

Working CHDM
to establish
Disaster
Management
Centre with
necessary
equipment and
facilities
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•

•

Office space and
equipment needed
Vehicle needed
Separate budget for
town planning and
building control
Zoning maps
needed -Community
land issues need to
be legally solved
More land for
development
departments not
liaising with the
municipality before
developments are
implemented
Hailstorm disaster
destroyed 85 RDP
structures.
Total cost
R174Million.
Partially destroyed
96 households
R52 641 Thousand –
2% for damaged roofs
and windows require
R7 897 to repair
damage
Planned project 85
Disaster Houses to
were planned to be
built during
2007/2008 FY –
carried over to
2008/2009 FY
R3 Mill allocated –
DPLG allocate
Finances -- DPLG
administered &
funded

SERVICE

DEVELOPMENT AND
SERVICE DELIVERY
PRIORITIES

PERFORMANCE
MEASURES & KEY
SUCCESSES

INSTITUTIONAL
DEVELOPMENT &
TRANSFORMATION
Cont

CHALLENGES &
OPPORTUNITIES

•

Damage to roads –
estimate damage
R10, 5Million

•

Carry out
Awareness
Programmes/
Campaigns
Counselling
Services to
victims

•

Lack integrated
approach to Disaster
Management within
municipal area

•

Encourage
CHDM to
undertake risk
vulnerability
assessment

•

Lack of risk
mitigation measures
on disaster prone
areas
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SERVICE

DEVELOPMENT AND
SERVICE DELIVERY
PRIORITIES

INSTITUTIONAL & •
INFRASTRUCTURE
DEVELOPMENT
BUDGET &
TREASURY:
IT

•
•

•

•

Upgrade IT
infrastructure and
provide required
financial system

Provide IT Support
to all users
Training of IT
System

One network
printer in Cala

Develop Municipal
website

PERFORMANCE
MEASURES AND KEY
SUCCESSES

CHALLENGES AND
OPPORTUNITIES
•

Network
upgraded

DBSA appointed to
integrate IT System

•

•

Training has
commenced

•

Young
Professional
DBSA
Internal Skilled IT
Practitioner

•

Procure IT
Infrastructure

•

•

Planned – roll
implementation

•

Planned to purchase
hardware and
software (SEBATA)
upgrade

•

•

Planned development

•
•

•
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Lack of access to
IT Infrastructure
IT infrastructure
procured
Upgrading of
digital line from
64 K TO 512 K –
completed in the
2008/2009
financial year achieved
(network
coverage
unreliable reliance on
Telkom)
Website
developed &
operational
requires ongoing
review and
updates -marketing of the
website.

SERVICE

DEVELOPMENT
AND SERVICE
DELIVERY
PRIORITIES

PERFORMANCE
MEASURES AND
KEY
SUCCESSES

CHALLENGES AND
OPPORTUNITIES

GOVERNANCE &
PUBLIC
PARTICIPATION
ACCESS TO
INFORMATION

IDP

•

Access to
Information Policy

•

Planned
Development of
Policy

•

Status Quo - not achieved
Remains a legislative
prescription re access to
information are not met
Service Provider appointed
to assist in development of
same

•

Management &
implementation of
integrated IDP

•

Undertake IDP
review /budget
process
IDP developed
and reviewed
annually
Budget Policy
Approved
Plans aligned to
budget and
SDBIP’S.
Timeous Project
(IDP) Planning to
enhance
implementation
of and financial
expenditure
Strategic Plan –
developed and
implemented phased in
approach
2008/2009

•
•

IDP Review completed
Service delivery and
budget implementation
plans and Budget Policy
developed
IDP aligned to the Budget
& SDBIP
CFO has Put in place
mechanism on Reporting,
evaluation and monitoring
/stability within B&T Dept
All reporting is done as per
the legislated timeframes
SP – Delloite assisted B &T
Dept
Strategies continued to be
implemented during
2008/2009 financial year
and will continue in
2009/2010

•
•
•
•

•
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•
•

•
•
•

SERVICE

DEVELOPMENT
AND SERVICE
DELIVERY
PRIORITIES

PERFORMANCE
MEASURES AND KEY
SUCCESSES

CHALLENGES AND
OPPORTUNITIES

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE &
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION cont

•

Municipal Managers Office

Ensuring that
Governance issues
are processed
correctly

•

Establish Internal Audit
Committee to enhance
internal Controls and
receive improved Audit
report

•
•

•

Implement Plan for
good governance

•

Internal Controls

•

Codes of Conduct

•

Codes of conduct as per
MSA advocated
/circulated
/workshopped

•

Ongoing / Presented

•

Implementation of
Delegation Register
– roles and
responsibilities

•

Develop delegations
register

•

Did not occur as planned
in 2007/2008
Service Provider
appointed 2008/2009
Funding constraints
Planned to be
implemented during
2009/2010 FY

•

•
•

•

•

Risk Management
Plans

•
•

RISK MANAGEMENT

Fraud Prevention Policy
Anti –Fraud and
Corruption Measures to
be introduced

•

•
•

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

Internal Auditor
appointed
Shared Internal Audit
functions with function
with CHDM
Addressed – specially
in relation to financial
environment

•

•

Compliance with
statutory
requirements for
participatory
democracy and
ethical standards
Functional ward
committees

•

Implement control
document on meeting
requirements in terms
of chapter 4 of the
systems Act Plan for
Public Participation

•

•
•
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Policy developed Requires proper
implementation and
measures to be
introduced In Progress
- not in place – pursued
2009/2010
Appointment of SP
Control document in
place
Enhancing Community
participation s by
Engaging communities
through Mayoral
Outreach Programmes
whilst Undertaking IDP
review /budget
process
Functional ward
committees in place &
trained
Compliance in regards
to statutory
requirements for
democracy & ethical
standards

SERVICE

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE & PUBLIC
PARTICIPATION cont

DEVELOPMENT
AND SERVICE
DELIVERY
PRIORITIES

•

Annual report/
Oversight and MidYear Performance
reports submitted
as a legal
requirements

•

•

Reviewed and
approved
Organogram

•

•

Efficient
organizational
structure

GENERAL ADMINISTRATION

ORGANIZATIONAL
RESTRUCTURING/
RATIONALIZATION & OTHER
ORGANIZATIONAL
MANAGEMENT

PERFORMANCE
MEASURES AND
KEY SUCCESSES

•

CHALLENGES AND
OPPORTUNITIES

Legal compliance
and accurate
reference material
Compliance with
relevant legislation

•

Appointment of
Key personnel to
contribute to
improved service
delivery

•

•

•

•
•

•
•
•
•

•

•

Stabilization of
Administration

•
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Retention strategy
/ Policy to be
developed

•

Approved Annual and
Oversight report by
legislated timeframe
Compliance met in
regard to submission
of Annual and
Oversight report

Service Provider
Appointed during
2008/2009 FY by Dept
Housing, Local Govt &
Traditional affairs
Organogram reviewed
& approved - requires
implementation &
funding
Strategic posts not
filled
Attraction of skill –
poor remuneration –
low graded
Municipality
Capacity
Funding constraints
Affects service delivery
Staff perform a
multiple of tasks – not
related / shared
functions between
Depts
Functions are being
performed by
employees who do not
have the capacity to
fulfil same
Scarcity of skills policy
/retention strategy
developed during year
under review to
address to address
skills shortages and to
deal staff retention

DEVELOPMENT AND
SERVICE DELIVERY
PRIORITIES

PERFORMANCE
MEASURES AND KEY
SUCCESSES

CHALLENGES AND
OPPORTUNITIES

•

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE & PUBLIC
PARTICIPATION cont

•
•
•

ORGANIZATIONAL
RESTRUCTURING/
RATIONALIZATION &
OTHER ORGANIZATIONAL
MANAGEMENT cont

•

HR Strategy

•

Skills / Human
Capital shortages
Procurement of
Staff

•

Development of HR
Strategy and
Interventions to ensure
functional
Administration and HR

•

Procurement of Staff

TOR for Scarcity of
skills committee
developed
Scarcity skill committee
to be appointed
Turnaround strategies
to be put in place
Capacity Building
Programmes
introduced

•

Hr Strategy in
Progress

•

Reviewal of
provisioning policy (in
line with applicable
legislation

•

Fund strategic
posts
Fill posts

•
•

HR operating
Manuals

•

Develop Standard
HR Operating
/procedure
manuals

•

Recruitment &
Selection Manual
developed –
2008/2009 -further
manuals to follow in
FY 2009/2010

•

Strategic
management of
Contracts and
agreements, plans
and Policies

•

Legal compliance
Review and
update contracts
agreements,
Plans and Policies

•

All contracts Plans
and key HR Polices
are reviewed and
Place
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SERVICE

DEVELOPMENT AND
SERVICE DELIVERY
PRIORITIES

PERFORMANCE
MEASURES AND
KEY SUCCESSES

CHALLENGES AND
OPPORTUNITIES

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE & PUBLIC
PARTICIPATION cont

CORPORATE SERVICES
ADMINISTRATION &
COUNCIL SUPPORT

•

Provision and
logistical support
to Council

•

Establishment and
functioning of ward
committees

•

•
•

By-Laws

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

•

Document
management
system

•

By-Laws
developed and
gazetted
Rules and
Procedures of
Council
Prevention of
Nuisance
Electricity Supply
Streets
Liquor Trading
Hours
Keeping of
Animals
Commonage
Control of refuse
disposal
Public cemeteries
Street Trading
Dumping and
littering
A procedure to
guide public
liability claims has
been completed
and implemented

•
•
•
•

Planned
document
management
system developed
and be sent to
Provincial
Archives for
approval.

•

•
•
•
•
•

•
•
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Established 7 Wards
Training implemented
Developed
Monitor
implementation
Staff
To be developed
Funding
7 By-Laws gazetted
Outdated By laws
require reviewed

Development and
implementation of a
functional Document
Management System
that will ensure
effective and efficient
communication
Investigate Electronic
Document
Management system
Capacity /Lack of skill

SERVICE

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE & PUBLIC
PARTICIPATION cont

DEVELOPMENT
AND SERVICE
DELIVERY
PRIORITIES
•

Integration of filing
systems

ADMINISTRATION &
COUNCIL SUPPORT
Continued …

PERFORMANCE
MEASURES AND
KEY SUCCESSES

•

Integration
completed

•

Municipal records
are Archived
Manual System in
place
Plan to establish a
functional
Registry Office

•

CHALLENGES AND
OPPORTUNITIES

•

Integration is complete
–requires urgent review
. System is not
managed and is
currently in chaos.

•

Planned to be review
during 2008/2009 and
extend to 2009/2010
Satus quo remains
document
management system
not managed as
legislated (National
archives Act)
Institutional memory in
danger.
Preservation and
proper management of
such function is critical

•

•

Schedule of Council
Meetings
•

•
Standing
Committee

•

Council

•

Organized system
of Council Support
required

•

Required equipment
in place –
electronically manage
the function
Council & Standing
Committee agendas
and minutes in an
effort to reduce
quantity of paper

•

•

Council approved
schedules of
meetings,
including
deadlines for
submission of
reports, rotation
of meetings and
deadlines for
distribution of
agendas/
notices
Equipment
acquired

used
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•
•
•
•
•
•

3 Operational Standing
Committees
Achieved Agendas are
distributed within
required timeframes
Staff capacity
Funding
Retention of staff
skilled staff in post
Equipment has been
upgraded

SERVICE

DEVELOPMENT
AND SERVICE
DELIVERY
PRIORITIES

PERFORMANCE
MEASURES AND
KEY SUCCESSES

CHALLENGES AND
OPPORTUNITIES

CORPORATE SERVICES

JOB EVALUATION

•

•
•

•
•

Poorly developed
handwritten Job
Descriptions in
place – not
structured – no
consultation and
input
Job Descriptions
not developed for
all positions
Remuneration
structures not in
line with current
approved job
evaluation system
Poor remuneration
structures
Retention of staff –
attracting required
skills

•

Correct
remuneration
structure to be
implemented
Posts
benchmarked due
to huge disparity
in salary

•

•

•

•
•
• Implementation of
Task outcome
results / received.
& Awaiting salary
curves form
SALGBC
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•
•

Planned to review job
Descriptions during
2008/2009 Job (on
reviewal of the
organogram and all
outstanding and new
job descriptions will be
developed
Achieved
Benchmarking of posts
implemented and
correct remuneration
structures
implemented and
disparity in salaries
minimized
Skills retention strategy
and policy planned to
be developed in
2008/2009
Reliance on SALGBC
Poor remuneration
structures
Retention of staff –
attracting required
skills
Low grade of the
Municipality attached
salary structures of the
Bargaining Council

SERVICE

DEVELOPMENT AND
SERVICE DELIVERY
PRIORITIES

PERFORMANCE
MEASURES AND
KEY SUCCESSES

CHALLENGES AND
OPPORTUNITIES

SERVICE DELIVERY
•

Disciplinary
Grievance Policy &
Procedure in place

•

LLF Meeting held
– not regular

•

Participation

•

Management

•

Disciplinary
Grievance
procedure Collective
Agreement) – BC

•

Capacity of staff (in
formulating charges
prosecuting/
chairing of hearings)
Lack of understanding
Reinstatement pending
85 employees
dismissed
Lack of supervision
Management and staff
require capacity
building with regard to
handling of disciplinary
enquires
Policy developed
2 day -Training
workshop on handling
of Disciplinary enquiries
implemented in
2008/2009 FY

CORPORATE SERVICES
LABOUR RELATIONS

•
•
•
•

2 Cases of theft
1 Dismissal
1 Grievance
85 dismissed –
illegal strike –

•
•

•

•
•

SERVICE DELIVERY
cont

LEGAL SERVICES

•

Co-ordinated legal
services

•

Planned to
incorporate
disciplinary
grievance code
into a procedure –
that assist staff to
understand –
implement
training
programmes for
management and
staff

•

No legal
Department
Legal disputes –
contracts,
general
application to law
- handled by
appointed
Advocates /
attorneys

•
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•

Capacity

•

Function outsourced
for legal
opinion/advice/
representation

SERVICE

SERVICE DELIVERY
cont

CORPORATE
SERVICES
CONDITIONS OF
SERVICE AND HR
POLICIES

DEVELOPMENT
AND SERVICE
DELIVERY
PRIORITIES
•

SALGBC
Collective Agreement
in place

•

Maintenance of
Personnel files

•

Personnel files for all
employees
(permanent
temporary)

PERFORMANCE
MEASURES AND
KEY SUCCESSES
•

All employees with
effect 1 Jan 2006 –
subjected to
uniform Conditions
of Service

•

All employees with effect 1
Jan 2006 – subjected to
uniform Conditions of
Service

•

Personal files in
place – require
audited/
restructured
Planned procedures
manuals (HR)
processes

•

Absence of
contracts/Letter of
appointment and relevant
information
Files required to be
audited

Planned 2008/2009
to implement
procedure manual
with procedures
Planned to
implement prenumbered payroll
instructions for
audit and control
purposes

•

Proper administration of
benefits (retirement/
resignation, etc)

•

No dedicated
HR/Personnel Clerk
Capacity

•

•
•

•

Payroll
(Administration/
authorization)
effective payroll
administration
processes re payroll
are implemented
appropriately
Payroll Procedure
manual and Payroll
instructions are
authorized prior to
implementation
Legislative
requirements are
complied with

CHALLENGES AND
OPPORTUNITIES

•

•

•

•

•
All instructions to
be processed
through HR prior to
implementation by
Finance
Department.
•
•

•

•
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No internal control - No
pre-numbered payroll
instructions (regarding
new appointment/
resignations/
retirements), verbal
instructions etc lead audit
queries
No control measures in
place – regarding payroll
administration
General salary increases
not processed through
Corporate Services but by
implementing dept
Finance
Excessive overtime/
overtime not verified and
checked/
monitored by H R
Overtime policy
developed in 2008/2009 –
to facilitate measures to
control & curb abuse of
overtime

SERVICE

DEVELOPMENT AND
SERVICE DELIVERY
PRIORITIES

PERFORMANCE
MEASURES AND
KEY SUCCESSES

CHALLENGES AND
OPPORTUNITIES

SERVICE DELIVERY
cont
•
CORPORATE SERVICES
TRANSPORT/
FLEET MANAGEMENT

Implementation of
fleet/transport
management
policy/plan

•

Planned to
implement
Procedures and
manage/
monitor function

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Fleet Management
Policy developed & in
Place
Roadworthy vehicles
not done
Ageing fleet – down
time affecting service
delivery
Function not managed
Fleet not being
maintained
Log sheet for vehicle
maintained & service
history reports
No statistics
Capacity of staff
appointed
Funding constraints
Education of drivers
Abuse of Municipal
Fleet

CORPORATE SERVICES
•
OHS

Policy in place to
maintain facilities –
safeguard
employees risk
from injury through
operations of the
Municipality OHS

•

Policy requires
renewal

•

No capacity/
lack of interest

•

Health & Safety
reps appointed –
meeting
conducted – not
regularly – 30%
functional

•

Not compliant – serious
breach of safety
identified within the
electricity department

•

Accident not reported –
not reported within 48
hours
Inspection not done
Meetings not held
regularly
Training of Safety Reps
not done
First Aiders not trained

•
•
•
•
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SERVICE

SERVICE DELIVERY
CONT

IPED
(Function should be
housed in the Community
Services Department managed
By the IPED Manager – as
the post of Community
Services Manager remains
vacant)

DEVELOPMENT AND
SERVICE DELIVERY
PRIORITIES
•

Ensure that Road
Traffic Act and
related functions
are performed to
policy and
adherence to
legislation

PERFORMANCE
MEASURES AND
KEY SUCCESSES
•

Offices and
Testing Station
established

•

Planned
renovations

•

Planned
implement Traffic
Education Drives

•

Planned to
introduce Driving
School at
Educational
Institutions – as
an Extra Mural
activity

TRAFFIC
(Law Enforcement
Testing Station)
•

Records of
statistics
Statistics in 2007/2008
FY

•

•

•
•
•
•

20 Road worthy’s
processed a
month (during
year under
review)
Buses – 6
Goods vehicles 9
115 learners
licenses
processed
112 driver’s
licenses
processed
Training on e
NATIS system
No statistics could
be provided for
2008/2009 FY
Serious
shortcomings in
division
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CHALLENGES AND
OPPORTUNITIES

•

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

•
•

Status quo -remains
Lack of proper control
& management of the
Traffic Division – result
in fraud & corruption
Renovations phased in
as per budgetary
allocation
Lack of maintenance
traffic/street signs
Lack proper statistics
Robot infrastructure
Shortage of equipment
and vehicles
No records of statistics
could be provided for
the 2008/2009 FY
Insufficient budget
Functions not coordinated
No standard operating
manuals
Manuals not updated
No quality control
Shortage of qualified
Vehicle Examiners
Upgrade database
Planned to arrange
training during
2008/2009 financial
year
Planned to install static
cameras at all
hazardous locations
Driving test and
Learners test
performed on a daily
basis –lack of proper
record keeping & filling,

SERVICE

SERVICE DELIVERY
CONT

IPED
(Function should be
housed in the Community
Services Department managed
By the IPED Manager – as
the post of Community
Services Manager remains
vacant)

DEVELOPMENT
AND SERVICE
DELIVERY
PRIORITIES
•

Motor vehicle
registration
facilities
operational

PERFORMANCE
MEASURES AND
KEY SUCCESSES

•

Available motor
vehicle
registration
facilities in Elliot

•

Trained Natis
personnel

•

Trained personnel
to operate
facilities on e
NATIS system

TRAFFIC
(eNaTIS )

CHALLENGES AND
OPPORTUNITIES

•

•
•
•

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
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Status quo - remains
Lack of proper control
& management of the
Traffic Division
Maintenance of facility
Upgrade equipment
Retention of skilled
personnel
Ongoing training of
Natis system
No records of statistics
could be provided for
the 2008/2009 FY
No standard operating
manuals
Manuals (eNaTIS)
No quality control
Upgrade database
Planned to arrange
training during
2008/2009
Lack of proper record
keeping & filling and
control

SERVICE

DEVELOPMENT AND
SERVICE DELIVERY
PRIORITIES

PERFORMANCE
MEASURES AND
KEY SUCCESSES

CHALLENGES AND
OPPORTUNITIES

SERVICE DELIVERY
CONT
•

IPED
HEALTH
(Function should be
housed in the
Community Services
Department managed
By the IPED Manager
– as the post of
Community Services
Manager remains
vacant)

•

•

To provide a
comprehensive
integrated Health
Care Service
Child health –
immunizations,
health, education
and monitoring of
development
stages
Tuberculosis (TB)
diagnosis of active
cases – treatment

•

Record/statistical
information in
clinics

•

Provision of
HIV/AIDS
awareness,
training,
counselling,
opportunistic
infection treatment
and prevention
measures

•

•

HIV/AIDS
programmes/
campaigns to both
community &
Council – offer
support to those
affected and those
infected by
HIV/AIDS

•

•
•
•

•
•

Services are
adequately
rendered albeit
resource
shortages at
Clinics in Cala
(controlled by
Province) and 3
Clinics in Elliot
(controlled by the
Municipality)

•

Lack/Access of health
facilities to reach all
areas and inhabitants

•

Buildings require
rehabilitation

•

•
Planning to obtain
funding to
improve current
health care
service/s
Establishment of
Health Committee
Preparation of an
HIV/AIDS Plan
Related Training
Courses attended
+-5000 patients
attended to
monthly in the 3
Clinics in Elliot

•

Shortage of
qualified/skilled clinic
staff care for delivery of
services – ongoing
challenge

•

Lack of resources, clinic
(medical) equipment
and office equipment
and linen for the clinic
Functional integration
being negotiated to
improve service
delivery

•

•
Qualified
professional staff
in place
Coordination with
HIV Co - ordinator
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Co-Ordination planning
and administration of
emergency health
services
Lack of funding

•

Shortage of chronic
medication at the
Clinics
HIV Co – ordinator
appointed

SERVICE

SERVICE DELIVERY
CONT

DEVELOPMENT AND
SERVICE DELIVERY
PRIORITIES
•

Health promotion
programmes –
dealing with social
mobilization, health
awareness
campaigns –
educative home
visits

•

Reduce current
high infection rate

•

Medical Services –
providing
accessible medical
services to the
community

PERFORMANCE
MEASURES AND
KEY SUCCESSES
•

•

•

Interaction with
Provincial
Department of
Health and
relevant
stakeholders in
order to
overcome
fragmentation
and duplication of
services
Activities
organised per the
National Primary
Health Care
calendar
HIV Co –ordinator
appointed to
facilitate activities
with required role
players

CHALLENGES AND
OPPORTUNITIES

•

Improve/establish
partnerships,
accessibility with
relevant stakeholders –
community heath
forums

•

Promote Primary
Health Care and
HIV/AIDS education
Inadequate access to
HIV/AIDS prevention,
treatment and support
system
Lack of proper statistics
Section informally
reports to IPED
Department – not
formally indicated on
the organizational
structure
National Health Act, Act
61 of 2003 came into
effect 2005 – makes
provision of PHS the
service a competency
of the Province – lack of
clarity whether service
will be centralized or
decentralized
Inadequate funding
from Province for
agency function of PHC
Services

•

•
•

•

•
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SERVICE

SERVICE
DELIVERY CONT
IPED
SOCIAL &
RECREATIONAL
FACILITIES
(Halls & Libraries)
(Function should be
housed in the
Community Services
Department managed
By the IPED Manager
– as the post of
Community Services
Manager remained
vacant during
2008/2009 FY)

DEVELOPMENT AND
SERVICE DELIVERY
PRIORITIES
• Establishment of
sufficient social &
recreational facilities support social
development

PERFORMANCE
MEASURES AND
KEY SUCCESSES
•
•

• Development,
maintenance and
administration of:
• Community Halls

•

• Multi purpose
Centres
• Libraries

•

•
•
•
•
•
•
•

2 Halls in Elliot
and 1 Hall in Cala
Ongoing
research,
planning and
assessment of
facilities –
maintenance
/development
reports.
Ongoing
maintenance but limited due to
funding
constraints
IDP Planned
project –
Renovations
Qolombeni Hall funding not yet
allocated
Painting of halls
Revised Tariff
(Halls) structure
in place
Security placed at
halls
Use of Occasional
Caretaker/s
Planned building
hall in “Old
Location”
Planned public
conveniences at
Halls
Planned: build
Halls in each ward
– multi- purpose
community
centres
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CHALLENGES AND
OPPORTUNITIES

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Lack of qualified staff
Inadequate facilities
Lack of Funding
/sufficient funding
Shortage of equipment
Manual system –
require relevant IT
system/s
Under investment in
facilities
Low tariff structure –
Policy & procedures
require review
Equipment shortages at
halls in Cala and in the
Elliot Hall/s
Function housed in
incorrect department
Functions not coordinated
Bookings/
payments processed
and financed
Maintenance
performed by Technical
department
Maintenance not
regularly performed
MIG project: Cala
Reserve Community
Hall
R 1802 340.00 –
completed in
2007/2008 FY – Planned
IDP projects 2008/2009
FY are: Rehabilitation of
Town Hall & Municipal
Managers House

SERVICE

SERVICE DELIVERY
CONT

DEVELOPMENT AND
SERVICE DELIVERY
PRIORITIES

PERFORMANCE
MEASURES AND KEY
SUCCESSES

•

Libraries;

•

Receipt of
Government
subsidies –
allowed for
purchase of
books

IPED

•

•

CHALLENGES AND
OPPORTUNITIES

•

•
•
•

Co-ordinated
functioning and
governance of
libraries
Promote
partnerships with
DSRAC

•

Establishment of
Library
Committee

•

MOU Meetings
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•

•
•

Insufficient library
materials. Books are
not circulated and
become stagnant
Lack of capacitated
staff
No modem or
computer equipment
Government subsidy
provided for purchase
of new library materials
Elliot library currently
under renovation and
DSRAC improved both
libraries
2 interns appointed for
3 years as part capacity
building programme
CCTV cameras installed

SERVICE

BASIC SERVICE
DELIVERY

DEVELOPMENT AND
SERVICE DELIVERY
PRIORITIES

•

•
•

•

•

Strategic
Management of
basic service
delivery/provision
Access to free
basic services
Ensuring
sustainable
service delivery
Monitor and
manage targets
set for income
and expenditure
control
WATER
100 % Households
with access to
potable water

75% Indigents with
access to free
basic services

PERFORMANCE
MEASURES AND KEY
SUCCESSES

•

•
•
•

•

•

•

70% Clinics with
access to potable
water

•

•

50% Schools with
access to potable
water

•

•

0% households
using buckets

•

75% of households
have earning less than
R 1600 pm have
access to free basic
services
Update database
Compliance with
national directives
Improved Health
safety, quality of Life

CHALLENGES AND
OPPORTUNITIES

•

•

•
•

•
Backlogs: 6720
Target; 6720
Customers reached
during FY: 90%
Percentage achieved
during FY: 90%

•

•
Backlogs: 49280
Target; 49280
Customers reached
during FY: 12%
Percentage achieved
during FY: 25%
Backlogs: 20
Target; 20
Customers reached
during FY: 20
Percentage achieved
during FY: 30%
Backlogs: 50
Target; 50
Customers reached
during FY: 30
Percentage achieved
during FY: 30%
Backlogs: 0
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•

•
•

Strategic
Management of
Project
implementation
Monitoring
Mechanisms and
systems to correct
deficiencies in place
Database to be
updated/ongoing
Sakhisizwe the agent
/water service
provider & CHDM
water service
authority
SLA entered into
between Sakhisizwe
& CHDM June 2009
CHDM in process of
recruiting personnel
to deal with water
services
WSP Manager,
Technician &
financial controller
appointed by CHDM
Sakhisizwe
implemented
intervention
strategies of
supplying 5000 litre
tanks to areas where
there is no
infrastructure
Nil
Plans to address
basic service delivery
– to meet
compliance with
national directives –
to be achieved in
2011

SERVICE

DEVELOPMENT AND
SERVICE DELIVERY
PRIORITIES

PERFORMANCE
MEASURES AND KEY
SUCCESSES

CHALLENGES AND
OPPORTUNITIES

•

BASIC SERVICE
DELIVERY

•
•
•
•

•
•

•

•
•
•

•

ELECTRICITY
90% households
have access to
basic levels of
sanitation

70% Indigents
households have
access to basic
levels of
Electricity

•

•

Backlogs: 49820
Target; 49820
Customers reached
during FY: 10%
Percentage achieved
during FY: 10%

Backlogs: 39200
Target; 39200
Customers reached
during FY: 30%
Percentage achieved
during FY: 30%
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•
•
•

Water capacity
challenges - ageing/
outdated plant slow sand filter plant
Require an Auto
electro water
treatment works
Population increase
Shortages in water
2000 Households are
not connected to
main sewer lines
(housing projects
included)
Urgent expansion of
Cala treatment plant
Majority of
households use
septic tanks or VIP
Toilets
Strategic
Management of
Project
implementation –
proposed that same
Project/s proposed
to be incorporated
into CHDM `S IDP
Electricity provision
for Cala in licensed
Eskom area
Backlogs funded by
Eskom in licensed
Cala are slow to
implement due to
electrical
infrastructure
Elliot licensed by
Sakhisizwe
Funding Constants
Installation of Bulk
electricity lines

SERVICE

DEVELOPMENT AND
SERVICE DELIVERY
PRIORITIES

PERFORMANCE
MEASURES AND KEY
SUCCESSES

CHALLENGES AND
OPPORTUNITIES

•

BASIC SERVICE
DELIVERY

•

SANITATION
•

•

•

•

•

65 % Households
with access to
sanitation

50% Indigents with
access to free
basic services

•

70% Clinics with
access to
sanitation

•

50% Schools with
access to
sanitation

•

Backlogs: 23 660
Target; 23 660
Customers reached
during FY: 35%
Percentage achieved
during FY: 35%
Backlogs: 49280
Target; 49280
Customers reached
during FY: 12%
Percentage achieved
during FY: 12%
Backlogs: 20
Target; 20
Customers reached
during FY: 20
Percentage achieved
during FY: 30%
Backlogs: 50
Target; 50
Customers reached
during FY: 50
Percentage achieved
during FY: 50%
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R300 000 & Eskom
Grant
R 1560 000 Allocated to
Improve electrical
Infrastructure –
Installation of
Bulk electricity
Lines in Elliot
Planned IDP
Projects for
2008/2009 FY Elliot
Pholar Park
electrification of 850
Houses

•

Monitoring
Mechanisms and
systems to correct
deficiencies in place

•

Database be
updated/ongoing

•

Plans to address
basic service delivery
– to meet
compliance with
national directives –
to be achieved in
2009/

SERVICE

DEVELOPMENT AND
SERVICE DELIVERY
PRIORITIES

PERFORMANCE
MEASURES AND KEY
SUCCESSES

CHALLENGES AND
OPPORTUNITIES

BASIC SERVICE
DELIVERY

•

•

Roads Maintenance
89% households
without Access to
gravel or graded
Roads

75% Road
infrastructure
requiring upgrade

•
•

•
•
•
•

•

60% of planned
Road
infrastructure
actually
constructed

•
•
•
•

Total number of
households expected
to benefit: 50 000
Target; 5000
Customers reached
during FY: 3500
Percentage achieved
during FY: 70%
Total number of
households expected
to benefit: 42 000
Target; 5000
Customers reached
During FY: 3500
Percentage
Achieved during
FY: 8%
Total number of
households expected
to benefit: 33 600
Target; 5000
Customers reached
During FY: 5000
Percentage
Achieved during
FY: 14%

•

•

•

•

•
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Plans to address
basic service delivery
– to meet
compliance with
national directives –
to be achieved in
2011
Functions performed
mainly related
maintenance of
access roads and
related Stormwater
drainage, filling of
potholes and re gravelling
Funding constraints
– reliance on grant
funding (MIG) –
insufficient to
address Road
infrastructure needs
Machinery and
equipment
purchased during
207/2008 FY -same
remains insufficient
to manage
infrastructure
projects at the
desired level
20 Projects
registered with MIG
& approved

SERVICE

BASIC SERVICE
DELIVERY

DEVELOPMENT AND
SERVICE DELIVERY
PRIORITIES
•

5.47% of
Sakhisizwe
Municipality
capital budget
reserved for Road
maintenance and
upgrading (CRR Accumulative
surpluses funds)
• Submission of
business plans –
MIG funds
• External funding:
MIG/CHDM/DORT
Waste Management
• 94% Households
with access to
waste removal
(urban area)
•

PERFORMANCE
MEASURES AND KEY
SUCCESSES

•
•
•
•

•
•
•

40% if indigents
with access to
waste removal

•

Total number of
backlogs: 42 000
Target; 5000
Customers reached
During FY: 3 500
Percentage
Achieved during
FY: 8.3%%
(Customer reached &
backlogs)

Total number of
backlogs: 51 000
Target; 5000 - & 300
new dwellings in the
urban area)
Customers reached
During FY: 4700
Percentage
Achieved during
FY: 9.2%%
(Customer reached &
Backlogs)
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CHALLENGES AND
OPPORTUNITIES

• Access Roads built as
a result of MIG
funding (R7027 000)
in 2007/2008 financial
year
• Projects funded by
(MIG – Grant
funding), CHDM,
DORT – expected
allocation
R 70 Million

•

Plans to address
basic service delivery
– to meet
compliance with
national directives –
to be achieved in
2011

SERVICE

DEVELOPMENT AND
SERVICE DELIVERY
PRIORITIES

PERFORMANCE
MEASURES & KEY
SUCCESSES

CHALLENGES &
OPPORTUNITIES

SERVICE DELIVERY
CONT

•

(TECHNICAL)
DISASTER
MANAGEMENT

To ensure
formulation of an
integrated and
sustainable disaster
management plan

•

Planned to
formulate a
Disaster
Management Plan
in partnership
with CHDM and
Provincial
Government

•

Working CHDM to
establish Disaster
Management
Centre with
necessary
equipment and
facilities
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•

•

During 2007/2008 a
Hailstorm disaster
destroyed 85 RDP
structures.
Total cost R174Million.
Partially destroyed 96
households
R52 641 Thousand –
2% for damaged roofs
and windows require
R7 897 to repair
damage
Planned IDP project
carried over form
20078/2008 to FY
2008/2009 - 85 Disaster
Houses to be built
during

SERVICE

SERVICE DELIVERY
CONT

DEVELOPMENT AND
SERVICE DELIVERY
PRIORITIES

PERFORMANCE
MEASURES & KEY
SUCCESSES

•

Carry out
Awareness
Programmes/
Campaigns
Counselling
Services to victims

•

Encourage CHDM
to undertake risk
vulnerability
assessment
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CHALLENGES &
OPPORTUNITIES

•

Damage to roads –
estimate damage R10,
5Million

•

Lack integrated
approach to Disaster
Management within
municipal area

•

Lack of risk mitigation
measures on disaster
prone areas

SERVICE

BASIC SERVICE
DELIVERY

IDP PLANNING AND
PROJECT
MANAGEMENT AND
IMPLEMENTATION

DEVELOPMENT
AND SERVICE
DELIVERY
PRIORITIES

•

Strategically
manage Delivery
of Housing
opportunities

PERFORMANCE
MEASURES AND KEY
SUCCESSES

• Promotion of Housing
Policy and provision of
low costs Housing
through costs subsidy

CHALLENGES AND
OPPORTUNITIES

•
•

•

•

HOUSING

•
•
•

•
•

•

•
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Challenges are huge
within housing
delivery
Monitoring
Implementation
housing delivery
strategy
Implement
interventions /
strategies to
Overcome
Challenges facing
housing delivery
53% of housing units
in the Municipality
are informal
structures
Housing backlogs in
Cala
837 Units are
informal structures
DPLG the developer
& funder -municipality are only
required to provide
land for same
development
Large Backlogs:
estimated at 4250
1015 of the houses
completed that
emanated from the
project in 2003
Houses have been
advertised and a main
contractor (new)
appointed - still to
come on site
Other houses were
left unfinished by the
sub contractors under
the supervision of
DPLG

SERVICE

SERVICE DELIVERY
CONT

(IPED/
TECHNICAL)
HOUSING
Housing Project
Elliot PHP
800 units (initial
target set in 2003)

Housing Project –
Cala: Extension 13,14
and 15
3000 houses
(Initial target set in
2003)

DEVELOPMENT AND
SERVICE DELIVERY
PRIORITIES

PERFORMANCE
MEASURES AND KEY
SUCCESSES

•

Satus in 2007/2008
• 300 of the 800 units
have been completed.

Facilitating
Provision of
housing with
regard to
allocation of land,
facilitation of
transfers SMME
/Emerging
contractors
benefit from
Project
development

• Beneficiaries
registered and
beneficiaries were
allocated
• The DPLG unblocked
project and is very
committed to the
completion of this
project

• 3000 Planned -- 500
units completed and
allocated to identified
beneficiaries
• Job Creation (SMME`s
& emerging
contractors)

CHALLENGES AND
OPPORTUNITIES
• DPLG are the
developers,
administrators and
funders of Housing
projects
• Projects were blocked
by DPLG
• Problems relating to
infrastructure in the
area.
• Delays relating to
disasters
• Slow & complex land
identification Availability
of Land
• The lack of experience in
a rural housing project
has contributed to the
slow pace of the project.
• Lack of commitment to
the project by the
Contractor /developer
• Slow progress by
emerging contractors
• Problems with
contractors, experience
and abandoning of the
project /moving off site

• Incorrect allocation of
Beneficiaries –
Beneficiaries have
since left seek
employment
• Allegations of fraud
within the projects
• Project
• Beneficiary
administration - some
beneficiaries were
allocated sites in areas,
which belonged to other
people.
• HIV /AIDS Crisis –result
skewed demographic
profile
• Develop a database and
Continually update and
maintain beneficiary list
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SERVICE

DEVELOPMENT AND
SERVICE DELIVERY
PRIORITIES

PERFORMANCE
MEASURES AND KEY
SUCCESSES

CHALLENGES AND
OPPORTUNITIES

SERVICE DELIVERY
CONT

• Temporary allocations
(beneficiaries) to houses
will be made during
2009/2010 to
beneficiaries on the
waiting list so as to
prevent vandalism
/illegal occupation of the
houses completed
• Attempts are being
made to locate initial
beneficiaries - if
attempts fail and
deadline of 10 years is
not met - permanent
allocations will made
Current housing in
Sakhisizwe indicated in
wards (as per IDP
2008/2009
•
•
•
•
•
•

Ward 1:1200 houses
Ward 2: 800 houses
Ward 3:1000 houses
Ward 4; 1725
Ward 5:800 houses
Ward 6: 2050 houses
• Ward 7: 1000 houses
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SERVICE

SERVICE DELIVERY
CONT

DEVELOPMENT
AND SERVICE
DELIVERY
PRIORITIES
•

Grass on sidewalks,
parks and open
spaces to be cut

PERFORMANCE
MEASURES AND
KEY SUCCESSES
•

Grass on sidewalks,
parks and open
spaces cut -- not
regularly maintained
in the 2 towns within
Sakhisizwe i.e. Elliot
& Cala.

•

Cutting includes
cemeteries, sports
fields, sidewalks and
parks.

IPED
PARKS AND
PUBLIC OPEN
SPACES

•

CHALLENGES AND
OPPORTUNITIES

•

•

Appointment of a
Community Services
Manager
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Difficulty during
growing season to
maintain side walks,
due to staff
shortages and
equipment
availability.
Insufficient funding

•

Grass cutting in the
Cala administrative
unit - Library and
open surrounding
areas were
maintained and
grass was cut

•

After first frost the
work returned to
normal and the
backlog could be
dealt with – not
performed
consistently

•

Post of Assistant
Community Services
Manager advertised
2008/2009 FY

•

Department not fully
functional due to
post being filled No
management /staff
in department

•

Staff shortages –
function currently
not co –ordinated
partly managed by
IPED department
and Technical
Department –
hampered service
delivery

SERVICE

SERVICE DELIVERY
CONT

DEVELOPMENT
AND SERVICE
DELIVERY
PRIORITIES
•

IPED
REFUSE
REMOVAL/SOLID
WASTE
•

•

•
•
•
•
•
•
•

•
•

To provide refuse
removal services,
street cleaning,
public
conveniences,
Landfill site and
waste transfer Sites
and waste
minimization
education
Household refuse
and business refuse
to be removed
efficiently and
effectively.
Daily cleaning of
streets to ensure
health standards
maintained.
Development of a
functional solid
waste site.
Register Solid
Waste Sites
Waste
Management Plans
Waste minimization
Education
Obtain Operational
permits for Sites
Fencing of Landfill
Sites
Purchase vehicles
/equipment to
improve service
delivery
Revise waste By
laws
Distribution of bins
and containers

PERFORMANCE
MEASURES AND
KEY SUCCESSES
•

•

•
•
•
•
•
•
•

•
•
•
•
•

•
•

Household refuse to
be removed once a
week and business
refuse twice a week.
Refuse removed has
increased from 3977
to 4700 in the
2008/2009 FY:
commercial and
residential areas
municipal areas
Elliot 3983
Cala 522
Commercial 195 of
3977 a
Subsidy are provided
to 3782
Streets cleaned daily.
Waste Sites at both
nodes –
Waste disposed at
the SWD site 67 tons
per month
(household /
domestic) – 75 %
Waste disposed:
Garden refuse
consists of 24 %
Plans to re - develop
and register a solid
waste site at Cala.
Programme for
refuse removal in
place
Plans in place to
fence Landfill Sites
Development of A
Management Plan
for Landfill Sites
(EHP)
Planned finalize
waste By Law
And waste
management plan
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CHALLENGES AND
OPPORTUNITIES
• Refuse is collected
weekly in Elliot and
Business are
serviced twice a
week, according to a
refuse programme
• Residents in Cala are
serviced Daily according to a
scheduled
programme specific
allocated areas are
serviced each day of
the week
• Refuse site not fully
operational and
poorly operated and
mismanaged
• Poor management
with regards to
statistics
(unreliable)
• No control over
“dumping” at refuse
sites
• Old outdated &
defunct machines
and equipment and
vehicles
• Shortage of Vehicles
• Maintenance of
existing vehicles
• Financial constraints
– budget insufficient
for improvement.
• Waste management
plan to be
developed - in
progress Aurecon
(pty) LTD appointed
during 2008/2009 FY
– during 2008/2009
FY not been very
many changes to the
situation that
existed in 2007/2008

SERVICE

SERVICE DELIVERY
CONT

DEVELOPMENT AND
SERVICE DELIVERY
PRIORITIES

PERFORMANCE
MEASURES AND KEY
SUCCESSES







Planned engage
sectoral
departments
Implement
Environmental &
integrated
environmental
management plan
EHO is employed
(seconded through
CHDM to enforce By
law on cleanliness of
Premises



Bins placed in ext
4,8,9,11,12, 13, 14 and
15



Plans in place to
identify collection
areas/spots/
containers be placed
in such areas

CHALLENGES AND
OPPORTUNITIES

• Statistics not
regularly recorded
• Lack of control over
collection – lack of
supervision within
function
• Insufficient public
refuse receptacles in
CBD
• No recycling
facilities
• Future Planned
education drive to
educate the
community on
waste minimization
– pilot project to
initiated at school
level
• Formalize
environmental &
integrated
environmental
management plan
• Service not
homogenous to
functioning
department
• No collection spots
– identified
• No removal
containers in such
spots/areas
• Theft of fence at
solid waste site
• Job creation /skills
development - 40
participants
employed during
clean up campaigns
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SERVICE

SERVICE DELIVERY
CONT

DEVELOPMENT
AND SERVICE
DELIVERY
PRIORITIES
•

IPED
COMMONAGES /
POUNDS

•

Control, manage
and maintain public
open spaces
(Commonages) &
pound
management
Fencing

PERFORMANCE
MEASURES AND
KEY SUCCESSES

CHALLENGES AND
OPPORTUNITIES

•



•
•

•
•
•

Currently
commonages in
behind Ext 8 to 12
Cala Containment
of stray animals
Secure
Community
Gardens
Establish
commonage
/pound fence all
arable land
Currently tariff
structure in place
Revisit tariff
structure
Revisit related Bylaws
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•
•

A huge challenge to
commonage
management -liaise
with DOA & Dept of
Public Transport –
establish the
commonage
/pounds
Fence arable land
Negotiations with
small farmers
Staff shortage and
associated
problems with
remuneration &
overtime

SERVICE

SERVICE DELIVERY
CONT

IPED
SPORTSFIELDS &
CARAVAN PARK
(ELLIOT)

DEVELOPMENT
AND SERVICE
DELIVERY
PRIORITIES

PERFORMANCE
MEASURES AND
KEY SUCCESSES

CHALLENGES AND
OPPORTUNITIES

• Establishment of
sufficient social &
recreational facilities support social
development

•

•

• Development,
maintenance and
administration of:
• Sportsfields and other
associated amenities

•

•

•
•

•

•

•

•

One sportsfield in
Elliot
One sportsfield in
Cala with indoor
facilities – utilized
daily
Elliot: - Utilized biweekly
Sub-standard
facilities
Caravan facilities
used by visitors to
the region – no
statistics
Equipment
donated by Dept
Sports, Arts &
Culture
Maintenance
schedule in place not being
maintained at
desired level
Planned review of
maintenance
Revised schedule
to be implemented
Planned to build 10
new sportsfields
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•
•

•
•

•

•

Manage the
vandalism of these
amenities
Control proper use
of amenities
Revisit procedure on
use of amenities and
develop tariff
structure
Implement
maintenance
programme/s
Shortage of staff –
staff not allocated
specifically for such
function - perform a
variety of functions
within department
Collaborate with
Provincial and
National
departments
IDP projects Planned
for 2008/200 9FY
:ward 1 & 2
sportsfileds
equipment &
maintenance - this
project however
remains unfunded
until such time

SERVICE

SERVICE DELIVERY
CONT

IPED
CEMETERIES

DEVELOPMENT
AND SERVICE
DELIVERY
PRIORITIES
• To maintain
cemeteries, control
& provide burials
Within the
framework of the
Health Act

PERFORMANCE
MEASURES AND
KEY SUCCESSES

CHALLENGES AND
OPPORTUNITIES

•

•

•
•
•

•

•
•
•

•

Planned to
upgrade and
maintain
cemeteries
Planned Geotechnical
investigation
Planned to
provide licensed
cemeteries
Planned
rehabilitation of
cemetery (Pholar
Park & Hillview)
Review existing
Tariff Policy/
Develop Tariff
Policy
Identify land for
grave sites
Fencing of
cemeteries
Planned to
improve record
keeping and
statistically
reporting on
cemeteries /
burials
Planned
review/developm
ent of Pauper
Burial Policy
(2008-2009
financial year)

•
•
•
•
•
•

•
•

•

•

•
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Unavailable land –
cemeteries are at
full capacity in Elliot
Unit
Insufficient funding
No statistical
records
Cemeteries not
fenced and
maintained
90% of burials are
illegal
Registers in place
not controlled – not
sufficient
No allocated staff
members takes
responsibility for
this function
Staff shortages/
unfilled post
(Function not coordinated – staff
perform a multiple
of tasks within
Technical Dept)
Function not
homogenous to
IPED - housed in the
incorrect dept
Organogram has
been reviewed
during 208/2009 –
requires
implementation
Pauper Burial policy
not developed

SERVICE

SERVICE DELIVERY
CONT

(TECHNICAL)
ELECTRICITY &
STREET LIGHTING

DEVELOPMENT
AND SERVICE
DELIVERY
PRIORITIES
• To keep the
electricity network
operational and
provide a reliable
service
• To increase the
number of
households with
access to electricity
• Develop a electricity
master plan
• To ensure that
supply is up graded
to be able to meet
needs for future
growth
• Provide electricity to
residential and
commercial
consumers including
industrial and small
holdings in the
Municipal
environment
• Provide public
lighting
• New connections
done on request in
licensed areas
• Ongoing
maintenance of
existing networks

PERFORMANCE
MEASURES AND
KEY SUCCESSES
•

•

•

•

•
•

•
•

Plan to align
upgrading with
spatial
development
framework
Master plan
developed –
currently being
phased in –
planned to be
completed by
March 2008
30 new
connections done
on request as
there is currently
no backlog in
licensed areas
Average of 325
Electricity faults
reported and dealt
with - a large
improvement over
the previous year
Faults attended
within 2 hours of
reporting fault
Conventional
electricity meters
serviced/
replaced as
required /on
demand /request
Ongoing
Operation and
maintenance
Installation of
Overhead lines –
Elliot Industrial
area (phase I in
2007/2008FY

CHALLENGES AND
OPPORTUNITIES
•

•

•

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
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SDF requires urgent
review: Umhlaba
consultant
appointed to review
SDF
The electricity Audit
conducted during
2007/2008 financial
year revealed that
the electricity
Master Plan
completed March
2008 requires to be
reviewed and
updated – carried
over to 2009/2010
FY
Staff shortages
resulting overtime
and continuous 24
hour standby duty
Employment of 1 Snr
Electrician – X 1
Apprentice
Electrician and X 2
Linesman
(Electrician’s
Assistants) in Elliot
Ability to retain and
attract skilled staff
Shortage of
equipment and
vehicle for
Electricity and
copper theft
Ageing
infrastructure
Insufficient funding
Electricity backlogs
in the rural area
Indigents backlog
39200
90% (Urban areas
have access to
electricity - backlog
- 49280

SERVICE

SERVICE DELIVERY
CONT

DEVELOPMENT
AND SERVICE
DELIVERY
PRIORITIES

PERFORMANCE
MEASURES AND
KEY SUCCESSES

• The areas of
Sakhisizwe
Municipality
(Masibambane,
Pholar Park, ‘Old &
New Township”,
Takalane,
Masibambane,
Ekuthuleni Ext and
Cala Unit, are
within the licensed
area of ESKOM and
will remain so in the
foreseeable future
• Electrification of 800
houses in Takalani
•

Street light
maintenance Maintenance
existing public
lighting: Cala

•

IDP Planned
Project – Eskom
funder

•

IDP Planned
Project: Upgrading
of Cala Streetlights
(ward 5) – R156000
000

CHALLENGES AND
OPPORTUNITIES
•

ESKOM assistance
with tariff analysis

•

Planned IDP
Projects Achieved

•

Falls in licensed
area of Eskom reliance on Eskom
In progress was
carried over form
2007/2008 FY

•

•
•
•
•

•

•

Upgrading bulk
electricity in Elliot

•

IDP Planned
project for
2008/2009 FY
Upgrading of Elliot
electrical network - upgrading of bulk
electricity/ bulk
electricity
lines66/22kvCV
(R3 Million
Allocated)
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•

Lack of suitable
vehicle require Cherry Pickers
Rehabilitation of
network
Standardization of
equipment
Supply Chain
Management
Non compliance of
communities with
regard to electrical
installations
Upgrading
commence during
2007/2008 continued in
2008/2009 and was
completed within
same FY

SERVICE

SERVICE DELIVERY
CONT

(TECHNICAL)
ROADS &
STORMWATER

DEVELOPMENT
AND SERVICE
DELIVERY
PRIORITIES

PERFORMANCE
MEASURES AND
KEY SUCCESSES

CHALLENGES AND
OPPORTUNITIES

• The construction and
maintenance of
gravel and surfaced
roads
• Rehabilitation and
maintenance of
roads
• To construct access
Roads
• The construction of
sidewalks
• The construction of
storm water systems
• The construction of
bridges and river
crossings
• Maintenance of road
furniture
• Planning and design
of new projects

• IDP Planned project
roads
Construction MIG
Grant /indirect grants
SM – R 1711 000
Million
• New project have
been registered with
MIG
R7027 000 Million
• Tender process to
commence
• Planned to formulate
a Roads construction
and maintenance
programme – tarred
and gravel roads

• 2007/2008 complete
projects MIG: to the
value of : R 19 3 76
274.00
• Old infrastructure and
rapidly deteriorating
roads – in some cases
past functional life –
major rehabilitation
needed – potholes
prevalent in both units
• Existing project are
still in progress –
carried over
• Formal record
/reporting
• Gravel – require
resurfacing
• Capital allocation
insufficient
• Resources constraints
• Shortage of
tradesman in related
field

• Insufficient Plant
/Machinery Purchase
of new plant

• Draft TOR - SCM
Processes
• Draft Business Plan /
Submit funding
proposal for Grant
Funding (MIG &
DBSA)

• IDP planned project
2008/2009 Allocation DBSA /MIG
/SM –R 800 000
• One tipper truck
one pad foot roller
2 x 13 kl water carts
1 x 4 x 4 TLB
• Wacker, plate
compactor, saw
cutter, bitumen spray,
Bomag required to
perform function
• Insufficient funds
Reducing the access
roads backlog – rural
areas – 32 villages
• Supply Chain
Management Urban
renewal – SDF
encourage LED
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SERVICE

SERVICE DELIVERY
CONT

DEVELOPMENT
AND SERVICE
DELIVERY
PRIORITIES
•

(TECHNICAL)
WATER

•

•

•
•

•

The Sakhisizwe
Municipality
appointed on an
agency basis to
reticulate water
until completion
of Section 78
process is
completed
CHDM: Water
Service Authority
--appointed
Amatola Water to
provide water to
outlying areas in
Sakhisizwe
Municipal Area by
District
Municipality
Reduction of
water services to
rural areas –
Optimization of
treatment works
capacity

PERFORMANCE
MEASURES AND
KEY SUCCESSES

CHALLENGES AND
OPPORTUNITIES

•

•
•

•

Water
Purification
Supply water to
existing water
storage facilities
to ensure
adequate water
supply

•

Water Faults

•

Drought
emergency relief
received from
Government
successful in
creating no
inconvenience to
consumers
Planned
construction of
dams and raw
water storage
Planned building of
reservoirs at
Pholar Park
reservoirs at
Pholar Park

Water purified was
120 000 Kl

•
•
•
•

•
•
•
•

•

•

Attend to average
of 240 Water faults
reported and
attended to

97

CHDM water
service authority
Completion of the
Section 78 process
– SLA not signed
within 2008/2009
FY
Capacitating of
staff
Qualified operators
Water backlogs
Develop proper
Formal reporting
/statistics
Rehabilitation of
the reticulation
networks (ageing
network)
Culture of non
payment – limiting
income sources
Illegal connections
Tampering with
meters/
damage to meters
Development of a
Water Master Plan
for all areas

Attend to faults
within 24 - 48 hours
Culture of Illegal
connections
Tampering with
meters/
damage to meters

SERVICE

SERVICE DELIVERY
CONT

(TECHNICAL)
WATER

DEVELOPMENT
AND SERVICE
DELIVERY
PRIORITIES
•

PERFORMANCE
MEASURES AND
KEY SUCCESSES

CHALLENGES
AND
OPPORTUNITIES

•

Augmentation and
expansion of
distribution
network to provide
water to new
developments

•

•
•

98

Rehabilitation of
the purification
works
(Capacity issues slow sand filter require
sophisticated
electro mechanic
system to deal
with capacity
Implement IDP
Planned projects
2008/2009
(Capacity issues

SERVICE

DEVELOPMENT
AND SERVICE
DELIVERY
PRIORITIES

SERVICE DELIVERY
CONT

(TECHNICAL)
WATER
Continued…

•

•

•

Water purification
is undertaken
at Cala 1 Plant
and at Elliot 1
Plant
Outlaying area
water is supplied
by Chris Hani
Amatola Water but
reticulated by
Sakhisizwe

PERFORMANCE
MEASURES AND
KEY SUCCESSES
•

•

•

•
Potable water is
reticulated to
households within
the Sakhisizwe
area to unmetered
(Cala, Old
Township and
Masibambane –
1763)

•

Metered Elliot –
865

•

Metered in Cala –
798

•

Planned Pipeline
extension of filter
works to outlying
areas
Maintenance to
electrical /diesel
water pumps at
pump station
Lobbying for funds
for construction of
small water
projects
Planned upgrading
of Municipal water
service provider
status
Water subsidies
are provided to
3128 households

CHALLENGES
AND
OPPORTUNITIES
•
•
•

•
•
•

•
•

•

Arcus Gibb
Consulting
Engineers
appointed to
investigate raw
water/bulk water
storage facilities
quality water

•

Equipped borehole
to alleviate water
shortages

•

Requested CHDM
(WSA) to appoint
service provider –
feasibility study –
expansion of a raw
water storage
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•

•
•
•
•
•

Realistic tariffs for
cost recovery
Replacement of
vehicles
Bulk rehabilitated
and supplied
supply to be
established for
rural areas
Dam scour and
line
Installation of fire
hydrants
Ward 7
continuous
problems with
water shortages
Confusion
between LM and
WSA
Insufficient bulk
water facilities
Silt– impact on
water quality. Silt
occupies large
volumes of
storage dam – silt
exceeded the inlet
that leads to
WTW.
Water shortages
Confusion
between WSA and
LM budgets
Shortage of water
during dry
seasons
Insufficient raw
water storage
Water restrictions
often
implemented

SERVICE

SERVICE DELIVERY
CONT

DEVELOPMENT AND
SERVICE DELIVERY
PRIORITIES

PERFORMANCE
MEASURES AND KEY
SUCCESSES

• Water supplied to
households:
Pholar Park – 29 –
total 3455 of that
3128 receive
subsidies

CHALLENGES AND
OPPORTUNITIES

• On application

• New connections
are done on
application
• CHDM

• Infrastructure is
responsibility of
water services
authority
• Rural areas fall
under Chris Hani
District
Municipality

(TECHNICAL)
SANITATION

• Maintenance of
purification works
and reticulation
systems

•

•

• The Sakhisizwe
Municipality has
been appointed as
Water Services
Provider by the
Water Services
Authority (CHDM
District
Municipality) on an
annual basis until
the Section 78
process is
completed, and
this includes
provision of
sanitation services
in the delegated
areas of Elliot and
Cala

Addressed
problems
associated with
Treatment Works,
Ponds and
spillage with
CHDM
The problems
associated with
sewer reticulation
in Cala has been
reported at
Council meetings
A planned survey
of affected
households is
required

• Treatment works in
Elliot have exceeded
their design period
• Sewerage ponds are
at capacity
• Pond walls are
damaged
• Sewer spillage into
river
• Installation of
chlorinator
• Awaiting assistance
from CHDM
• Rural sanitation
backlogs
• Eradication of bucket
system - achieved
• Pholar Park, Cala
• (Pholar Park - poor
infrastructure –
resolved on
completion of the
treatment works)
• Shortage of need VIP
Toilets rural area
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SERVICE

SERVICE DELIVERY
CONT

DEVELOPMENT AND
SERVICE DELIVERY
PRIORITIES
• The rural areas fall
directly under the
Water Services
Authority (Chris
Hani)
• Infrastructure
projects are the
responsibility of the
Water Services
Authority
• New connections
are done upon
request as there are
still backlogs
although a large
percentage are
below RDP
standards
• Maintenance of
ponds, conservancy
tanks and
reticulation systems
• Waterborne
households serviced:
Elliot, “Old
Township”,
Masibambane
inclusive
commercial/
business: 2050
• Cala: 822
• VIP serviced: 2000
Conservancy
tanks – 40 per
month
The urban
communities are
insisting on
waterborne
sanitation removal
and are not
prepared to accept
other methods

PERFORMANCE
MEASURES AND KEY
SUCCESSES
• Operational
problems
experienced in Cala
intervention by
DWAF
• Bucket system has
been eradicated VIP – toilet system
in rural areas and
waterborne in
Urban Areas
• Ongoing Operation
and Maintenance
• Construction of
new treatment
works has begun in
Elliot
• Construction of
oxidation ponds
has begun in Elliot
Extension
• Complaints
reported and
attended to were
340
• Sewer blockages
were 240
• VIP’s serviced: 2000
• New connections:
22
• Conservancy tanks
serviced on request
basis – Cala 8 per
week
• Elliot 2 per week
• Bucket system
serviced
• Cala 216
• Pholar Park: 26
• Subsidies received
2772
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CHALLENGES AND
OPPORTUNITIES
•

Sanitation ponds
needed in rural
areas

•

Unqualified
operators
(treatment works)
New vehicles
needed

•
•

Waterborne
sanitation for
bucket eradication
in Elliot

•

Rural areas and
Cala sanitation
inadequate

•

Outstanding
waterborne 1500
(urban area) and
VIP (rural area)
outstanding 1000
Supply Chain
Management

•
•

Old and aging
infrastructure
(reticulation)

•
•

Irrigation at ponds
Staff not
trained in
operations and
maintenance of
pond
Culture of non
Payment still
exists
Confusion
Between WSA
and LM budgets

•
•

SERVICE

SERVICE DELIVERY
CONT

DEVELOPMENT AND
SERVICE DELIVERY
PRIORITIES

PERFORMANCE
MEASURES AND KEY
SUCCESSES

A political decision
has been taken for
waterborne
sanitation in urban
areas and VIP’s in
rural areas

CHALLENGES AND
OPPORTUNITIES
•

Lack of staff

•

Insufficient
funding

•

Lack of tools and
equipment

•

Effluent generated
from ponds not
used for irrigation

•

Sewerage
reticulation
incomplete in Cala
– using septic
tanks and
conservancy tanks
Ndondo Square
Township –
problems with soil
material saturation
ends up in the
septic tanks

•

Septic tanks not
approved by
Municipality

•

Poor workmanship
(septic tanks)
Effluent is running
into Tsomo River –
creating Health
problems –
implications from
DWAF

•
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SERVICE

SOUND FISCAL
MANAGEMENT/ MUNICIPAL
FINANCIAL VIABILITY cont

DEVELOPMENT AND
SERVICE DELIVERY
PRIORITIES

PERFORMANCE
MEASURES AND
KEY SUCCESSES

•

CORPORATE
SERVICES
LEAVE
MANAGEMENT
AND
ADMINISTRATION

•

•
•
•
•

CHALLENGES AND
OPPORTUNITIES

Leave records to
be computerised –
SEBATA LEAVE
MODULE - leave
values for financial
year end

•

No attendance
registers

•

No attendance
register controller

No leave Policy
and procedure
manual in place in
place

•

Delloite appointed
SP
Leave policy &
procedure manual
developed and
workshopped

Planned leave
audit
Proper Leave
administration
Legal compliance
put in place and
necessary controls
Currently manual
system – registers
not maintained or
audited/
checked regularly

•

Leave audited

•

Leave to be
administered by HR
Urgent attention to
leave administration
as it has financial
implications for
council
Computerized leave
management
SEBATA system
leave module to be
implemented
Training / Capacity
of Staff dealing with
leave administration

•

•

•
•
•

•

No control

•

No exception
reports – checks and
balances
Unreliable leave
balances -- resulted
in audit query AG
Hudge financial
liability / implications
created

•
•
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SERVICE

SOUND FISCAL
MANAGEMENT/
MUNICIPAL
FINANCIAL VIABILITY

DEVELOPMENT AND
SERVICE DELIVERY
PRIORITIES

•

Institutional
compliance with
MFMA (Act No 56
of 2003) and
other accounting
practices

PERFORMANCE
MEASURES AND KEY
SUCCESSES

•
•

Legal Compliance
Reduce risk

CHALLENGES AND
OPPORTUNITIES

•

•

•

Monitor and
manage targets
set for income
and expenditure
control

•

Financial Viability

•

•

Planned
implementation
of Risk profile
/implementation
risk Plan and
annual overview
on risk
management planned for since
2007/2008 – not
achieved in
2008/2009 FY
Planned for
2009/2010

Establish baseline
to determine
financial viability
and monitor
viability in respect
of debt coverage
and expenditure
control – put in
place strategy to
resolve
Planned to put in
place - Revenue
enhancement
strategy to be put
on place

•

GRAP

•
•

Legal Compliance
GRAP preparation
FOR 2009

•

Fully Grap
compliant

•

Financial Policy

•

Legal Compliance

•

Achieved
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SERVICE

SOUND FISCAL
MANAGEMENT/
MUNICIPAL FINANCIAL
VIABILITY

BUDGET &
TREASURY
(FINANCE)
DEPARTMENT

DEVELOPMENT AND
SERVICE DELIVERY
PRIORITIES
• Enhance/expand
revenue base
implement
revenue
Management
Strategies –
collections

PERFORMANCE
MEASURES AND KEY
SUCCESSES
•

Management of
financial services by
maintaining Strategic
Organizational
Finance direction–
ensure financial
stability

CHALLENGES AND
OPPORTUNITIES
•

•

Revenue
Management

•

Revenue collections
ratio – 52,12% during
2008/2009 FY
•
•

•

Enforce Credit Control
Policy

•

•
•
•

Consolidated
Billing and
Debt
Management

• An effective Billing
system –
increased revenue
from payment of
services

• Planned improvement/
conversion of the billing
system (Sebata
Software)
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•

Continuous DBSA
intervention Services
of Mentor (P Mc
Ewen) to assist in
ensuring stability
capacitate new and
existing/new staff in
Finance Dept
Existence of
culture
of non
payment/poor
payment of services
High Unemployment
rate
Public consultation/
Education
Credit Control Policy
& procedures were
implemented during
2008/2009 FY
Capacity of Staff
Dedicated staff to
drive debt collection
function
Electricity
disconnections/
cut off not
performed regularly
for non-payment of
services by Technical
Dept

Billing (SEBATA)
software conversion
implemented during
2008/209 FY

SERVICE

SOUND FISCAL
MANAGEMENT/
MUNICIPAL FINANCIAL
VIABILITY

DEVELOPMENT AND
SERVICE DELIVERY
PRIORITIES

PERFORMANCE
MEASURES AND KEY
SUCCESSES
• Purchased software
• Accurate meter
readings
• Send out accounts on
time
• Manual receipting in
Cala requires to be
integrated
Computerized System
implemented –
addressed when Sebata
System is fully upgraded
and IT System is linked
to both units.
• Update indigent
database
• Improve cash flow
• Planned cut off services
for non – payment
• Raise charges
• Establish debt
management strategies
• Eradicate government
debt
• Planned to provide
monthly cut-off list to
Technical Service to
ensure disconnection
for non-payment
• Monitor electricity cutoffs
• Improve on existing
service standards and
build community
awareness on
importance for paying
of services
• Improve customer care
• Planned training of
relevant staff on
implementation of new
software
• Develop relevant ByLaw (Finance related)
• Planned public
consultation
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CHALLENGES AND
OPPORTUNITIES
•

•

Check meter reading
received for accuracy
– ensure correctness
via exception reports
Manual receipting
for services in Cala –
create opportunities
for misappropriation
of funds

•

Implement credit
control policy
effectively – monitor
payments against
account raised –
exception report Achieved in
2008/2009 FY

•

Cuts off are
implemented
monthly

•

Staff shortage/follow
up

•

Planned to develop
customer survey to
be included in billing
accounts /on local
radio slots– (co –
ordinated with
assistance of
Communications
Officer)

•

Use of the municipal
website

SERVICE

DEVELOPMENT
AND SERVICE
DELIVERY
PRIORITIES

PERFORMANCE
MEASURES AND KEY
SUCCESSES

SOUND FISCAL
MANAGEMENT/
MUNICIPAL
FINANCIAL
VIABILITY

• Valuations data
cleansing of current
valuation
information

• Completed in 2008/2009
financial year

CHALLENGES AND
OPPORTUNITIES

•
•
•

Rates & Valuations
•
•

Assets & Risk
Management

• Invest Trust funds
monies
Convert and
transfer
transactions from
IMFO/GAMAP
Ledger to GRAP
general ledger

• Investment have been
done externally

• Compliance with
MFMA

• Annual Financial
Statements prepared
submitted to AG’s office
– in compliance with
MFMA - assisted by
Delloitte

• Identify and verify
municipal
properties

• Identified assets

• Analyse all capital
votes to identify
assets purchased
and categorize
assets into GRAP
format
• Comply with GRAP
format immovable
property
• Bar code assets
• Value Assets

• Compliance with GRAP
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Raised additional
5200 accounts
Contributing to
Increasing the
revenue base
Create integrated
valuation roll of the
municipal area
Create same equal
rates base
Ensuring data
integrity – achieved
in 2008/2009

•

Investments as at
June 2008 total 16.9
million
• Compliance achieved
During 2008/2009
FY

• Achieved during
2008/2009 financial
year

• Planned – use of
combined
management system
• Deloittes appointed
to assist with
conversion
• Full Compliance
achieved in
2008/2009 FY
• Assets Valued

SERVICE

DEVELOPMENT AND
SERVICE DELIVERY
PRIORITIES

PERFORMANCE
MEASURES AND KEY
SUCCESSES

CHALLENGES AND
OPPORTUNITIES

• Update assets
register and
Capture and update
movable property
assets
• Acquisition and
disposal
• Obtain
Infrastructure
assets – group
assets into
categories –
unbundled assets

• Immovable assets
properties to be
grouped and included in
the annual financial
statements to comply
with GRAP
• Planned audit / update
of assets
• Infrastructure totals of
assets to be obtained
and grouped in
categories

• Compliance achieved
in the 2008/2009
financial year

• Develop assets
management and
accounting policy &
procedure
• Develop immovable
property
acquisitions assets
management and
disposal manual

• Development of Policy
& Procedure Manual is
planned

• Develop assets
vote
• Application form to
assist with recoding
assets purchases in
the system
• Perform Annual
count of, vehicles
equipment /tools
• Develop assets
management
report
• Reconcile assets
vote -- capitalize on
SEBATA financial
system

• Fixed assets definition
report planned

SOUND FISCAL
MANAGEMENT/
MUNICIPAL
FINANCIAL
VIABILITY
Assets & Risk
Management
continued…

• Development of a
assets vote on financial
system

•

Planned for June each
Year – all assets will be
valued, including the
road and electricity
network

• Ongoing
audit/updates of
assets

• Achieved in
2008/2009 financial
year
• Achieved in
2008/2009 financial
year

•

Result in opening
balances on annual
financial statements
– comply with GRAP
– Control of assets

•

Performed

•

Assets management
report developed
Assets vote
reconciled

•
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SERVICE

SOUND FISCAL
MANAGEMENT/
MUNICIPAL FINANCIAL
VIABILITY

INSURANCE

DEVELOPMENT
AND SERVICE
DELIVERY
PRIORITIES
• Establish of
Sakhisizwe own
internal record
keeping system of
all insurance claims
• Budget calculations
for motor, COID and
benefits
contributions
insurance premiums

PERFORMANCE
MEASURES AND KEY
SUCCESSES

• Insurance Portfolio

CHALLENGES AND
OPPORTUNITIES

•

•

•

EXPENDITURE

PAYROLL

• Develop Insurance
Policies &
Procedures

• Policy development

• Integrate former
TLC`s Banking
Accounts into one
consolidated
account

• One consolidated
Banking Account

• Integrate the
former TLC’s
Payrolls
• Set Internal control
measures and
measures &
Procedures
• Upgrade payroll
version / system of
Sebata

• Payroll system
integrated
• Planned appointment of
Payroll Officer
• Completed
• Integration completed

•

Achieved

•

Payroll integration
achieved
No dedicated staff
member to deal with
Payroll function –
post requires to be
funded and filled
Capacity Building
and
Planned
development of
Payroll Procedure
Manual - carried
over from 2007/2008
to 2009/2010
financial year

•

•
•
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Records system
established & no
reliance on
outside assistance
Compliance
achieved --with
required insurance
claim procedures
internal control
measures in place
Review of policies
/development
Achieved as
Planned for
2008/2009
Financial year

SERVICE

SOUND FISCAL
MANAGEMENT/
MUNICIPAL FINANCIAL
VIABILITY

DEVELOPMENT AND
SERVICE DELIVERY
PRIORITIES

PERFORMANCE
MEASURES AND KEY
SUCCESSES
• Obtain Sebata training
& relevant Procedure
Manual/s
• Planned
implementation of pre
numbered
authorization/
instruction memo’s
from Corporate Service
Department – prior to
payroll
implementation/s

• Planned upgrading of
Software
• No Overtime policy
• Over expenditure re
overtime payments –
excessive – planned
procedure development
• Monitor overtime
payments – ensure
hours claimed are
legitimate with
legislated hours as
BCEA.

CHALLENGES AND
OPPORTUNITIES
•

Reduce audit queries

•

Legal remuneration
of Council monies
Prevent illegal
payments
Reduce over and
underpayment in
salaries
Balanced payroll vote
Financial challenges
Capacitation staff
Payroll procedures
required

•
•
•
•
•
•

•
•

•
•

•
•

•
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Software updated

Overtime payments –
excessive in
2008/2009 –
measures have been
put in place to
reduce overtime
Overtime policy
developed by
Corporate Services
HOD`s required to
implement policy &
monitor & control/
overtime to be
verified & required
to be within
prescriptions of BCEA
Excessive overtime
time payments
queried
Corporate Services –
requires strict
implementation of
policy
Controls maintained
to reduce abuse of
overtime

SERVICE

DEVELOPMENT AND
SERVICE DELIVERY
PRIORITIES

PERFORMANCE
MEASURES AND KEY
SUCCESSES

CHALLENGES AND
OPPORTUNITIES

SOUND FISCAL
MANAGEMENT/
MUNICIPAL FINANCIAL
VIABILITY

PROCUREMENT/
SUPPLY CHAIN
MANAGEMENT

• Implement Supply
Chain/
preferential
Procurement Policy

• Supply Chain
Management Policy
Developed

• Manage number of
orders and
Transactions

• Planned conversion

• Enhance
efficiency and
improve
controls
• Appointed Delloitte to
assist with GRAP
conversion –
conversion achieved
during 2008/2009

• Establish a database
of suppliers in
categories of
services offered/
rendered

• Planned to establish
Data Base

• Advert placed calling
for database
registration
• Data base established
requires to be
updated & planned
for 2009/2010

• Establish Audit/ BID
Committee and

• Established – Bid
Committee evaluated
and recommendations
prepared - approved
through Council

• Established

• Convert account
from IMFO to GRAP
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•
•

SCM Policy
developed
Full compliance not
achieved as
legislated - required
compliance with
SCM processes
/policies and
procedures

SERVICE

SOUND FISCAL
MANAGEMENT/
MUNICIPAL FINANCIAL
VIABILITY

BUDGET &
TREASURY

DEVELOPMENT AND
SERVICE DELIVERY
PRIORITIES
Establish Budget &
Treasury Office
Prepare 3 year
Budget -- according
to MFMA and
National Treasury
guidelines - aligned
to IDP
Budget in line with
GRAP
Update indigent
database and cater
for indigent free
basic services –
affordable tariffs
Department to
prepare service
delivery and
implementation plans
Submission of
monthly, quarterly
and mid year financial
reports to Council
National & Provincial
departments and
other stakeholders
treasury

PERFORMANCE
MEASURES AND KEY
SUCCESSES
• Budget Approved

CHALLENGES AND
OPPORTUNITIES
•
•

• Indigents catered for –
free basic services
implemented
• Input and participation
of management in the
budget process

•

•
• Planned to be
addressed
• Planned to be
addressed

•
•

• Planned in terms of
schedule and
operational issues

•

•
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Achieved
Lack of
interpretation of
budget and budget
Management
process, staff and
Councillors)
Lack of capacity -Capacity building
programmes -Financial constraints
Financial controls
implemented and
monitored
SDBIP Achieved
prepared by CFO
During 2008/09,
notwithstanding
exception raised by
AG there was a
marked increase in
the number of
events and
opportunities
created and
scheduled for
information
sessions, regarding
the budget and all
aspects recommunity
enhancement
Formal monitoring
and coaching to
ensure that required
results are achieved.
Monthly, quarterly
and mid year
financial reports to
Council National &
Provincial
departments and
other stakeholders Achieved

SERVICE

DEVELOPMENT AND
SERVICE DELIVERY
PRIORITIES

PERFORMANCE
MEASURES AND KEY
SUCCESSES

CHALLENGES AND
OPPORTUNITIES

SOUND FISCAL
MANAGEMENT/
MUNICIPAL FINANCIAL
VIABILITY cont

BUDGET &
TREASURY

Implement activity
based costing system

Undertake monthly
analysis of creditors
days, net debtors to
annual income and
total debt annual
income
Review tariff --base
tariff on costing
results in order to
achieve a costs
reflective user charge

• Not done – Planned

•

Commenced
requires
implementation

• Planned to be
undertaken

•
•

Analysis performed
Tariff base

• To be reviewed

•

Reviewed
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SERVICE

DEVELOPMENT AND
SERVICE DELIVERY
PRIORITIES

PERFORMANCE
MEASURES AND KEY
SUCCESSES

•

Establish and
promote effective
functioning SPU
Unit – in the Office
of the Mayor/
Municipal Manager

•

Monitor issues
related to youth,
elderly, women,
disabled &
HIV/AIDS

•

CHALLENGES AND
OPPORTUNITIES

KPA: LED

OFFICE OF THE
MAYOR
SPECIAL
PROGRAMMES

•

•

SPU Officer
appointed
HIV Co –ordinator
appointed

•
•
•

Planning to draft
annual
programmes with
relevant
stakeholders
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SPU Officer
appointed
HIV /AIDS co –
ordinator
appointed
Participation of
stakeholders

•

IDP planned &
funded SPU
related projects for
2008/2009 FY – R
556 097 Funding
Source Sector
Department: social
Development
(Projects relate to
care & support to
orphans &
vulnerable children
due to HIV/AIDS)

•

IDP planned &
funded SPU
related projects for
2008/2009 FY – R
200 000 Funding
Source Sector
Department: social
Development
(Projects relate to
Early childhood
Development)

SERVICE

DEVELOPMENT
AND SERVICE
DELIVERY
PRIORITIES

PERFORMANCE
MEASURES AND KEY
SUCCESSES

CHALLENGES AND
OPPORTUNITIES

KPA: LED cont
LED

•

Economic growth
and development

• Create an enabling
environment for
economic growth and
development
• Implement LED Strategy
• Implement skills audit
municipal wide and put
in place development
plans plan to enhance
job opportunities,
investment and
economic growth

•

•

•

•
•
•
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Critical challenges
in LED - no
progressed
during 2008/2009
FY
LED Strategy to
be put in place
and implemented
monitored - LED
Strategy requires
urgent review –
not reviewed
during 2008/2009
FY
Service Provider
to be appointed
to assist in the
review &
development of
the LED Strategy
Implementation
Skills audit in the
community needs
to be undertaken
Data Base created
for SMME
groupings

SERVICE

LED :CONT

DEVELOPMENT AND
SERVICE DELIVERY
PRIORITIES


(IPED)
TOURISM/
LOCAL ECONOMIC
DEVELOPMENT









•

PERFORMANCE
MEASURES AND KEY
SUCCESSES

To fight poverty
and create
facilities to
support
economic,
including amongst
others, agriculture
infrastructure,
hawker shelters,
taxi facilities,
SMME business
premises, etc
Development
Develop strong
linkages with &
amongst all
relevant
stakeholders in
the field of LED
To establish and
facilitate
functioning of
Tourism/ LED
forum
Draft Tourism/LED
Strategy –
implementation
thereof
To provide safe,
sustainable and
equitable
amenities to all
citizens in order to
draw tourists to
the region



Develop &
implement
strategies for
effective
utilization of land
and properties

•









Sakhisizwe Tourism
established from all
local tourism
associations for
Elliot and Cala
Plan to establish
Tourist information
centres
Tourism Plan
developed
LED Strategy to be
developed and
discussed at LED
Forum
Terms of Reference
Developed
Funding obtained
from DBSA – formed
a technical
committee –tourism
and business

CHALLENGES AND
OPPORTUNITIES
•
•
•

•
•

•

•
•

•
•

Land sold at market
value
Business
Development
Economic growth
and employment
created
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Funding a constant
constraint
Professionally
qualified LED staff
Proactive approach
required to
facilitate revive and
ensure continued
functioning of the
forums and ensure
implementation of
Tourism and LED
Strategy
Attendance at
forum Meetings
Establish an
environment
conducive to
development Many
tourism/developme
nt opportunities
that need
exploration –
strategic
partnerships to be
created
Identify
stakeholders and
develop Tourism
Strategy
Insufficient funding
Service provider
appointed to
develop tourism
Plan lacks capacity
and has not met
required deadlines.
Resultantly the
status quo remains
in 2008/2009 FY

SERVICE

DEVELOPMENT
AND SERVICE
DELIVERY
PRIORITIES

LED CONT

PERFORMANCE
MEASURES AND KEY
SUCCESSES
•
•

(IPED)
TOURISM/
LOCAL ECONOMIC
DEVELOPMENT
Continued……

•
•
•

•

Create a vibrant
economic
environment
that is conducive
to SMME`s
development to
50% of the
unemployed by
2014

•
•
•
•

SMME database
profile
•

•

Hawkers

•
•
•
•
•
•

CHALLENGES AND
OPPORTUNITIES

Develop skills – business
training
SMME development
strategy /Plan to be
developed
Planning to Develop
database
Plan to establish training
centres
Promote Public Private
Partnerships
Co – ordinate different
programmes from all
spheres of government
Invest in Local
entrepreneurs/contracto
rs
Plan to undertake natural
resource identification
and mapping to attract
investors
Plan to form section 21
company -- deal with LED
related projects

•

Develop infrastructure
Planned to Identify &
demarcate Hawker sites
Issue trading /Hawkers
license
Review By Laws
Self sufficiency
Create Economic growth

•

•
•
•

•

•
•

•

•

•
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Slow economic
growth – require
intervention
SMME data base
to be established
Poverty
alleviation
programmes
To facilitate &
monitor the
provision of
agricultural
activities and
facilitate with
DOA the support
of emerging
farmers
Provide
information
centres to assist
with economic
initiatives
Lack of
infrastructure
Provision of water
from CHDM
Identify
stakeholders
Liaise with Private
Public
Partnerships –
obtain support
/financial
resources
Lack / Source
Funding DOA &
Social
Development
Source equipment
and tractors

SERVICE

DEVELOPMENT AND
SERVICE DELIVERY
PRIORITIES

PERFORMANCE
MEASURES AND KEY
SUCCESSES

CHALLENGES AND
OPPORTUNITIES

LED CONT
•
•

•

•

•

•

Co –ordinate and
facilitate provision
of dipping tanks
Provision of
shearing sheds
Production of
healthy livestock
by 2009
Stimulate
agricultural
growth – farming
(citrus farming)
Investigate
economic
possibilities Plantations
forestry and
woodlots
Homestead
Production
Community
Gardens
Acquisition of
Tractors and
equipment

•

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

•
•

Production of
healthy livestock

•

•
Create economic
possibilities
Economic growth
Job Creation
Plan to develop
agriculture
development plan
Alleviate poverty
Promote food
production
Established and
sustainable
community gardens
Started in 2006
/2007 commenced
with a draft business
plan
Self sufficiency
Skills Development

•

•
•
•
•
•
•
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Two shearing
sheds built in
Sakhisizwe during
2007/2008 financial
year
46 Nguni Bulls
supplied to each
ward –value of this
being 1 million
Greening project 7
million from DEAT
– contractor to
commence early
2009

Source funding
Establishment of
irrigation system
Create organized
citrus farming
Market agricultural
potential in
Municipal area
Forming public –
private
partnerships
Development of
agro – based
industries wool
production, meat
production

SERVICE

LED CONT

DEVELOPMENT AND
SERVICE DELIVERY
PRIORITIES
•
•

•

•

•

•

Co –ordinate and
facilitate provision
of dipping tanks
Provision of
shearing sheds
Production of
healthy livestock
by 2009
Stimulate
agricultural
growth – farming
(citrus farming)
Investigate
economic
possibilities Plantations
forestry and
woodlots
Homestead
Production
Community
Gardens
Acquisition of
Tractors and
equipment

PERFORMANCE
MEASURES AND KEY
SUCCESSES

•

Production of
healthy livestock

•

Create economic
possibilities
Economic growth
Job Creation
Plan to develop
agriculture
development plan
Alleviate poverty
Promote food
production
Established and
sustainable
community gardens
In 2006 /2007
commenced with a
draft business plan
(not reported if
same was
completed)
Self sufficiency
Skills Development

•
•
•
•
•
•
•

•
•

CHALLENGES AND
OPPORTUNITIES

•

•

•

•

•
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Two shearing
sheds built in
Sakhisizwe during
2007/2008 financial
year & shearing
sheds are planned
for Cala Pass,
Tsengiwe,
Manzimdaka,
Tiwane for
2008/2009 FY –
funding is to be
sourced
IDP Planned
project Dipping
tanks ward 2 & 4
(not funded)
4 – (4x7 wards =
28) Nguni Bulls
supplied to each
ward –value of this
being 1 million
EPWP Greening of
land &
rehabilitation
project 7 million
from DEAT –
contractor to were
to commence early
2009 – (Ikamva) –
carried over to
2009/2010 FY as it
was not completed
during the FY
under review
IDP Planned
project (no funding
allocated) Lower
Lfuta Youth
community Garden

SERVICE

DEVELOPMENT AND
SERVICE DELIVERY
PRIORITIES

PERFORMANCE
MEASURES AND KEY
SUCCESSES

LED CONT

CHALLENGES AND
OPPORTUNITIES
•
•
•
•
•
•

•
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Source funding
Establishment of
irrigation system
Create organized
citrus farming
Market agricultural
potential in
Municipal area
Forming public –
private
partnerships
Development of
agro – based
industries wool
production, meat
production
IDP planned LED
projects for
2008/2009 are
indicated on page
36 & 37 of this
report (not funded)

CHAPTER 3.
HUMAN RESOURCES
AND OTHER ORGANISATIONAL MANAGEMENT
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3.

EXISTING AND NEW DELIVERY MECHANISMS
Sakhisizwe Municipality was established during December 2000 and this resulted in
the amalgamation of two local authorities and towns, namely :
•

Elliot and Cala

Included in this area are surrounding townships, farms and villages
Whilst substantial progress and development has been made in order to restructure
and align all smaller units into the larger formed “Sakhisizwe Municipality:, this had
not been without challenge. Transformation is required, not only in terms of the reorganisation, which led to the amalgamation, but also in terms of new legislation and
a new way of doing things.
Every effort has been made to engage in a formal and directed change management
programme in order to ensure that changed processes, procedures, and practices are
understood by all, and are lived as day-to-day ideals and values within the
organisation. In the areas of :
Governance;
Institutional development;
Transformation: and
Change Management,
every effort and focus is being made to ensure that delivery mechanisms support the
required change at every level. Ongoing and critical analysis and evaluation takes
place in order to ensure that Sakhisizwe Municipality takes the correct steps towards
achieving excellence in human resource and other organisational management.
3.1.

Institutional Development

3.1(a) Sakhisizwe Municipality has an overall staff complement of 161 employees,
which are broken down as follows :
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NUMBER OF STAFF

GENDER

1
4
8
1

African Female
African Female
African Male
African Male

2

African Male

Senior Management

1

African Female

Senior Management

1

White Male

Senior Management

2
0
0
1
0
0

African Male
Coloured Male
White Male
African Females
Coloured Female
White Female

Professionally qualified,
experienced specialists
and mid-management

13
1
1
6
0
1
34
10
1
1

African Males
Coloured Male
White Male
African Females
Coloured Female
White Female
African Male
African Females
Coloured Female
Coloured Male

Skilled technical,
academically qualified and
junior management

41
2
27
0

African Males
Coloured Males
African Females
African Males

Unskilled and defined
decision making

2

African Females

Interns (Financial)

TOTAL STAFF COMPLEMENT: 161 STAFF
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LEVEL
Mayor
Councillors
Councillors
Top Management

Semi-skilled and
discretionary decision
making

Temporary employees

Error!

RACIAL BREAKDOWN OF STAFF WITHIN SAKHISIZWE MUNICIPALITY
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NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

95

75

55

35

15

-5

AFRICAN
MALES

AFRICAN
FEMALES

COLOURED
MALES

COLOURED
FEMALES

INDIAN
MALES

INDIAN
FEMALES

WHITE
MALES

WHITE
FEMALES

RACE

GENDER REPRESENTATION 2008/2009

37%
MALES
FEMALES
63%
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•

Number of performance agreements and employment contracts of MM and
Section 57 Managers submitted to the Department within the prescribed time
frame
 -Performance Agreements – 5
 -Employment Contracts – 5

STAFF DEVELOPMENT INITIATIVES DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR

Training Intervention
Finance
Supply Chain
Office Administration
Report Writing and minute taking
HR course

Number of beneficiaries
5
3
1
2
1

Technical staff registered with professional bodies
Technical
Service

Total number
of technical
service
manager

Total number
registered in
the accredited
professional
body

None

None

None

Total number
pending
registration
confirmation
in the
accredited
professional
body
None

Total number not
yet registered in
the accredited
professional body

None

Levels of education and skills
Total number of
staff

Number of staff
without Grade 12

165

104

Number of staff
with Senior
certificate only
20

Number of staff
Tertiary / accredited
professional training
13

List of pension and medical aids to whom employees belong
Name of pension fund

SAMWU National Pension
Fund
Cape Joint
Alexander Forbes

Number
of
members
114

Name of medical aids

Number of
members

Munimed

01

07
01

Samwumed
Bonitas
LA Health

23
35
5
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Indicator name

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

F

Vacancy rate for all
approved and
budgeted posts
Percentage of
appointment in
strategic positions
(Municipal Manager
and Section 57
Managers)
Percentage of
Section 57 Managers
including Municipal
Managers who
attended at least 1
skill development
training course
within the Financial
Year
Percentage of
Managers in
Technical Services
with a professional
qualification
Percentage of staff
that have
undergone a skills
audit (including
competency
Percentage of
councillors who
have attended a skill
development
training within the
current 5 year term
Percentage of staff
complement with
disability
Percentage of
female employees
Percentage of
employees that are
aged 35 or younger

Total
number of
people
(planned
for) during
the year
under
review

Achievement
level during
the year
under review

Achievement
percentage
during the
year

Comments on the
gap

N/A

N/A

Training course
not completed
due to work
constraint

161

100%

100%

N/A

9

Certificate

100%

N/A

3

N/A

N/A

N/A

47

N/A

N/A

16

N/A

N/A

Female
percentage is less
than males
The municipality is
being dominated
by employees
close to
retirement age

100%

3

0%
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MAJOR CHALLENGES AND REMEDIAL ACTIONS IN REGARD TO HUMAN RESOURCE AND
ORGANISATIONAL MANAGEMENT
Major Challenges

Remedial Actions

Little or minimum budget for the HR
department
Non-compliance with the HR legislation or
policy guidelines
Job Evaluation Maintenance phase not yet
started by the Municipality possibility of
inability to implement the wages curves
High number of drop outs in the
learnerships programmes

Accessing other sources of funding especially for
training, transport
Workshop of managers and section heads on HR
policy
Workshop for municipality on mainstreaming

Poor retention of staff at all levels

No retention strategy and policy

Absence of the Health and Safety
Practitioner and structured SHE Wellness
programmes
Delays in finalisation of the Disciplinary
cases
Absence of Records Manager and no
proper achieves are in place
Certain positions on the current structure
are placed incorrectly i.e. part of
community services is placed under
Technical and LED
Staff shortages at HR Department that
lead to inability to deliver timeously

Appointment of the Health and Safety
Practitioner as a matter compliance

Short term contracts at Top/ Senior
Management lead to inability to ensure
stability

Ensuring stability by prioritising these contracts
when filling new positions

Continuous mentoring and motivation

Training a pool of officials to deal with disciplinary
processes.
Appointment of Records Manager
Development of the new Structure in line with
strategic objectives of Sakhisizwe Municipality
and ensuring that positions are at the right places
Propose positions critical to their programmes
and ensure they are filled i.e Records Officer and
SHE

KEY HR STATISTICS PER FUNCTIONAL AREA
Full time staff complement per functional area
A.
Approved positions per
department
Office of the Mayor
Municipal Manager’s office
Community Services
Infrastructure Services
Planning and Development
Finance
Human Resources

No of approved and
budgeted posts per
position

Filled
posts

Vacant posts

3

1

2
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TOTAL
Approved positions per department

No of approved and budgeted
posts per position

OFFICE OF THE MUNICIPAL MANAGER
1. Secretary
1
HUMAN RESOURCE DEPARTMENT
1. Human Resources Officer
1
2. Secretary
1
3. Personnel Clerk
1
COMMUNITY SERVICES
1. Assistant Manager: Community
1
Services
4. General Worker
3
8. Librarian
2
23. General Assistant
2
FINANCE DEPARTMENT
1.Accountants
2
2.Payroll Clerk
3. Data Capturers
4. Meter Readers
2
5. Clerk (Debt)
6. Business License Officer
7. Registration Officer
8. Cashier
9. Clerk
1
10. Supply Chain Officer
25. Accounts Clerk -Projects
26. Chief Financial Officer
1
27. Secretary: CFO
PLANNING DEPARTMENT
1. Senior Town Planner
1
2. Land Use Management Officer
4. Admin Officer
6. Tourism Marketing Officer
7. Town Planning Technician
11. Institutional Development
Planner
12. SMME Officer
14. Housing Practitioner
17. Project Manager: Housing
1
Management
21. Technician (Building)
22. Clerks: Housing
3
24. PMS Officer
25. IDP Manager
30. Programme Manager
31. LED Researcher and Policy
Developer
33. LED Municipal Support Officer 1
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Filled posts

Vacant posts

1
1
0
0

0
1
1

1

0

1
1
0

2
1
2

INFRASTRUCTURE DEPARTMENT
14. Project Manager (PMU)
1
15. Technician (Roads)
1
16. Area Manager (Water services
1
provision)
17. Technician(Water Works
20
Operator)
18. Works Forman
4
19. General Worker
75
20. Plumber
18
23. Sewerage Works Operator
16
25. Section Manager: (Treatment
2
works)
32. Building Inspector
1
33. Secretary
0

1
1

0
0
0
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8

0
0
1
8
1

0
35
17
8
1

0
0

0
0

3.1(b) Organisational Structure
The amalgamation of the erstwhile TLC’s of Cala and Elliot to form Sakhisizwe
Municipality created the need for reviewing the organisational structure and
placement of staff as per placement criteria. Annual review and certainly
further review was required during the budget process review, but to date
this has not occurred. Ultimately, this results in the fact that the current
structure does not take into account long-term and growth issues. It also
results (as per previous discussion) in acknowledgement of the fact that the
structure does not adequately reflect logical functional groupings and
groupings as per norms of best practice principles.
o It was intended to review the organizational structure during 2007
/2008. Due budgetary and resource constraints this was not
achieved. Review of the organizational structure commenced
during 2008/2009 financial year, and through DPLG a Service
Provider was appointed to assist with this process. It is imperative
that required that members of the Budget Steering Committee be
actively involved within all aspects of this process. During this
process it will be required that functional groupings and related
considerations and modifications made as required. It will also be
required that the structure represent an accurate account of the
demands placed on the organization by the IDP.
o The process of determining the current structure for the 2008/2009
financial year, will require an analysis of the following pieces of
information: the IDP, the related Implementation Plans, and the
existing and required organizational infrastructure for service
delivery. In this manner every effort will be made to ensure that
the proposed structure reflects the identified needs and strategic
objectives. The final structure must provide an Organogram, which
will enable the organization to meet key deliverables as identified
within the IDP. The refinement and moderation of the
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Implementation Plan will take into account all direct and indirect
costs associated with each position on the Organogram.
o For each position and certainly for each new position reflected on
the Organogram, a job description is required to be provided and
written specifically for the TASK System of job evaluation
(conforming with national expectations, policies and processes).
These, in turn, govern the practical implementation of the TASK
System of Evaluation as prescribed by SALGA.
o Overall, it is imperative that the placement of staff be examined.
Misplaced staff will be required to be re-placed or re-deployed.
This process will be required to take place in consultation with the
Local Labour Forum prior to implementation.
o Every effort will be made to ensure that placement occurs in a
manner that is fair, objective and in a manner that maintains the
operational integrity of the organisation.
3.1(c) Employee Assistance Programme
The Corporate Services Manager currently “acts” as the
EAP Officer in the Municipality. The Municipality should
Maybe look at employing a qualified permanent person in
This position, as it is very crucial for the welfare of staff.
We have encountered quite a number of problems with staff, e.g. staff
is heavily indebted and as a result have no money to take home at the
end of the day. This is one of the problems that may lead to alcohol
and substance abuse among our staff members. The Corporate
Services Department should endeavour to correct all the above by
enlightening staff on their rights as soon as possible.
The development and implementation of EAP Policy and HIV/Aids
policy is required – this planned to be developed during 2008/2009
financial year
3.1(d) Job Evaluation
Job evaluation has on a national scale, placed huge demands on staff
and organisations alike. Whilst the results of the job evaluation
exercise have been made available through the presentation of the
Final Outcomes Report (presented to us by the Provincial Job
Evaluation), implementation awaits the National Wage Curve from
SALGBC and the process of appeal. In respect of the wage curve, we
have raised concerns on the benchmarking of municipalities, in order
to determine the wage curves for different municipalities. These
issues are currently under discussions with the parties of the SALGBC.
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3.2.

GOVERNANCE

3.2(a) Document Management Project
This project remains a challenge in many respects. At the outset, it
must be stated that this Records/Document Management System is
not only outdated, and not of a good standard, but has also
deteriorated over time. This is due in part to a lack of qualified and
skilled staff to manage this function.
In respect of the “institutional memory” of the organization, this is of
particular concern. As an integral aspect of record within the
institution, it is critical that this process be examined and urgently
reviewed.
Currently the organization is faced with an unstructured records
system and a system that was inherited from Cala TLC. With the
process of amalgamation and centralization of records within Cala, this
system has disintegrated into a further state of chaos. Simply stated,
the system is unstructured, files/subject matter is numbered
incorrectly, documents are filed incorrectly and cannot be retrieved.
During 2008/2009, it was planned to review this system, this however,
did not occur as planned and it is now planned to review the existing
system and to develop a new system (with administrative and financial
support from DBSA). DBSA have also undertaken to ensure that
relevant and appropriate training is provided for this purpose –
Preferably ensuring mentoring by partnering with other Municipalities
that are recognized as having correctly functioning document
management systems.
On one hand, the administration of Council and Standing Committee
Meetings has shown improvement and Council agendas and minutes
have been provided accurately and correctly (facilitating Council
decision-making.) Minutes are also being signed by the Mayor (as is
required).
Whilst the Audit Committee is not yet operational, the establishment
of the Internal Audit Committee is currently under way and
negotiations have already been undertaken with the District
Municipality. It must be noted that this function will be a shared
function and this role cannot be over-emphasized.
A Remuneration Committee has been elected by Council and
constitutes:
•
•
•
•

Mayor (Ms W Tikana)
Cllr: S Ntakana
P Mc Ewen (DBSA Deployed: Financial /Municipal Mentor
C van Schalkwyk: HR/PMS consultant
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Purpose of Committee: To ensure that payment of salaries for s57
Managers occurs in terms of Council resolutions, after negotiations are
concluded between Managers and Council.
3.2(b) Policies Adopted
•
•
•
•

Remuneration Policy according to SALGA guidelines
Budget Policy.
Investments Policy
Tariff Policy

3.2(c) Register of Interest
This register was formally adopted and both Councillors and officials
are required to declare their interests in order to avoid any conflict that
may arise as a result of doing Council business.
3.3.

TRANSFORMATION AND CHANGE MANAGEMENT

3(a) During August 2006 a Performance Management System was developed inhouse and applied to top management. During same Financial year it was
intended to introduce this to middle management but due to financial
constraints this has not been successfully cascaded to this level.
In the period under review (2008/2009) Sakhisizwe took a decision to move
across form the in house PMS system developed to the Performance
Management System as governed by the Municipal Performance Regulations
(promulgated in 2006) and as such the following successes were enjoyed as
per strategic priorities:
To date Performance management has been applied to the s57 Managers;
Charmaine Van Schalkwyk Consulting was appointed to populate the s57
performance agreements and scorecards for 2008/2009 and 2009/2010 and
this was completed as required. This has been achieved and all scorecards
have been aligned to the SDBIP in terms of their format and content
requirements.
It is worth noting that greater effort will be required to re-write these
documents in future years in order to ensure that all aspects are thoroughly
covered;
These documents have been concluded with the required linkages to the new
SDBIP and therefore to the National Indicators;
The PMS Policy was drafted and approved incorporating the regulated
guidelines on Performance Management.
A number of workshops have been held regarding implementation and policy
content.
Overall the objective remains --- that of taking this system forward ensuring
refinement and further customised and correct application and
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implementation and in cascading and applying it to the levels below the s57’s
until this is applied throughout the organization at every level.
Individual performance assessments for the individual managers have been
completed by an independent Committee (PMS Committee), which was
constituted by elected council members and independent consultants.
Whilst this process has been considered to be objective, we are still required
to formally establish an independent performance audit committee. In the
interim a Remuneration Committee was appointed through Council to
oversee the Auditing of this process.
Annual reports are submitted to Council and this in turn assists Council to
evaluate performance and to make the necessary interventions when these
are identified.

Council

Administration
SDBIP

IDP
Budget

Service Delivery Targets
By top management and by
Wards

Monthly reports
Mid-year
performance
Assessment
Annual Report

Performance Indicators
Revenue and Expenditure by
vote

Employee contracts
and annual
performance
agreements for the
municipal manger &
senior manager

3.3(b) Skills Development
This function was functioning properly until the resignation of the SDF.
Annual Training plans have been developed and reporting has been done via
the Implementation Reports.
It must be noted, however, that these have not occurred in respect of realistic
needs and have not been applied according to the prescriptions of the Skills
Development Act.
Funding will always remain a challenge. In terms of compliance the
municipality is utilising 2% of the salary bill for Skills Development.
The following outstanding issues were required to be compliant during
2008/2009 financial year:
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 Appointment of a SDF – achieved
 Appointment of a Training/ Skills Committee – achieved
 Skills Audits and Skills Analysis are required to be performed regularly –
consultants were appointed during 2007/2008 - Skills Audits and Skills
Analysis completed and same information was used as basis during
2008/2009 Financial Year in updating Audits and Skills Analysis.
 Committee meetings (Training/skills) are required to be held between
officials, Councillors and Labour Union representatives (Committee to be
established and operational) – this has been achieved but sittings are not
occurring quarterly as required.
In addition to skills development Sahkisizwe Municipality has introduced
an internship programme in order to alleviate the negative impact that
skills shortages have on the recruitment and the subsequent placement of
suitably qualified persons. This has also had an impact on the operational
functioning of the organisation, as the organization requires technical
capacity and competence in order to provide the required service delivery
and sustainable development as highlighted in the IDP.
With funding received from National Treasury two interns were appointed
in 2006 in the one in the Corporate Service department and one in the
Finance department. DBSA has providing further funding and appointed
two interns who are currently undergoing In-Service Training in the
Finance Department. Further interns (5) have been appointed, but not in
the year under review.
The internship programme is a process of empowering and capacitating
future employed staff. Identified students/ graduates from recognised
institutions, where engaged to work for the Budget & Treasury
Department, for a set term of three months. Two (2) Interns (Finance
young professionals) have been appointed/deployed through DBSA and
are utilized to assist the Municipality in the financial field.
The internship programme is regarded as a means to balance the
immediate shortages and the long run demand for employees, it is
envisaged that both current and future personnel shortages can be
minimised.

3.3(c) Employment Equity
Sakhisizwe Municipality does have an Employment Equity Plan in place. The
annual reporting in the new legislated format i.e. (EE forms) for the 2008
/2009 period have been complied with and submitted to Local Labour Forum
Management ,Council and finally to the Employment Equity Registry.
Not withstanding, the good progress, the Municipality is not fully compliant
with all aspects relating to Employment Equity prescriptions; however, they
are in the process of addressing all these issues and whilst doing so, will have
to create the required infrastructure, support and understanding.
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3.3(d) Occupational Health & Safety
At this point we are able to state that this responsibility and function
measures a level of 30% functionality and compliance. In this respect:
•
•
•
•

4.

The OHS Committee is established but does not meet regularly
Monthly reports are not submitted in respect of IOD’s and
other pertinent issues.
Safety representatives perform their work on a basic level (not
effectively monitored).
The organization remains challenged in its ability to enforce the
Health and Safety Act through recognized mechanisms.

Budget and Treasury Department: Structure and Functions
The Budget and Treasury Department is established in terms of Section 80 of the
Municipal Management Finance Act, within the Department of Finance, under the
control off the Chief Financial Officer, Mr. P Steyn.
Sakhisizwe Municipality is governed by a Council that continues to provide
unwavering support and commitment towards sound financial management and the
maintenance of a sound economic base.

4.2

Mission Statement
“The sound financial management of the assets, liabilities, revenue and expenditure
of the municipality on behalf of the community of Sakhisizwe Municipality”.

4.3 Staff Component
The Budget and Treasury Department during the year under review were staffed as
follows:
φ
φ
φ
φ
φ
φ
φ
φ

X1 CFO : s57
X1 Accountant: Expenditure
X1 Accountant :Income
X1 Debtors Clerk: Elliot
X1 Debtors Clerk: Cala
X1 Accounts Deliver / Messenger
X Messenger /Cleaner
X2 DBSA Young Professionals (IT & Finance) - funded by DBSA

Occasional Meter Readers are appointed for 3 days a month to perform monthly
consumer meter readings.
Skilled and experienced staff especially within senior positions remains a challenge.
This also has an impact on the operational functioning of the organisation, as the
organization requires technical capacity and competence in order to provide the
required service delivery and sustainable development as highlighted within the IDP.
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The Budget and Treasury Department is an area where staff capacity and retention
strategies are critically important. Identified and experienced as a critical scarce skill
it is noted that staff turnover can be high and the ability to attract suitable staff can
be quite a challenge. This is directly influenced by the pay structures of surrounding
municipalities that appeared to be far more competitive.
In terms of National Treasury competency structures, all senior managers are
required to possess the required competency levels by 2013, To this end formal
structures have been put in place in order to empower the staff in this department,
and more specifically “on the job” mentorship and training programmes were
arranged in order to expose staff to all spheres of the financial functions within this
department. This proactive approach would result in a process, which would create a
larger pool of required talent and would in this way facilitate the upward mobility
(promotions) within this department.
4.3.1

Internship Programme
With funding received from National Treasury 5 interns were subsequently employed
but not under the year in review, they are currently undergoing in-service training
within the Department: Budget and Treasury Services.
The internship programme was introduced to alleviate the negative impact that skills
shortages has had on the recruitment and the subsequent placement of suitably
qualified persons. The programme is a process of empowering and capacitating
future employable staff. Identified students/graduates from recognised institutions
were engaged to work for the Budget & Treasury Department. Further interns (5)
have been appointed, in 2008/2009 (after June 2009) therefore not in the year under
review.
The internship programme is regarded as a means to balance the immediate
shortages and the long run demand for employees, it is envisaged that both current
and future personnel shortages can be minimised as the Municipality intends to
absorb some of the already trained candidates.

4.4

Key Performance Indicators Target s and Focus areas
The following focus areas have been set, achievable targets as set out below:

•
•
•
•
•

R evenu e and C o l l ect i o n / I nco m e Gener at i o n
Expenditure and control:
Budgeting and IDP:
Accounting and Reporting:
Information Technology:
Asset Management:

These will be examined under each subsection as follows :
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20 %
20%
20%
20%
10%
10%

•

Revenue Collection/Income Generation
Within the Revenue Collection/Income Generation division it is required that the
processing of monthly consumer accounts and the receipting of all revenue is
undertaken of the towns (Elliot and Cala) that fall within the jurisdiction of
Sakhisizwe Municipality.
Cala, is serviced by staff situated in Cala, All these functions are supervised and
supported from Elliot from where meter readers servicing the water and
electricity meters are controlled.

•

Expenditure and Control
This function is situated in Elliot and is supported by three staff members who are
responsible for the payment of creditors, ordering of goods, services and
materials, processing the monthly salaries and allowances, compilation and
control of budgets, controlling capital and other projects, processing of monthly
and quarterly financial reports and the compilation of annual financial records
and statements.
The Key Performance Indicators are:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

•

Monthly reconciliation & payment of all creditors.
Interventions and strategies/turnaround plan to improve on expenditure
(Levels and quality)
Monthly controlling of purchases.
Monthly processing of payroll.
Annual updates & maintenance of Council’s insurance portfolio.
Monthly updating & maintenance of Council’s investments.
Updating & implementing financial policies and procedures:
Supply Chain Management;
Loans & Contractual Agreements;
Asset Management & Insurance;
Cash Management, Banking & Investments.
Implementation of the Municipal Finance Management Act, No 56 of 2003
requirements relating to Expenditure.

Budgeting
The CFO compiles the Council’s operational and capital budget. It is also his
responsibility to provide the necessary inputs during the annual review of
Council’s Integrated Development Plan (IDP). The Finance department is also
responsible for the determination of tariffs and maintaining a cash budget.
Actual expenditure is monitored to date monthly against Council’s approved
budget and reports are submitted monthly to all other departments informing
them of their expenditure to date.
The Key Performance Indicators are:
Compile & publish budget time schedule
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•
•
•

Establish & publish committees & consultation forums.
Outreach programme established for all wards.
Review & prepare:
o Integrated Development Plan (IDP);
o Service Delivery Agreements;
o Delegations;
o Budget Related Policies;
o Operational & Capital Budget

•
•
•
•
•

Determine Rates & Tariffs.
Consult with established committees & forums
Table budget & supporting documents.
Approve budget & supporting documents
Budget & Supporting documents submitted to:
National Treasury;
Provincial Treasury;
Publishing and website
Service Delivery & Budget Implementation Plan (SDBIP)

•
•
•

Accounting and Reporting
•
•

•

•
•
•

Daily & monthly updating of accounting records.
MFMA required reporting to:
- National Treasury;
- Provincial Treasury;
- Accounting Officer;
- Executive Committee;
- Municipal Council
Monthly reconciliation of supporting registers:
- Funds;
- Loans;
- Assets;
- Banks;
- Investments;
- Debtors;
- Creditors; and
- Income & Expenditure.
Compilation of annual financial statements.
Compilation of annual report for Department: Budget & Treasury Service.
Implement Municipal Finance Management Act, No 56 of 2003 requirements
related to Accounting and Reporting.

Information Technology
Although not yet fully functional, this function is located in Elliot. All computer hard
and software used at the two administrative units are supported and maintained at
this point.
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The Key Performance Indicators are:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Maintain & upgrade of computer hard and software
Secure computer hard and software services.
Training for all staff in utilizing IT systems effectively.
Development of Information Technology policies.
Daily & monthly processing of records when required by other departments.
Developed & maintained municipal Website.

Assets
The municipality performed asset verification and the itemising all infrastructure as at 30
June 2009. The municipality has assessed, as at 30 June 2009 whether items of property,
plant and equipment are impaired.
The assets register is now GRAP compliant and existing manual assets register as well as
the inventory lists are being computerized by means of bar coding for all movable assets.
The Key Performance Indicators are:




5.

Recording & Marking (bar-coding) of all assets.
Updating & maintaining a comprehensive assets register
Compiling, updating & maintaining of inventories.
Revaluing of fixed assets.

THE BUDGET
Steps were taken to ensure that the requirements of the Municipal Finance
Management Act, No 56 of 2003, especially Chapter 4 (section 15 to 33), as well as
any MFMA Circulars from National Treasury, were met.
During October to November 2008 the Budget Steering committee, with assistance
from ward councillors and ward committees engaged into an outreach program to
assess the needs of the community in all 7 wards. All needs recorded were later
prioritised and included in council’s Integrated Development Plan.
The budget technical committee has in the addressed various issues required by the
Municipal Finance Management Act:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Reviewing the IDP objectives and strategies;
Reviewing the Organisational structure;
Reviewing the Delegation framework;
Reviewing the 2008 / 2009 Service Delivery and Budget Implementation
Plan (SDBIP);
Reviewing existing and considering new Service Delivery Agreements;
Considering the establishment of Entities;
Reviewing existing and compiling new Budget-related policies;
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•
•
•
•
•

Considering the Macro and micro economic climate and budget guidelines,
requirements and growth parameters;
Planning the implementation of GFS classifications;
Considered proposed tariff increases;
Compile a draft operational and capital budget;
Prioritise community needs in the IDP.

During January 2009 the draft budget and supporting documents were tabled to the
budget committee for consideration, discussion and approval.

Budget Process Overview
The MFMA Circulars 10, 13, 14, 19, 27, 28 and 41 issued by the National Treasury was
used as a guidance mechanism during the 2008 / 09 budget processes. From this
council has developed an IDP (Integrated Development Plan) and Budget policy.
The Schedule of Key Deadlines issued by National Treasury was also used as guideline
for council to develop its own Schedule of Key Deadlines, which takes effect once
council has approved it during August. A summarized version thereof is then
advertised in the local newspapers and placed on council’s web-site. Interest groups
and stakeholders are annually invited to register and from part of council’s Local
Budget Consultation Forum. Council’s IDP and Budget policy provides guidelines as to
how this forum and the Sector Budget Consultation Forum should be established.
Amongst others, has council ensured that at least two members of each of its sixteen
ward committees are represented on the Local Budget Consultation Forum. All
relevant national and provincial departments, as well as the district municipality –
Chris Hani District municipality – forms part of the Sector Budget Consultation Forum.
Council meets at least two times during the budget process and once after the draft
budget has being tabled with these forums.
The Budget Steering committee, with the involvement of the ward councillors and
ward committees, annually engage itself in an Outreach Programme during which
community meetings are held in all seven wards. This where the community uses
their opportunity to inform council of their needs. All needs / problems discussed,
whether local, district, provincial or national are recorded, prioritised and
summarized in a report for follow-up or inclusion into council’s IDP. Non-local issues
(national, provincial and district) raised are discussed at the Sector Budget
Consultation Forum, whilst local issues are prioritised by the Local Budget
Consultation Forum for inclusion in council’s IDP.
Once the draft budget is tabled by the Mayor in March, the budget and required
supporting documents are made available for representation and / or comments. It
can either be viewed in hard copy at one of council’s administrative units or on
council’s web-site. The tabling and invitation to submit representation / comments
are also advertised in locally circulated newspapers and on municipal notice boards.
The Budget committee keeps record and deals with all representations and
comments received. Any adjustments resulting there from are done before the
budget is submitted for approval towards the end of May.
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6.

Integrated Development Plan (IDP) – 2008 / 2009
Review Process
Outreach programme to all wards by the council of Sakhisizwe Municipality during
the months of October and November 2008 to identify new priorities.
Local Consultation Forum / Budget meetings were held at Elliot Administrative Unit
and at Cala Administrative unit.
Review of the IDP strategic objectives and strategies by the Budget Steering
Committee in December 2008.
Determination of projects to meet objectives and strategies.
Alignment with the CHDM District Municipality and Sector Departments in February
2009.
Public participation in February 2009.
IDP and Budget published for comment (April 2009).
Consultation with Sector Departments (February / March 2009).
Revise IDP and Budget if necessary (April 2009)
Public hearings and Council Debate on IDP and Budget (May 2009)
Amendments to IDP and Budget.
Final approval end June 2009.
IDP Document submitted to MEC of Department of Provincial and Local Government
for comment.
2008/2009 IDP annual review starts in August 2009 in conjunction with budget
processes.
A SDBIP plan was put into place and taken to Council (March 2009) The SDBIP in
2008/2009 had been a challenging period in respect of the SDBIP structure itself. A
SDBIP had to be developed / populated from scratch (never existed in the past).
While this report had been structured it was raised by the AG that the SDBIP was not
of the desired quality and requires to include service delivery targets and
performance indicators. Correct quarterly reporting in the manner prescribed
remains a challenge, notwithstanding the progress to date.
Noted: the Auditor General has raised that no evidence could be provided to support
that that deadlines dates /key schedules have been achieved

7.

Operational Expenditure
The Budgeted operational expenditure was R 42 109 796 and actual was
R 48 104 541 -- variance of: R 5 994 745

8.

Employee / Related Costs
The employee cost were pitched at 34.69% of the budget and although the need for
additional staff in all departments are huge, council’s greatest challenge is to try and
operate and remain within the norm of 30.0 - 35.0% set by the National Treasury,
Department of Provincial and Local Government and SALGA.
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EMPLOYEE RELATED COSTS

2009

Employee related costs – Salaries and
Wages
Employee related costs Contributions for UIF, pensions and
medical aids
Housing, Telephone, Motor Vehicles
and Rural Allowances
Overtime payments
Leave pay
Performance bonus
Total Employee Related Costs

9.

2008

9,433,579

9,265,156

3,612,701

2,033,114

767,571
331,765
2,811,133
16,956,749

757,600
792,453
792,200
13,640,523

Repairs & Maintenance
Council’s intention to maintain its infrastructure and assets is clear with the amount

of
R 766 182 00, allocated to repairs and maintenance.
10.

District Municipality
R5.6 Million for rendering auxiliary support services for water and sanitation.

10.1

CHDM Water Service Authority (WSA)
R5.6 Million is received for rendering auxiliary support services for water and
Sanitation (R1.1 Million has been received and R 4.5 Million is still outstanding).
A service delivery agreement between the WSA: Chris Hani District municipality and
WSP (Water Service Provider): Sakhisizwe Municipality was entered into during
2006/2007 however; this arrangement is on a more informal basis and a more
relevant legalized document is being developed by CHDM to be signed during
2008/2009 financial year, this did however not occur during the year under review.
Currently the rendering of these services continues uninterrupted, notwithstanding
the extensive challenges that have faced the water-related targets, and
notwithstanding the overall poor quality of water (having improved), poor
infrastructure and the operational challenges that have been identified, it must be
acknowledged that plans and funding have been leveraged by the District to resolve
these issues over time.
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11.

OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGET 2008/2009 FINANCIAL YEAR

OPERATING BUDGET
A
B
C
BUDGET
EXPECTED
BUDGET
2007/2008
2007/2008
2008/2009
R
R
R

C/A
INCREASE
(DECREASE)
%

BUDGET
2009/2010
R

BUDGET
2010/2011
R

EXPENDITURE:
Salaries, wages and allowances
General expenditure Electricity bulk purchases
Water bulk purchases
Sewer payments
Contributions to municipalities for
functions & services
Other
Repairs and maintenance
Capital Charges External interest
Redemption of external debt

1,186,233

0

1,938,408

2,200,000

0

2,700,000

220,597

0

3,095,269

63.41
0.00
22.73
0.00
1303.13

2,031,452

2,029,513

2,829,600

2,826,900

3,243,842

3,240,747

18,942,008
1,155,288

0
0

32,887,244
1,216,00

0.00
73.62
5.26

33,281,992
1,274,368

33,503,559
1,273,152

186,984

0

272,875

45.93

285,973

285,700

42,947,226

43,159,571

42,947,226

43,159,571

0.00
Internal interest and redemption
Contributions to fixed assets
Contributions to special funds
Provisions for working capital
Total Gross budgeted expenditure
Less amounts reallocated
TOTAL: Net budgeted expenditure

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
23,891,110

0

42,109,796

23,891,110

0

41,109,796
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76.26

OPERATING BUDGET
A
B
C
BUDGET
EXPECTED
BUDGET
2007/2008
2007/2008
2008/2009
R
R
R
INCOME :
Regional levies
Property rates
Electricity
Water
Sanitation
Refuse Removal
Contributions by municipalities for
functions and services
Other
Grants
Interest and investment income:
External
Internal
Other
Surplus funds appropriated
TOTAL
Surplus/(Deficit)

1,686,573
2,647,674
4,108,661
2,406,830
1,863,000

0
0
0
0
0

1,500,000
7,592,000
6,128,400
5,033,677
1,700,000

17,853,211

0

33,294,534

C/A
INCREASE
(DECREASE)
%
0.00
-11.06
186.74
49.16
109.14
-8.75

BUDGET
2009/2010
R

BUDGET
2010/2011
R

1,572,000
9,633,536
6,422,563
5,275,293
1,781,600

1,570,500
10,393,504
6,416,435
5,270,260
1,779,900

0.00

10,000

0

800,000

0.00
0.00
7900.00
0.00
0.00

30,575,949
6,684,839

0
0

56,048,611
13,939,815

83.31
108.51
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40,091,680

43,295,489

838,400

837,600

65,615,072
22,667,846

69,563,688
26,404,116

11.1

2008 / 2009 Budget Report
The requirements for Municipal Budgets are clearly set out in Chapter 4 (Section 15 to
33) of the MFMA and all steps were taken to ensure that the Municipality meets
these requirements. The municipality has as far as possible compiled the 2008/2009
MTREF Budget in the format prescribed by National Treasury in terms of Circular 28
and the related regulations
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FUNCTIONAL AREAS
(Departments)

Personnel
Expenditure

COUNCIL & EXECUTIVE
Council
Executive
CORPORATE SERVICES & SUPPORT SERVICE
Finance & Administration
Housing
Public Safety
BUDGET & TREASURY SERVICE
Finance and Administration
TECHNICAL & ENGINEERING SERVICES
Waste Water Management (Sewerage)
Road Transport
Water
Electricity (Distribution)
COMMUNITY & SOCIAL SERVICE
Finance & Administration
Planning & Development
Health
Sport & Recreation
Waste Management
GRAND TOTAL
% Cost of Total Budget
CAPITAL COSTS
OPERATIONAL COSTS
% Cost of Operational Budget

SAKHISIZWE MUNICIPALITY
2008/2009 BUDGET
EXPENDITURE
General
Bulk:
Repairs &
Expenditure
Electricity
Maintenance
Purchases

Loan
Ex
Revenue

Capital
Ex
Revenue

Contributions
To Funds

2,460,061
744,580

191,000
57,000

-

10,000
-

176,496
-

120,000

-

2,903,921
661,477
974,610

1,209,000
25,000
238,000

-

30,000
16,000

-

10,000

-

1,706,442

3,030,000

-

-

22,524

-

-

1,125,003
479,464
1,470,585
511,537

1,632,650
75,000
2,913,375
366,000

2,700,000

15,000
210,000
130,000
290,000

126,679
43,212
77,856
42,948

100,000
7,027,000
3,000,000

----

1,530,031
489,302
1,551,534
139,535
2,017,484

327,000
35,376
139,000
2,000
1,803,000

-

50,000
250,000
30,000
70,000

-

-

--

18,765,566

12,044,001

2,700,000

1,101,000

489,715

10,257,000

41.37

26.55

5.95

2.43

1.08

22.61

-

18,765,566

12,044,001

2,700,000

1,101,000

489,715

10,257,000
-

-

53.46

34.31

7.69

3.14

1.40

-

-
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SAKHISIZWE MUNICIPALITY
BUDGET 2008/2009
RECONCILIATION OF IDP & BUDGET
OPERATIONAL REVENUE

MEDIUM TERM
REVENUE AND
EXPENDITURE
FRAMEWORK

ACTION PLAN
Strategic Objective
Approved
Budget
R
Good Governance
Sustainable Infrastructure Development
Sustainable Basic Services

Economic Development
Environmental Management
Social Development
Finance Viability
Safety and Security
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE

Executive and Council
Housing
Road Transport
Waste Management
Waste Water Management
Water
Electricity
Health
Planning & Development
Other
Community & Social Services
Sport & Recreation
Finance & Administration
Public Safety

2,236,226
1,899,742
3,340,079
2,691,947
3,500
15,642,043
989,700
30,475,949

Adjusted
Budget
R
464,000
15,000
30,000
1,863,000
2,406,830
4,108,661
2,405,541
3,500
15,642,043
15,642,043
30,575,949

Budget Year
2008/2009
534,000
8,738,000
1,700,000
5,033,677
6,128,400
7,592,000
1,940,534
260,000
22,397,000
1,725,000
56,048,611

SAKHISIZWE MUNICIPALITY
BUDGET 2008/2009
MEDIUM TERM
REVENUE AND
EXPENDITURE
FRAMEWORK

RECONCILIATION OF IDP & BUDGET
OPERATIONAL EXPENDITURE
ACTION PLAN
Strategic Objective

Good Governance
Sustainable Infrastructure Development
Sustainable Basic Services

Economic Development
Environmental Management
Social Development
Finance Viability
Safety and Security
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE

12.

Executive and Council
Housing
Road Transport
Waste Management
Waste Water Management
Water
Electricity
Health
Planning & Development
Other
Community & Social Services
Sport & Recreation
Finance & Administration
Public Safety

Approved
Budget
R
3,224,268
615,526
780,760
1,439,061
1,406,830
2,308,662
3,799,041
2,229,620
326,064
221,814
6,690,347
879,117
23,921,110

Adjusted
Budget
R
3,224,268
615,526
780,760
1,439,061
1,406,830
2,308,662
3,799,041
2,199,620
326,064
221,814
6,690,347
879,117
23,891,110

Budget Year
2008/2009
6,010,788
198,260
1,295,815
4,847,087
5,033,677
6,128,400
4,438,817
1,536,428
1,013,775
744,492
173,849
9,396,565
1,291,843
42,109,796

2008 / 09 Financial Statements
The Annual Financial Statements for the period ended 30 June 2009 was compiled
and submitted to the Audit Committee and the Municipal Manager in August 2008,
the statements were presented to, discussed and approved by the municipal council
of Senqu Municipality. Signed approved copies were thereafter forwarded to the
National Treasury, Provincial Treasury and Auditor-General.
A copy of these statements is attached hereto as Annexure A.
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13.

Government Grants and Subsidies
The Equitable Share allocation is an unconditional grant and is utilised in service
delivery. Based on the allocations set out in the Division of Revenue Act, (Act No 2 of
2006), no significant changes in the level of government grant funding are expected
over the forthcoming 3 financial years.
GOVERNMENT GRANTS AND SUBSIDIES
2009

2008

Municipal System Improvement Grant

352,351

2,251,674

General Valuations

685,647

122,814

Municipal Improvement Grant

5,519,940

735,292

Finance Management Grant

1,688,512

78,974

Municipal Support Programme

-

Skills Development

245,513

Integrated Development Plan

112,236

Housing Fund

924,855

Aids

433,579
308,431
1,115,506

15,000

-

IEC Elections

126,078

-

Housing: Ext 15

351,961

-

62,102

-

Housing: Ext 13, 14
SUBSIDIES
Equitable Share

15,999,404

Councillor Remuneration

534,000

Health and Environmental Affairs Subsidy

1,310,001

Libraries

373,177

Total Government Grant and Subsidies

14.

28,300,777

12,891,445
968,499
18,906,214

Investments and cash
Council’s primary bank account is held at FNB, Elliot. The existing signatories on all
bank and investment accounts are:
•
•

T Samuel
P Steyn

Municipal Manager
Chief Financial Officer

Required that any two of the above-mentioned signatories authorize any payment or
transfer from any of Council’s bank or investment accounts.
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Primary bank account is maintained:
FNB, Elliot (Acc No 62076523135)

15

Current Account
Cash book at end of the
year
Bank statement at the end
of the year

2009
R 759 353

2008
R634 567

R 204 891

R211764

Savings Account / Call
Account Deposits and
other
Cash book at end of the
year
Bank statement at the end
of the year

2009

2008

R 17 576 784

R16 678 354

R 17 576 784

R16 678 354

Trade/Service debtors
The following trade/service debtors were due to council as at 30 June 2009:
Service Debtors: Water;
Service Debtors: Electricity;

1,243,908

Service Debtors: Sewerage;
Service Debtors: Refuse Removal;
Service Debtors: Rates;

-

Total

759,681
-

484,227
-

7,149,117

3,346,555

6,642,997

3,145,837

3,497,160

5,105

1,840

3,265

3,608

3,608

Service Debtors: Building Clause;
Service Debtors: Other (Consumer)
Service Debtors: Chris Hani Agency
Account

-

10,495,672

Service Debtors: Rent Commonage;
Service Debtors: Rent;

-

-

13,876

-

13,876

6,810

-

6,810

7,411,253

-

7,411,253

25,823,231

11,060,083

14,763,146

The Trade Receivables balance for Water and Sanitation and the Provision for
Doubtful debts as at 2009 were transferred to the Chris Hani Agency Account and the
2008 prior year figures for Trade Receivables of R12'444'651 for water and R5'797'744
for Sewerage and Provision for Doubtful Debts of R11'254'049 for water and
R7'014'996 for sanitation were adjusted retrospectively.
Other receivables
Other receivables: 2009

30,952

20,598

10,354

Other receivables: 2008

375,452

12,028

363,424
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16.

Consumer debtors
Council’s outstanding consumer debtors have increased by 43.48% during financial
year under review and the age-analysis thereof are as follows:
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES FROM
EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS (continued)

2009

2008

R

R

Rates: Ageing
Current (0-30 days)

87,160

89,901

31 - 60 Days

150,484

138,353

61 - 90 Days

142,072

138,566

> 90 Days

6,811,514

6,276,177

Total

7,191,230

6,642,997

Electricity & Refuse: Ageing
Current (0-30 days)

648,393

461,190

31 - 60 Days

403,449

273,184

61 - 90 Days

267,405

213,416

> 90 Days

10,020,194

10,791,790

Total

11,339,441

11,739,580

Other service debtors: Ageing
Current (0-30 days)

9,730

8,865

31 - 60 Days

5,192

2,513

61 - 90 Days

3,969

1,929

> 90 Days

48,155
67,046

Total

16,092
29,399

17.

A General Valuation throughout all urban areas situated within the Sakhisizwe
municipal area has been completed and 5200 additional accounts were raised .

18.

Provisions
At year-end the following provisions were made for expenditure that would incur
during the 2008/9 financial year:
Service Provider
Auditor-General
Bad Debts

19.

Purpose
Audit Fees – 2008/9
Consumer Debtors
Leave
Bonuses
Organized Local Government

Trade creditors and other
Trade Creditors: R 36 376
Trade and other receivables in credit balance: R 40 252
Other Creditors: R 5 736
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Amount
1 187 756
7 483 569
2 715 456
269 409
133 601

20.

Consumer deposits
Electricity Deposits; an amount of R 345 499 is held as deposits on water and
electricity services rendered to consumers.
Dam & Hall Deposits; an amount of R 3 842 is held as deposits on water and
electricity services rendered to consumers.
Total R 349 291

21.

Operational Performance

Statement of Financial Performance for the year ended 30 June 2009
Note
REVENUE
Rates
Penalties on rates
Service charges
Rental of facilities and equipment
Interest earned – external investments
Interest on arrears
Fines
Licences and Permits
Income Agency Services
Government grants and subsidies
Government grants and subsidies – PPE
Other income
Gain on disposal of PPE

10

11
12

Total Revenue

2009
R
1,077,541

2008
R
1,492,690

5,666,052
6,554,141
60,484
1,826,161
628,010
1,042,882
2,745,887
53,071
13,912
14,497
28,300,777 18,906,214
2,122,698
3,222,714
2,342,293 3,667,865
231,886
42,445,387 37,524,388

EXPENDITURE
Employee related costs
Remuneration of Councillors
Bad Debt
Depreciation
Repairs and maintenance
Interest paid
Bulk Payments
Contracted Services
Grants and Subsidies paid
General Expenses

13
14

15

16,956,749 13,640,523
2,169,364 2,356,005
2,719,880 11,025,553
4,715,102 2,017,964
766,182
324,182
93,274
77,498
3,069,751
2,500,521
119,681
11,085,642
1,000
6,408,916 6,437,394

Total Expenditure

48,104,541 38,380,641

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FOR THE YEAR

(5,659,154)
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(856,253)

22.

AUDIT REPORTS AND CORRECTIVE ACTIONS

The auditing of the financial statements for the period ended 30 June 2009 has
commenced during August 2009 and the Report of the Auditor-General of Sakhisizwe
Municipality for the Financial Year ended 30 June 2009 is attached hereto – see
Annexure B.
23.

Corrective Actions
The Report of the Auditor-General is currently being dealt with and an action plan to
address the audit queries has been developed.

24.

CHALLENGES
The following is seen as the challenges that need to be accomplished during the
2008/09 financial year:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

•
•
•
•

Compliance and implementation of the Municipal Finance Management Act
(MFMA)
Senior financial staff continue to be sent for training on the implementation
thereof and if needed the expertise of external service providers would be called
upon to assist the department;
Various new and existing policies will be compiled/reviewed and the all
stakeholders will be consulted as required;
Training of staff within the finance department would continue and is already
underway. Capacity building within the finance department is council’s and
management’s first priority;
Implementation of a comprehensive Information Technology (IT) system has
been completed and further development so to enable council to be as
independent as possible from external service providers;
Compliance with Audit queries raised in the above regard and in respect of
Measurable performance objectives
SDBIP’S for 2008/2009 completed, monitor, evaluated and report on
implementation during 2008/2009; While this report had been structured it was
raised that it did not included the National Indicators and service delivery
performance targets the SDBIP did not appear to be of the desired quality.
Current PMS system (regulated system - as utilized by Sakhisizwe Municipality)
requires proper implementation as per the regulations and as per the policy
guidelines
Population of Performance Scorecards and Agreements for s57 has been
completed – achieved – certain compliance issues require attention ,includes
Performance auditing.
Population and Finalization of Performance Scorecards and Agreements for
middle management posts by June 2010.
To correct deficiencies in the risk management and internal controls - and the
maintenance of effective, efficient and transparent systems of financial and risk
management and internal control.
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•
•

25.

Develop strategies /plans to address Audit Queries raised in the Budget & Treasury
Department.
Develop a strategy to deal with sound financial management and expenditure control and
means to increase revenue and external funding

CONCLUDING REMARKS
In concluding, it must be acknowledged that whilst a qualified audit opinion was
obtained during the year under review, which is highly regrettable, it is of some
comfort to acknowledge that the issues raised and highlighted above can and will, be
resolved and remedied within the next financial year.
Formal commitment is provided to addressing these issues as a top priority and to
prevent reoccurrences .

26.

CONCLUSION
The 2008/2009-year has yet again provided the Budget & Treasury department many
challenges. Challenges are regarded as opportunities for growth and development,
without which Sakhisizwe Municipality would not be able to meet the communities’
needs and be given the opportunity to develop.
•

•

•
•

•
•

Implementation of the Municipal Finance Management Act and it implementation
has placed many requirements on the municipality. This had resulted in
management, senior staff and all the Council Committee members being trained
in terms of the requirements of the Act (now implemented).
The implementation and conversion to GRAP has been our challenge and the
department has to ensure ongoing training of senior financial staff in terms of
implementation and to obtain assistance from external service providers should
where deemed necessary.
Training has been undertaken in respect of the challenges of the MFMA and new
Supply Chain Management regulations, Performance Management and, IT.
The IDP (Integrated Development Plan) has been reviewed and the SDBIP’s
(Service Delivery Budget and Implementation Plans) have been developed and
assessed as required on a quarterly basis, in order to target and manage
performance within the organization. The SDBIP will be reviewed and
incorporate national indicators and service delivery targets
Infrastructure development has been a constant challenge from a financial and
resource point of view but we remain remains focused, and development has
occurred in many areas.
Our biggest challenge relates to the qualified audit report received. Based on the
emphasis of matter (contained within this report), concerns and administrative
and financial weaknesses were highlighted and are urgently required to be
addressed.

In conclusion, I wish to place on record my sincere thanks and appreciation to all the
departmental heads and support staff in the Finance Department that have
contributed and assisted this department in achieving our goals and objectives
during 2008/2009.
I further wish to place on record my sincere thanks and appreciation:
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◊

To the Municipal Manager and other Heads of Department, your support,
encouragement and co-operation contributed to the successful results this
department is able to table.

◊

To the honourable Mayor, Ms W Tikana and councillors for their ongoing support
and guidance, on behalf of the management team and Finance Department,
herewith the annual report for the period ended 30 June 2009 of the Budget &
Treasury Department of Sakhisizwe Municipality.

P STEYN
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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SAKHISIZWE LOCAL MUNICIPALITY
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended
30 June 2009

I am responsible for the preparation of these annual financial statements, which are set out on
pages 1 to 35 , in terms of Section 126(1) of the Municipal Finance Management Act and
which I have signed on behalf of the Municipality.

I certify that the salaries, allowances and benefits of Councillors (how about loans made to
Councillors, if any, and payments made to Councillors for loss of office, if any) as disclosed in
note 14 of these annual financial statements are within the upper limits of the framework
envisaged in Section 219 of the Constitution, read with the Remuneration of Public Officer
Bearers Act and the Minister of Provincial and Local Government’s determination in
accordance with this Act.

T. SAMUEL

20 August 2009

Municipal Manager
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SAKHISIZWE LOCAL MUNICIPALITY
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

Note

2009
R

2008
R

ASSETS
Current assets
Cash or cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables from exchange
transactions
Other receivables from non-cash exchange
transactions
VAT receivable

21

38,161,269
18,336,137

32,439,491
17,312,921

9

18,245,811

14,763,146

9
7

10,354
1,568,967

363,424
-

8

51,562,139
51,562,139
-

31,277,180
31,203,564
73,616

89,723,408

63,716,671

9,807,570

8,821,015

407,364
349,291
5,751,169
2,984,865
219,440
95,441
-

4,192,908.00
322,388.00
2,770,502.00
853,193
477,354
188,876
15,794

4,092,686
458,866
1,920,000
1,713,820

626,811
626,811
-

Total Liabilities

13,900,256

9,447,826

Net assets

75,823,152

54,268,845

Net assets
Accumulated Surplus/(Deficit)

75,823,152
75,823,152

54,268,845
54,268,845

Total Net Assets and Liabilities

75,823,152

54,268,845

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Total Assets
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables from exchange
transactions
Consumer deposits
Unspent conditional grants and receipts
VAT payable
Current provisions
Current portion of borrowings
Current portion of finance lease liabilities
Current portion of defined benefit plan obligations
Bank overdraft
Non-current liabilities
Non-current borrowings
Non-current finance lease liabilities
Non-current provisions
Defined benefit plan obligations

3
4
5
6
16
1
2
18

1
2
17
18
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SAKHISIZWE LOCAL MUNICIPALITY
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

Note

2009
R

2008
R

1,077,541

1,492,690

5,666,052
1,826,161
1,042,882
53,071
13,912
28,300,777
2,122,698
2,342,293
-

6,554,141
60,484
628,010
2,745,887

18,906,214
3,222,714
3,667,865
231,886

42,445,387

37,524,388

16,956,749
2,169,364
2,719,880
4,715,102
766,182
93,274
3,069,751
119,681
11,085,642
6,408,916

13,640,523
2,356,005
11,025,553
2,017,964
324,182
77,498
2,500,521
1,000
6,437,394

Total Expenditure

48,104,541

38,380,641

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FOR THE YEAR

(5,659,154)

(856,253)

REVENUE
Rates
Penalties on rates
Service charges
Rental of facilities and equipment
Interest earned - external investments
Interest on arrears.
Fines
Licenses and Permits
Income Agency Services
Government grants and subsidies
Government grants and subsidies - PPE
Other income
Gain on disposal of PPE

10

11
12

Total Revenue

14,497

EXPENDITURE
Employee related costs
Remuneration of Councillors
Bad Debt
Depreciation
Repairs and maintenance
Interest paid
Bulk Payments
Contracted Services
Grants and Subsidies paid
General expenses

13
14

15
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^<,/^/t>K>DhE//W>/dz
^ddDEdK&,E'^/EEd^^d^
&KZd,zZEϯϬ:hEϮϬϬϵ
Accumulated
Government Grant
Reserve
Surplus/
(Deficit)

2008
Balance at 1 July 2007
Correction of error (Note 19)
Restated balance
Surplus/(deficit) for the year
Correction of error (Note 19)
Balance at 30 June 2008
2009
Correction of error (Note 19)

Total

R

R

R

2,308,650
2,308,650

34,173,862
2,577,580
36,751,442
(856,253)
18,373,656
54,268,845

36,482,512
2,577,580
39,060,092
-856,253
16,065,006
54,268,845

27,213,462

27,213,462

(2,308,650)
-

Restated balance
Surplus/(deficit) for the year
Balance at 30 June 2009
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-

81,482,306

-

(5,659,154)
75,823,152

81,482,306
(5,659,154)
75,823,152

^<,/^/t>K>DhE//W>/dz
^,&>Kt^ddDEd
&KZd,zZEϯϬ:hEϮϬϬϵ

EŽƚĞ
ϮϬϬϵ
Z

ϮϬϬϴ
Z

ZĞĐĞŝƉƚƐ
ĂƐŚƌĞĐĞŝƉƚƐĨƌŽŵƌĂƚĞƉĂǇĞƌƐ
ĂƐŚƌĞĐĞŝƉƚƐĨƌŽŵ'ŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚ
KƚŚĞƌƌĞĐĞŝƉƚƐ

 ϯϴ͕Ϭϳϱ͕Ϭϰϭ
 ϴϯϴ͕ϳϲϴ
 ϯϯ͕ϰϬϰ͕ϭϰϮ
 ϯ͕ϴϯϮ͕ϭϯϭ

 ϱϱ͕Ϭϴϴ͕ϵϮϰ
 ϮϬ͕ϰϵϬ͕ϯϬϴ
 ϮϮ͕ϴϬϵ͕ϳϱϳ
 ϴ͕Ϭϯϱ͕Ϭϯϯ

WĂǇŵĞŶƚƐ
ĂƐŚƉĂŝĚƚŽĞŵƉůŽǇĞĞƐ
ĂƐŚƉĂŝĚƚŽ^ƵƉƉůŝĞƌƐ
KƚŚĞƌƉĂǇŵĞŶƚƐ

 ;ϰϬ͕ϴϰϰ͕ϵϯϳͿ
 ;ϭϳ͕ϯϭϲ͕ϴϱϮͿ
 ;ϭϬ͕ϭϵϰ͕ϰϲϬͿ
 ;ϭϯ͕ϯϯϯ͕ϲϮϱͿ

;ϯϲ͕ϱϭϳ͕ϬϲϱͿ
;ϭϱ͕ϵϵϲ͕ϱϮϴͿ
 ;ϲ͕ϰϯϳ͕ϯϵϰͿ
;ϭϰ͕Ϭϴϯ͕ϭϰϮͿ

 ;Ϯ͕ϳϲϵ͕ϴϵϲͿ

 ϭϴ͕ϱϳϭ͕ϴϱϵ

/ŶƚĞƌĞƐƚƌĞĐĞŝǀĞĚ
/ŶƚĞƌĞƐƚƉĂŝĚ
:ŽƵƌŶĂůƐ;ŶŽŶͲĐĂƐŚĨůŽǁͿ

 ϭ͕ϴϮϲ͕ϭϲϭ
 ;ϵϯ͕ϮϳϰͿ
 Ϯ͕ϯϬϮ͕ϵϭϳ

 ϲϮϴ͕ϬϭϬ
 ;ϳϳ͕ϰϵϴͿ
 Ͳ

Ed^,&ZKDKWZd/E'd/s/d/^

 ϭ͕Ϯϲϱ͕ϵϬϴ

 ϭϵ͕ϭϮϮ͕ϯϳϭ

WƵƌĐŚĂƐĞŽĨƉƌŽƉĞƌƚǇ͕ƉůĂŶƚĂŶĚĞƋƵŝƉŵĞŶƚ
WƌŽĐĞĞĚƐŽŶĚŝƐƉŽƐĂůŽĨƉƌŽƉĞƌƚŝĞƐ
ĞĐƌĞĂƐĞŝŶŶŽŶͲĐƵƌƌĞŶƚƌĞĐĞŝǀĂďůĞƐ

 ;ϴϵ͕ϱϮϬͿ
 Ͳ
 ϯϬ͕ϱϲϰ

 ;ϱ͕ϭϵϲ͕ϬϯϵͿ
 Ϯϯϭ͕ϴϴϲ
 ϳϬ͕ϴϱϰ

Ed^,&ZKD/Es^d/E'd/s/d/^

 ;ϱϴ͕ϵϱϲͿ

 ;ϰ͕ϴϵϯ͕ϮϵϵͿ

ZĞĐĞŝƉƚƐͬ;ZĞƉĂǇŵĞŶƚƐͿŝŶ>ŽŶŐƚĞƌŵ>ŽĂŶƐ

 ;ϭϲϳ͕ϵϰϱͿ

 ϵϴϰ͕ϵϰϬ

Ed^,&ZKD&/EE/E'd/s/d/^

 ;ϭϲϳ͕ϵϰϱͿ

 ϵϴϰ͕ϵϰϬ

Ed/EZ^/E^,E^,Yh/s>Ed^

 ϭ͕Ϭϯϵ͕ϬϬϳ

 ϭϱ͕Ϯϭϰ͕ϬϭϮ

 ϭϳ͕Ϯϵϳ͕ϭϯϬ
 ϭϴ͕ϯϯϲ͕ϭϯϳ

 Ϯ͕Ϭϴϯ͕ϭϭϴ
 ϭϳ͕Ϯϵϳ͕ϭϯϬ

^,&>Kt&ZKDKWZd/E'd/s/d/^

EĞƚĐĂƐŚĨůŽǁƐĨƌŽŵŽƉĞƌĂƚŝŶŐĂĐƚŝǀŝƚŝĞƐ

ϮϬ

^,&>Kt^&ZKD/Es^d/E'd/s/d/^

^,&>Kt^&ZKD&/EE/E'd/s/d/^

ĂƐŚĂŶĚĐĂƐŚĞƋƵŝǀĂůĞŶƚƐĂƚƚŚĞďĞŐŝŶŶŝŶŐŽĨƚŚĞǇĞĂƌ
ĂƐŚĂŶĚĐĂƐŚĞƋƵŝǀĂůĞŶƚƐĂƚƚŚĞĞŶĚŽĨƚŚĞǇĞĂƌ

Ϯϭ
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1.

Summary of significant accounting policies for the year ended 30 June 2009.
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out
below and are consistent with those applied in the previous year unless otherwise stated.
1.1

Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Standards of Generally
Recognised Accounting Practices (GRAP) prescribed by the Minister of Finance in terms of:
•
•

General Notice 991 of 2005, issued in Government Gazette no. 28095 of 15 December
2005; and
General Notice 992 of 2005, issued in Government Gazette no. 28095 of 7 December
2005; and

The Standard comprise of the following:
GRAP 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements
GRAP 2 - Cash Flow Statements
GRAP 3 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors
GRAP 4 - The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates
GRAP 5 – Borrowing Costs
GRAP 6 - Consolidated Financial Statements and Accounting for Controlled Entities
GRAP 7 - Accounting for Investments in Associates
GRAP 8 - Financial Reporting of Interests in Joint Ventures
GRAP 9 – Revenue
GRAP 12 – Inventories
GRAP 13 - Leases
GRAP 16 – Investment Property
GRAP17 - Property, Plant and Equipment
GRAP 19 - Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Asset
GRAP 23 – Revenue from non-exchange transactions
Assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses have not been offset except when offsetting is
permitted or required by a Standard of GRAP.
The Municipality has, in terms of Directive 4, issued by the Accounting Standards Board in
March 2009 on Transitional Provisions for Medium and Low Capacity Municipalities, taken
advantage of the transitional provision for individual Standards of GRAP for medium and low
capacity municipalities. Further reference to the application of Directive 4 has been made in
the relevant accounting policies below.

5
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1.2

Presentation currency
These annual financial statements are presented in South African Rand.

1.3

Going concern assumption
These annual financial statements are prepared on the basis that the municipality will remain
a going concern for the foreseeable future.

1.4

Comparative Information
Budget information in accordance with GRAP 1 and 24, has been provided in an annexure to
these financial statements and forms part of the audited annual financial statements.
When the presentation or classification of items in the annual financial statements is
amended, prior period comparative amounts are restated. The nature and reason for the
reclassification is disclosed. Where accounting errors have been identified in the current year,
the correction is made retrospectively as far as is practicable, and the prior year comparatives
are restated accordingly. Where there has been a change in accounting policy in the current
year, the adjustment is made retrospectively as far as is practicable, and the prior year
comparatives are restated accordingly.

1.5

Financial Instruments
1.5.1

Initial Recognition
Financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value.

1.5.2

Subsequent measurement
Financial Assets are categorised according to their nature as either financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss, held-to maturity, loans and receivables, or available
for sale. Financial liabilities are categorised as either at fair value through profit or loss
or financial liabilities carried at amortised cost ("other"). The subsequent
measurement of financial assets and liabilities depends on this categorisation and, in
the absence of an approved GRAP Standard on Financial Instruments, is in
accordance with IAS 39.

1.5.3

Investments
Investments, which include listed government bonds, unlisted municipal bonds, fixed
deposits and short-term deposits invested in registered commercial banks, are
categorised as either held-to-maturity where the criteria for that categorisation are
met, or as loans and receivables, and are measured at amortised cost. Where
investments have been impaired, the carrying value is adjusted by the impairment
loss, which is recognised as an expense in the period that the impairment is identified.
Impairments are calculated as being the difference between the carrying amount and
the present value of the expected future cash flows flowing from the instrument. On

6
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disposal of an investment, the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount is charged or credited to the Statement of Financial Performance.
1.5.4

Trade & other receivables
Trade and other receivables are categorised as financial assets: loans and
receivables and are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently carried at
amortised cost. Amortised cost refers to the initial carrying amount, plus interest, less
repayments and impairments. An estimate is made for doubtful receivables based on
a review of all outstanding amounts at year-end. Significant financial difficulties of the
debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and
default or delinquency in payments (more than 30 days overdue) are considered
indicators that the trade receivable is impaired. Impairments are determined by
discounting expected future cash flows to their present value. Amounts that are
receivable within 12 months from the reporting date are classified as current.
An impairment of trade receivables is accounted for by reducing the carrying amount
of trade receivables through the use of an allowance account, and the amount of the
loss is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance within operating
expenses. When a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written off. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against operating expenses
in the Statement of Financial Performance.

1.5.5

Trade payables and borrowings
Financial liabilities consist of trade payables and borrowings. They are categorised as
financial liabilities held at amortised cost, are initially recognised at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost which is the initial carrying amount, less
repayments, plus interest.

1.5.6

Cash & cash equivalents
Cash includes cash on hand (including petty cash) and cash with banks (including call
deposits). Cash equivalents are short-term highly liquid investments, readily
convertible into known amounts of cash,that are held with registered banking
institutions with maturities of three months or less and are subject to an insignificant
risk of change in value. For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand, deposits held on call with banks, net of bank
overdrafts. The municipality categorises cash and cash equivalents as financial
assets: loans and receivables.
Bank overdrafts are recorded based on the facility utilised. Finance charges on bank
overdraft are expensed as incurred. Amounts owing in respect of bank overdrafts are
categorised as financial liabilities: other financial liabilities carried at amortised cost.

7

 Ȃ  
͵Ͳ ʹͲͲͻ
1.6

Leases
1.6.1

Municipality as Lessee
Leases are classified as finance leases where substantially all the risks and rewards
associated with ownership of an asset are transferred to the municipality. Property,
plant and equipment or intangible assets subject to finance lease agreements are
initially recognised at the lower of the asset's fair value and the present value of the
minimum lease payments. The corresponding liabilities are initially recognised at the
inception of the lease and are measured as the sum of the minimum lease payments
due in terms of the lease agreement, discounted for the effect of interest. In
discounting the lease payments, the municipality uses the interest rate that exactly
discounts the lease payments and unguaranteed residual value to the fair value of the
asset plus any direct costs incurred.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the leased assets are accounted for in accordance
with the stated accounting policies applicable to property, plant, equipment or
intangibles. The lease liability is reduced by the lease payments, which are allocated
between the lease finance cost and the capital repayment using the effective interest
rate method. Lease finance costs are expensed when incurred. The accounting
policies relating to derecognition of financial instruments are applied to lease
payables. The lease asset is depreciated over the shorter of the asset's useful life or
the lease term.
Operating leases are those leases that do not fall within the scope of the above
definition. Operating lease rentals are accrued on a straight-line basis over the term of
the relevant lease.

1.6.2

Municipality as Lessor
Under a finance lease, the municipality recognises the lease payments to be received
in terms of a lease agreement as an asset (receivable). The receivable is calculated
as the sum of all the minimum lease payments to be received, plus any unguaranteed
residual accruing to the municipality, discounted at the interest rate implicit in the
lease. The receivable is reduced by the capital portion of the lease instalments
received, with the interest portion being recognised as interest revenue on a time
proportionate basis. The accounting policies relating to derecognition and impairment
of financial instruments are applied to lease receivables.
Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the
term of the relevant lease.

1.7

Bank overdraft & Borrowings
Bank overdrafts and borrowings are initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method. Any difference between
the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the settlement or redemption of borrowings is
recognised over the term of the borrowings in accordance with the municipality’s accounting
policy for borrowing costs.

8
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1.8

Provisions
A provision is recognised when the municipality has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event and it is probable (i.e. more likely than not) that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required to
settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
Provisions are reviewed at each Statement of Financial Position date and adjusted to reflect
the current best estimate. Where the effect of the time value of money is material, the amount
of a provision is the present value of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the
obligation.
The municipality does not recognise a contingent liability or contingent asset. A contingent
liability is disclosed unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits is remote. A contingent asset is disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits is
probable.
Future events that may affect the amount required to settle an obligation are reflected in the
amount of a provision where there is sufficient objective evidence that they will occur. Gains
from the expected disposal of assets are not taken into account in measuring a provision.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses. The present obligation under an
onerous contract is recognised and measured as a provision.

1.9

Employee Benefits
(a)

Pension obligations
The Municipality contributes to various pension schemes which are classified as defined
contribution plans. A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the
Municipality pays fixed contributions into a separate entity. The Municipality has no legal
or constructive obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient
assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to employee service in the current and
prior periods.
The contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when they are due.

(b)

Defined Benefit Plans
Post Retirement Medical obligations
The Municipality provides post-retirement healthcare benefits to its retirees. The
entitlement to these benefits is usually conditional on the employee remaining in service
up to retirement age and the completion of a minimum service period. An actuarial study
was undertaken in 2009 to determine the municipality’s obligations.

9
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1.10 Unutilised Conditional Grants
Unutilised conditional grants are reflected on the Statement of Financial Position as a creditor
– Unutilised conditional grants. They represent unspent government grants, subsidies and
contributions from the public. This creditor always has to be backed by cash. The following
provisions are set for the creation and utilisation of this creditor:
•
•

•

The cash which backs up the creditor is invested until it is utilised.
Interest earned on the investment is treated in accordance with grant conditions. If it is
payable to the funder it is recorded as part of the creditor. If it is the Municipality’s
interest it is recognised as interest earned in the Statement of Financial Performance.
Whenever an asset is purchased out of the unutilised conditional grant an amount equal
to the cost price of the asset purchased is transferred from the Unutilised Conditional
Grant into the statement of financial performance as revenue.

1.15 Value Added Tax
The Council accounts for Value Added Tax on the cash basis.
1.16 Property Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, except land and buildings, for which the municipality has
taken advantage of the three year transition period granted in Directive 4 for the initial
adoption of GRAP 12, 16, 17 and 102. In terms of Directive 4, as the municipality was not
able to establish an accurate value separately for land and buildings, the municipality has
disclosed land & buildings at a value of R1 per asset and will take advantage of the allowed
three year transitional period, in which to have the land and buildings accurately and
independently valued. Heritage assets, which are culturally significant resources and which
are shown at cost, are not depreciated owing to the uncertainty regarding their estimated
useful lives. Similarly, land is not depreciated as it is deemed to have an indefinite life.
Where items of property, plant and equipment are acquired in exchange for non- monetary or
monetary assets or a combination of both, property, plant and equipment are measured at
their fair value.
Subsequent expenditure relating to property, plant and equipment is capitalised if it is
probable that future economic benefits or potential service delivery of the asset are enhanced
in excess of the originally assessed standard of performance. If expenditure only restores the
originally assessed standard of performance, then it is regarded as repairs and maintenance
and is expensed. The enhancement of an existing asset so that its use is expanded, or the
further development of an asset so that its original life is extended, are examples of
subsequent expenditure which should be capitalised.
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying
amount and are recognised (net) in the Statement of Financial Performance. When revalued
assets are sold, the amounts included in the Revaluation Reserve are transferred to the
Accumulated Surplus/(Deficit) directly in the Statement of Changes in Net Assets.

10
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Depreciation and impairment losses
Depreciation is calculated on cost less residual value, using the straight line method over the
estimated useful lives for all assets. The depreciation rates are based on the following
estimated useful lives:
Years
Infrastructure
Roads and Paving
Pedestrian Malls
Electricity
Water
Sewerage
Housing

Community
Improvements
Recreational Facilities
Security
Investment Properties

30
30
20-30
15-20
15-20
30

30
20-30
5

Years
Other
Buildings
Specialist vehicles
Other vehicles
Office equipment
Furniture and fittings
Emergency equipment
Computer equipment
Watercraft
Bins and containers
Specialised plant and
equipment
Other plant and
equipment
Landfill sites

30
10
5
3-7
5-10
5-7
5
15
5
10-15
2-5
15

30

Heritage assets, which are defined as culturally significant resources are not depreciated as
they are regarded as having an infinite life. Land is also not depreciated for the same reason.
Intangible assets are initially recorded at their cost price and are subsequently amortised over
their expected useful lives. An intangible asset is defined as an identifiable non – monetary
asset without physical substance held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services, for rental to others, or for administrative purposes. The intangible assets under the
control of Sakhisizwe municipality are amortised according to the straight line method.
Incomplete construction work is stated at historic cost. Depreciation only commences when
the asset is commissioned into use.
The residual value, the useful life of an asset and the depreciation method is reviewed
annually and any changes are recognised as a change in accounting estimate in the
Statement of Financial Performance.
The municipality tests for impairment where there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. An assessment of whether there is an indication of possible impairment is done at
each reporting date. Where the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment
is greater than the estimated recoverable amount (or recoverable service amount), it is
written down immediately to its recoverable amount (or recoverable service amount) and an
impairment loss is charged to the Statement of Financial Performance.

11

 Ȃ  
͵Ͳ ʹͲͲͻ
1.17 Revenue Recognition
Revenue is derived from a variety of sources that includes rates levied, grants from other tiers
of government and revenue from trading activities and municipal services provided. Revenue
comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale of goods and
services in the ordinary course of the municipality’s activities. Revenue is shown net of valueadded tax, returns, rebates and discounts.
The municipality recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured,
it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the entity, these benefits can be
measured reliably and the specific criteria has been met for each of its activities as described
below. The amount of revenue is not considered to be reliably measurable until all
contingencies relating to the sale have been resolved.
Service charges relating to water are based on consumption. Meters are read and billed on a
monthly basis and revenue is recognized when billed. Estimates of consumption are made
monthly when meter readings have not been performed. The estimates of consumption are
recognized as revenue when billed. Adjustments to estimates of consumption are made in
the billing period when meters have been read. These adjustments are recognized as
revenue in the billing period.
Sewerage charges are levied and billed on a monthly basis based on the municipality’s tariff
policy.
Service charges relating to water and sewerage & sanitation are collected on behalf of the
Chris Hani District Municipality and are not disclosed as revenue for the municipality.
Various services are provided on a prepayment basis in which case no formal billing takes
place and revenue is accrued when received.
Interest earned on investments is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance on a
time proportionate basis that takes into account the effective yield on the investment. Interest
earned on the following investments is not recognised in the Statement of Financial
Performance:
•

Interest earned on unutilised conditional grants is allocated directly to the unutilised
conditional grant creditor, if the grant conditions indicate that interest is payable to the
funder.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when all the following conditions have been
satisfied:
•
•
•
•

The municipality has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of
ownership of the goods.
The municipality retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership nor effective control over the goods sold.
The amount of revenue can be measured reliably.
It is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the
transaction will flow to the municipality.
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•

The costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured
reliably.

Income for agency services is recognised on a monthly basis once the income collected on
behalf of agents has been quantified. The income recognised is in terms of the agency
agreement.
Revenue from public contributions is recognised when all conditions associated with the
contribution have been met or where the contribution is to finance property, plant and
equipment, when such items of property, plant and equipment is brought into use. Where
public contributions have been received but the municipality has not met the condition, a
liability is recognised
Revenue from non-exchange transactions
Revenue from rates is recognized, net of rebates granted, when the legal entitlement to this
revenue arises.
Collection charges are recognized when such amounts are legally enforceable.
Interest on outstanding debtors is recognized on a time proportionate basis and is charged on
all outstanding debtors older than 30 days.
Fines constitute both spot fines and summonses. Revenue from spot fines is recognised
when payment is received, and the revenue from the issuing of summonses is only
recognised when collected by the Courts and paid over to the Municipality. Due to the various
legal processes that can apply to summonses and the inadequate information received from
the Courts, it is not possible to measure this revenue when the summons is issued.
Donations are recognised on a cash receipt basis or where the donation is in the form of
property, plant and equipment, when such items of property, plant and equipment are brought
into use.
Contributed property, plant and equipment are recognised when such items of property, plant
and equipment are brought into use.
Revenue from the recovery of unauthorised, irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure is
based on legislated procedures, including those set out in the Municipal Finance
Management Act (Act No.56 of 2003) and is recognised when the recovery thereof from the
responsible councillors or officials is virtually certain.
Conditional Grants and Receipts
Revenue received from conditional grants, donations and funding are recognised as revenue
to the extent that the Municipality has complied with any of the criteria, conditions or
obligations embodied in the agreement. To the extent that the criteria, conditions or
obligations have not been met a liability is recognised.
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1.18 Borrowing costs
All borrowing costs, being interest cost incurred by the Municipality when borrowing funds,
are recognised as finance costs expenses in the period in which it is incurred.
1.19 Related parties
Individuals as well as their close family members, and/or entities are related parties if one
party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control or jointly control the other party or
exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and/or operating
decisions. Key management personnel is defined as the Municipal Manager, Chief Financial
Officer and all other managers reporting directly to the Municipal Manager or as designated
by the Municipal Manager.
1.20 Unauthorised Expenditure
Unauthorised expenditure is expenditure that has not been budgeted, expenditure that is not
in terms of the conditions of an allocation received from another sphere of government,
municipality or organ of state and expenditure in the form of a grant that is not permitted in
terms of the Municipal Finance Management Act (Act No.56 of 2003). Unauthorised
expenditure is accounted for as an expense in the Statement of Financial Performance and
where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the Statement of Financial
Performance.
1.21 Irregular Expenditure
Irregular expenditure is expenditure that is contrary to the Municipal Finance Management
Act (Act No.56 of 2003), the Municipal Systems Act (Act No.32 of 2000), the Public Office
Bearers Act (Act No. 20 of 1998) or is in contravention of the Municipality’s supply chain
management policy. Irregular expenditure excludes unauthorised expenditure. Irregular
expenditure is accounted for as expenditure in the Statement of Financial Performance and
where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the Statement of Financial
Performance.
1.22 Fruitless and Wasteful Expenditure
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is expenditure that was made in vain and would have been
avoided had reasonable care been exercised. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is
accounted for as expenditure in the Statement of Financial Performance and where
recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the Statement of Financial
Performance.
1.23 Rounding
The amounts reflected in the financial statements of the Municipality are all in Rand, and all
amounts are rounded off to the nearest Rand.
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^<,/^/t>K>DhE//W>/dz
EKd^dKd,&/EE/>^ddDEd^
&KZd,zZEϯϬ:hEϮϬϬϵ
ϮϬϬϵ

ϮϬϬϴ

Z

Z

ϭ KZZKt/E'^
ŶŶƵŝƚǇ>ŽĂŶƐʹ^
dŽƚĂů
>ĞƐƐ͗ƵƌƌĞŶƚƉŽƌƚŝŽŶƚƌĂŶƐĨĞƌƌĞĚƚŽĐƵƌƌĞŶƚůŝĂďŝůŝƚŝĞƐ
dŽƚĂůůŽŶŐͲƚĞƌŵďŽƌƌŽǁŝŶŐƐ

Ͳ
Ͳ
Ͳ

Ͳ
Ͳ
Ͳ

Ͳ

Ͳ

dŚĞDƵŶŝĐŝƉĂůŝƚǇŚĂƐƚĂŬĞŶƵƉĂŶĞǆƚĞƌŶĂůůŽĂŶƐĨƌŽŵ^ƌĞůĂƚŝŶŐƚŽ
^ĞǁĞƌĂŐĞ͘dŚĞůŽĂŶŝƐƌĞƉĂǇĂďůĞƐŝǆŵŽŶƚŚůǇ͘dŚĞŝŶƚĞƌĞƐƚƌĂƚĞŝƐ
ϭϱ͘ϮϱйƉĞƌĂŶŶƵŵ͘dŚĞůŽĂŶƐĂƌĞƵŶƐĞĐƵƌĞĚ͘dŚĞůŽĂŶŚĂƐďĞĞŶ
ƚƌĂŶƐĨĞƌƌĞĚƚŽƚŚĞŚƌŝƐ,ĂŶŝĞŐĞŶĐǇŽŶƚƌŽůĂĐĐŽƵŶƚ͘

Ϯ &/EE>^>//>/dz
&ŝŶĂŶĐĞůĞĂƐĞƐͲtĞƐďĂŶŬ

ϲϳϴ͕ϯϬϲ
ϴϭϱ͕ϲϴϳ
ϲϳϴ͕ϯϬϲ
ϴϭϱ͕ϲϴϳ
;Ϯϭϵ͕ϰϰϬͿ
;ϭϴϴ͕ϴϳϲͿ
ϰϱϴ͕ϴϲϲ ϲϮϲ͕ϴϭϭ

>ĞƐƐ͗ƵƌƌĞŶƚƉŽƌƚŝŽŶƚŽďĞƐĞƚƚůĞĚǁŝƚŚŝŶϭϮŵŽŶƚŚƐ
dŽƚĂů&ŝŶĂŶĐĞ>ĞĂƐĞ>ŝĂďŝůŝƚŝĞƐ

DŝŶŝŵƵŵůĞĂƐĞ
ƉĂǇŵĞŶƚƐ
&ƵƚƵƌĞĨŝŶĂŶĐĞĐŚĂƌŐĞƐ

ŵŽƵŶƚƐƉĂǇĂďůĞƵŶĚĞƌĨŝŶĂŶĐĞůĞĂƐĞ͗ϮϬϬϵ

Z

tŝƚŚŝŶŽŶĞǇĞĂƌ
tŝƚŚŝŶƚǁŽƚŽĨŝǀĞǇĞĂƌƐ

Z

WƌĞƐĞŶƚǀĂůƵĞŽĨ
ŵŝŶŝŵƵŵůĞĂƐĞ
ƉĂǇŵĞŶƚƐ
Z

ϮϴϮ͕ϵϲϱ
ϲϯ͕ϱϮϱ Ϯϭϵ͕ϰϰϬ
ϱϬϳ͕ϰϲϮ  ϰϴ͕ϱϵϲ ϰϱϴ͕ϴϲϲ
ϳϵϬ͕ϰϮϳ  ϭϭϮ͕ϭϮϭ  ϲϳϴ͕ϯϬϲ
 Ϯϭϵ͕ϰϰϬ
 ϰϱϴ͕ϴϲϲ

>ĞƐƐ͗ƵƌƌĞŶƚƉŽƌƚŝŽŶƚŽďĞƐĞƚƚůĞĚǁŝƚŚŝŶϭϮŵŽŶƚŚƐ

DŝŶŝŵƵŵůĞĂƐĞ
ƉĂǇŵĞŶƚƐ
&ƵƚƵƌĞĨŝŶĂŶĐĞĐŚĂƌŐĞƐ
Z
Z

ŵŽƵŶƚƐƉĂǇĂďůĞƵŶĚĞƌĨŝŶĂŶĐĞůĞĂƐĞ͗ϮϬϬϴ
tŝƚŚŝŶŽŶĞǇĞĂƌ
tŝƚŚŝŶƚǁŽƚŽĨŝǀĞǇĞĂƌƐ

WƌĞƐĞŶƚǀĂůƵĞŽĨ
ŵŝŶŝŵƵŵůĞĂƐĞ
ƉĂǇŵĞŶƚƐ
Z

Ϯϵϳ͕Ϭϭϭ
ϭϬϴ͕ϭϯϱ ϭϴϴ͕ϴϳϲ
ϳϯϴ͕ϵϯϮ  ϭϭϮ͕ϭϮϭ ϲϮϲ͕ϴϭϭ
ϭ͕Ϭϯϱ͕ϵϰϯ  ϮϮϬ͕Ϯϱϲ  ϴϭϱ͕ϲϴϳ
 ϭϴϴ͕ϴϳϲ
 ϲϮϲ͕ϴϭϭ

>ĞƐƐ͗ƵƌƌĞŶƚƉŽƌƚŝŽŶƚŽďĞƐĞƚƚůĞĚǁŝƚŚŝŶϭϮŵŽŶƚŚƐ

EŝŶĞĨŝŶĂŶĐĞůĞĂƐĞĂŐƌĞĞŵĞŶƚƐǁŝƚŚtĞƐďĂŶŬǁĞƌĞĞŶƚĞƌĞĚŝŶƚŽĂƚWƌŝŵĞůĞƐƐϭйŽǀĞƌĨŝǀĞǇĞĂƌƐ͘dŚĞĐĂƐŚĨůŽǁƐǁĞƌĞ
ĚŝƐĐŽƵŶƚĞĚŽǀĞƌƚŚĞƉĞƌŝŽĚĂŶĚĨŽƵŶĚƚŽďĞĂƐŶĞĂƌƚŽĨĂŝƌǀĂůƵĞƚŽŵĂŬĞŶŽŵĂƚĞƌŝĂůĚŝĨĨĞƌĞŶĐĞĂŶĚƚŚĞƌĞĨŽƌĞƚŚĞůĞĂƐĞƐǁĞƌĞ
ĐĂƉŝƚĂůŝƐĞĚĂƚĨĂŝƌǀĂůƵĞ͘
EŽƚĞ͗ƚŚĞƉƌŝŽƌǇĞĂƌĨŝŐƵƌĞƐŚĂǀĞďĞĞŶƌĞƐƚĂƚĞĚŝŶŽƌĚĞƌƚŽƚĂŬĞŝŶƚŽĂĐĐŽƵŶƚƚǁŽĨŝŶĂŶĐĞůĞĂƐĞƐƚƌĂŶƐĨĞƌƌĞĚƚŽƚŚĞŚƌŝƐ,ĂŶŝ
ŐĞŶĐǇĐĐŽƵŶƚ͘

WĂŐĞϭϱ

ϮϬϬϵ

ϮϬϬϴ

Z

Z

ϯ dZEKd,ZWz>^&ZKDy,E'dZE^d/KE^
dƌĂĚĞƌĞĚŝƚŽƌƐ
dƌĂĚĞĂŶĚŽƚŚĞƌƌĞĐĞŝǀĂďůĞƐŝŶĐƌĞĚŝƚďĂůĂŶĐĞ
KƚŚĞƌƌĞĚŝƚŽƌƐ
dŽƚĂůƌĞĚŝƚŽƌƐ

ϯϲϭ͕ϯϳϲ
ϰϬ͕ϮϱϮ
ϱ͕ϳϯϲ
ϰϬϳ͕ϯϲϰ

ϯ͕ϵϴϵ͕ϱϰϯ
Ͳ
ϮϬϯ͕ϯϲϱ
ϰ͕ϭϵϮ͕ϵϬϴ

dŚĞĨĂŝƌǀĂůƵĞŽĨƚƌĂĚĞĂŶĚŽƚŚĞƌƉĂǇĂďůĞƐĂƉƉƌŽǆŝŵĂƚĞƐƚŚĞŝƌĐĂƌƌǇŝŶŐ
ĂŵŽƵŶƚƐ͘
ϰ KE^hDZWK^/d^
ůĞĐƚƌŝĐŝƚǇĚĞƉŽƐŝƚƐ
ĂŵΘ,ĂůůĚĞƉŽƐŝƚƐ

ϯϰϱ͕ϰϰϵ Ϯϲϵ͕ϱϯϳ
ϯ͕ϴϰϮ ϱϮ͕ϴϱϭ
ϯϰϵ͕Ϯϵϭ ϯϮϮ͕ϯϴϴ

dŚĞƌĞŝƐŶŽĂĐĐƌƵĂůŽĨŝŶƚĞƌĞƐƚŝŶĐůƵĚĞĚŝŶƚŚĞĚĞƉŽƐŝƚƐǁŚŝĐŚŶĞĞĚƚŽďĞ
ƉĂŝĚƚŽĐŽŶƐƵŵĞƌƐǁŚĞŶĚĞƉŽƐŝƚƐĂƌĞƌĞĨƵŶĚĞĚ͘
dŚĞƌĞĂƌĞŶŽŐƵĂƌĂŶƚĞĞƐŚĞůĚŝŶůĞĂƵŽĨůĞĐƚƌŝĐŝƚǇĚĞƉŽƐŝƚƐ͘

ϱ hE^WEdKE/d/KE>'ZEd^EZ/Wd^
'ƌĂŶƚ͗&ŝŶĂŶĐĞDĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ;&D'Ϳ
'ƌĂŶƚ͗DƵŶŝĐŝƉĂů/ŶĨƌĂƐƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĞ;D/'Ϳ
'ƌĂŶƚ͗ZƵƌĂů/ŶĨƌĂƐƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĞ
'ƌĂŶƚ͗'ĞŶĞƌĂůsĂůƵĂƚŝŽŶ
'ƌĂŶƚ͗^ƵƌǀĞǇ
ůůŝŽƚŚŽƵƐŝŶŐ
'ƌĂŶƚ͗DƵŶŝĐŝƉĂů^ĞƌǀŝĐĞ/ŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚ;DƐŝŐͿ
'ƌĂŶƚ͗WD&ZĞǀŝĞǁ
ŝƐĂƐƚĞƌ&ƵŶĚ
^ŬŝůůƐĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ
DƵŶŝĐŝƉĂů^ƵƉƉŽƌƚWƌŽŐƌĂŵ;D^WͿ
'ƌĂŶƚ͗ǆƚϭϯΘϭϰ
'ƌĂŶƚ͗/ůĞĐƚŝŽŶ
'ƌĂŶƚ͗ǆƚϭϱ
'ƌĂŶƚ͗/W
'ƌĂŶƚ͗D

ϭϬ͕ϬϬϬ
ϯ͕ϳϴϭ͕Ϯϳϲ
Ͳ
ϭ͕ϬϬϬ
ϭϬ͕ϳϰϴ
ϰϭ͕ϯϭϬ
ϰϳϯ͕ϳϱϬ
ϭϳϮ͕ϳϲϰ
ϳϲ͕ϬϬϳ
ϵϲ͕ϴϭϬ
ϰϰ͕ϲϴϰ
ϲ͕Ϯϯϭ
ϰϳ͕ϰϮϯ
ϱ͕ϭϬϯ
ϭϬϲ͕ϳϲϭ
ϴϳϳ͕ϯϬϮ

ϰϯϳ͕ϱϭϭ
ϲϲϮ͕ϲϲϯ
ϳ͕ϳϴϭ
ϳϬϱ͕ϰϱϴ
ϭϯ͕ϱϰϳ
ϭϱϮ͕Ϯϱϲ
ϭϬϮ͕ϬϮϲ
ϵϯ͕ϭϭϳ
ϴϬ͕ϬϴϮ
ϮϵϬ͕Ϯϴϱ
Ͳ
ϲ͕ϰϰϴ
Ͳ
ϭϬϲ͕ϲϬϰ
ϭϭϮ͕ϳϮϰ
Ͳ
Ͳ
ϱ͕ϳϱϭ͕ϭϲϵ
Ϯ͕ϳϳϬ͕ϱϬϮ

dŽƚĂůhŶƐƉĞŶƚŽŶĚŝƚŝŽŶĂů'ƌĂŶƚƐĂŶĚƌĞĐĞŝƉƚƐ
EŽŶͲĐƵƌƌĞŶƚƵŶƐƉĞŶƚŽŶĚŝƚŝŽŶĂů'ƌĂŶƚƐĂŶĚƌĞĐĞŝƉƚƐ
ƵƌƌĞŶƚƉŽƌƚŝŽŶŽĨƵŶƐƉĞŶƚŽŶĚŝƚŝŽŶĂů'ƌĂŶƚƐĂŶĚƌĞĐĞŝƉƚƐ

^ĞĞ EŽƚĞ ϭϭ ĨŽƌ ^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚ ŽĨ &ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů WĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ ĨŽƌ Ă ƌĞĐŽŶĐŝůŝĂƚŝŽŶ
ŽĨ ŐƌĂŶƚƐ ĨƌŽŵ ŽƚŚĞƌ ƐƉŚĞƌĞƐ ŽĨ ŐŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚ͘ dŚĞƐĞ ĂŵŽƵŶƚƐ ĂƌĞ
ŝŶǀĞƐƚĞĚŝŶĂƌŝŶŐͲĨĞŶĐĞĚŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚƵŶƚŝůƵƚŝůŝƐĞĚ͘

WĂŐĞϭϲ

Ͳ
Ͳ
ϱ͕ϳϱϭ͕ϭϲϵ Ϯ͕ϳϳϬ͕ϱϬϮ

ϮϬϬϵ

ϮϬϬϴ

Z

Z

ϲ sdWz>
sĂƚƉĂǇĂďůĞ

Ͳ

ϴϱϯ͕ϭϵϯ

ϳ sdZ/s>>
sĂƚƌĞĐĞŝǀĂůďĞ

ϭ͕ϱϲϴ͕ϵϲϳ Ͳ
ϭ͕ϱϲϴ͕ϵϲϳ Ͳ

sd ŝƐ ƉĂǇĂďůĞ ŽŶ ƚŚĞ ƌĞĐĞŝƉƚƐ ďĂƐŝƐ͘ KŶůǇ ŽŶĐĞ ƉĂǇŵĞŶƚ ŝƐ ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞĚ
ĨƌŽŵĚĞďƚŽƌƐŝƐsdƉĂŝĚŽǀĞƌƚŽ^Z^͘
dŚĞ ďĂůĂŶĐĞ ŽŶ ϮϬϬϴ ǁĂƐ ĂĚũƵƐƚĞĚ ďǇ ZϭΖϰϯϮΖϱϲϬ ƐĞĞ ŶŽƚĞ ϭϵ
ŽƌƌĞĐƚŝŽŶŽĨƌƌŽƌ
ϴ WZKWZdz͕W>EdEYh/WDEd
dŚĞƌĞĐŽŶĐŝůŝĂƚŝŽŶŽĨĐĂƌƌǇŝŶŐǀĂůƵĞƐŝƐƐĞƚŽƵƚŽŶƚŚĞĨŽůůŽǁŝŶŐƉĂŐĞ͘

dŚĞ ŵƵŶŝĐŝƉĂůŝƚǇ ŚĂƐ ƚĂŬĞŶ ĂĚǀĂŶƚĂŐĞ ŽĨ ƚŚĞ ƚƌĂŶƐŝƚŝŽŶĂů ƉƌŽǀŝƐŝŽŶƐ ƐĞƚ ŽƵƚ ŝŶ 'ZW ϭϳ͘ dŚĞ ŵƵŶŝĐŝƉĂůŝƚǇ ƉĞƌĨŽƌŵĞĚ ĂŶ ĂƐƐĞƚ
ǀĞƌŝĨŝĐĂƚŝŽŶ ĂŶĚ ƚŚĞ ŝƚĞŵŝƐŝŶŐ Ăůů ŝŶĨƌĂƐƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĞ ĂƐ Ăƚ ϯϬ :ƵŶĞ ϮϬϬϵ͘ dŚĞ ŵƵŶŝĐŝƉĂůŝƚǇ ŚĂƐ ĂƐƐĞƐƐĞĚ ĂƐ Ăƚ ϯϬ :ƵŶĞ ϮϬϬϵ ǁŚĞƚŚĞƌ
ŝƚĞŵƐŽĨƉƌŽƉĞƌƚǇ͕ƉůĂŶƚĂŶĚĞƋƵŝƉŵĞŶƚĂƌĞŝŵƉĂŝƌĞĚ͘

WĂŐĞϭϳ

^<,/^/t>K>DhE//W>/dz
EKd^dKd,&/EE/>^ddDEd^
       

8 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
30 June 2009
Reconciliation of Carrying Value
Carrying values
at 1 July 2008
Cost
Correction of error
Accumulated depreciation
Additions
Capital under Construction
Depreciation
Disposals
Cost
Accumulated depreciation
Impairment losses
Other movements
Carrying values at 30 June 2009
Cost
Other movements
Accumulated depreciation

Land and
Buildings
R

Infrastructure
R

Community
R

Other
R

Total
R

8,110,060
8,252,085

7,714,078
9,418,978

7,845,460
14,646,460

7,533,966
13,259,276

31,203,564
45,576,799

(142,025)

(1,704,900)

(6,801,000)

(5,725,310)

(14,373,235)

-

-

-

89,520

89,520

(8,106,544)
3,516
8,252,085
(8,106,544)
(142,025)

44,687,793
44,942,198
9,418,978
37,228,120
(1,704,900)

(3,870,284)
3,975,176
14,646,460
(3,870,284)
(6,801,000)

(4,878,656)
(103,581)
2,641,249
13,348,796
(103,581)
(10,603,966)

(4,878,656)
32,607,384
51,562,139
45,666,319
25,147,711
(19,251,891)

Other

Total

30 June 2008
Reconciliation of Carrying Value
Carrying values
at 1 July 2007
Cost
Correction of error
Accumulated depreciation

Land and

Infra-

Buildings

structure

Community

R

R

R

R

R

8,134,095
8,252,085
(117,990)

9,761,215
13,942,276
(4,181,061)

8,212,793
14,646,460
(6,433,667)

7,030,313
12,617,615
(5,587,302)

33,138,416
49,458,436
(16,320,020)

3,667,726
(889,798)
(4,825,064)
7,714,078

(367,333)
-

1,443,440
(720,519)
-

7,845,460

(219,269)
7,533,966

5,111,166
(2,001,685)
(5,044,333)
31,203,564

9,418,978
(1,704,900)

14,646,460
(6,801,000)

13,259,276
(5,725,310)

45,576,799
(14,373,235)

Additions
Capital under Construction
(24,035)
Depreciation
Disposals
Cost
Accumulated depreciation
Impairment losses
Other movements
8,110,060
Carrying values at 30 June 2008
8,252,085
Cost
(142,025)
Accumulated depreciation
ĞƉƌĞĐŝĂƚŝŽŶĐĂůĐƵůĂƚŝŽŶƐƚŽϯϬͬϬϲͬϮϬϬϴǁĞƌĞǁƌŝƚƚĞŶďĂĐŬĂŶĚƌĞĐĂůĐƵůĂƚĞĚ͘
Intangible Assets
Reconciliation of Carrying Value
Carrying values at 1 July 2008
Cost
Correction of error
Accumulated depreciation
Additions
Capital under Construction
Depreciation
Disposals
Cost
Accumulated depreciation
Impairment losses
Other movements (Correction depreciation)
Carrying values at 30 June 2009
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Computer
Software
R
73,616
156,617

R

R
-

R
-

-

-

-

-

(83,001)

-

-

-

73,616
156,617
(83,001)

-

-

-

Total
R
73,616
156,617
(83,001)
156,617
(83,001)
-

-

-

-

WĂŐĞϭϴ

-

-

-

^<,/^/t>K>DhE//W>/dz
EKd^dKd,&/EE/>^ddDEd^
&KZd,zZEϯϬ:hEϮϬϬϵ
dZEKd,ZZ/s>^&ZKDy,E'
 dZE^d/KE^
dƌĂĚĞƌĞĐĞŝǀĂďůĞƐ
ƐĂƚϯϬ:ƵŶĞϮϬϬϵ
^ĞƌǀŝĐĞĞďƚŽƌƐ͗tĂƚĞƌ͖
^ĞƌǀŝĐĞĞďƚŽƌƐ͗ůĞĐƚƌŝĐŝƚǇ͖
^ĞƌǀŝĐĞĞďƚŽƌƐ͗^ĞǁĞƌĂŐĞ͖
^ĞƌǀŝĐĞĞďƚŽƌƐ͗ZĞĨƵƐĞZĞŵŽǀĂů͖
^ĞƌǀŝĐĞĞďƚŽƌƐ͗ZĂƚĞƐ͖
^ĞƌǀŝĐĞĞďƚŽƌƐ͗ZĞŶƚŽŵŵŽŶĂŐĞ͖
^ĞƌǀŝĐĞĞďƚŽƌƐ͗ƵŝůĚŝŶŐůĂƵƐĞ͖
^ĞƌǀŝĐĞĞďƚŽƌƐ͗ZĞŶƚ͖
^ĞƌǀŝĐĞĞďƚŽƌƐ͗KƚŚĞƌ;ŽŶƐƵŵĞƌͿ
^ĞƌǀŝĐĞĞďƚŽƌƐ͗ŚƌŝƐ,ĂŶŝŐĞŶĐǇĐĐŽƵŶƚ
^ƵďͲƚŽƚĂů
^ĞƌǀŝĐĞĞďƚŽƌƐŝŶĐƌĞĚŝƚďĂůĂŶĐĞ;ĚŝƐĐůŽƐĞĚĂƐdƌĂĚĞ
ƌĞĚŝƚŽƌƐͿ
dŽƚĂů

ƐĂƚϯϬ:ƵŶĞϮϬϬϴ
^ĞƌǀŝĐĞĞďƚŽƌƐ͗tĂƚĞƌ͖
^ĞƌǀŝĐĞĞďƚŽƌƐ͗ůĞĐƚƌŝĐŝƚǇ͖
^ĞƌǀŝĐĞĞďƚŽƌƐ͗^ĞǁĞƌĂŐĞ͖
^ĞƌǀŝĐĞĞďƚŽƌƐ͗ZĞĨƵƐĞZĞŵŽǀĂů͖
^ĞƌǀŝĐĞĞďƚŽƌƐ͗ZĂƚĞƐ͖
^ĞƌǀŝĐĞĞďƚŽƌƐ͗ZĞŶƚŽŵŵŽŶĂŐĞ͖
^ĞƌǀŝĐĞĞďƚŽƌƐ͗ƵŝůĚŝŶŐůĂƵƐĞ͖
^ĞƌǀŝĐĞĞďƚŽƌƐ͗ZĞŶƚ͖
^ĞƌǀŝĐĞĞďƚŽƌƐ͗KƚŚĞƌ;ŽŶƐƵŵĞƌͿ
^ĞƌǀŝĐĞĞďƚŽƌƐ͗ŚƌŝƐ,ĂŶŝŐĞŶĐǇĐĐŽƵŶƚ
dŽƚĂů

'ƌŽƐƐĂůĂŶĐĞƐ

WƌŽǀŝƐŝŽŶĨŽƌ
ŽƵďƚĨƵůĞďƚƐ

EĞƚĂůĂŶĐĞƐ

Z

Z

Z

Ͳ
ϭ͕ϲϴϳ͕ϲϲϬ
Ͳ
ϵ͕ϲϰϮ͕ϭϴϰ
ϳ͕ϭϲϮ͕Ϭϯϯ
ϱ͕ϵϰϬ
ϰ͕Ϯϰϲ
Ϯϴ͕ϲϲϲ
Ͳ
ϭϯ͕ϰϰϲ͕ϮϮϯ
ϯϭ͕ϵϳϲ͕ϵϱϮ

 Ͳ
 ϭ͕Ϭϳϵ͕ϴϲϭ
 Ͳ
 ϵ͕ϮϬϳ͕ϳϯϴ
 ϯ͕ϰϳϲ͕ϳϵϯ
 Ϯ͕ϳϱϱ
 ϰ͕Ϯϰϲ
 Ͳ
 Ͳ
 Ͳ
ϭϯ͕ϳϳϭ͕ϯϵϯ

 Ͳ
 ϲϬϳ͕ϳϵϵ
 Ͳ
 ϰϯϰ͕ϰϰϲ
 ϯ͕ϲϴϱ͕ϮϰϬ
 ϯ͕ϭϴϱ
 Ͳ
 Ϯϴ͕ϲϲϲ
 Ͳ
 ϭϯ͕ϰϰϲ͕ϮϮϯ
ϭϴ͕ϮϬϱ͕ϱϱϵ

ϰϬ͕ϮϱϮ Ͳ  ϰϬ͕ϮϱϮ
ϯϮ͕Ϭϭϳ͕ϮϬϰ ϭϯ͕ϳϳϭ͕ϯϵϯ ϭϴ͕Ϯϰϱ͕ϴϭϭ

Ͳ
ϭ͕Ϯϰϯ͕ϵϬϴ
Ͳ
ϭϬ͕ϰϵϱ͕ϲϳϮ
ϲ͕ϲϰϮ͕ϵϵϳ
ϱ͕ϭϬϱ
ϯ͕ϲϬϴ
ϭϯ͕ϴϳϲ
ϲ͕ϴϭϬ
ϳ͕ϰϭϭ͕Ϯϱϯ
Ϯϱ͕ϴϮϯ͕Ϯϯϭ

Ͳ
ϳϱϵ͕ϲϴϭ
Ͳ
ϳ͕ϭϰϵ͕ϭϭϳ
ϯ͕ϭϰϱ͕ϴϯϳ
ϭ͕ϴϰϬ
ϯ͕ϲϬϴ
Ͳ
Ͳ
Ͳ
ϭϭ͕ϬϲϬ͕Ϭϴϯ

 Ͳ
 ϰϴϰ͕ϮϮϳ
 Ͳ
 ϯ͕ϯϰϲ͕ϱϱϱ
 ϯ͕ϰϵϳ͕ϭϲϬ
 ϯ͕Ϯϲϱ
 Ͳ
 ϭϯ͕ϴϳϲ
 ϲ͕ϴϭϬ
 ϳ͕ϰϭϭ͕Ϯϱϯ
ϭϰ͕ϳϲϯ͕ϭϰϲ

dŚĞdƌĂĚĞZĞĐĞŝǀĂďůĞƐďĂůĂŶĐĞĨŽƌtĂƚĞƌĂŶĚ^ĂŶŝƚĂƚŝŽŶĂŶĚƚŚĞWƌŽǀŝƐŝŽŶĨŽƌŽƵďƚĨƵůĚĞďƚƐĂƐĂƚϮϬϬϵǁĞƌĞ
ƚƌĂŶƐĨĞƌƌĞĚƚŽƚŚĞŚƌŝƐ,ĂŶŝŐĞŶĐǇĐĐŽƵŶƚĂŶĚƚŚĞϮϬϬϴƉƌŝŽƌǇĞĂƌĨŝŐƵƌĞƐĨŽƌdƌĂĚĞZĞĐĞŝǀĂďůĞƐŽĨZϭϮΖϰϰϰΖϲϱϭ
ĨŽƌǁĂƚĞƌĂŶĚZϱΖϳϵϳΖϳϰϰĨŽƌ^ĞǁĞƌĂŐĞĂŶĚWƌŽǀŝƐŝŽŶĨŽƌŽƵďƚĨƵůĞďƚƐŽĨZϭϭΖϮϱϰΖϬϰϵĨŽƌǁĂƚĞƌĂŶĚZϳΖϬϭϰΖϵϵϲ
ĨŽƌƐĂŶŝƚĂƚŝŽŶǁĞƌĞĂĚũƵƐƚĞĚƌĞƚƌŽƐƉĞĐƚŝǀĞůǇ͘
KƚŚĞƌƌĞĐĞŝǀĂďůĞƐ
KƚŚĞƌƌĞĐĞŝǀĂďůĞƐ͗ϮϬϬϵ

ϯϬ͕ϵϱϮ ϮϬ͕ϱϵϴ ϭϬ͕ϯϱϰ

KƚŚĞƌƌĞĐĞŝǀĂďůĞƐ͗ϮϬϬϴ

ϯϳϱ͕ϰϱϮ ϭϮ͕ϬϮϴ ϯϲϯ͕ϰϮϰ

WĂŐĞϭϵ

^<,/^/t>K>DhE//W>/dz
dZEKd,ZZ/s>^&ZKDy,E'dZE^d/KE^
ϵ ;ĐŽŶƚŝŶƵĞĚͿ

ϮϬϬϵ

ϮϬϬϴ

Z

Z

 ϴϳ͕ϭϲϬ
ϭϱϬ͕ϰϴϰ
ϭϰϮ͕ϬϳϮ
ϲ͕ϴϭϭ͕ϱϭϰ
ϳ͕ϭϵϭ͕ϮϯϬ

ϴϵ͕ϵϬϭ
ϭϯϴ͕ϯϱϯ
ϭϯϴ͕ϱϲϲ
ϲ͕Ϯϳϲ͕ϭϳϳ
ϲ͕ϲϰϮ͕ϵϵϳ

ϲϰϴ͕ϯϵϯ
ϰϬϯ͕ϰϰϵ
Ϯϲϳ͕ϰϬϱ
ϭϬ͕ϬϮϬ͕ϭϵϰ
ϭϭ͕ϯϯϵ͕ϰϰϭ

ϰϲϭ͕ϭϵϬ
Ϯϳϯ͕ϭϴϰ
Ϯϭϯ͕ϰϭϲ
ϭϬ͕ϳϵϭ͕ϳϵϬ
ϭϭ͕ϳϯϵ͕ϱϴϬ

ZĂƚĞƐ͗ŐĞŝŶŐ
ƵƌƌĞŶƚ;ϬͲϯϬĚĂǇƐͿ
ϯϭͲϲϬĂǇƐ
ϲϭͲϵϬĂǇƐ
хϵϬĂǇƐ
dŽƚĂů

ůĞĐƚƌŝĐŝƚǇΘZĞĨƵƐĞ͗ŐĞŝŶŐ
ƵƌƌĞŶƚ;ϬͲϯϬĚĂǇƐͿ
ϯϭͲϲϬĂǇƐ
ϲϭͲϵϬĂǇƐ
хϵϬĂǇƐ
dŽƚĂů
KƚŚĞƌƐĞƌǀŝĐĞĚĞďƚŽƌƐ͗ŐĞŝŶŐ
ƵƌƌĞŶƚ;ϬͲϯϬĚĂǇƐͿ
ϯϭͲϲϬĂǇƐ
ϲϭͲϵϬĂǇƐ
хϵϬĂǇƐ
dŽƚĂů

 ϵ͕ϳϯϬ ϴ͕ϴϲϱ
 ϱ͕ϭϵϮ Ϯ͕ϱϭϯ
 ϯ͕ϵϲϵ ϭ͕ϵϮϵ
 ϰϴ͕ϭϱϱ ϭϲ͕ϬϵϮ
 ϲϳ͕Ϭϰϲ Ϯϵ͕ϯϵϵ

WĂŐĞϮϬ

^<,/^/t>K>DhE//W>/dz
ϮϬϬϵ

ϮϬϬϴ

Z

Z

ϭϬ ^Zs/,Z'^
tĂƚĞƌ
^ĂůĞŽĨůĞĐƚƌŝĐŝƚǇ
ZĞĨƵƐĞZĞŵŽǀĂů
^ĂŶŝƚĂƚŝŽŶ
dŽƚĂů^ĞƌǀŝĐĞŚĂƌŐĞƐ

 Ͳ
 Ͳ
 ϰ͕Ϭϱϭ͕ϲϰϰ
Ϯ͕ϰϯϱ͕ϭϬϱ
 ϭ͕ϲϭϰ͕ϰϬϴ
ϰ͕ϭϭϵ͕Ϭϯϲ
 Ͳ
 Ͳ
ϱ͕ϲϲϲ͕ϬϱϮ
ϲ͕ϱϱϰ͕ϭϰϭ

ůƚŚŽƵŐŚŚƌŝƐ,ĂŶŝŝƐƚƌŝĐƚDƵŶŝĐŝƉĂůŝƚǇŝƐƚŚĞƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƉƌŽǀŝĚĞƌĨŽƌtĂƚĞƌĂŶĚ^ĂŶŝƚĂƚŝŽŶ͕ƚŚŝƐƐĞƌǀŝĐĞŝƐƉĞƌĨŽƌŵĞĚ
ďǇ^ĂŬŚŝƐŝǌǁĞŵƵŶŝĐŝƉĂůŝƚǇĂƐĂŶĂŐĞŶĐǇƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ͘dŚĞŝŶĐŽŵĞĂŶĚĞǆƉĞŶĚŝƚƵƌĞĨŽƌƚŚĞƐĞƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐŚĂǀĞďĞĞŶ
ƚƌĂŶƐĨĞƌƌĞĚĨƌŽŵƚŚĞŽƉĞƌĂƚŝŶŐƌĞƐƵůƚƐŽĨ^ĂŬŚŝƐŝǌǁĞŵƵŶŝĐŝƉĂůŝƚǇƚŽĂŶŐĞŶĐǇŽŶƚƌŽůĐĐŽƵŶƚĂŶĚƚŚĞƉƌŝŽƌǇĞĂƌ
ĨŝŐƵƌĞƐĂĚũƵƐƚĞĚƌĞƚƌŽƐƉĞĐƚŝǀĞůǇĨŽƌƚŚĞĞĨĨĞĐƚŽĨƚŚĞƚƌĂŶƐĨĞƌ͘
ϭϭ 'KsZEDEd'ZEd^E^h^//^
DƵŶŝĐŝƉĂů^ǇƐƚĞŵ/ŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚ'ƌĂŶƚ
'ĞŶĞƌĂůsĂůƵĂƚŝŽŶƐ
DƵŶŝĐŝƉĂů/ŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚ'ƌĂŶƚ
&ŝŶĂŶĐĞDĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ'ƌĂŶƚ
DƵŶŝĐŝƉĂů^ƵƉƉŽƌƚWƌŽŐƌĂŵŵĞ
^ŬŝůůƐĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ
/ŶƚĞŐƌĂƚĞĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚWůĂŶ
,ŽƵƐŝŶŐ&ƵŶĚ
ŝĚƐ
/ůĞĐƚŝŽŶƐ
,ŽƵƐŝŶŐ͗ǆƚϭϱ
,ŽƵƐŝŶŐ͗ǆƚϭϯ͕ϭϰ

 ϯϱϮ͕ϯϱϭ
 ϲϴϱ͕ϲϰϳ
 ϱ͕ϱϭϵ͕ϵϰϬ
 ϭ͕ϲϴϴ͕ϱϭϮ
 Ͳ
 Ϯϰϱ͕ϱϭϯ
 ϭϭϮ͕Ϯϯϲ
 ϵϮϰ͕ϴϱϱ
 ϭϱ͕ϬϬϬ
 ϭϮϲ͕Ϭϳϴ
 ϯϱϭ͕ϵϲϭ
 ϲϮ͕ϭϬϮ

 Ϯ͕Ϯϱϭ͕ϲϳϰ
 ϭϮϮ͕ϴϭϰ
 ϳϯϱ͕ϮϵϮ
 ϳϴ͕ϵϳϰ
 ϰϯϯ͕ϱϳϵ
 ϯϬϴ͕ϰϯϭ
 Ͳ
 ϭ͕ϭϭϱ͕ϱϬϲ
 Ͳ
 Ͳ
 Ͳ
 Ͳ

^h^//^
ƋƵŝƚĂďůĞ^ŚĂƌĞ
ŽƵŶĐŝůůŽƌZĞŵƵŶĞƌĂƚŝŽŶ
,ĞĂůƚŚĂŶĚŶǀŝƌŽŶŵĞŶƚĂůĨĨĂŝƌƐ^ƵďƐŝĚǇ
>ŝďƌĂƌŝĞƐ

 ϭϱ͕ϵϵϵ͕ϰϬϰ
 ϱϯϰ͕ϬϬϬ
 ϭ͕ϯϭϬ͕ϬϬϭ
 ϯϳϯ͕ϭϳϳ

 ϭϮ͕ϴϵϭ͕ϰϰϱ
 Ͳ
 ϵϲϴ͕ϰϵϵ
 Ͳ

Ϯϴ͕ϯϬϬ͕ϳϳϳ

ϭϴ͕ϵϬϲ͕Ϯϭϰ

dŽƚĂů'ŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚ'ƌĂŶƚĂŶĚ^ƵďƐŝĚŝĞƐ

dŚĞƋƵŝƚĂďůĞ^ŚĂƌĞĂůůŽĐĂƚŝŽŶŝƐĂŶƵŶĐŽŶĚŝƚŝŽŶĂůŐƌĂŶƚĂŶĚŝƐƵƚŝůŝƐĞĚŝŶƐĞƌǀŝĐĞĚĞůŝǀĞƌǇ͘
EŽ'ƌĂŶƚƐǁĞƌĞǁŝƚŚŚĞůĚĨŽƌŶŽŶĐŽŵƉůŝĂŶĐĞƚŽŐƌĂŶƚĐŽŶĚŝƚŝŽŶƐ
ϭϭ͘ϰŚĂŶŐĞƐŝŶůĞǀĞůƐŽĨŐŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚŐƌĂŶƚƐ
ĂƐĞĚŽŶƚŚĞĂůůŽĐĂƚŝŽŶƐƐĞƚŽƵƚŝŶƚŚĞŝǀŝƐŝŽŶŽĨZĞǀĞŶƵĞĐƚ͕;ĐƚEŽϮŽĨϮϬϬϲͿ͕ŶŽƐŝŐŶŝĨŝĐĂŶƚĐŚĂŶŐĞƐŝŶƚŚĞ
ůĞǀĞůŽĨŐŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚŐƌĂŶƚĨƵŶĚŝŶŐĂƌĞĞǆƉĞĐƚĞĚŽǀĞƌƚŚĞĨŽƌƚŚĐŽŵŝŶŐϯĨŝŶĂŶĐŝĂůǇĞĂƌƐ͘

WĂŐĞϮϭ

^<,/^/t>K>DhE//W>/dz
ϮϬϬϵ

ϮϬϬϴ

Z

Z

ϭϮ Kd,Z/EKD
dƌĂĨĨŝĐ/ŶĐŽŵĞ͕&ŝŶĞƐ͕ZĞŶƚĂů͕ĚŵŝŶĂŶĚƐƵŶĚƌǇŝŶĐŽŵĞ
dŽƚĂůKƚŚĞƌ/ŶĐŽŵĞ

Ϯ͕ϯϰϮ͕Ϯϵϯ  ϯ͕ϲϲϳ͕ϴϲϱ
Ϯ͕ϯϰϮ͕Ϯϵϯ  ϯ͕ϲϲϳ͕ϴϲϱ


ϭϯ DW>KzZ>dK^d^
ŵƉůŽǇĞĞƌĞůĂƚĞĚĐŽƐƚƐʹ^ĂůĂƌŝĞƐĂŶĚtĂŐĞƐ
ŵƉůŽǇĞĞƌĞůĂƚĞĚĐŽƐƚƐͲŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐĨŽƌh/&͕ƉĞŶƐŝŽŶƐ
ĂŶĚŵĞĚŝĐĂůĂŝĚƐ
,ŽƵƐŝŶŐ͕dĞůĞƉŚŽŶĞ͕DŽƚŽƌsĞŚŝĐůĞƐĂŶĚZƵƌĂů
ůůŽǁĂŶĐĞƐ
KǀĞƌƚŝŵĞƉĂǇŵĞŶƚƐ
>ĞĂǀĞƉĂǇ
WĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞďŽŶƵƐ
dŽƚĂůŵƉůŽǇĞĞZĞůĂƚĞĚŽƐƚƐ

ϵ͕ϰϯϯ͕ϱϳϵ

ϵ͕Ϯϲϱ͕ϭϱϲ

ϯ͕ϲϭϮ͕ϳϬϭ

Ϯ͕Ϭϯϯ͕ϭϭϰ

ϳϲϳ͕ϱϳϭ
ϳϱϳ͕ϲϬϬ
ϯϯϭ͕ϳϲϱ
ϳϵϮ͕ϰϱϯ
Ϯ͕ϴϭϭ͕ϭϯϯ  Ͳ
 Ͳ
ϳϵϮ͕ϮϬϬ
ϭϲ͕ϵϱϲ͕ϳϰϵ
ϭϯ͕ϲϰϬ͕ϱϮϯ

ZĞŵƵŶĞƌĂƚŝŽŶŽĨƚŚĞDƵŶŝĐŝƉĂůDĂŶĂŐĞƌ
ŶŶƵĂůZĞŵƵŶĞƌĂƚŝŽŶ
ŶŶƵĂůŽŶƵƐĞƐ
>ĞĂǀĞWĂǇ
ĂƌůůŽǁĂŶĐĞ
,ŽƵƐŝŶŐĂŶĚdĞůĞƉŚŽŶĞůůŽǁĂŶĐĞƐ
ŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐƚŽh/&͕DĞĚŝĐĂůĂŶĚWĞŶƐŝŽŶ&ƵŶĚƐ
dŽƚĂů

ϰϯϵ͕Ϯϱϳ
ϰϴϬ͕ϱϳϳ
ϯϰ͕ϱϮϯ
ϳϴ͕ϰϬϬ
ϱϴϵ͕Ϯϵϴ  Ͳ
ϴϰ͕ϬϬϬ
ϴϮ͕ϲϭϱ
ϵϵ͕ϳϬϴ
ϳϮ͕Ϭϳϴ
ϭϬϬ͕Ϯϭϰ
ϲϳ͕ϯϴϰ
ϭ͕ϯϰϳ͕ϬϬϬ
ϳϴϭ͕Ϭϱϰ

ZĞŵƵŶĞƌĂƚŝŽŶŽĨƚŚĞŚŝĞĨ&ŝŶĂŶĐĞKĨĨŝĐĞƌ
ŶŶƵĂůZĞŵƵŶĞƌĂƚŝŽŶ
ĂƌůůŽǁĂŶĐĞ
,ŽƵƐŝŶŐĂŶĚdĞůĞƉŚŽŶĞůůŽǁĂŶĐĞƐ
ŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐƚŽh/&͕DĞĚŝĐĂůĂŶĚWĞŶƐŝŽŶ&ƵŶĚƐ
dŽƚĂů

 ϰϭϵ͕ϭϮϱ
 ϲϬ͕ϬϬϬ
 Ͳ
 ϭϭϳ͕ϯϭϴ
 ϱϵϲ͕ϰϰϯ

WĂŐĞϮϮ

ϭϭϭ͕ϲϮϳ
ϰ͕Ϯϲϰ
ϯϲ͕ϯϬϰ
ϴ͕ϮϱϬ
ϭϲϬ͕ϰϰϱ

^<,/^/t>K>DhE//W>/dz
ϭϯ DW>KzZ>dK^d^;ĐŽŶƚŝŶƵĞĚͿ

ϮϬϬϵ

ϮϬϬϴ

Z

Z

ŽƌƉŽƌĂƚĞ
^ĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ dĞĐŚŶŝĐĂů^ĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ

ϮϬϬϵ
ŶŶƵĂůZĞŵƵŶĞƌĂƚŝŽŶ
ĂƌůůŽǁĂŶĐĞ
,ŽƵƐŝŶŐĂŶĚdĞůĞƉŚŽŶĞůůŽǁĂŶĐĞƐ
ŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐƚŽh/&͕DĞĚŝĐĂůĂŶĚWĞŶƐŝŽŶ&ƵŶĚƐ
dŽƚĂů

 ϯϵϲ͕Ϭϰϱ
 ϵϯ͕ϬϬϬ
 ϭϮ͕ϬϬϬ
 ϭ͕ϱϯϴ
 ϱϬϮ͕ϱϴϯ

 ϯϴϴ͕ϯϮϯ
 ϵϲ͕ϬϬϬ
 ϭϮ͕ϬϬϬ
 ϭϳ͕ϰϳϱ
 ϱϭϯ͕ϳϵϴ

/W
 ϰϬϭ͕ϴϵϯ
 ϵϲ͕ϬϬϬ
 ϭϮ͕ϬϬϬ
 ϭϬ͕ϯϵϴ
 ϱϮϬ͕Ϯϵϭ

ZĞŵƵŶĞƌĂƚŝŽŶŽĨƚŚĞŝƌĞĐƚŽƌƐŽĨŽƌƉŽƌĂƚĞ^ĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ͕
dĞĐŚŶŝĐĂů^ĞƌǀŝĐĞƐĂŶĚĂŶĚ/W
ϮϬϬϴ
ŶŶƵĂůZĞŵƵŶĞƌĂƚŝŽŶ
ŶŶƵĂůŽŶƵƐĞƐ
ĂƌůůŽǁĂŶĐĞ
,ŽƵƐŝŶŐĂŶĚdĞůĞƉŚŽŶĞůůŽǁĂŶĐĞƐ
ŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐƚŽh/&͕DĞĚŝĐĂůĂŶĚWĞŶƐŝŽŶ&ƵŶĚƐ
dŽƚĂů

 ϴϴϯ͕ϯϰϯ
 ϲϭ͕ϰϳϴ
 ϰϴ͕ϳϱϯ
 ϭϲ͕ϳϮϲ
 ϭϯϬ͕ϳϳϱ
 ϭ͕ϭϰϭ͕Ϭϳϱ

ƵĞƚŽĂƌĞǀŝƐŝŽŶŽĨƚŚĞdƌŝĂůĂůĂŶĐĞΖƐĂĐĐŽƵŶƚŶƵŵďĞƌƐĨŽƌϮϬϬϵŝƚǁĂƐŶŽƚƉŽƐƐŝďůĞƚŽƌĞƐƚĂƚĞƐĞƉĞƌĂƚĞůǇƚŚĞ
ƌĞŵƵŶĞƌĂƚŝŽŶŽĨƚŚĞŝƌĞĐƚŽƌƐŽĨŽƌƉŽƌĂƚĞ^ĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ͕dĞĐŚŶŝĐĂů^ĞƌǀŝĐĞƐĂŶĚ/WĚŝƐĐůŽƐĞĚŝŶĂƚŽƚĂůĨŝŐƵƌĞĨŽƌϯϬ
:ƵŶĞϮϬϬϴ&^͘dŚĞƚŽƚĂůĨŝŐƵƌĞĨŽƌϮϬϬϴǁĂƐƌĞƐƚĂƚĞĚƚŽŝŶĐůƵĚĞƚŚĞ/WŵĂŶĂŐĞƌƌĞŵƵŶĞƌĂƚŝŽŶ͘

ϭϰ ZDhEZd/KEK&KhE/>>KZ^
DĂǇŽƌ^ĂůĂƌǇ
DĂǇŽƌůůŽǁĂŶĐĞƐ
DĂǇŽƌĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐƚŽWĞŶƐŝŽŶΘŵĞĚŝĐĂůĂŝĚ
ŽƵŶĐŝůůŽƌƐ^ĂůĂƌŝĞƐ
ŽƵŶĐŝůůŽƌƐĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐƚŽWĞŶƐŝŽŶΘŵĞĚŝĐĂůĂŝĚ
ŽƵŶĐŝůůŽƌƐĂůůŽǁĂŶĐĞƐ
dŽƚĂůŽƵŶĐŝůůŽƌƐ͛ZĞŵƵŶĞƌĂƚŝŽŶ

ϯϱϳ͕Ϯϯϰ
ϯϱϵ͕Ϭϯϱ
ϭϰϴ͕ϰϬϴ
ϭϭϵ͕ϰϳϮ
ϭϳ͕ϮϴϬ  Ͳ
ϭ͕ϮϮϰ͕ϵϯϲ
ϭ͕ϯϮϱ͕ϳϵϳ
ϮϬ͕Ϭϵϵ
ϲϳ͕ϱϯϲ
ϰϬϭ͕ϰϬϳ
ϰϴϰ͕ϭϲϱ
Ϯ͕ϭϲϵ͕ϯϲϰ
Ϯ͕ϯϱϲ͕ϬϬϱ

/ŶͲŬŝŶĚĞŶĞĨŝƚƐ
dŚĞDĂǇŽƌ͕ŝƐĨƵůůͲƚŝŵĞ͘^ŚĞŝƐƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĚǁŝƚŚĂŶŽĨĨŝĐĞĂŶĚƐĞĐƌĞƚĂƌŝĂůƐƵƉƉŽƌƚĂƚƚŚĞĐŽƐƚŽĨƚŚĞŽƵŶĐŝů͘
ŵŽƚŽƌǀĞŚŝĐůĞŝƐĂǀĂŝůĂďůĞĨŽƌƚŚĞĞǆĐůƵƐŝǀĞƵƐĞďǇƚŚĞDĂǇŽƌĨŽƌŽĨĨŝĐŝĂůĚƵƚŝĞƐ͘

WĂŐĞϮϯ

^<,/^/t>K>DhE//W>/dz
ϮϬϬϵ

ϮϬϬϴ

Z

Z

ϭϱ /EdZ^dW/
>ŽŶŐͲƚĞƌŵůŝĂďŝůŝƚŝĞƐ
dŽƚĂů/ŶƚĞƌĞƐƚŽŶǆƚĞƌŶĂůŽƌƌŽǁŝŶŐƐ

ϵϯ͕Ϯϳϰ
ϵϯ͕Ϯϳϰ

ϳϳ͕ϰϵϴ
ϳϳ͕ϰϵϴ

ϭϲ WZKs/^/KE^
WƌŽǀŝƐŝŽŶƐ^ƚĂĨĨŽŶƵƐ
WƌŽǀŝƐŝŽŶƐ^ƚĂĨĨ>ĞĂǀĞ
dŽƚĂůWƌŽǀŝƐŝŽŶƐ

Ϯϲϵ͕ϰϬϵ  Ͳ
Ϯ͕ϳϭϱ͕ϰϱϲ
ϰϳϳ͕ϯϱϰ
Ϯ͕ϵϴϰ͕ϴϲϱ
ϰϳϳ͕ϯϱϰ

dŚĞŵŽǀĞŵĞŶƚŝŶƚŚĞĐƵƌƌĞŶƚƉƌŽǀŝƐŝŽŶƐĂƌĞƌĞĐŽŶĐŝůĞĚĂƐĨŽůůŽǁƐ͗
WƌŽǀŝƐŝŽŶƐ^ƚĂĨĨŽŶƵƐ

ϯϬ:ƵŶĞϮϬϬϴ
ŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐƚŽƉƌŽǀŝƐŝŽŶ
ĚũƵƐƚŵĞŶƚƐŝƚŽ'ZWϭϵ;ƌĞĨĞƌƚŽŶŽƚĞĂďŽǀĞŽŶĐŽŶƚŝŶŐĞŶƚůŝĂďŝůŝƚǇͿ
ϯϬ:ƵŶĞϮϬϬϵ

WƌŽǀŝƐŝŽŶƐ^ƚĂĨĨ
>ĞĂǀĞ

 Ͳ
ϰϳϳ͕ϯϱϰ
Ϯϲϵ͕ϰϬϵ
Ϯ͕ϳϭϱ͕ϰϱϲ
 Ͳ
;ϰϳϳ͕ϯϱϰͿ
Ϯϲϵ͕ϰϬϵ Ϯ͕ϳϭϱ͕ϰϱϲ͘ϬϬ

ϭϳ EKEͲhZZEdWZKs/^/KE^
WƌŽǀŝƐŝŽŶĨŽƌƌĞŚĂďŝůŝƚĂƚŝŽŶŽĨůĂŶĚĨŝůůƐŝƚĞƐ
dŽƚĂůEŽŶͲƵƌƌĞŶƚWƌŽǀŝƐŝŽŶƐ

 ϭ͕ϵϮϬ͕ϬϬϬ  Ͳ
 ϭ͕ϵϮϬ͕ϬϬϬ  Ͳ

dŚĞƉƌŽǀŝƐŝŽŶĨŽƌƌĞŚĂďŝůŝƚĂƚŝŽŶŽĨƚŚĞůĂŶĚĨŝůůƐŝƚĞƐƌĞůĂƚĞƐƚŽƚŚĞůĞŐĂůŽďůŝŐĂƚŝŽŶƚŽƌĞŚĂďŝůŝƚĂƚĞƚŚĞůĂŶĚĨŝůůƐŝƚĞƐŝŶ
ůůŝŽƚĂŶĚĂůĂƵƐĞĚĨŽƌǁĂƐƚĞĚŝƐƉŽƐĂů͘/ƚŚĂƐďĞĞŶĐĂůĐƵůĂƚĞĚĂƐƚŚĞƉƌĞƐĞŶƚǀĂůƵĞŽĨƚŚĞĨƵƚƵƌĞŽďůŝŐĂƚŝŽŶ͘

WĂŐĞϮϰ

^<,/^/t>K>DhE//W>/dz
ϮϬϬϵ

ϮϬϬϴ

Z

Z

ϭϴ Zd/ZDEdE&/d/E&KZDd/KE
ĞĨŝŶĞĚďĞŶĞĨŝƚDĞĚŝĐĂůŝĚƉůĂŶ
dŽƚĂů
>ĞƐƐ͗ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚƉŽƌƚŝŽŶŽĨĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐƉĂǇĂďůĞǁŝƚŚŝŶϭϮ
ŵŽŶƚŚƐ
>ŽŶŐͲƚĞƌŵƉŽƌƚŝŽŶ

ϭ͕ϴϬϵ͕Ϯϲϭ Ͳ
ϭ͕ϴϬϵ͕Ϯϲϭ Ͳ
;ϵϱ͕ϰϰϭͿ Ͳ
ϭ͕ϳϭϯ͕ϴϮϬ Ͳ

ůůŽƵŶĐŝůůŽƌƐĂŶĚĞŵƉůŽǇĞĞƐďĞůŽŶŐƚŽϲĚĞĨŝŶĞĚďĞŶĞĨŝƚƌĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚĨƵŶĚƐĂĚŵŝŶŝƐƚĞƌĞĚďǇƚŚĞWƌŽǀŝŶĐŝĂů
WĞŶƐŝŽŶ&ƵŶĚ͘dŚĞƐĞĨƵŶĚƐĂƌĞƐƵďũĞĐƚƚŽĂƚƌŝĞŶŶŝĂůĂĐƚƵĂƌŝĂůǀĂůƵĂƚŝŽŶ͘dŚĞůĂƐƚǀĂůƵĂƚŝŽŶǁĂƐƉĞƌĨŽƌŵĞĚŝŶ
ϮϬϬϵ͘dŚĞƐĞǀĂůƵĂƚŝŽŶƐŝŶĚŝĐĂƚĞƚŚĂƚƚŚĞĨƵŶĚƐĂƌĞŝŶĂƐŽƵŶĚĨŝŶĂŶĐŝĂůƉŽƐŝƚŝŽŶ͘

WĂŐĞϮϱ

^<,/^/t>K>DhE//W>/dz
ϮϬϬϵ

ϮϬϬϴ

Z

Z

ϭϵ KZZd/KEK&ZZKZ
ĚũƵƐƚŵĞŶƚƐĞĨĨĞĐƚĞĚƚŽĐĐƵŵƵůĂƚĞĚ^ƵƌƉůƵƐǁĞƌĞĂƐ
ĨŽůůŽǁƐ͗Ͳ
sd͗
EĞƚďĂůĂŶĐĞŽĨsdĂĚũƵƐƚĞĚĨŽƌƵŶŬŶŽǁŶŽƉĞŶŝŶŐ
ďĂůĂŶĐĞĨƌŽŵϮϬϬϴ͘

;ϭ͕ϰϯϮ͕ϱϲϬͿ

>ŽŶŐͲƚĞƌŵůŝĂďŝůŝƚŝĞƐ͗
ĚũƵƐƚŵĞŶƚŽĨƉƌŝŽƌǇĞĂƌďĂůĂŶĐĞŽĨtĞƐďĂŶŬ>ŽĂŶƐ͘
WW͗
ĚũƵƐƚŵĞŶƚƐ ƚŽ ƚŚĞ ĐŽƐƚ ƉƌŝĐĞ ĂŶĚ ĂĐĐƵŵƵůĂƚĞĚ
ĚĞƉƌĞĐŝĂƚŝŽŶ ŝŶ ŽƌĚĞƌ ƚŽ ƌĞĨůĞĐƚ ƚŚĞ &Z ƵƉĚĂƚĞĚ ǁŝƚŚ Ă
ƉŚǇƐŝĐĂůǀĞƌŝĨŝĐĂƚŝŽŶĂƐĂƚϯϬ:ƵŶĞϮϬϬϵ
ĚũƵƐƚŵĞŶƚŽĨĚĞƉƌĞĐŝĂƚŝŽŶĨŽƌĐƵƌƌĞŶƚǇĞĂƌ
ĚũƵƐƚŵĞŶƚĂŐĂŝŶƐƚƚĂŬĞͲŽŶďĂůĂŶĐĞƐ

ϲ͕ϯϲϬ

;ϭϱ͕ϯϴϬ͕ϭϰϵͿ
;ϰ͕ϳϭϱ͕ϭϬϯͿ
ϭ͕ϳϬϬ͕ϳϯϭ

ĐĐŽƵŶƚƐƌĞĐĞŝǀĂďůĞ͗
ĚũƵƐƚŵĞŶƚŽĨƉƌŝŽƌǇĞĂƌďĂůĂŶĐĞŽĨĂĐĐŽƵŶƚƐƌĞĐĞŝǀĂďůĞ
ĨŽƌ͗
ͲDĞĚŝĐĂů
ͲZĞĨƵƐĞ
ĚũƵƐƚŵĞŶƚŽĨƉƌŽǀŝƐŝŽŶĨŽƌĚŽƵďƚĨƵůĚĞďƚƐ

;ϭϴ͕ϳϱϱͿ
Ϯ͕ϵϬϬ͕ϰϭϭ
;Ϯ͕ϱϳϭ͕ϯϬϮͿ

ĂƐŚΘĐĂƐŚĞƋƵŝǀĂůĞŶƚƐ͗
ĚũƵƐƚŵĞŶƚĨŽƌƚŚĞĨŽůůŽǁŝŶŐŝŶĐŽƌƌĞĐƚďĂŶŬĂĐĐŽƵŶƚ
ďĂůĂŶĐĞƐ͗
ͲĚũƵƐƚŵĞŶƚĨŽƌƵŶŬŶŽǁŶŽƌƉƌŝŽƌǇĞĂƌƐƚĂůĞĐŚĞƋƵĞƐ
ͲĚũƵƐƚŵĞŶƚŽĨŽƉĞŶŝŶŐďĂůĂŶĐĞ
ͲĚũƵƐƚŵĞŶƚŽĨƵŶŝĚĞŶƚŝĨŝĞĚĚĞƉŽƐŝƚƐ
ĐĐŽƵŶƚƐWĂǇĂďůĞ͗
ĚũƵƐƚŵĞŶƚƚŽƉƌŝŽƌǇĞĂƌĐƌĞĚŝƚŽƌƐďĂůĂŶĐĞ
ĚũƵƐƚŵĞŶƚŽĨƵŶŬŶŽǁŶŽŶƐƵŵĞƌĞƉŽƐŝƚƐĨŽƌƚŚĞ
dŽǁŶ,ĂůůΘĂŵ

WĂŐĞϮϲ

;ϯϴϮ͕ϭϴϵͿ
Ϯϰϴ͕ϬϮϰ
;ϭϴϱ͕ϵϰϴͿ

;ϭ͕ϵϮϯ͕ϭϮϯͿ
;ϱϮ͕ϴϱϭͿ

^<,/^/t>K>DhE//W>/dz
ϮϬϬϵ

ϮϬϬϴ

Z

Z

ϭϵ KZZd/KEK&ZZKZ;ĐŽŶƚŝŶƵĞĚͿ
ŚƌŝƐ,ĂŶŝŐĞŶĐǇĐĐŽƵŶƚ͗
WƌŝŽƌǇĞĂƌtĂƚĞƌΘ^ĂŶŝƚĂƚŝŽŶƉƌŽĨŝƚĂĚũƵƐƚĞĚĂŐĂŝŶƐƚ
ĂƉƉƌŽƉƌŝĂƚŝŽŶĂĐĐŽƵŶƚ
/ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚƐ͗
ĚũƵƐƚŵĞŶƚŽĨŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚďĂůĂŶĐĞƐĨŽƌƵŶŬŶŽǁŶ
ĚŝĨĨĞƌĞŶĐĞƐ

;ϰ͕ϴϮϱ͕ϭϱϳͿ

ϰϰ͕ϱϬϳ

KƚŚĞƌ͗
ĚũƵƐƚŵĞŶƚĨŽƌƵŶŬŶŽǁŶƉƌŝŽƌǇĞĂƌhŶŝĚĞŶƚŝĨŝĞĚ
ĞƉŽƐŝƚƐ
ĚũƵƐƚŵĞŶƚĨŽƌƵŶŬŶŽǁŶWĞŶĂůƚŝĞƐΘ/ŶƚĞƌĞƐƚƐŚŽǁŶĂƐ
ĐĐŽƵŶƚƐZĞĐĞŝǀĂďůĞŝŶƚŚĞƉƌŝŽƌǇĞĂƌ
ĚũƵƐƚŵĞŶƚĨŽƌƵŶŬŶŽǁŶƉƌŝŽƌǇĞĂƌĞŶƚƌŝĞƐ
ĚũƵƐƚŵĞŶƚŽĨ^ĂůĂƌŝĞƐŽŶƚƌŽů
ĚũƵƐƚŵĞŶƚŽĨƉƌŝŽƌǇĞĂƌƉƌŽǀŝƐŝŽŶĨŽƌůĞĂǀĞ

EĞƚĞĨĨĞĐƚŽŶƐƵƌƉůƵƐͬ;ĚĞĨŝĐŝƚͿĨŽƌƚŚĞǇĞĂƌ;ĚĞĐƌĞĂƐĞͿ

ϵϮ͕ϵϳϰ
ϭϳϱ͕ϯϲϯ
ϭϱ͕ϴϵϮ
;ϰϯϯ͕ϮϯϯͿ
;ϰϳϳ͕ϯϱϰͿ

;Ϯϳ͕Ϯϭϯ͕ϰϲϮͿ

dŚĞĐŽŵƉĂƌĂƚŝǀĞĂŵŽƵŶƚƐŚĂǀĞďĞĞŶƌĞƐƚĂƚĞĚĂƐ

tĂƚĞƌΘ^ĂŶŝƚĂƚŝŽŶƉƌŽĨŝƚƉƌŝŽƌƚŽϮϬϬϳĂĚũƵƐƚĞĚĂŐĂŝŶƐƚ
ĂƉƉƌŽƉƌŝĂƚŝŽŶĂĐĐŽƵŶƚŽƉĞŶŝŶŐďĂůĂŶĐĞĨŽƌϮϬϬϳ
tĂƚĞƌΘ^ĂŶŝƚĂƚŝŽŶƉƌŽĨŝƚĨŽƌϮϬϬϴĂĚũƵƐƚĞĚĂŐĂŝŶƐƚ
ĂƉƉƌŽƉƌŝĂƚŝŽŶĂĐĐŽƵŶƚŽƉĞŶŝŶŐďĂůĂŶĐĞĨŽƌϮϬϬϴ

Ϯ͕ϱϳϳ͕ϱϴϬ
Ϯ͕ϵϴϰ͕ϭϬϳ
ϱ͕ϱϲϭ͕ϲϴϳ

WĂŐĞϮϳ

^<,/^/t>K>DhE//W>/dz
ϮϬ ^,'EZdzKWZd/KE^
^ƵƌƉůƵƐͬ;ĚĞĨŝĐŝƚͿĨŽƌƚŚĞǇĞĂƌ
ĚũƵƐƚŵĞŶƚĨŽƌ͗Ͳ
ĞƉƌĞĐŝĂƚŝŽŶĂŶĚĂŵŽƌƚŝƐĂƚŝŽŶ
ŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƚŽƉƌŽǀŝƐŝŽŶͲŶŽŶͲĐƵƌƌĞŶƚ
ŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƚŽƉƌŽǀŝƐŝŽŶͲĐƵƌƌĞŶƚ
ŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƚŽĞĨŝŶĞĚDĞĚŝĐĂůWůĂŶ
&ŝŶĂŶĐĞĐŽƐƚƐ
/ŶƚĞƌĞƐƚĞĂƌŶĞĚ
'ĂŝŶŽŶĚŝƐƉŽƐĂůŽĨWW

;ϱ͕ϲϱϵ͕ϭϱϰͿ

Ϯ͕ϴϵϳ͕ϱϳϯ

ϰ͕ϳϭϱ͕ϭϬϮ
Ϯ͕Ϭϭϳ͕ϵϲϰ
 ϭ͕ϵϮϬ͕ϬϬϬ  Ͳ
Ϯ͕ϱϬϳ͕ϱϭϭ  Ͳ
ϭ͕ϴϬϵ͕Ϯϲϭ  Ͳ
ϵϯ͕Ϯϳϰ
ϳϳ͕ϰϵϴ
;ϭ͕ϴϮϲ͕ϭϲϭͿ
;ϲϮϴ͕ϬϭϬͿ
Ͳ
;Ϯϯϭ͕ϴϴϲͿ

KƉĞƌĂƚŝŶŐƐƵƌƉůƵƐďĞĨŽƌĞǁŽƌŬŝŶŐĐĂƉŝƚĂůĐŚĂŶŐĞƐ͗
;/ŶĐƌĞĂƐĞͿͬĚĞĐƌĞĂƐĞŝŶƚƌĂĚĞƌĞĐĞŝǀĂďůĞƐ
;/ŶĐƌĞĂƐĞͿͬĚĞĐƌĞĂƐĞŝŶŽƚŚĞƌƌĞĐĞŝǀĂďůĞƐ
;ĞĐƌĞĂƐĞͿͬŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞŝŶĐŽŶĚŝƚŝŽŶĂůŐƌĂŶƚƐĂŶĚƌĞĐĞŝƉƚƐ
/ŶĐƌĞĂƐĞŝŶsdƌĞĐĞŝǀĂďůĞƐ
/ŶĐƌĞĂƐĞͬ;ĚĞĐƌĞĂƐĞͿŝŶƚƌĂĚĞƉĂǇĂďůĞƐ
/ŶĐƌĞĂƐĞͬ;ĚĞĐƌĞĂƐĞͿŝŶĐŽŶƐƵŵĞƌĚĞƉŽƐŝƚƐ

ϯ͕ϱϱϵ͕ϴϯϯ
ϰ͕ϭϯϯ͕ϭϯϴ
;ϯ͕ϰϴϮ͕ϲϲϱͿ
ϲ͕ϯϱϲ͕Ϭϴϱ
ϯϱϯ͕ϬϳϬ
ϯϭϵ͕ϵϵϲ
Ϯ͕ϵϴϬ͕ϲϲϳ
ϲϴϬ͕ϴϮϵ
;Ϯ͕ϰϮϮ͕ϭϲϬͿ
ϲ͕Ϭϴϳ͕ϯϵϯ
;ϯ͕ϳϴϱ͕ϱϰϰͿ
ϵϵϰ͕ϰϭϴ
Ϯϲ͕ϵϬϯ  Ͳ

ĂƐŚŐĞŶĞƌĂƚĞĚďǇͬ;ƵƚŝůŝƐĞĚŝŶͿŽƉĞƌĂƚŝŽŶƐ

;Ϯ͕ϳϲϵ͕ϴϵϲͿ

ϭϴ͕ϱϳϭ͕ϴϱϵ

ϭϴ͕ϯϯϲ͕ϭϯϳ
Ͳ
ϭϴ͕ϯϯϲ͕ϭϯϳ

ϭϳ͕ϯϭϮ͕ϵϮϰ
;ϭϱ͕ϳϵϰͿ
ϭϳ͕Ϯϵϳ͕ϭϯϬ

ϳϱϵ͕ϯϱϯ
ϭϳ͕ϱϳϲ͕ϳϴϰ
ϭϴ͕ϯϯϲ͕ϭϯϳ

ϲϯϰ͕ϱϲϳ
ϭϲ͕ϲϳϴ͕ϯϱϰ
ϭϳ͕ϯϭϮ͕ϵϮϭ

Ϯϭ ^,E^,Yh/s>Ed^
ĂƐŚĂŶĚĐĂƐŚĞƋƵŝǀĂůĞŶƚƐŝŶĐůƵĚĞĚŝŶƚŚĞĐĂƐŚĨůŽǁ
ƐƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚĐŽŵƉƌŝƐĞƚŚĞĨŽůůŽǁŝŶŐ͗
ĂŶŬďĂůĂŶĐĞƐĂŶĚĐĂƐŚ
ĂŶŬŽǀĞƌĚƌĂĨƚƐ
dŽƚĂůĐĂƐŚĂŶĚĐĂƐŚĞƋƵŝǀĂůĞŶƚƐ
dŚĞ ďĂŶŬ ĂŶĚ ĐĂƐŚ ďĂůĂŶĐĞ ϮϬϬϵ ǁĂƐ ĂĚũƵƐƚĞĚ ďǇ
ZϭϯϰΖϭϲϱ͘;ƐĞĞŶŽƚĞϭϵŽƌƌĞĐƚŝŽŶŽĨƌƌŽƌ͘Ϳ

ĂƐŚĂŶĚĐĂƐŚĞƋƵŝǀĂůĞŶƚƐĐŽŶƐŝƐƚƐŽĨƚŚĞĨŽůůŽǁŝŶŐ͗
ĂƐŚĂƚďĂŶŬ
ĂůůĚĞƉŽƐŝƚƐ

WĂŐĞϮϴ

^<,/^/t>K>DhE//W>/dz
ϮϬϬϵ

ϮϬϬϴ

Z

Z

dŚĞDƵŶŝĐŝƉĂůŝƚǇŚĂƐƚŚĞĨŽůůŽǁŝŶŐďĂŶŬĂĐĐŽƵŶƚƐ͗Ͳ
ƵƌƌĞŶƚĐĐŽƵŶƚ;WƌŝŵĂƌǇĂŶŬĐĐŽƵŶƚͿ
^ĂŬŚŝƐŝǌǁĞ&EĂŶŬĐĐŽƵŶƚʹϲϮϬϳϲϱϮϯϭϯϱ
ĂƐŚďŽŽŬďĂůĂŶĐĞĂƚďĞŐŝŶŶŝŶŐŽĨǇĞĂƌ
ĂƐŚďŽŽŬďĂůĂŶĐĞĂƚĞŶĚŽĨǇĞĂƌ

ϲϯϰ͕ϱϲϳ
ϳϱϵ͕ϯϱϯ

ϭϴϳ͕ϲϳϮ
ϲϯϰ͕ϱϲϳ

ĂŶŬƐƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚďĂůĂŶĐĞĂƚďĞŐŝŶŶŝŶŐŽĨǇĞĂƌ
ĂŶŬƐƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚďĂůĂŶĐĞĂƚĞŶĚŽĨǇĞĂƌ

Ϯϭϭ͕ϳϲϰ
ϮϬϰ͕ϴϵϭ

ϳϳ͕ϱϭϲ
Ϯϭϭ͕ϳϲϰ

ĂƐŚďŽŽŬďĂůĂŶĐĞĂƚďĞŐŝŶŶŝŶŐŽĨǇĞĂƌ
ĂƐŚďŽŽŬďĂůĂŶĐĞĂƚĞŶĚŽĨǇĞĂƌ

ϭϲ͕ϲϳϴ͕ϯϱϰ
ϭϳ͕ϱϳϲ͕ϳϴϰ

ϭ͕ϳϱϰ͕ϵϯϴ
ϭϲ͕ϲϳϴ͕ϯϱϰ

ĂŶŬƐƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚďĂůĂŶĐĞĂƚďĞŐŝŶŶŝŶŐŽĨǇĞĂƌ
ĂŶŬƐƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚďĂůĂŶĐĞĂƚĞŶĚŽĨǇĞĂƌ

ϭϲ͕ϲϳϴ͕ϯϱϰ
ϭϳ͕ϱϳϲ͕ϳϴϰ

ϭ͕ϳϱϰ͕ϵϯϴ
ϭϲ͕ϲϳϴ͕ϯϱϰ

^ĂǀŝŶŐƐĐĐŽƵŶƚͬĂůůĐĐŽƵŶƚĞƉŽƐŝƚƐ;KƚŚĞƌ
ĐĐŽƵŶƚͿ

hd/>/^d/KEK&>KE'ͲdZD>//>/d/^
ϮϮ ZKE/>/d/KE
>ŽŶŐͲƚĞƌŵůŝĂďŝůŝƚŝĞƐ;ƐĞĞEŽƚĞϮͿ

ϲϳϴ͕ϯϬϲ ϴϭϱ͕ϲϴϳ

hƐĞĚƚŽĨŝŶĂŶĐĞƉƌŽƉĞƌƚǇ͕ƉůĂŶƚĂŶĚĞƋƵŝƉŵĞŶƚʹĂƚĐŽƐƚ
^ƵďͲƚŽƚĂů
ĂƐŚƐĞƚĂƐŝĚĞĨŽƌƚŚĞƌĞƉĂǇŵĞŶƚŽĨůŽŶŐͲƚĞƌŵůŝĂďŝůŝƚŝĞƐ
ĂƐŚŝŶǀĞƐƚĞĚĨŽƌƌĞƉĂǇŵĞŶƚŽĨůŽŶŐͲƚĞƌŵůŝĂďŝůŝƚŝĞƐ

;ϲϳϴ͕ϯϬϲͿ
Ͳ
Ͳ
Ͳ

;ϴϭϱ͕ϲϴϳͿ
Ͳ
Ͳ
Ͳ

DƵŶŝĐŝƉĂůŝƚǇŚĂƐŶŽƚƐĞƚĂƐŝĚĞĂŶǇĐĂƐŚĂƐƚŚĞƐĞůŽĂŶƐĂƌĞŽůĚ͘ZĞƉĂǇŵĞŶƚƐĂƌĞĚŽŶĞŽƵƚŽĨŽǁŶƌĞǀĞŶƵĞ͘

WĂŐĞϮϵ

^<,/^/t>K>DhE//W>/dz
ϮϬϬϵ

ϮϬϬϴ

Z

Z

Ͳ
ϭϯ͕ϰϯϱ͕Ϭϭϳ
Ͳ
Ͳ
ϭϯ͕ϰϯϱ͕Ϭϭϳ

Ͳ
Ͳ
Ͳ
Ͳ
Ͳ

hEhd,KZ/^͕/ZZ'h>Z͕&Zh/d>^^E
Ϯϯ t^d&h>yWE/dhZ/^>>Kt
Ϯϯ͘ϭhŶĂƵƚŚŽƌŝƐĞĚĞǆƉĞŶĚŝƚƵƌĞ
ZĞĐŽŶĐŝůŝĂƚŝŽŶŽĨƵŶĂƵƚŚŽƌŝƐĞĚĞǆƉĞŶĚŝƚƵƌĞ͗
KƉĞŶŝŶŐďĂůĂŶĐĞ
hŶĂƵƚŚŽƌŝƐĞĚĞǆƉĞŶĚŝƚƵƌĞ͗ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚǇĞĂƌ
ƉƉƌŽǀĞĚďǇŽƵŶĐŝůŽƌĐŽŶĚŽŶĞĚ
dƌĂŶƐĨĞƌƚŽƌĞĐĞŝǀĂďůĞƐĨŽƌƌĞĐŽǀĞƌǇ
hŶĂƵƚŚŽƌŝƐĞĚĞǆƉĞŶĚŝƚƵƌĞĂǁĂŝƚŝŶŐĂƵƚŚŽƌŝƐĂƚŝŽŶ

hŶĂƵƚŚŽƌŝƐĞĚĞǆƉĞŶĚŝƚƵƌĞǁĂƐĚƵĞƚŽƚŚĞŽǀĞƌƐƉĞŶĚŝŶŐŽŶƚŚĞďƵĚŐĞƚŝŶƚŚĞĨŽůůŽǁŝŶŐĚĞǀŝƐŝŽŶƐ͗
Ϯ͕ϭϵϯ͕ϰϱϯ
ϮϮ͕Ϯϳϲ
ϯϳ͕ϰϴϵ
ϱϵϳ͕ϳϳϮ
ϭ͕ϯϮϯ͕ϭϳϳ
ϲ͕ϲϱϭ͕ϵϱϬ
Ϯ͕ϲϬϴ͕ϵϬϬ
ϭϯ͕ϰϯϱ͕Ϭϭϳ

Executive and Council
Finance and Administration
Community and Social Services
Public Safety
Housing
Road Transport
Electricity

Ϯϯ͘Ϯ&ƌƵŝƚůĞƐƐĂŶĚǁĂƐƚĞĨƵůĞǆƉĞŶĚŝƚƵƌĞ
ZĞĐŽŶĐŝůŝĂƚŝŽŶŽĨĨƌƵŝƚůĞƐƐĂŶĚǁĂƐƚĞĨƵůĞǆƉĞŶĚŝƚƵƌĞ
KƉĞŶŝŶŐďĂůĂŶĐĞ
&ƌƵŝƚůĞƐƐĂŶĚǁĂƐƚĞĨƵůĞǆƉĞŶĚŝƚƵƌĞĐƵƌƌĞŶƚǇĞĂƌ
ŽŶĚŽŶĞĚŽƌǁƌŝƚƚĞŶŽĨĨďǇŽƵŶĐŝů
dŽďĞƌĞĐŽǀĞƌĞĚʹĐŽŶƚŝŶŐĞŶƚĂƐƐĞƚ
&ƌƵŝƚůĞƐƐĂŶĚǁĂƐƚĞĨƵůĞǆƉĞŶĚŝƚƵƌĞĂǁĂŝƚŝŶŐ
ĐŽŶĚŽŶĞŵĞŶƚ

Ͳ
Ͳ
Ͳ
Ͳ

Ͳ
ϭϳϱ͕ϯϲϯ
Ͳ
Ͳ

Ͳ Ͳ

/ŶĐŝĚĞŶƚ
/ŶƚĞƌĞƐƚĂŶĚƉĞŶĂůƚŝĞƐƌĂŝƐĞĚďǇ^Z^ŝŶϮϬϬϴŽŶůĂƚĞƉĂǇŵĞŶƚƐŽĨƐƵďŵŝƐƐŝŽŶƐ͘dŚĞƌĞǁĂƐŶŽĨƌƵŝƚůĞƐƐĂŶĚǁĂƐƚĞĨƵů
ĞǆƉĞŶĚŝƚƵƌĞĚƵƌŝŶŐƚŚĞĐƵƌƌĞŶƚǇĞĂƌ͘
Ϯϯ͘ϯ/ƌƌĞŐƵůĂƌĞǆƉĞŶĚŝƚƵƌĞ
/ŶĐŝĚĞŶƚ
DƵŶŝĐŝƉĂůŝƚǇŚĂƐŶŽůŝƚŝŐĂƚŝŽŶĂŐĂŝŶƐƚŝƚƐĞŵƉůŽǇĞĞƐ͘dŚĞƌĞǁĂƐĂůƐŽŶŽŝƌĞĞŐƵůĂƌĞǆƉĞŶĚŝƚƵƌĞĚƵƌŝŶŐƚŚĞĐƵƌƌĞŶƚ
ǇĞĂƌ͘

WĂŐĞϯϬ

^<,/^/t>K>DhE//W>/dz

/d/KE>/^>K^hZ^/EdZD^K&DhE//W>
Ϯϰ &/EEDE'DEdd

ϮϬϬϵ

ϮϬϬϴ

Z

Z

Ϯϰ͘ϭŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐƚŽŽƌŐĂŶŝǌĞĚůŽĐĂůŐŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚ
KƉĞŶŝŶŐďĂůĂŶĐĞ
ŽƵŶĐŝůƐƵďƐĐƌŝƉƚŝŽŶƐ
ŵŽƵŶƚƉĂŝĚͲĐƵƌƌĞŶƚǇĞĂƌ
ĂůĂŶĐĞƵŶƉĂŝĚ;ŝŶĐůƵĚĞĚŝŶĐƌĞĚŝƚŽƌƐͿ

ϭϯϯ͕ϲϬϭ
ϱϵ͕ϳϯϳ
;ϭϯϯ͕ϲϬϭͿ
;ϱϵ͕ϳϯϳͿ
Ͳ Ͳ

Ϯϰ͘ϮƵĚŝƚĨĞĞƐ
KƉĞŶŝŶŐďĂůĂŶĐĞ
ƵƌƌĞŶƚǇĞĂƌĂƵĚŝƚĨĞĞ
ŵŽƵŶƚƉĂŝĚͲĐƵƌƌĞŶƚǇĞĂƌ
ŵŽƵŶƚƉĂŝĚͲƉƌĞǀŝŽƵƐǇĞĂƌƐ
ĂůĂŶĐĞƵŶƉĂŝĚ;ŝŶĐůƵĚĞĚŝŶĐƌĞĚŝƚŽƌƐͿ

ϭ͕ϭϴϳ͕ϳϱϲ Ͳ
ϴϬϳ͕ϮϲϬ
ϭ͕ϳϰϭ͕ϴϬϳ
;ϭ͕ϵϵϱ͕ϬϭϲͿ
;ϱϱϰ͕ϬϱϭͿ
 Ͳ
Ͳ
Ͳ
ϭ͕ϭϴϳ͕ϳϱϲ

Ϯϰ͘ϯsd
sdŝŶƉƵƚƐƌĞĐĞŝǀĂďůĞƐĂŶĚsdŽƵƚƉƵƚƐƌĞĐĞŝǀĂďůĞƐĂƌĞƐŚŽǁŶŝŶŶŽƚĞϲΘϳ͘ůůsdƌĞƚƵƌŶƐŚĂǀĞďĞĞŶƐƵďŵŝƚƚĞĚ
ďǇƚŚĞĚƵĞĚĂƚĞƚŚƌŽƵŐŚŽƵƚƚŚĞǇĞĂƌ͘

WĂŐĞϯϭ

^<,/^/t>K>DhE//W>/dz
ϮϬϬϵ

ϮϬϬϴ

Z

Z

Ϯϰ͘ϰWzĂŶĚh/&
KƉĞŶŝŶŐďĂůĂŶĐĞ
ƵƌƌĞŶƚǇĞĂƌƉĂǇƌŽůůĚĞĚƵĐƚŝŽŶƐ
ŵŽƵŶƚƉĂŝĚͲĐƵƌƌĞŶƚǇĞĂƌ
ĂůĂŶĐĞƵŶƉĂŝĚ;ŝŶĐůƵĚĞĚŝŶĐƌĞĚŝƚŽƌƐͿ

ϭ͕ϬϬϲ͕Ϯϳϴ Ͳ
ϭ͕ϳϰϵ͕ϯϬϵ
ϭ͕ϳϵϴ͕ϰϯϮ
;Ϯ͕ϳϱϱ͕ϱϴϳͿ
;ϳϵϮ͕ϭϱϰͿ
Ͳ
ϭ͕ϬϬϲ͕Ϯϳϴ

dŚĞďĂůĂŶĐĞƌĞƉƌĞƐĞŶƚƐWzĂŶĚh/&ĚĞĚƵĐƚĞĚĨƌŽŵ
Ϯϰ͘ϱWĞŶƐŝŽŶĂŶĚDĞĚŝĐĂůŝĚĞĚƵĐƚŝŽŶƐ
KƉĞŶŝŶŐďĂůĂŶĐĞ
ƵƌƌĞŶƚǇĞĂƌƉĂǇƌŽůůĚĞĚƵĐƚŝŽŶƐĂŶĚŽƵŶĐŝů
ŵŽƵŶƚƉĂŝĚͲĐƵƌƌĞŶƚǇĞĂƌ
ĂůĂŶĐĞƵŶƉĂŝĚ;ŝŶĐůƵĚĞĚŝŶĐƌĞĚŝƚŽƌƐͿ

Ͳ
ϭ͕ϭϰϮ͕ϵϮϬ͘ϬϬ
;ϭ͕ϭϰϮ͕ϵϮϬ͘ϬϬͿ
Ͳ

Ͳ
Ϯ͕ϯϲϰ͕ϴϴϱ
;Ϯ͕ϯϲϰ͕ϴϴϱͿ
Ͳ

Ϯϰ͘ϲEŽŶͲŽŵƉůŝĂŶĐĞǁŝƚŚŚĂƉƚĞƌϭϭŽĨƚŚĞDƵŶŝĐŝƉĂů
&ŝŶĂŶĐĞDĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚĐƚ
/ŶϮϬϬϴ͕ƚŚĞDƵŶŝĐŝƉĂůŝƚǇŚĂĚŶŽƚǇĞƚĚĞǀĞůŽƉĞĚĂƐƵƉƉůǇĐŚĂŝŶŵĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚƉŽůŝĐǇ͕ŚŽǁĞǀĞƌĂƉŽůŝĐǇŚĂƐďĞĞŶ
ĚĞǀĞůŽƉĞĚĂŶĚĂƉƉƌŽǀĞĚďǇĐŽƵŶĐŝůĨŽƌƚŚĞϮϬϬϵĨŝŶĂŶĐŝĂůǇĞĂƌŝŶĐŽŵƉůŝĂŶĐĞǁŝƚŚƚŚĞDƵŶŝĐŝƉĂů&ŝŶĂŶĐĞ
DĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚĐƚ͘
Ϯϱ W/d>KDD/dDEd^
ŽŵŵŝƚŵĞŶƚƐŝŶƌĞƐƉĞĐƚŽĨĐĂƉŝƚĂůĞǆƉĞŶĚŝƚƵƌĞ͗
ͲƉƉƌŽǀĞĚĂŶĚĐŽŶƚƌĂĐƚĞĚĨŽƌ
/ŶĨƌĂƐƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĞ
KƚŚĞƌ
dŽƚĂů

Ͳ
ϵ͕ϲϬϬ͕ϬϬϬ
Ͳ Ͳ
Ͳ
ϵ͕ϲϬϬ͕ϬϬϬ

dŚŝƐĞǆƉĞŶĚŝƚƵƌĞǁŝůůďĞĨŝŶĂŶĐĞĚĨƌŽŵ͗
Ͳ'ŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚ'ƌĂŶƚƐ

Ͳ

ϵ͕ϲϬϬ͕ϬϬϬ

Ϯϲ /EͲ</EKEd/KE^E^^/^dE
dŚĞDƵŶŝĐŝƉĂůŝƚǇŶŽƚƌĞĐĞŝǀĞĚĂŶǇŝŶͲŬŝŶĚĚŽŶĂƚŝŽŶƐĂŶĚ
ĂƐƐŝƐƚĂŶĐĞ͘
Ϯϳ KDWZ/^KEt/d,d,h'd
dŚĞĐŽŵƉĂƌŝƐŽŶŽĨƚŚĞDƵŶŝĐŝƉĂůŝƚǇ͛ƐĂĐƚƵĂůĨŝŶĂŶĐŝĂůƉĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞǁŝƚŚƚŚĂƚďƵĚŐĞƚĞĚŝƐƐĞƚŽƵƚŝŶŶŶĞǆƵƌĞ;ϭͿ͘

WĂŐĞϯϮ

Motor vehicles

Total

Intangible Assets
Computer software

Total PPE

Plant & machinery

Office equipment

45,733,417

89,520

-

89,520

45,576,800
156,617
156,617

-

4,559,298

-

-

8,136

2,401,366

30,948
-

93,849

58,572

-

89,520

-

764,414

Emergency equipment

Furniture and fittings

721,259

Computer equipment

4,710,955

13,259,277

Abbatoirs

Other assets

-

2,715,000
2,000,000

Libraries

Sport facilities

-

1,626,460

Landfill sites

-

7,550,000

Community centres

-

-

340,000

50,000

Cemetaries

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Cinics and Hospitals

20,000
345,000

Care centres

14,646,460

Caravan parks

Community assets

-

115,500

Security

Water

3,020,217

Roads

-

6,283,261

Sewerage

9,418,978

Infrastructure

961,389

Electricity

Municipal Buildings

7,290,696

Land

Additions

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Underconstruction

Property, Plant and Equipment

8,252,085

Balance

Opening

Land and buildings

Category
Disposals

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

WĂŐĞϯϯ

45,822,937

156,617
156,617

45,666,320

4,559,298

8,136

2,401,366

764,414

124,797

779,831

4,710,955

13,348,797

2,000,000

2,715,000

1,626,460

7,550,000

340,000

50,000

345,000

20,000

14,646,460

-

-

115,500

3,020,217

6,283,261

9,418,978

961,389

7,290,696

8,252,085

Balance

Closing

14,456,237

83,001
83,001

14,373,236

3,355,621

3,782

954,821

415,433

70,929

502,701

422,023

5,725,310

641,667

266,792

-

5,696,250

100,000

8,750

82,875

4,667

6,801,001

-

-

115,500

375,465

1,213,935

1,704,900

142,025

-

142,025

Opening
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4,878,656

-

4,878,656

2,371,390

-

1,486,572

580,413

24,760

415,521

-

4,878,656

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

19,334,893

83,001
83,001

19,251,892

5,727,011

3,782

2,441,393

995,846

95,689

918,222

422,023

10,603,966

641,667

266,792

-

5,696,250

100,000

8,750

82,875

4,667

6,801,001

-

-

115,500

375,465

1,213,935

1,704,900

142,025

-

142,025

Balance

Closing

25,074,095

(73,616)
(73,616)

25,147,711

2,021,664

(4,354)

1,177,455

498,355

25,726

466,505

(4,288,932)

(103,581)

(1,358,333)

(2,448,208)

2,348,715

(1,853,750)

(240,000)

(41,250)

(262,125)

(15,333)

(3,870,284)

-

-

-

37,272,885

(44,765)

37,228,120

(817,606)

(7,288,938)

(8,106,544)

Movements

Total Other

Accumulated Depreciation
Depreciation

1,758

1,758

3,516

51,562,139

-

51,562,139

853,951

-

1,137,428

266,923

54,834

328,114

-

2,641,250

-

-

3,975,175

-

-

-

-

-

3,975,175

-

-

-

39,917,637

5,024,561

44,942,198

Value

Carrying

APPENDIX A

Total

Executive & Council
Finance & Admin
Planning & Development
Health
Community & Social Services
Public Safety
Housing
Parks & Recreation
Sanitation
Waste Management
Road Transport
Water
Electricity

Department

-

757,604
40,650
2,022,610

45,733,417

6,491,713

89,520

-

-

-

6,274,500
-

-

3,095,053

-

-

3,005,660

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

33,944
5,711,099

-

89,520

18,144,397

156,187

UnderConstruction

Balance
Additions

Opening

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Disposals

WĂŐĞϯϰ

45,822,937

6,491,713

-

6,274,500

3,095,053

-

2,022,610

40,650

757,604

3,005,660

5,711,099

33,944

18,233,917

156,187

Balance

Closing

14,456,237

1,359,157

-

2,779,228

1,140,935

-

647,780

29,843

422,025

437,066

893,685

19,163

6,635,695

91,660

Balance

Opening

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

4,878,656

148,027

146,184

2,052,098

1,013,155

17,368

-

-

363,171

195,743

161,549

-

703,550

77,811

Depreciation
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-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Disposals

Closing

19,334,893

1,507,184

146,184

4,831,326

2,154,090

17,368

647,780

29,843

785,196

632,809

1,055,234

19,163

7,339,245

169,471

Balance

Other

25,074,095

181,104

146,184

39,203,745

3,339,675

17,368

(1,374,830)

(10,807)

132,190

(2,150,574)

(4,588,660)

(14,781)

(10,276,707)

470,188

Movements

51,562,139

5,165,633

-

40,646,919

4,280,638

-

-

-

104,598

222,277

67,205

-

617,965

456,904

Value

Carrying

APPENDIX B

APPENDIX C
SAKHISIZWE LOCAL MUNICIPALITY
SEGMENTAL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

2008
Actual
Income
R

2008
Actual
Expenditure
R

2008
Surplus/
(Deficit)
R

45,500
20,665,183
968,499
172,673
1,479,157
480,392
15,388
3,038,446
4,681,581
505,446
3,967,764
5,258,185

3,556,406
7,572,437
591
1,514,751
1,574,282
1,031,800
997,723
218,201
5,298,196
4,643,329
1,566,457
6,732,601
3,673,866

(3,510,906)
13,092,745
(591)
(546,252)
(1,401,609)
447,357
(517,331)
(202,813)
(2,259,750)
38,253
(1,061,011)
(2,764,837)
1,584,319

41,278,214

38,380,641

2,897,573

2009
Actual
Income
R

2009
Actual
Expenditure
R

2009
Surplus/
(Deficit)
R

Executive & Council
Finance & Admin
Planning & Development
Health
Community & Social Services
Public Safety
Housing
Parks & Recreation
Sanitation
Waste Management
Road Transport
Water
Electricity

534,000
22,481,535
340,676
1,330,011
373,177
1,896,837
1,338,918
57
2,294,143
5,529,376
6,326,657

8,697,862
9,864,409
2,326,202
1,681,170
781,981
1,889,615
1,534,562
150,496
5,966,593
8,163,934
7,047,717

(8,163,862)
12,617,126
(1,985,526)
(351,159)
(408,804)
7,222
(195,644)
(150,439)
(3,672,450)
(2,634,558)
(721,060)

TOTAL

42,445,387

48,104,541

(5,659,154)

WĂŐĞϯϱ

WWE/y;ϭͿ
^<,/^/t>K>DhE//W>/dz
dh>sZ^h^h'd;ZsEhEyWE/dhZͿ
&KZd,zZEϯϬ:hEϮϬϬϵ
ϮϬϬϵ
ĐƚƵĂů;ZͿ

ϮϬϬϵ
ƵĚŐĞƚ;ZͿ

ϮϬϬϵ
sĂƌŝĂŶĐĞ;ZͿ

ZĞǀĞŶƵĞ
ZĂƚĞƐ
WĞŶĂůƚŝĞƐŽŶƌĂƚĞƐ
^ĞƌǀŝĐĞĐŚĂƌŐĞƐ
ZĞŶƚĂůŽĨĨĂĐŝůŝƚŝĞƐĂŶĚĞƋƵŝƉŵĞŶƚ
/ŶƚĞƌĞƐƚĞĂƌŶĞĚͲĞǆƚĞƌŶĂůŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚƐ
/ŶƚĞƌĞƐƚŽŶĂƌƌĞĂƌƐ
&ŝŶĞƐ
>ŝĐĞŶƐĞƐĂŶĚWĞƌŵŝƚƐ
/ŶĐŽŵĞŐĞŶĐǇ^ĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ
'ŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚŐƌĂŶƚƐĂŶĚƐƵďƐŝĚŝĞƐ
'ŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚŐƌĂŶƚƐĂŶĚƐƵďƐŝĚŝĞƐͲWW
KƚŚĞƌŝŶĐŽŵĞ
'ĂŝŶŽŶĚŝƐƉŽƐĂůŽĨWW
dŽƚĂůZĞǀĞŶƵĞ

ϭ͕Ϭϳϳ͕ϱϰϭ
Ͳ
ϱ͕ϲϲϲ͕ϬϱϮ
Ͳ
ϭ͕ϴϮϲ͕ϭϲϭ
ϭ͕ϬϰϮ͕ϴϴϮ
ϱϯ͕Ϭϳϭ
ϭϯ͕ϵϭϮ
Ͳ
Ϯϴ͕ϯϬϬ͕ϳϳϳ
Ϯ͕ϭϮϮ͕ϲϵϴ
Ϯ͕ϯϰϮ͕Ϯϵϯ
Ͳ
ϰϮ͕ϰϰϱ͕ϯϴϳ

ϭ͕ϱϬϬ͕ϬϬϬ

;ϰϮϮ͕ϰϱϵͿ
Ͳ
ϵ͕ϱϱϯ͕ϳϰϴ ;ϯ͕ϴϴϳ͕ϲϵϲͿ
Ͳ
ϴϬϬ͕ϬϬϬ ϭ͕ϬϮϲ͕ϭϲϭ
ϭ͕ϬϰϮ͕ϴϴϮ
ϯϬ͕ϬϬϬ
ϲ͕ϮϳϬ͕ϯϮϵ
ϮϮ͕ϴϭϭ͕ϱϯϰ
ϭϯ͕Ϯϵϴ͕ϬϬϬ
ϭ͕ϳϴϱ͕ϬϬϬ

;ϭϲ͕ϬϴϴͿ

ǆƉĞŶĚŝƚƵƌĞ
ŵƉůŽǇĞĞƌĞůĂƚĞĚĐŽƐƚƐ
ZĞŵƵŶĞƌĂƚŝŽŶŽĨŽƵŶĐŝůůŽƌƐ
ĂĚĞďƚ
ĞƉƌĞĐŝĂƚŝŽŶ
ZĞƉĂŝƌƐĂŶĚŵĂŝŶƚĞŶĂŶĐĞ
/ŶƚĞƌĞƐƚƉĂŝĚ
ƵůŬWĂǇŵĞŶƚƐ
ŽŶƚƌĂĐƚĞĚ^ĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ
'ƌĂŶƚƐĂŶĚ^ƵďƐŝĚŝĞƐƉĂŝĚ
'ĞŶĞƌĂůĞǆƉĞŶƐĞƐ
dŽƚĂůǆƉĞŶĚŝƚƵƌĞ

ϭϲ͕ϵϱϳ͕ϵϴϲ
Ϯ͕ϭϲϴ͕ϭϮϳ
Ϯ͕ϳϭϵ͕ϴϴϬ
ϰ͕ϳϭϱ͕ϭϬϮ
ϳϲϲ͕ϭϴϮ
ϵϯ͕Ϯϳϰ
ϯ͕Ϭϲϵ͕ϳϱϭ
ϭϭϵ͕ϲϴϭ
ϭϭ͕Ϭϴϱ͕ϲϰϮ
ϲ͕ϰϬϴ͕ϵϭϲ
ϰϴ͕ϭϬϰ͕ϱϰϭ

ϭϰ͕ϲϬϱ͕ϵϯϮ
Ϯ͕ϯϴϱ͕ϳϵϮ
ϲ͕ϱϬϬ͕ϬϬϬ
ϭ͕ϴϬϬ͕ϬϬϬ
ϭ͕Ϯϭϲ͕ϬϬϬ
ϮϳϮ͕ϴϳϱ
Ϯ͕ϳϬϬ͕ϬϬϬ
ϭϰϬ͕ϬϬϬ
ϰ͕ϰϲϱ͕ϬϬϬ
ϴ͕ϬϮϰ͕ϭϵϳ
ϰϮ͕ϭϬϵ͕ϳϵϲ

;Ϯ͕ϯϱϮ͕ϬϱϰͿ
Ϯϭϳ͕ϲϲϱ
ϯ͕ϳϴϬ͕ϭϮϬ
;Ϯ͕ϵϭϱ͕ϭϬϮͿ
ϰϰϵ͕ϴϭϴ
ϭϳϵ͕ϲϬϭ
;ϯϲϵ͕ϳϱϭͿ
ϮϬ͕ϯϭϵ
;ϲ͕ϲϮϬ͕ϲϰϮͿ
ϭ͕ϲϭϱ͕Ϯϴϭ
;ϱ͕ϵϵϰ͕ϳϰϱͿ

^ƵƌƉůƵƐͬ;ĞĨŝĐŝƚͿ

;ϱ͕ϲϱϵ͕ϭϱϰͿ ϭϯ͕ϵϯϴ͕ϴϭϱ ;ϭϯ͕ϯϴϬ͕ϳϭϭͿ

ϱ͕ϰϴϵ͕Ϯϰϯ
;ϭϭ͕ϭϳϱ͕ϯϬϮͿ
ϱϱϳ͕Ϯϵϯ
Ͳ
ϱϲ͕Ϭϰϴ͕ϲϭϭ ;ϳ͕ϯϴϱ͕ϵϲϲͿ

WĂŐĞϯϲ

ϮϬϬϵ
sĂƌŝĂŶĐĞ;йͿ

ͲϮϴй
Ͳϰϭй
ϭϮϴй

Ͳϱϰй
Ϭй
Ϯϰй
Ͳϴϰй
ϯϭй

Ͳϭϲй
ϵй
ϱϴй
ͲϭϲϮй
ϯϳй
ϲϲй
Ͳϭϰй
ϭϱй
Ͳϭϰϴй
ϮϬй

ǆƉůĂŶĂƚŝŽŶŽĨ^ŝŐŶŝĨŝĐĂŶƚsĂƌŝĂŶĐĞƐ
ŐƌĞĂƚĞƌƚŚĂŶϭϬйǀĞƌƐƵƐƵĚŐĞƚ
;ǆƉůĂŶĂƚŝŽŶƐƚŽďĞƌĞĐŽƌĚĞĚͿ

Sakhisizwe Municipality

AFS Category

Management
controls over
journals &
supporting
documentation
Management
controls

Journals processed without adequate supporting
documentation.

Unable to confirm that receivables were due to the
Trade & other
municipality, all receivables due were recorded, were recorded receivables
in the correct accounts & at the correct amounts & that the
municipality has the right to collect the amounts outstanding.

Trade & other
receivables

Management
controls

Management
control over
supporting
documentation &
monthly
reconciliations

Not started

Not started

1

1

Not started

Not started

1

To obtain the December bank
1
statements and GL and reperform the
bank recon

- Immediate action will be to include a note with - Ensure that the wording of the
the monthly statement, requesting customers to notice to be included with the
monthly statements is agreed upon
notify the municipality where their contact and
other details have changed;
and authorised by the CFO;
- Medium term plan, will be to use the results of - Verify that the notice is included
the Indigent data cleansing project to verify billing and sent out to the consumers.
information;
- Long-term plan will be to perform a complete
data cleansing exercise on all Debtors accounts
and Consumer deposits.
- Obtain a download of all journals passed to date Obtain a download of all journals
for the current financial year
processed to date
- Compile a journal file with the relevant
supporting documentation
- Ensure that journals have been authorised
- Immediate action will be to obtain a download of Obtain a download of the debtors
all debtors from the system and to do a high level ledger as per SEBATA and the latest
review of the reasonableness of the debtors
GL
categories;
- Immediate action will be to perform a high level
comparison between the debtors ledger and the
GL;
- Medium term plan, will be to use the results of
the Indigent data cleansing project to verify billing
information;
- Long-term plan will be to perform a complete
data cleansing exercise on all Debtors accounts
and Consumer deposits.

- Using the current SEBATA format of the bank
reconciliation, attempt to reperform the
reconciliation in Excel in a format which is easily
understood my the user.

SEBATA have made some changes
and are in the process of finalising
other changes.

2

Follow up on the progress of the
- Contact SEBATA in order to determine an
alternative format to the presentation of the bank discussions held with SEBATA
reconciliation

Priority Progress/ Status

Met with Cristelle Venter (SEBATA)
to discuss the difference. The
difference is an unknown difference
between the cash book balance as
per SEBATA and the GL balance.
Christelle will investigate the
difference further.

Next step

- Investigate the unreconciled difference and pass Set up meeting with Christelle Venter 1
the necessary journals to correct the opening
to discuss the differences
balance.
- Agree the Bank Reconciliation to valid supporting
documentation

Root cause of error Action Plan

Reliable and complete billing information or customer contact Trade & other
information was not provided by the municipality.
receivables

Trade & other receivables:

Insufficient information to support the unreconciled difference Bank & Cash
of R550'000 as per note 21 of the AFS.

Cash & Cash equivalents:

Disclaimer of Opinion as per 30 November 2009
AG Report

Action Plan to addess the 2009 AG Queries
Year end: 30 June 2010

Christelle
Venter
(Service
Provider)

Christelle
Venter
(Service
Provider)

Christelle
Venter
(Service
Provider)

Christelle
Venter
(Service
Provider)
CFO

Christelle
Venter
(Service
Provider)

Contact
person

CFO

Deloitte

CFO

Deloitte

CFO

CFO

Responsible
person

26-Feb-10

12-Feb-10

26-Feb-10

12-Feb-10

26-Feb-10

26-Feb-10

Next follow
up date

Trade Payables:

Inadequate supporting documentation for journals passed
against PPE.

PPE:
Several items of Investment Property were incorrectly
disclosed under PPE.

PPE

PPE & Investment
property

Management
controls over
journals &
supporting
documentation

Management
controls

Management
controls over
journals &
supporting
documentation

Insufficient supporting documentation for journal entries in
the VAT GL account.

VAT

Lack of
communication by
the AG to the CFO

Insufficient supporting documentation to support the accuracy VAT
& completeness of the R1.5 mil VAT Receivable reflected in
note 7 to AFS (Ex. 47)

VAT:

Lack of
communication by
the AG to the CFO

No consideration was given to the GRAP requirements in
raising the provision for doubtful debts (Ex. 171)

Provision for bad
debts & Trade &
other receivables

Management
controls over
supporting
documentation

Supporting documentation could not be provided to support
Provision for bad
the calculation & implementation of the provision for doubtful debts & Trade &
debts of R13.7 million.
other receivables

Not started

- Obtain a download of all journals passed to date Obtain a download of all journals
for the current financial year
processed to date
- Compile a journal file with the relevant
supporting documentation
- Ensure that journals have been authorised

1

Obtained a detailed listing of the
property regarded as Investment
Property from the AG

Not started

Not started

Not started

Not started

- Obtain a detailed listing of the property regarded Investigate the detailed listing of the 1
as Investment Property from the AG;
property regarded as Investment
- Investigate the current GL for any rental income Property from the AG;
which may relate to property;
- Investigate the FAR to identify any Commonage
or other property which may qualify as Investment
Property under the definition of GRAP;
- Investigate the above listings of property to
verify if they meet the definition of Investment
Property as per GRAP.

1

- Obtain clarity from the AG regarding 1
their requirements referred to in their
statement in the management letter
where they state that management
should follow up with the Receiver of
Revenue to confirm receipt of their
VAT 201 returns. Correspondence
with the South African Revenue
Services should be maintained in the
VAT file.

- Obtain a download of all journals passed to date Obtain a download of all journals
processed to date
for the current financial year
- Compile a journal file with the relevant
supporting documentation
- Ensure that journals have been authorised

- The weakness identified by the AG is not
considered to be correct as it is not a GRAP or
other legislative requirement to obtain
confirmation from SARS that the VAT 201 forms
have been submitted. Nor is it normal procedure
for SARS to provide such confirmation;
- A discussion will be held with the AG to establish
in more detail their requirements;
- Review the VAT file in order to ensure that the
file is complete and that all the required
supporting documentation is kept in the file and
that it is filed in a user friendly format.

- The weakness identified by the AG is not
- Obtain clarity from the AG regarding 1
considered to be correct as the GRAP
their detailed calculation of the
requirements were taken into consideration and provision for doubtful debts to which
based on the available information and the cost of they refer in the management letter
the excercise to consider each debtor individually, that the provision for doubtful debts
it was considered to be the most accurate and cost is understated by at least R3,476,793?
effective method to use to calculate the provision.
- A discussion will be held with the AG to establish
in more detail the requirements that they would
like to be taken into consideration in calculating
the provision for bad debts.

As the provision is only raised at year end, no
- No further action will be taken until 5
action will be taken to adjust the current provision the calculation of the provision at
for 2009, however at year end, documentation
year end
supporting the calculation of the provision for
doubtful debts as at 30 June 2010, will be filed as
part of the accounting file.

Christelle
Venter
(Service
Provider)

Jade
Boucher
(AG)

Christelle
Venter
(Service
Provider)

Jade
Boucher
(AG)

Jade
Boucher
(AG)

Christelle
Venter
(Service
Provider)

Deloitte

Deloitte

Deloitte

Deloitte

Deloitte

Deloitte

12-Feb-10

29-Jan-10

12-Feb-10

03-Feb-10

03-Feb-10

30-Jun-10

Management
controls over
journals

Insufficient supporting documentation to support the journals Trade payables
processed to the value of R3 mil.

Consumer deposits Management
controls over
monthly
reconciliations
Consumer deposits Management
controls over
monthly
reconciliations
Consumer deposits Management
controls over
supporting
documentation

Consumer deposits register does not agree to the AFS.

There is no disclosure on whether the conditions of the
allocations received have been met by the municipality. - TO
DISCUSS WITH AG AS CANNOT FIND EXCEPTION IN
MANAGEMENT LETTER

Unspent conditional Management
grants & receipts
controls

Unspent conditional gramts and receipts:
Unexplained differences of R2mil for MIG funding, were found Unspent conditional Management
in the grants register
grants & receipts
controls over
monthly
reconciliations
An unreconciled difference of R1.7mil between the project
Unspent conditional Management
expenditure listing & the GL accounts for projects funded
grants & receipts
controls over
through the MIG conditional grant
monthly
reconciliations
The AFS did not disclose how the allocations received by the
Unspent conditional Management
municipality from National & Provincial Government have
grants & receipts
controls
been spent (as required by section 123 of the MFMA) (Ex. 136)
- NOT SURE IF THIS IS THE RIGHT EXCEPTION AND IF IT IS
REFERRING TO MIG FUNDING OR OTHER FUNDING???? TO
DISCUSS WITH PIETER STEYN???

Insufficient supporting documentation to support the
completeness & valuation of consumer deposits.

No reconciliation to the GL balance.

Consumer deposits Management
controls

Consumer deposits represent less than 2% of accounts
receivable, therefore there is inadequate consumer deposits
collected before services supplied to consumers.

Consumer Deposits:
There is no accounting policy or consistent tariff for consumer Accounting policies Policies
deposits of R349'000.
& Consumer
deposits

Management
controls

Insufficient supporting documentation to support the write off Trade payables
of creditors of R1.9 mil (ie. no reconciliations were performed
of the creditors accounts before they were written off) (Ex.
119)

CANNOT FIND EXCEPTION IN AFS??

- CFO will review on a monthly balance the
reconciliations performed by the Technical
Manager and ensure that it agrees to the
reconcilaition performed by himself.
- CFO will review on a monthly balance the
reconciliations performed by the Technical
Manager and ensure that it agrees to the
reconcilaition performed by himself.
- The CFO will meet with the Technical Services
Manager to discuss the weaknesses identified by
the AG (ie. the list of information requested by the
AG but not received)
- All MIG funding information will be kept up to
date by the Technical Services Manager, reviewed
and authorised as such on a monthly basis by the
CFO and submitted within the allocated audit
deadlines.

The validity, completeness and accuracy of the
consumer deposits will be addressed after the 30
June 2010 year end.

- Reconciliation to be performed between the
total of the Consumer Deposits Register and the
GL

??

??

Not started

- CFO to set up a meeting between
2
himself and the Technical Services
Manager to discuss the weaknesses
identified by the AG (ie. the list of
information requested by the AG but
not received)

????

Not started

2

- CFO to request copies of all
reconciliations performed by the
Technical Manager

Not started

2

Deloitte

Deloitte

Christelle
Venter
(Service
Provider)

Jade
Boucher
(AG)

Technical
Services
Manager &
P. Steyn
(CFO)

P. Steyn &
Technical
Manager

P. Steyn &
Technical
Manager

Deloitte

CFO

CFO

CFO

CFO

Deloitte

Deloitte

Deloitte

Karen Hope CFO
(Deloitte)

Christelle
Venter
(Service
Provider)

Christelle
Venter
(Service
Provider)

Requested copy of the latest GL & TB Christelle
from CFO on 15 Jan 2010
Venter
(Service
Provider)
Not started
Christelle
Venter
(Service
Provider)
n/a
n/a

Not started

Not started

- CFO to request copies of all
reconciliations performed by the
Technical Manager

n/a

1

1

- Obtain a copy of the consumer
deposits listing;
- Obtain a copy of the latest GL and
TB
- Obtain a copy of the consumer
deposits listing;
- Obtain a copy of the latest GL and
TB
n/a

Register to be inspected and the differences
analysed & corrected.

2

1

- Develop a Credit Control Policy

Not started

Obtain a download of all journals
processed to date

1

Not started

- Request a download from the
1
system of the latest GL and TB;
- Request copies of the latest
Creditors Statements received by the
municipality.

- to reperform the percentage of consumer
- Obtain the latest debtors balances
deposits to receoverable debtors (debtors balance and consumer deposit listing
excluding interest on arrears debt);
- to explore other alternatives and legislation as a
large percentage of the deposits were received
many years ago when the cost of services were
lower than current costs.

- A Credit Control Policy is to be developed,
approved and implemented.

- Perform the monthly reconciliations between
the relevant Creditors Statements and the
Creditors listing/General Ledger (Creditors module
is integrated to the GL).
- Ensure that the monthly reconciliations are
reviewed and authorised by the CFO.
- Obtain a download of all journals passed to date
for the current financial year
- Compile a journal file with the relevant
supporting documentation
- Ensure that journals have been authorised

03-Feb-10

26-Feb-10

26-Feb-10

26-Feb-10

n/a

29-Jan-10

29-Jan-10

29-Jan-10

29-Jan-10

12-Feb-10

29-Jan-10

No reconciliation has been performed between the rateable
property listed in the valuation roll to Assessed rates.

Revenue:
Service charges: Meter readings or records relating to
estimates used in billing customers for service charges could
not be provided.

Revenue - rates

Revenue - service
charges

Accumulated Surplus:
Documentation and explanations supporting the adjustments Accumulated
to accumulated surplus could not be provided in order to
surplus
confirm the correctness of the adjustments, completeness &
accuracy of transactions & that they related to the business of
the municipality & are correctly disclosed..

Finance leases amounting to R439'000 (copiers & faxes leased Leases
from Technofin) were disclosed as Operating Leases rather
than Finance Leases. These leases assets were also not
capitalised (Ex. 205)

Leases:
Finance leases:
Documentation such as a Register of Leases, a Schedule of
Leases
Lease Agreements & individual Lease agreements could not be
provided during the audit, therefore the amount disclosed in
the AFS could not be confirmed as being complete or classified
or disclosed correctly. - TO DISCUSS WITH AG AS CANNOT
FIND EXCEPTION IN MANAGEMENT LETTER

Commitments:
No capital commitments were disclosed in the AFS. - TO
Commitments
DISCUSS WITH AG AS CANNOT FIND EXCEPTION IN
MANAGEMENT LETTER
No Tender Register or Complete Tender Documentation could Source
be provided.
documentation

Management
controls over
monthly
reconciliations

Management
controls

Management
controls over
journals

Lack of
communication by
the AG to the CFO

- Prepaire a list of items to be
condoned by Council ito journals
passed in the 2009 AFS.
- Verify the list of items to be
condoned with the AG before
submitting it to Council for approval

- A reconciliation between the rateable property
listed in the valuation roll and the assessed rates
was performed after 30 June 2009.
- New transferes subsequent to the excercise
need to be updated and included in the
reconciliation

- Obtain updated information from
the deeds office for all transferes

- CFO to meet with the Technical Services
- CFO to meet with the Technical
Manager and other related staff to discuss gaps, Services Manager
staff needs and possible actions to ensure that
meters are read in order to obtain accurate data
on which to base the billing information.
- In addition, the importance of fileing all
supporting documentation for safekeeping is to be
explained to the relevant staff.

- Obtain a download of all journals passed to date
for the current financial year
- Compile a journal file with the relevant
supporting documentation
- Ensure that journals have been authorised;
- Prepaire a list of items to be condoned by
Council ito journals passed in the 2009 AFS.
- Verify the list of items to be condoned with the
AG before submitting it to Council for approval

???

2

3

1

1

- Set up a meeting with the Technical 2
Manager to discuss the requirements
for a Tender Register and supporting
documentation relating to the Capital
Commitments.

????

- Copies of the lease agreements will be reviewed - Obtain copies of the lease
to verify that the lease is infact a finance lease ito agreements
GRAP as claimed by the AG;
- If it is confirmed that the lease agreement is
infact a finance lease, the relevant amortisation
tables will be drawn up and the lease will be added
to the register of leases and the asset added to the
FAR

Inspect Management letter for more detail of
errors.
Action to be discussed with CFO

- The Technical Manager is to ensure that a
Tender Register and all related Tender
Documentation is kept in the required format and
made available for audit purposes.

Management
controls over
supporting
documentation

Management
controls over
supporting
documentation

CANNOT FIND EXCEPTION IN AFS??

??

Not started

Not started

Not started

Not started

Not started

??

Christelle
Venter
(Service
Provider)

P. Steyn
(CFO)

Deloitte

Thobeka

Jade
Boucher
(AG)

Jade
Boucher
(AG)
Technical
Services
Manager

Deloitte

CFO

Deloitte

Deloitte

Deloitte

Technical
Manager

Deloitte

26-Feb-10

26-Feb-10

29-Jan-10

31-Mar-10

03-Feb-10

26-Feb-10

03-Feb-10

Policies

Policies

Revenue

Revenue - Interest

Revenue - Interest

Revenue - Interest

No evidence could be provided for the implementation of the
Indigent Policy & the existence of indigent consumers.

An error of R530'000 was identified in the application of
applicable interest rates and the related calculations applied
on outstanding accounts (interest on arrears) (Ex. 37)

Interest on long outstanding consumer debtor accounts was
raised contrary to paragraph 29 of GRAP 9 (meets the
definition of revenue ito GRAP).

Evidence could not be provided to show the municipality's
ability to recover interest charged on long outstanding
consumer debtors

Expenditure:
The municipality did not provide payment vouchers & source
documentation for R3.4 mil purchases of general expenses,
grants & subsidies, contracted services & bulk payments.

Expenditure

Management
controls over
supporting
documentation

Lack of
communication
from the AG

Revenue

There was a lack of information in the GL regarding funds
received. - TO BE DISCUSSED WITH THE AG AS I CANNOT FIND
EXCEPTION IN THE MANAGEMENT LETTER?

Management
controls over
monthly
reconciliations

No reconciliations were provided for income that was received Revenue
in terms of the Division of Revenue Act (Act 2 of 2008) (DoRA)
and grant funds.

Policies

Policies

Management
controls over
journals

Insufficient supporting documentation for journals processed. Revenue

- Perform a completeness check on all
transactions conducted by the municipality
throught the year to ensure that the required
payment vouchers & source documentation is
filed;
- ensure that the required authorisation has been
obtained for the transaction ;
- ????? VERIFY WITH THE CFO IF THE SAME
COMPLETENESS TEST IS NECESSARY FOR ANY
OTHER INVESTMENT ACCOUNTS???? ????

1

1

1

1

- Obtain a download of the bank
general ledger for the current year;
- Trace all transcations in the bank
general ledger to the relevant
supporting documentation in the
expenditure files.

1

1

- CFO to allocate the responsibility of 3
performing the reconciliation to the
relevant staff and if applicable to
arrange training for the staff member.

- Appoint a service provider to
develop a Debt Management Policy

- Appoint a service provider to
develop a Debt Management Policy

- Appoint a service provider to
develop a Debt Management Policy

- Monitor the progress of the service 4
provider

Obtain a download of all journals
processed to date

- Discussions are to be heald with the AG in order - Arrange a meeting with the AG
to establish their requirements

- Obtain a download of all journals passed to date
for the current financial year
- Compile a journal file with the relevant
supporting documentation
- Ensure that journals have been authorised
- The municipality has appointed a service
provider who is currently performing a "data
cleansing" and verification of all Indigents.
- Management will develop, implement and
approved debt management policy which
stipulates the applicable rate of interest to be
charged on long outstanding debts;
- Management will communicated the policy to all
relevant municipal officials;
- Periodic checks will be performed by
management on the interest calculated to verify
its accuracy
- Management will develop, implement and
approved debt management policy which
stipulates the applicable rate of interest to be
charged on long outstanding debts;
- Management will communicated the policy to all
relevant municipal officials;
- A review will be performed of the debtors
system to ensure that interest is only charged ito
the debt management policy and only where the
interest meets the definition of a debtor or
revenue ito GRAP.
- Management will develop, implement and
approved debt management policy which
stipulates the applicable rate of interest to be
charged on long outstanding debts;
- Management will communicated the policy to all
relevant municipal officials;
- A review will be performed of the debtors
system to ensure that interest is only charged ito
the debt management policy and only where the
interest meets the definition of a debtor or
revenue ito GRAP.
- Reconciliation to be performed between income
that was received in terms of the Division of
Revenue Act (Act 2 of 2008) (DoRA) and grant
funds.

Not started

Not started

Not started

Not started

Not started

Not started

Not started

Not started

Thobeka &
CFO

Jade
Boucher
(AG)

CFO

P. Steyn
(CFO)

P. Steyn
(CFO)

P. Steyn
(CFO)

CFO

Christelle
Venter
(Service
Provider)

Deloitte

Deloitte

Deloitte

Deloitte

Deloitte

Deloitte

CFO

Deloitte

29-Jan-10

03-Feb-10

29-Jan-10

29-Jan-10

29-Jan-10

29-Jan-10

26-Feb-10

12-Feb-10

Lack of
communication by
the AG

The municipality did not disclose any items required by IFRS 7
(Financial Instruments -Disclosure). - could not find exception
in management letter, to verify with AG

Unauthorised expenditure

Emphasis of Matter:

Lack of
communication by
the AG

There was a lack of supporting documentation for Financial
Financial
Instruments. - COULD NOT FIND EXCEPTION IN MANAGEMENT instruments
LETTER, TO VERIFY WITH AG

Financial
instruments

Lack of
communication by
the AG

Management
controls over
journals

Management
controls over
monthly
reconciliations

Management
controls

Management
controls over
processing of
information in
financial system

Financial Instruments:
The municipality did not comply with the provisions of the IAS Financial
32 & 39 statements iro the disclosure, recognition &
instruments
measurement of financial instruments. COULD NOT FIND
EXCEPTION IN MANAGEMENT LETTER, TO VERIFY WITH AG

Employee costs

Employee costs

Employee costs and remuneration of councillors:
No reconciliation has been performed between the payroll
system and the GL.

Insufficient supporting documentation for journals processed
iro employee costs.

Irregular
expenditure

Expenditure & PPE

Irregular expenditure:
The municipality did not disclose irregular expenditure due to
procurement processes that were not properly followed and
irregular salary & overtime payments of R13.7 mil in the AFS.

R9.7 mil expenditure was incorrectly disclosed as current
expenditure, rather than capital expenditure.

1

- Arrande a meeting with the AG in order to clarify - Arrange a meeting with the AG to
the nature of the supporting documentation
verify the required supporting
required to support the financial instruments per documentation
the AFS

- Arrande a meeting with the AG in order to clarify - Arrange a meeting with the AG to
the nature of the supporting documentation
verify the required supporting
required to support the financial instruments per documentation
the AFS;
- Management is to communicate to the relevant
staff the required supporting documentation
needed to be filed for safekeeping and the
importance of filing such information

1

1

1

Not started

Not started

Not started

Not started

Obtain a download of all journals
processed to date

1

Reconciliations performed till
October 2009

Not started

Jade
Boucher
(AG)

Jade
Boucher
(AG)

Jade
Boucher
(AG)

Christelle
Venter
(Service
Provider)

Christelle
Venter
(Service
Provider)

Thobeka &
CFO

Requested copy of the latest GL & TB Thobeka &
from CFO on 15 Jan 2010
CFO

- Meet with Christelle Venter in order 1
to discuss the unreconciled items as
per the payroll reconciliations

- The Accountant & CFO to monitor 3
expenditure on a monthly basis in
order to identify any possible irregular
expenditure.

- Arrande a meeting with the AG in order to clarify - Arrange a meeting with the AG to
the nature of the supporting documentation
verify the required supporting
required to support the financial instruments per documentation
the AFS

- Obtain a download of the Payroll from the
Payroll system and the Salary Control account as
per the general ledger;
- Monthly reconciliations to be performed
between the payroll system and the general
ledger;
- Monthly reconciliations to be reviewed and
authorised by the CFO.
- Obtain a download of all journals passed to date
for the current financial year
- Compile a journal file with the relevant
supporting documentation
- Ensure that journals have been authorised

- The Accountant & CFO are to monitor
expenditure on a monthly basis in order to identify
any possible irregular expenditure;
- The occurence of possible Irregular expenditure
must be assessed again at year end by the person
responsible for drafting the AFS and where
identified, it must be disclosed as such in the AFS

- Perform a detailed review of the expenditure
- Obtain a download of the latest
general ledger accounts in order to determine any general ledger
possible misallocations of capital expenditure;
- Where necessary, verify the expenditure to the
relevant supporting documentation to determine
if it meets the definition of PPE ito GRAP

Deloitte

Deloitte

Deloitte

Deloitte

Deloitte

CFO

Deloitte

03-Feb-10

03-Feb-10

03-Feb-10

12-Feb-10

29-Jan-10

26-Feb-10

29-Jan-10

Unauthorised
expenditure

There was a lack of the adoption of approved policies &
procedure frameworks.

Control environment:
Management did not establish & maintain an environment
throught the municipality that was supportive of internal
control & conscientious management.

Policies &
procedures
framework

Control
environment

There were various internal control deficiencies relating to the Control
above exceptions noted under Disclaimer of Opinion. (split
environment
between the Control Environment & Control Activities)

Internal control deficiencies

Governance framework:

Non-compliance with applicable legistration
MFMA:
The Accounting Officer did not develop an appropriate system Delegation of
of Delegation of Responsibilities (Delegation of Powers was
authority
only approved on 5th July 2009)

Other matters:

Actual expenditure exceeded the approved budget by R13.4
mil

Management
controls

Management
controls

Management
controls

Management
controls

Management
controls

- CFO to verify the following for all
policies & procedures in order to
determine the gaps & the actions to
be taken:
- Policies & procedures still to be
developed
- Policies & procedures still to be
adopted
- Policies & procedures still to be
implemented successfully

- Long-term: A service provider will be appointed - Develop the required checklists
after 30 June 2010 in order to develop a
Prpcedures Manual for the municipality;
- Short-term: A checklist will be developed to
establish the monthly procedures that need to be
followed by personnel in key departments (ie.
Revenue, Debtors, Expenditure, Creditors, VAT,
Bank, and other key areas) and the CFO in order to
ensure that all the required monthly
reconciliations have been performed, the required
supporting documentation has heen filed and that
the necessary review and authorisation has been
performed.

- To ensure that all policies & procedures have
been adopted

3

2

1

n/a

- Verify with the CFO if the
3
authorisation of the Delegation of
Authority was minuted or authorised
in writing;
- and verify that it has been
implemented

Refer to the specific action plans discussed under n/a
the relevant sections aboveabove.

- The delegation of authority was approved on 5th
July 2009;
- Ensure that the authorisation of the Delegation
of Responsibility was minited or authorised in
writing and a copy filed for safekeeping;
- Need to ensure that it has been implemented

- The Accountant & CFO are to monitor
- The Accountant & CFO to monitor
expenditure on a monthly basis in order to identify expenditure on a monthly basis in
any possible unauthorised expenditure;
order to identify any possible
- The occurence of possible unauthorised
unauthorised expenditure.
expenditure must be assessed again at year end by
the person responsible for drafting the AFS and
where identified, it must be disclosed as such in
the AFS

Not started

Not started

n/a

Not started

Not started

CFO

Various

n/a

CFO

Thobeka &
CFO

CFO

Deloitte

n/a

Deloitte

CFO

26-Feb-10

05-Feb-10

n/a

26-Feb-10

26-Feb-10

Management
controls over
monthly
reconciliations

Management
controls over
supporting
documentation

Monthly
reconciliations

There was generally a non-submission of documentation &
Supporting
information, mainly due to deficiencies that exist in the filing & documentation
archiving system.

There was a lack of review & reconciliations.

- Obtain a download of the Bank
- Perform a completeness check on all
transactions conducted by the municipality
general ledger account
throught the year to ensure that the required
payment vouchers & source documentation is
filed;
- ensure that the required authorisation has been
obtained for the transaction ;
- ????? VERIFY WITH THE CFO IF THE SAME
COMPLETENESS TEST IS NECESSARY FOR ANY
OTHER INVESTMENT ACCOUNTS???? ????

- A checklist will be developed to establish the
- Develop the required checklists
monthly procedures that need to be followed by
the CFO in order to ensure that all the required
monthly reconciliations have been performed, the
required supporting documentation has heen
reviewed and that the necessary authorisation has
been performed.
1

1

Not started

Not started

Thobeka

CFO

Deloitte

Deloitte

29-Jan-10

05-Feb-10

Policies &
procedures
framework

Control
environment

Training & skills

AFS disclosure

Annual report

The AFS were subject to material amendments resulting from
the audit.

The Annual Report was not submitted for consideration prior
to the tabling of the audit report.

Key Governance Responsibilities:
The following tasks/ key governance responsibilities
concerning financial & risk management and internal
controls, are required by the MFMA to be addressed by the
accounting officer:
There was no clear trail of supporting documentation that was Supporting
easily available and provided in a timely manner.
documentation

Policy & procedure frameworks have not been created and
implemented for all major accounting cycles.

Control activities:
Manual or automated controls were often not found in the
municipality's systems.

Staff in the municipality's operational sections generally lack
the appropriate skills & the municipality has not undergone
the minimum pre-requisite training.

- To ensure that all policies & procedures have
been adopted

- The relevant staff to be notified of
the deadlines for submission

- Communiciate to the AG the need
for regular communication with the
CFO during the audit

- Obtain a download of the Bank
general ledger account

- CFO to verify the following for all
policies & procedures in order to
determine the gaps & the actions to
be taken:
- Policies & procedures still to be
developed
- Policies & procedures still to be
adopted
- Policies & procedures still to be
implemented successfully

5

4

1

2

1

- HR to meet with staff to address the 2
gaps or training needs of staff

- Long-term: A service provider will be appointed - Develop the required checklists
after 30 June 2010 in order to develop a
Prpcedures Manual for the municipality;
- Short-term: A checklist will be developed to
establish the monthly procedures that need to be
followed by personnel in key departments (ie.
Revenue, Debtors, Expenditure, Creditors, VAT,
Bank, and other key areas) and the CFO in order to
ensure that all the required monthly
reconciliations have been performed, the required
supporting documentation has heen filed and that
the necessary review and authorisation has been
performed.

- The career paths of staff are to be addressed

- Perform a completeness check on all
transactions conducted by the municipality
throught the year to ensure that the required
payment vouchers & source documentation is
filed;
- ensure that the required authorisation has been
obtained for the transaction ;
- ????? VERIFY WITH THE CFO IF THE SAME
COMPLETENESS TEST IS NECESSARY FOR ANY
OTHER INVESTMENT ACCOUNTS???? ????
High level review of - The AFS will be subject to high level review
the AFS & lack of
before being submitted to the AG;
communication
- The AG will be consulted during the preparation
from the AG during of the AFS;
audit
- The AG will be requested to communicate any
weaknesses identified with the CFO on a regular
basis during their audit
Management
- A draft Annual Report will be submitted to the
controls over the
AG by the end of November;
Annual Report
- The Annual Report will be submitted to Council
by the end of January;
- The final Annual Report will be available by 31
March

Management
controls over
supporting
documentation

Management
controls

Management
controls

Management
controls over staff

Not started

Not started

Not started

Not started

Not started

Not started

Deloitte

CFO

Deloitte

CFO

MM

AG Manager CFO

Thobeka

CFO

Various

HR Manager HR Manager

29-Nov-10

30-Jun-10

29-Jan-10

26-Feb-10

05-Feb-10

31-Mar-10

Control
environment

There were significant deficiencies in the design and
implementation of internal control iro compliance with
applicable laws & regulations.

The information systems were not appropriate to facilitate the Information systems Management
preparation of the financial statements.
controls over
technology
There was no risk assessment conducted on a regular basis & Internal controls
Management
no risk management strategy, including a fraud prevention
controls over
plan, documented & used as set out in section 62(c)(i) of the
Internal Controls
MFMA.
There were no Delegations of responsibility in place, as set out As above
n/a
in section 79 of the MFMA.
Prior year audit findings have not been substantially
AG report
Management
addressed.
controls

Management
controls

Management
controls

Control
environment

There were significant deficiencies in the design and
implementation of internal control iro financial & risk
management.

Management
controls over
Internal Controls

Management
controls over
Internal Controls

Audit committee

There was not an audit committee in operation throught the
financial year. Neither did it operate in accordance with
approved, written terms of reference. It did not fulfill its
responsibilities for the year ito section 166 (2) of the MFMA.

Management
controls over Staff

There was not an internal audit function in operation throught Internal Audit
the financial year. Neither did it operate ito an approved
internal audit plan. It did not fulfill its responsibilities for the
year ito section 165 (2) of the MFMA.

Staff

Not all key officials were available throughout the audit
process.

- Place an advert advertising the
position of Internal Audit at the
Municipality

n/a

- Due to budget & time constraints, only current n/a
year AG issues to be addressed. No further action
to be taken.

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

Not started

Not started

Not started

Not started

n/a

Not started

1

1

n/a

n/a

- Contact SABATA in order to discuss solutions to - Arrange a meeting with SEBATA
the weaknesses experienced with the system in
compiling the AFS
Lukanjie Municipality has appointed a staff
n/a
member to perform this function

- Long-term: A service provider will be appointed - Develop the required checklists
after 30 June 2010 in order to develop a
Prpcedures Manual for the municipality;
- Short-term: A checklist will be developed to
establish the monthly procedures that need to be
followed by personnel in key departments (ie.
Revenue, Debtors, Expenditure, Creditors, VAT,
Bank, and other key areas) and the CFO in order to
ensure that all the required monthly
reconciliations have been performed, the required
supporting documentation has heen filed and that
the necessary review and authorisation has been
performed.

1

2

- Contact the AG in order to
5
determine the proposed dates during
which they will conduct the audit and
require the key officials to be at the
municipality;
- Notify all key officials required
during the audit process that they
may not take leave during the audit
period
n/a
n/a

- Long-term: A service provider will be appointed - Develop the required checklists
after 30 June 2010 in order to develop a
Prpcedures Manual for the municipality;
- Short-term: A checklist will be developed to
establish the monthly procedures that need to be
followed by personnel in key departments (ie.
Revenue, Debtors, Expenditure, Creditors, VAT,
Bank, and other key areas) and the CFO in order to
ensure that all the required monthly
reconciliations have been performed, the required
supporting documentation has heen filed and that
the necessary review and authorisation has been
performed.

- An Internal Auditor will be appointed

- No further actions will be put in place in the
current financial year in order to address the
weakness

- Send out a circular to all key officials, notifying
them that they will not be authorised to take leave
during the audit period and where possible for
them not to schedule meetings away from the
municipality

MM

CFO

Deloitte

Deloitte

CFO

n/a

MM

n/a

Lukanji CFO n/a

SEBATA

Various

Various

HR Manager CFO

n/a

HR Manager MM

n/a

n/a

n/a

26-Feb-10

05-Feb-10

05-Feb-10

26-Feb-10

n/a

30-Apr-10

Budget

Supporting
documentation
Annual report

Internal audit

- An internal audit section has not been created or staffed

- The municipality makes use of a shared audit committee.
Audit committee
The absence of an internal audit section and a risk assessment
resulted in the audit committee being ineffective.

Management
controls

Fraud prevention

As above

As above

As above

Risk management

- There was no risk assessment conducted to supplement a
risk management strategy
- There was no fraud prevention plan implemented

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

- Contact a service provider

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

2

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

1

1

1

- Contact a service provider

- Contact a service provider

1

- Arrange a meeting with SEBATA

- Once appointed, the Internal Auditor will be
- Appoint an Internal Auditor
requested to help in compiling a fraud prevention
plan;
- Management will be responsible for the
implementation of the plan
n/a
n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

As above

As above

n/a

As above

AFS

n/a

n/a

- A service provider will be appointed in order to
provide advice in this area

- A service provider will be appointed in order to
provide advice in this area

- Contact SABATA in order to discuss solutions to
the weaknesses experienced with the system in
compiling the AFS
- A service provider will be appointed in order to
provide advice in this area

As above

As above

Management
controls

Management
controls over
budget

Management
controls over
technology
Management
controls

- Financial accounting processes have not been assessed &
adjusted to ensure that all processes support the information
requirements of the GRAP framework.

- Management did not present a copy of the annual report
prior to the issue of the audit report
- Senior management was not available at the municipality to Staff
respond to audit queries
- There is a lack of monitoring over the financial accounting
AFS
process whick resulted in material amendments to the AFS.

Because the following key governance responsibilities were
not effectively addressed, it was concluded that the control
environment in the municipality is not conducive to sound
governance & accountability:
- Not all information was presented for audit purposes

There is no functioning performance management system and Performance
performance bonuses are not only paid after proper
management
assessment and approval by those charged with governance.

There was no strategic plan prepared & approved for the
financial year for purposes of monitoring the performance in
relation to the budget & delivery by the municipality against
its mandate, predetermined objectives, outputs, indicators &
targets ito section 68/87 of the MFMA

The information systems were not appropriate to facilitate the
preparation of a performance report that is accurate &
complete.
Performance report
There are inadequate control processes & procedures
Performance
designed & implemented to ensure the accuracy &
management
completeness of reported performance information.

n/a

n/a

Not started

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

- A service provider has been
contacted. The terms of the
agreement must be arranged and
agreed upon.

- A service provider has been
contacted. The terms of the
agreement must be arranged and
agreed upon.
- A service provider has been
contacted. The terms of the
agreement must be arranged and
agreed upon.

Not started

n/a

n/a

CFO

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

Charmaine

Charmaine

Charmaine

SEBATA

n/a

n/a

CFO

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

Deloitte

Deloitte

Deloitte

CFO

n/a

n/a

26-Feb-10

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

29-Jan-10

29-Jan-10

29-Jan-10

26-Feb-10

Performance
information

IDP

Section 6 of the MFMA requires the municipality to establish,
develop and monitor its performance management systems,
however the municipality did not collect, record and process
information or monitor and report on development priorities
and objectives for the performance management systems. As
a result key performance indicators had not been set for each
of the development priorities and objectives as set out in the
IDP.

Development priorities & objectives of the municipalitys IDP
are neither consistent with the budget nor clear and concise.

Lack of adoption or implementation of a performance management system

Non-compliance with regulatory requirements

In terms of section 121(3)(c) of the MFMA, the annual report Annual report
must include the annual performance report of the
municipality, prepared ito section 46 of the Local Government:
Municipal Systems Act, 2000 (Act no 32 of 2000)

Report on Performance Information

Report on other legal & regulatory requirements

AFS

Management
controls over IDP

Management
controls over
performance
management

As above

As above

- The staff tasked with the responsibility of
compiling both the IDP and the budget will
communicate regularly during the compilation of
the IDP and budget to ensure that consensus is
reached in all related areas.;
- A high level review of both the IDP & budget will
take place before it is submitted as final;
- The review will include a comparison to the
budget and other related documents;
- Where reguired, the help of a service provider
will be obtained

- A service provider will be appointed in order to
provide advice in this area

n/a

As above

n/a

As above

- No systems are in place to ensure that non-financial
performance is measured and reported on.

As above

As above

- The accounting record system was not adequate to allow for AFS
the preparation of the AFS
- Management has not taken sufficient action to clear all prior AG report
year audit findings. There was no audit intervention plan &
certain matters were repeated from the prior year.

1

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

1

- Management is to communicate to 2
all relevant staff the importance of
communication with other staff
members during the performance of
their tasks in order to ensure that
consensus is achieved

- Contact a service provider

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

- Long-term: A service provider will be appointed - Develop the required checklists
after 30 June 2010 in order to develop a
Prpcedures Manual for the municipality;
- Short-term: A checklist will be developed to
establish the monthly procedures that need to be
followed by personnel in key departments (ie.
Revenue, Debtors, Expenditure, Creditors, VAT,
Bank, and other key areas) and the CFO in order to
ensure that all the required monthly
reconciliations have been performed, the required
supporting documentation has heen filed and that
the necessary review and authorisation has been
performed.

Management
controls over
Internal Controls

- There was a lack of implemented controls & a lack of
monitoring & supervision by management, resulting in
significant deficiencies in the design & implementation of
internal control iro financial, risk assessment & compliance
with applicable laws & regulations.

Not started

- A service provider has been
contacted. The terms of the
agreement must be arranged and
agreed upon.

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

Not started

Charmaine
CFO

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

Various

Deloitte
CFO

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

Deloitte

31-Mar-10

29-Jan-10

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

05-Feb-10

IDP

IDP

IDP

IDP

- Minutes of council meetings where the IDP was approved

- Evidence that the public was given notice that the IDP was
adopted by council

- Evidence that the IDP was submitted to the MEC

- Minutes of all representative forum meetings held during
the financial year

Internal Auditing of Performance Measures

IDP

IDP

Budget

IDP

IDP

- Evidence that the local community were given 21 days to
comment on the draft IDP

The following information relating to the IDP was not
provided:
- Minutes of IDP steering committee meetings

The Service Delivery & Budget Implementation Plan did not
include service delivery targets and performance indicators.

Content of Integrated Development Plan (IDP)
The deadline dates set in the IDP for several key performance
indicators and targets were exceeded. No revisions of due
dates or explanations for not meeting the set deadlines were
provided.

These development priorities and objectives are not
measurable.

Management
controls over IDP

Management
controls over IDP

Management
controls over IDP

Management
controls over IDP

Management
controls over IDP

Management
controls over IDP

Management
controls over
budget

Management
controls over IDP

Management
controls over IDP

- Assess if the municipality has the
required skills in order to determine
the required delivery targets &
performance indicators
2

- Notify the relevant staff as to the
1
importance of keeping minutes of the
meetings & filing them for
safekeeping
- Notify the relevant staff as to the
1
requirements to notify the public that
the IDP was adopted by council, the
method in which the public must be
notified & the importance of keeping
supporting documentation as
evidence of this

- Minutes of all representative forum meetings
- Notify the relevant staff as to the
1
held during the year will be taken and filed for for importance of keeping minutes of the
safekeeping
meetings & filing them for
safekeeping

- The relevant evidence that the IDP was
- Notify the relevant staff as to the
1
submitted to the MEC will be filed for safekeeping importance of obtaining written
evidence that the IDP was submitted
to the MEC and filing it as supporting
documentation for safekeeping

- The relevant evidence/ supporting
documentation, verifying to the public the fact
that the IDP was adopted by council, will be filed
for safekeeping

- Minutes of the council meetings will be taken
and filed for for safekeeping

- Minutes of the IDP steering committee meetings - Notify the relevant staff as to the
1
will be taken and filed for for safekeeping
importance of keeping minutes of the
meetings & filing them for
safekeeping
- Notify the relevant staff as to the
1
- The relevant evidence/ supporting
requirements to give the community
documentation verifying the fact that the local
community were given 21 days to comment on the 21 days to comment on the draft IDP,
draft IDP will be filed for safekeeping
the method in which the community
must be notified & the importance of
keeping supporting documentation as
evidence of this.

- These targets will be supplied where possible;
- If necessary, the services of a service provider
will be tasked in order to calculate these targets
and indicators

1

- Communicate to the relevant staff, 1
the fact that the IDP must be
submitted for a high level review
before it is submitted as a final
document

- Compile a checklist of tasks and
- The relevant staff will be required to submit a
monthly report on the progress of the key
responsibilities to be performed
performance indicators and targets;
- On a monthly basis Management will review the
progress reports submitted by staff on the key
performance indicators and targets;
- Where dates or targets are exceeded, these will
either be amended or reasons will be provided &
documented

- A high level review of the IDP will take place
before it is submitted as final;
- The review will include a comparison to the
budget and other related documents;
- Where reguired, the help of a service provider
will be obtained

Not started

Not started

Not started

???

???

???

???

???

Not started

Not started

???

CFO

CFO

CFO

Not started

Not started

Not started

Not started

CFO

CFO

CFO

CFO

CFO

CFO

CFO

Celoitte

CFO

26-Mar-10

26-Mar-10

26-Mar-10

26-Mar-10

26-Mar-10

26-Mar-10

31-Mar-10

05-Feb-10

31-Mar-10

Performance information was not received for audit purposes Performance
as part of the AFS, therefore the reliability could not be
information
audited as part of the AFS.

Performance information not received

In contravention of section 45 of the MSA, the municipality did Internal Audit
not develop and implement mechanisms, systems & processes
for auditing the results of performance measurement as part
of its internal audit processes.

Management
controls

Management
controls

- A service provider will be appointed in order to
provide advice in this area

- Contact a service provider

- An Internal Auditor will be appointed who will be - Place an advert advertising the
tasked with auditing the results of performance
position of Internal Audit at the
measurement as part of the internal audit process Municipality

1

2

- A service provider has been
contacted. The terms of the
agreement must be arranged and
agreed upon.

Not started

Charmaine

Deloitte

HR Manager CFO

29-Jan-10

26-Feb-10

AUDIT REPORTS AND CORRECTIVE ACTIONS
The auditing of the financial statements for the period ended 30 June 2009 has commenced
and the Report of the Auditor-General of Sakhisizwe Municipality for the Financial Year
ended 30 June 2009 is attached hereto – See Chapter 4 Annexure B.
Corrective Actions
The Report of the Auditor-General is currently being attended to and appropriate remedial
interventions will be processed.
Challenges and general comments
•
•
•

•
•
•
•

•
•

•
•

The successful implementation of the Municipal Finance Management Act (MFMA) over
the next three (3) years. Management, senior staff and all Councillors will be trained in
the requirements of this Act.
The implementation and conversion to GRAP has been our challenge and to ensure
ongoing training of senior financial staff in terms of implementation - GRAP conversion /
implementation was achieved and deadlines met.
This department would proceeded with the implementation of GRAP in meeting of
deadlines regard the conversion. Senior financial staff would be sent for training on the
practical implementation thereof and if needed the expertise of external service
providers would be called upon to assist the department.
The taxation of rates on all properties and farmland is an exercise that continues to
present a challenge and will require extensive consultation and discussions before the
implementation can take place.
Various policies required in terms of new and existing legislation would be reviewed and
compiled with before being consulted with management, Council and community
stakeholders.
Training of staff within the Finance Department will continue as will the internship
programme with assistance of DBSA (Programme and National Treasury for 2 years)
Implementation of a comprehensive Information Technology (IT) System to complete
and train the employed IT Operator would be required.
The municipality performed asset verification and the itemising all infrastructure as at 30
June 2009. The municipality has assessed, as at 30 June 2009 whether items of property,
plant and equipment are impaired. The assets register is now GRAP compliant and
existing manual assets register as well as the inventory lists are being computerized by
means of bar coding for all movable assets.
Training has been undertaken in respect of the challenges of the MFMA and new Supply
Chain Management regulations, Performance Management and, IT.
The IDP (Integrated Development Plan) has been reviewed and the SDBIP’s (Service
Delivery Budget and Implementation Plans) have been developed and assessed as
required on a quarterly basis, in order to target and manage performance within the
organization.
Infrastructure development has been a constant challenge from a financial and resource
point of view but we remain remains focused, and development has occurred in many
areas.
Our biggest challenge relates to the Audit report. Based on the emphasis of matter
(contained within this report), concerns and administrative, governance and financial
weaknesses were highlighted and are urgently required to be addressed.
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Response to the Auditor General’s Report for the period
1 July 2008– 30 June 2009
Purpose
In terms of the Public Audit Act No 25 of 2004 and s121 (3)(g) of the Municipal Finance
Management Act, Act No 56 of 2003, it is required that the particulars of any corrective
action taken or to be taken in response to issues raised in the audit report, be included
within the annual report of the Municipality.
Detailed below are the comments in response to the Auditor-General’s Report with specific
reference to the numbering as it appears within the Audit Report.
Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion
Sakhisizwe Municipality received a disclaimer of opinion for the 2008-2009 Audit Report.
This audit opinion was received due to a number of issues, which will be detailed in the
report that follows. An indication of corrective action to be taken will be provided as a
response to the issues raised and will be detailed throughout this report. An extremely
thorough and specific account of the corrective action to be taken is detailed in the attached
audit action plan and for required detail it is imperative that this action plan, attached as
Annexure C be read together with this Audit Response Report.
Basis for disclaimer of opinion
Cash and cash equivalents
6

Unreconciled differences to the amount of R550 000 between the cash and cash
equivalents balance was reflected in note 21 to the Annual Financial Statements.
Formal internal controls and monitoring will be required to be undertaken to ensure
that formal reconciliations are done regularly.

Trade and other receivables
7.

A lack of updated consumer billing information has drawn into question the figures
of R18.2 million as trade and receivables. This amount contradicted receivables
figures of R40.9 million and lack of appropriate documentation prevents verification
and this therefore could not be rationalized.
Appropriate controls and the financial policy will be required to be enforced in order
to resolve these issues.

8.

A provision for doubtful debts of R13.7 million is disclosed in note 9 to the annual
financial statements. Additionally there was no compliance with GRAP requirements
in raising this provision.
Every effort will in future be made to ensure that provisions are dealt with in a GRAP
compliant manner.
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Value added tax (VAT)

9.

A VAT receivable of R1.5 million is reflected in note 7 to the annual financial
statements, however this amount cannot be verified and the municipality was
unable to provide schedules, calculations and supporting documentation to support
this disclosure. Supporting documentation for journal entries totalling R8 million
that were processed to the relevant VAT general ledger accounts were also not
provided.
It is clear that strict adherence to policy, procedure and systems is required in
order to maintain financial reporting and the maintenance and safekeeping of all
supporting documentation.

Property, plant and equipment (PPE)
6.

Inappropriate allocations of investment property. Property, plant and equipment
totalling R51.5 million was disclosed. Upon inspection it became apparent that
certain properties were incorrectly disclosed as investment property and additionally
property was not verified correctly as per GRAP requirements. These issues can only
be remedied by the correct allocation of investment property.

Trade payables
11.

Trade payables of R407 000 is included in note 3 to the annual financial statements. No
supporting documentation could be provided to support the write-off of creditors
totalling R1.9 million. Furthermore, journals to the value of R3 million were processed
without adequate supporting documentation. It was therefore not possible to
confirm all trade payables at the year end. Internal processes and controls and
maintenance of all supporting documentation will be the only way to remedy these
issues within the future.

Consumer deposits
12.

The lack of an accounting policy or consistent tariffs for consumer deposits has
resulted in great difficulties when reconciliation and verification is required. This
issue will be addressed through the development and application of an Accounting
Policy and specific processes and procedures relating to these areas.

Unspent conditional grants and receipts
Notes 13 -15 illustrated the lack of control regarding unspent conditional grants
and receipts. As a result of lack of control and an inability to illustrate detail
regarding grants received – reconciliations became extremely unreliable.
Adherence to internal controls and strict reporting will be the only way to remedy
these issues.
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Commitments
16.

No capital commitments were disclosed in notes 25 to the annual financial
statements. This issue will be resolved through strict adherence to the Supply Chain
Management Procedure and all related tender documents and procedures.

Leases
17.

Notes 17 and 18 refer to a number of issues relating to disclosure of financial
leases. When disclosed, in certain instances supporting documentation was
lacking and in other instances finance leases were incorrectly referred to as
operating leases. These inconsistencies will be resolved through strict
adherence to reporting protocol.

Accumulated surplus
19.

Failure to provide supporting documentation to verify accumulated surpluses
results in information that cannot be verified. In future, documentation provision
will be possible.

Revenue
In respect of revenue, the following items were highlighted as having inaccurate and nonsubstantiated information, which effectively resulted in inaccurate representations within
the financial statements.
o
o
o
o

Item 20: Rates
Item 22: Interest on arrears
Item 21: Service Charges (revenue from water, electricity, refuse and sanitation)
Item 23: Government Grants and Subsidies

No documentary evidence could be provided to support fluctuations in the recording of
monthly water, electricity, refuse or sanitation services revenue figures. Similarly no
evidence was provided to detail the inconsistencies between the number of consumers
charged in respect of these services and the monthly billings. Meter readings were
inconsistently taken and were found to be contrary to the accounting records. Service Level
Agreements governing the agency relationship with the District Municipality could also not
be provided regarding the sale of water on the municipalities’ behalf.
In terms of these service charges and aside from internal recording mechanism deficiencies
and the lack of internal controls, the following as per the Audit Plan will be undertaken :
•
•

Water & sanitation claims from Chris Hani District Municipality was reviewed and more
than R5Million was recovered during 2007/2008 and in 2008/2009 – R 4.5 Million was
recovered but R 1.8 Million remains outstanding
This activity and achievement enabled outstanding amounts owing to creditors to be
settled for the year ending June 2009.

Large discrepancies were found within the disclosure of Government Grants and Subsidies –
Government Grants to the amount of R28.3 million were allegedly provided. Reconciliations
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and explanations could not validate this, and reporting policies and controls will be required
to remedy this situation and to maintain required data and records.
Expenditure
As per note 24, payment vouchers and source documents for R3,4 million of the R20,6
million in respect of general expenses could not be verified. The Audit finding for this area
clearly shows that expenditure is not clearly recorded and in all areas of expenditure, this
detail cannot be accurately provided in order to validate and confirm expenditure reporting
within the annual financial statements. Current expenditure was incorrectly recorded as
capital expenditure and the like.
Detailed reporting as per financial policy and procedure prescripts will be recorded and
provided in future.
Irregular Expenditure
Irregular expenditure to the value of R13.7 million was not disclosed in the AFS this was
directly due to procurement processes. Procurement will hereafter be followed to the
letter. Irregular salary payments, and overtime payments will also need to be addressed
through standard record keeping and reporting controls and compliance with related
systems.
Employee costs and remuneration of councillors
26.

Employee costs of R12.4 million were disclosed in note 12 to the annual financial
statements. No reconciliation between the payroll system of the municipality and its
general ledger system could be provided. Additional audit procedures to reconcile
the respective balances of these systems were not successful. Journals in respect
of employee cost amounting to R14.6 million were also processed without adequate
supporting documentation. Internal control systems and recording procedures
are required to be strictly controlled.

Financial instruments
27.

The municipality did not to comply with the provisions of the International
Accounting Standards (IAS) 32 and 39 in respect of the disclosure, recognition
and measurement of financial instruments. Due to a lack of documentation it was
not possible to assess the impact of this non-disclosure on the financial
statements. Furthermore, the municipality did not disclose any items required by
the International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) 7, either in the statement of
financial position or in the notes to the annual financial statements. Compliance
issues will be required to be resolved within the new financial year.

Disclaimer of opinion
28.

The matters described as the basis for the disclaimer opinion have shown the lack of
documentary evidence to substantiate the Annual Financial Statements and as a
result the AG does not have sufficient evidence to be able to provide a basis for an
audit opinion nor an opinion on the Annual Financial Statements.
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Emphasis of matter
Attention is drawn to the areas where the AG does not express a disclaimer of opinion and
these are reflected hereafter:
Unauthorised expenditure
29.

Disclosed in note 23.1 to the annual financial statements is unauthorised
expenditure of R13.4 million that was incurred as sufficient monitoring did not
take place to ensure that actual expenditure exceeded the approved budget.
Unauthorised expenditure will not be condoned and strict controls will be
developed to prevent this.

Other matters
Unaudited supplementary schedules
30.

The supplementary information set out on pages 32 to 35 were not included in the
financial statements and is presented as additional information. These have not been
audited and accordingly no opinion regarding these was expressed.

Non-compliance with applicable legislation
There have been many areas of non-compliance and these relate to :
Municipal Finance Management Act, 2003 (Act No 56 of 2003) (MFMA)
As per note 31, the following sections of the MFMA were not complied with :
S79 (Delegation of Responsibilities) These will be remedied as per the Audit Plan.
Matters of governance
The following governance areas require suitable action:
Note .32 indicates that a number of Control deficiencies exist and must be rectified, which
will be done in the new financial year.
The table below details the basis for the disclaimer received:
Internal control deficiencies
33.

Section 62(1)(c)(i) of the MFMA states that the accounting officer must ensure
that the municipality has and maintains effective, efficient and transparent
systems of financial and risk management and internal control. The table below
depicts the root causes that gave rise to these deficiencies in the system of
internal control, which led to the disclaimer of opinion. The root causes are
categorised according to the five components of an effective system of internal
control. (The number listed per component can be followed with the legend
below the table.) In some instances deficiencies exist in more than one internal
control component.
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Par. no.

Basis for disclaimer of opinion

CE

RA

CA

8
9 & 11

Cash and cash equivalents

3

Trade and other receivables

3

10

Trade and other receivables - Journals

5

12

Trade and other receivables - Doubtful debts

7

13

Revenue

5

14

Interest on arrears

5

16

DoRA reconciliations

5

17

VAT

7

3

18

PPE and investment properties

6

19

PPE — Journals

7
5

20

Trade payables

5

21

Consumer deposits

22

Unspent conditional grants and receipts

5

23

Unspent conditional grants and receipts

7

25

Commitments

7

6

26

Leases

7

3

27

Accumulated surplus

7

5

29

Expenditure

5

3

30

Expenditure — classification

7

5

31

Irregular expenditure

7

3

IC

3

3
3

These issues will be addressed as per the attached Audit Plan.
Control environment
34.

Management did not establish and maintain an environment throughout
the municipality that was supportive of internal control and this resulted in
incorrect reporting. This will be addressed through Audit Action Plan.

35.

The non-submission of documentation and information was continuously
brought to the attention of management. This was mainly due to deficiencies
that existed in the filing and archiving system.

36.

Capacitation of staff has led to inaccurate functioning and this will be
addressed via mentorship and skills training.

Control activities
37.

Manual or automated controls were often not found in the municipality's
systems. These deficiencies were also not addressed even though they have
often been raised in prior audit reports. Policy and procedure frameworks
have not been created and implemented for all major accounting cycles.
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M

Proposed solutions to both environments have been incorporated into the
Audit Plan. These are summarised as follows:
•

The organisational structure does not address areas of responsibility and lines
of reporting to support effective control over financial reporting

•

Management and staff are not assigned appropriate levels of authority and
responsibility to facilitate control over financial reporting

•

Human resource policies do not facilitate effective recruitment and training,
disciplining and supervision of personnel

•

Integrity and ethical values have not been developed and are not
understood to set the standard for financial reporting

•

The accounting officer/accounting authority to exercise
responsibility over financial reporting and internal control

•

Management's philosophy and operating style to promote effective control
over financial reporting.

•

Individuals are required to be competent in financial reporting and related
matters – addressed through skills training.

•

Segregation of duties
misappropriation.

•

General information technology controls to maintain the integrity of the
information system and the security of the data

•

Manual or automated controls are not designed to ensure that the
transactions have occurred, are authorised, and are completely and
accurately processed

•

Actions to be taken to address risks to the achievement of financial
reporting objectives.

•

Control activities are not selected and developed to mitigate risks over
financial reporting

•

Policies and procedures relating to financial reporting are not established
and communicated

•

Realistic targets for financial performance measures, which are in turn not
linked to an effective reward system

to

prevent
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fraudulent

data

oversight

and

asset

Key Governance Responsibilities
Matter
A clear train of supporting documentation that is easily available and provided in a timely
manner
It is clearly evident that supporting documentation was not available for verification.
Through improved internal controls this will be required to be addressed within the new
financial year.
Quality of financial statements and related management information
Notes 2-3 reflect that the financial statements will be required to be amended as per the
audit report and the Annual Report was not submitted prior to the tabling of the Auditor’s
Report.
It is our commitment to ensure that timeframes are met and at this point to minimize
amendments to the financial statements.
Availability of key officials during audit
The unavailability of key officials to assist with the audit has made this process more difficult
and it is the intention of the organization to ensure that this is managed as an area of
priority.
Development and compliance with Risk Management, effective internal controls and
government practices
Notes 6-12 illustrate very clearly the need for an internal audit function that operates in
terms of the audit plan, and functions and complies with all terms of reference. These are
areas that will be easily set up and must then be carefully controlled.
Internal audit controls must be effectively and correctly designed and implemented in order
to safeguard against financial and risk management and to ensure legislative compliance
with applicable laws and regulations.
Accordingly it is also required that risk assessments are regularly conducted, in keeping with
a Risk Management Strategy which includes a Fraud Prevention Plan. Additionally,
Delegations of Responsibility are required to be developed and implemented.
Follow up of audit functions
As the previous years audit functions have not been adequately addressed it will be required
that this become a priority for future.
Issues relating to the reporting of performance information
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Notes 15-18 bear specific reference to the inadequate manner in which information systems
provide updated, correct, accurate and easily available performance information for
reporting purposes. Clearly every effort will have to be made to address this as a matter of
great urgency as the SDBIP quarterly reporting directly deals with the issues relating to
designated projects and work located within all departments.
A strategic plan will be required to be completed for the period under review annually in
order to establish targets and inform the budget and project related data.
It is in respect of the application of a Performance Management System that we beg to
differ with the information provided by the Auditor-General.
In keeping with policy, efforts have been made to ensure application of this system to the
designated s57 Managers. Performance Agreements, Scorecards and assessments are
conducted as required and it is merely refinement of this process that needs to occur --- as
per any standard review and update.
As per note 39 it is acknowledged that controls within Sakhisizwe do not adequately
support sound governance and accountability. The following issues will in future be
adhered to as per the Audit Action Plan:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

All information presented timeously for audit purposes and management;
The Management will present a copy of the Annual Report prior to the issuing of this
report and senior management staff will ensure that they are readily available
Financial reporting will be monitored at every level as per the Audit Plan and we have to
acknowledge that we are GRAP compliance although this is not adequately reflected in
the AG Report.
The Fraud Plan and Risk Assessment (to support the Risk Management Strategy) will be
conducted
The internal audit section will be created and staffed
The Municipality will continue to ensure that they make use of a shared audit committee
to manage these issues.
Internal controls will be improved through the design and implementation of controls refinance, risk assessment and legislative compliance.
The accounting record system will be improved in order to improve reporting used in the
AFS
All outstanding audit issues from the previous report will be remedied by an agreed date.
Systems to ensure the measurement of non-financial performance will be measured and
reported on.

Non-compliance with Regulatory Requirements
45.

Lack of adoption of Performance Management System, as already indicated,
application of this system is underway.
It is disputed that a Performance Management System does not exist – this has been
clearly highlighted.
Key performance indicators have been set for each of the development priorities
and objectives as set out in the integrated development plan. Development
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priorities and objectives of the municipality's integrated development plan are
consistent with the budget although targets could be more concise. Attention will
be paid to setting more measurable objectives.

Content of integrated development plan (IDP)
In terms of notes 46-48 the following areas of compliance are required:
•

Deadlines re – IDP and setting targets that will be met.

•

The 2008-09 Service Delivery and Budget Implementation Plan will include service
delivery targets and performance indicators.

•

The following information will be included:
o Minutes

of IDP steering committee meetings

o Evidence that the local community were given 21 days to comment on the draft IDP
o Minutes of council meetings where the 2008-09 IDP was approved
o Evidence

that the public was given notice that IDP was adopted by council

o Evidence

that the 2008-09 IDP was submitted to the MEC

o Minutes of all representative forum meetings held during the 2008- 09 financial year

Internal auditing of performance measurements
As per note 49, mechanisms and systems will be put in place to ensure the auditing of the
results of performance assessments as per Performance Management Policy.
Conclusion
As already indicated it is critical that efforts are in place to ensure that financial and internal
controls are available not just in terms of legislative compliance but in order to ensure the
ongoing financial health of the organization.
Strict adherence to the recommendations contained within the AG’s Report, our Response and
the Audit Action Plan will ensure that Sakhisizwe moves forward as an organization with sound
policies and controls and with full compliance on all fronts.
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CHAPTER 5.

FUNCTIONAL AREAS SERVICE DELIVERY
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5.1. IPED DEPARTMENT

DEPARTMENTAL MANAGER: S57: IPED
N SALENI
Each function will be examined within its respective section, as follows:
The IPED Services Department is responsible for the following:
KEY FOCUS AREAS
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Local Economic Development
Implementation and facilitation of IDP Projects
Effective monitoring of IDP Projects
Housing
Agricultural and rural development
Tourism
Libraries
Traffic Management: Law enforcement and Testing Station in the absence of Community
Services Manager (post remained vacant for more than three years).
Waste/refuse management
Parks & Public Open Space (Commonages/Pounds)
Sportsfields
Cemeteries

IDP Project
Management, reporting on all IDP and other agency-related projects.
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Objectives
•
•
•
•
•
•

Development of Departmental Service Delivery, Budget and Implementation – (Ensure
SDBIP are linked to IDP)
Input into development and annual review
Public participation
Involvement of internal and external role-players in the IDP review process - improving
Continuous improvement of IDP process – co-ordination and integration
Monitoring, supporting and reporting on the implementation process

IDP Projects
•
•

Existing projects have continued under the year under review – no new projects were
implemented during the year under review due to financial constraints
Funding constraints remain to be a challenge – no budget provided for the reviewal of
the IDP and related processes

HOUSING (Projects) Housing function is now Administered and Funded by DPLG
Sakhisizwe are only required to facilitate certain processes and to provide land for same
developments
Objectives
•
•
•

Facilitate access to adequate housing – allocation of Land, facilitate transfer issues land
SMME grouping /emerging contractors benefits from the projects
Elliot Pholar Park (Ward 1 and 2) – 800 houses – R20 Million allocated, 300 completed
Sakhisizwe Housing Extension – Wards 13,14 and 15 – R50 Million allocated – 5000 units
completed - further development and progress administered by DPLG.

Challenges and general comments
•

Housing of the poor is an area of concern – virtually every town, settlement or village is
faced with a shortage in low-cost housing. The following are the gaps that still need to
be bridged in terms of housing provision.
Ward 1
Ward 2
Ward 3
Ward 4
Ward 5
Ward 6
Ward 7

1200 houses
800 houses
1000 houses
1725 houses
800 houses
2050 houses
1000 houses

Total housing backlog is estimated to be 4250.
•
•
•

Allocation of beneficiaries – established database and handed over houses to small
number of beneficiaries (no statistics/record of number of beneficiaries provided on
same)
Funding constraints – securing funds
Slow progress by developers /funders
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•
•
•
•
•
•

Problems with contractor and shortage of materials
Availability of land – slow land identification and development
Lack of capacity
Limited capacity for services (bulk services)
Poor access roads
HIV/AIDS crisis

LOCAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, TOURISM AND AGRICULTURE
Background
Responsible for all activities associated with economic development activities. This section
is responsible for :
•

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Organizing meetings and workshops involving economic development, planning
organizations and SMME’s (e.g. training and lending organizations). Explore possible
access support from various funding windows – form partnerships at district level and
with European Union and NGO’s.
Analyzing and reviewing all By-Laws or legislation, which appears to retard or promote
economic growth and development.
Analyzing land accessibility, availability and infrastructure in order to discover the most
appropriate areas in which to drive the concept of economic development.
Developing strategies through research studies within similar framework, to ensure
programmes success.
Developing action plans to ensure programmes success.
Interacting with community forums to promote SMME development
Formulating an informal trading policy and promoting trading facilities
To ensure enhancement of Tourism potential
SMME database profiles are developed and maintained

Strategic objectives
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Plan to form Section 21 Company (LED related)
Identify stakeholders
Link LED plans with Tourism programmes
SMME development
Capacity building – enhance forming skills – enhance capacity of LTO’s
LED strategy and Tourism strategy – Not done
Facilitating and promoting investments and lobby for funds
Mobilizing development stakeholders and marketing the Municipal area
Collecting development information and research
Establish Tourism Information Centres
Establish Arts and Culture Centres
Diversify agricultural activities/commodity production
Integrate tourism, agriculture, SMME and IDP
45% of arable land under resuscitation – programme to promote economic activity
To position the municipal area within the market on citrus farming
Develop architectural development plan
Capacity Building
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•
•
•
•

•

•

Develop irrigation schemes
Majority of projects are funded by the Chris HANI district Municipality and during
2008/2009 28 Nguni Bulls per ward, per village are planned IDP project for 2008/2009 a
costs of one million rand
Two shearing sheds have been built – one in Zikhonkwane – ward 3 at a costs of R 500
000 and one in upper Indwana - ward 7 at a costs of R 500 000.The shearing sheds are
built as per the number of bails produced during the sheering season.
Cala Abattoir this project has made no progress for the past three years. The CHDM is
the developer and “owner of the project – a signed agreement between CHDM and
Ntinga Ntaka (partner) - one million has been allocated to finalize the building of the
Abattoir.
Sakhisizwe Greening project: The project covers the installation of refuse bins, greening
of towns and improvement of Thompson Dam --seven million has been approved from
DEAT .The consultant has advised that the contractor would be on site by January
2009.This project has taken time to implement and it hoped that progress will be made
during 2008/2009 financial year
The municipality have partnered with DBSA and employed a service provider to develop
a tourism sector plan, it was planned that this plan was to be completed in the
2007/2008 financial year – this has however, not occured in the 2008/2009/ financial
either. The service provider appointed does infact not have the capacity to develop the
plan and it hoped that measures will be put in place address this with the service
provider. It planned to complete tourism sector plan during the 2009/2010 financial year.

Challenges
•
•
•
•

Funding constraints have prevented the implementation of any new projects.
Staff shortages in the IPED department – the s57 Manager is required to manage
strategic functions of the department and staff are shared with the Technical
department.
The appointment of an LED Officer requires urgent attention and has now become
critical - as it is affecting the functioning of the LED section
Service provider appointed to develop the tourism sector plan does not have the
capacity and has failed to meet required deadlines for development of tourism sector
plan.

Traffic and related functions: Law Enforcement & Testing Station
Ensuring that Road Traffic Act and related functions are performed according to strict policy
and adherence to legislation.
Objectives 2008/2009
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Increase Roadworthy’s
Increased learner drivers licenses by 20%.
Law Enforcement focus and drives to educate public
To ensure signage is compliant in the municipal area
Promote Road and Safety Campaigns
To maintain traffic signs and street signs
Improve infrastructure and capacity at the testing station
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General Comments
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Satus Quo remains in such division
Statistics could only be provided for 2007/2008 FY as follows:
Roadworthy’s – vehicles (including trailers) – 120 processed. Buses – 6 processed and
goods vehicles – 9 processed
Learner license figures escalated
Drivers license issues increased
Shortage of staff impacts on ability to perform law enforcement function
Infrastructure
Funding constraints
Lack of management and control
No standing orders and procedures in place
Recording keeping filling not done
No reliable statics could be obtained for 2008/2009 financial year
Serious intervention required

MOTOR VEHICLE LICENSING
Apart from the roadworthy’s driver’s licenses, etc, performed at the Grade A Traffic Test
Station situated in Elliot, the NATIS motor vehicle registration facility service is also rendered
by Council on an agency basis for the Department of Transport in Elliot. Plans are in place to
extend and upgrade this facility.
eNaTIS MOTOR VEHICLE LICENSING
The Key Performance Indicators set are :
•
•
•

Avail facilities for the licensing of motor vehicles
Maintain and perform National Traffic Information System (NATIS) on behalf of the
Department of Transport
Train staff to operate NATIS System

Challenges and general comments
•
•

Infrastructure and equipment shortages
Training of staff on NATIS

LIBRARIES
•

The strategic objective of this function is the provision of reading and study material and
to promote reading amongst the youth.
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Section Objectives (2008/2009)
•
•
•
•
•

Maintenance of the library buildings at Elliot and Cala and the supply of library materials.
Establishment library committees and promotion partnership with DSRAC.
Promotion of and participation in the library week activities scheduled.
Acquisition of equipment for the libraries.
Installation of alarm systems within the libraries

Challenges and general comments
•
•
•
•
•

Receipt of Government subsidy allowed for purchase of library materials.
Libraries in both Elliot and Cala have been improved by DSRAC.
Elliot library is currently under renovation.
As part of a capacity building programme an intern has been appointed for a period of
three years in the Cala Library.
CCTV Camera have been installed

Nature and extent of facilities provided
•
•

Elliot 1 facility – users not determined
Cala 1 facility – users not determined

COMMUNITY HALLS
The overriding objectives of this function are to provide new multi-purpose facilities within
the rural areas and to ensure that existing facilities are maintained.
Section objectives (2008/2009)
1.
2.
4.
5.
7.
8.
9.

Upgrade and maintain existing halls and municipal buildings
Upgrading and construction of schools
Upgrading and construction of schools
Provide standard Community Halls in all 7 Wards
Rehabilitation of Town Hall and Municipal Manager’s residence
Upgrade pre-school facilities
Establish ABET Centres in each Ward

Nature and extent of facilities (Community Halls) provided :
•
•

Elliot
Cala

2
1

HEALTH/HIV/AIDS
Background
The service is responsible for the provision of clinic services at the three (3) Clinics in Elliot.
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The function for the provision of community health clinics within the municipality is
administered as follows and includes :
•
•
•
•
•

Agency relationships with the Provincial Department of Health of the Eastern Cape
Unit management including in-service training to staff
Report on daily activities
Monthly reports/statistics
Quarterly TB statistics

The overall objectives of this function are to ensure a healthy environment and that primary
health services and facilities are available.
Strategic Objectives
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

To expand and improve the Health Care Services Comprehensive Integrated Health Care
Service
Ensure optimal primary health for all citizens, ensuring they reach all areas and
inhabitants
Investing in the training of staff in order to ensure development of skills, thereby
contributing to quality in service delivery
Regular HIV/AIDS forum meetings and provision HIV/AIDS Awareness Training,
counseling and implementing HIV/AIDS programme and campaigns.
Training of HIV/AIDS peer educators
Development of HIV/AIDS Policy in the workplace.
Water quality monitoring program
Inspection of business premises to ensure food preparation is done within health
requirements
Establishment of Health Committees
Health Promotion Programmes

Challenges and general comments
•
•
•
•
•
•

Shortage of qualified clinic staff
HIV /AIDS Co – ordinator appointed
Shortage of equipment and resources
Shortage of medicines
Buildings require rehabilitation
Lack of reliable statistics
• 5000 + per month patients attended to at the 3 Clinics in Elliot Inadequate funding
• The department has built three new clinics in Sakhisizwe Municipal Area – this will
improve service delivery in respect of Health.
• IDP planned & funded SPU related projects for 2008/2009 FY – R 200 000 Funding
Source Sector Department: social Development (Projects relate to Early childhood
Development & HIV /Aids)
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CEMETERIES
The overall objectives of this function are to provide and control burials within the
framework of the Health Act and ensure provision of adequate cemeteries.
Strategic objectives (2008/2009)
•
•
•
•
•
•

Development of cemeteries within Sakhisizwe Municipal area
Rehabilitation of cemetery at Pholar Park and Hillview area
Control and maintenance of statistical burial records
Pauper burial policy to be established
Control of illegal burials
Security and fencing of cemeteries

Nature and extent of facilities provided
•
•
•
•

Cala
Hillview
Old Location
Elliot (town)

2 Facilities
1 Facility
1 Facility
1 Facility

Challenges and general comments
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Elliot cemeteries at full capacity
Cala cemetery - 90% capacity
2000 burials a year
Lack of available land – requires identification
Statistics reveal 106 burials are legal, 90% are illegal
Tariff structure differ – requires review
No proper statistics/recording in place

SPORT AND RECREATION FACILITIES
The overall objectives of this function are to provide basic sport and recreation facilities
within the whole of Sakhisizwe Municipality.
Strategic Objectives (2008/2009)
•
•
•

Establish sufficient social and recreational facilities
Development and maintenance and administration of facilities
Fencing and security of facilities

Nature and extent of facilities provided
•
•
•
•
•
•

Elliot 1 Facility (utilised weekly)
Cala 1 Facility in Cala with indoor facilities
10 Planned new sportsfields
Caravan facilities sub standard
Shortage of staff
No statistics of facility use
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•
•

Traffic structure reviewed
Maintenance not performed regularly to facilities maintenance plan

PARKS AND PUBLIC OPEN SPACES
The overall objectives of this function are to provide and maintain parks and open spaces
creating a pleasant environment for the communities.
Strategic Objectives (2008/2009)
•
•
•
•

Renovations of the caravan park in Elliot
Planting and pruning of the trees along municipal streets within Sakhisizwe according to
schedule – planting trees in are prone to disaster
Regular cutting of grass on sidewalks, cemeteries, sportsfields and open spaces as per
schedules (Jan – April) and (Sept – Dec).
Obtaining funding needed for planting trees and flowers (budget)

Challenges and general comments
•
•
•

Function not managed and co-ordinated – housed in incorrect department – no control –
partially in IPED, partially Technical
Shortage of staff – shared with Technical services
Lack of equipment and funding - affecting service delivery.

COMMONAGES AND POUNDS
The overall objectives of this function are to manage commonages within Sakhisizwe
Municipality and to extend the commonage behind Ext 8 to 12 in Cala and to maintain the
pounds.
Strategic objectives (2008/2009)
•
•
•
•
•

Negotiate with small farmers
Fencing of commonages and pounds – fencing Cala remains a challenge and Fencing in
Elliot is ageing
Containment of stray animals
Review/Revisit tariff structure
Curb overtime

WASTE MANAGEMENT: SOLID WASTE AND REFUSE
The overall objectives of this function are to provide an effective, efficient and affordable
service to the communities within Sakhisizwe.
This service is responsible for refuse removals, solid waste disposal, landfill and street
cleaning in the towns within Sakhisizwe Municipality.
The refuse collection functions of the Municipality are administered as follows and include :
•

Daily refuse removal in Cala (according to schedule)
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•
•
•
•

Weekly household refuse removals and daily business removals
Daily cleaning of streets with the assistance of volunteers working in three towns
Maintaining and opening of furrows and culverts on regular basis
The management of the waste disposal site in accordance with prescribed Rules and
Regulations

Strategic objectives
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Engage Sectoral Departments
To obtain a feasibility study for a refuse site
The management of the solid waste sites within prescribed guidelines
Regular refuse removals
Daily clearing of litter in streets
Purchasing of vehicles for waste
Register solid waste sites – obtain permits for sites
Develop waste management plan
Waste minimization education
Fencing of sites
Revise Waste By-Law
Recycling facilities
Waste minimization Education Programmes
Formalize integrated environmental management plan
Develop functional solid waste site at Cala

Nature and extent of facilities provided
Number of households receiving regular removal services and frequency and cost of services
4700: R 1, 86,3 000 (Operating expenditure by vote)
•

Removed commercial and residential arrears at least once a week – 4700

Free Basic Services Provision
•

Quantity (number of households affected):4700

Challenges and general comments
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Solid waste site not fully operational – functions are shared between IPED & Technical
Manager
No waste Management Plan
Illegal dumping
Shortage of vehicles and Financial constraints
No waste minimization education programmes
Lack of staff – lack control over refuse collection
No recycling facilities
Insufficient refuse receptacles in CBD
Formalize Environmental Management Plan
EHO is seconded through CHDM to enforce cleanliness of premises
Job Creation: appointment of +-40 casual participants to assist with clean up campaigns
177

5.2. CORPORATE SERVICES DEPARTMENT

DEPARTMENTAL MANAGER: S57
N MAZWAYI
The Corporate Services Department is responsible for the following:
KEY FOCUS AREAS :
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Human Resources
Labour Relations
Skills Development
Employment Equity
Occupational Health & Safety
General Administration
Transport Management
Performance Management System (assists the Office of the MM)

Human Resources
Human Resources :

Benefit Administration
Recruitment & Selection
Organisational Development and Structure
Staff Provisioning
Employee Assistance Programme
Policy Development

Objectives (2008/2009)
•
•

Development of Procedure Manuals and Policies
Skills Audit/needs analysis conducted – conducted - Achieved.
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•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Annual updates on Skills Audit/needs analysis to conducted
Workshop and train staff on procedure manuals and policies
Effective and efficient implementation of recruitment and selection processes and
procedures
Develop strategies to deal with scarcity of skills and retention of skilled employees
Reviewed organizational structure so that it is aligned to the IDP
Complete submission of job descriptions to the PJEC for evaluation – Achieved outcomes
report received.
Educate all supervisors as to the Employee Assistance Programme
Strengthening of internal campaign to educate employees re HIV/AIDS and develop a HIV
/Aids Policy - HIV /AIDS co – ordinator appointed and committee established.
Updating procedures and policies and workshopping these to Council prior to adoption
Report and submit approved Employment Equity Plan to Employment Equity Registry by
1 October 2009 – complied with.
Workplace skills plan and bi - annual implementation report submitted to LGWSETA –
achieved.
Implement electronic (HR System and document management system) (specifically
linked to payroll and leave administration) – assistance provided to Corporate Services
Department from Budget & Treasury Department - still to be achieved
Implement electronic leave management system on SEBATA - assistance provided to
Corporate Services Department form Budget & Treasury Department – still to be
achieved
Provided access on SEBATA system to administer and capture leave and access to
various enquiry screens for payroll administration – requires urgent as it has financial
implications for Council.

Labour Relations
Strategy 2008/2009
•

Ensuring the implementation of Labour Relations Policy and practices in a manner, which
is just and fair.

•

Create understanding and facilitate employer-employee relationship to resolve disputes
and to create a conducive environment.

Labour Relations – General comments and challenges.
•

1 grievance cases

•

2 cases of theft

•

1 Dismissal

•

85 dismissal illegal strike – reinstated

•

Capacity of senior staff/Supervisory in implementing Policy

•

Staff not following policy
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•

Focus on developing and growing the capacity of staff from within this section

Skills Development and Employment Equity
This function ensures the planning and execution of skills development by ensuring that the
Workplace Skills Plan is implemented.
Objectives 2008/2009
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Workplace Skills Plan 2008/2009
Submission of Implementation Plan (June and September 2009)
To implement internship and in-service programme and appoint Interns on an annual
basis
Develop and implement ABET programme
Implement planned Training programmes
Employment Equity Plan to be developed
Employment Equity report to be submitted (in required, legislated format)
Analysis report of gaps in plan
Create required infrastructure, support and understanding of Employment Equity

•

The following Training programmes were conducted:
Training Intervention

Number of
beneficiaries

Finance
Supply Chain
Office Administration
Report Writing and minute taking
HR course
Councillors

5
3
1
2
1
13

Interventions
Media essential tools
Certificate programme in management
development
IDP

1
1
13

Interventions are ongoing and continued during 2008/2009
•

SDF was appointed during the year under review and skills audit and needs analysis was
conducted by appointed consultants.

General Comments
•
•
•
•
•

Several Tertiary Institution Students were assisted with In-Service Training/learning
opportunities
Challenges in ongoing commitment to ensure attendance of ABET classes
Training delivery well received
Councillors continue to attend SALGA Workshops at various times – relevant to their
portfolios and relevant to related Budget Policy Investment Policy and Tariff policies.
Councillors trained and workshopped on financial policies.
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•

Sakhisizwe Municipality does have an Employment Equity Plan in place and has complied
with progress reporting. Employment Equity reports have been submitted to the Local
Labour Forum, Management and Council and same was submitted to the Employment
Equity Registry.

Occupational Health & Safety
Ensuring compliance with the Occupational Health and Safety Act.
Objectives 2008/2009
•
•
•

Monitor usage of safety equipment
Health & Safety Committee Meeting as scheduled
Inspection reports are submitted monthly

Challenges
•
•
•
•

Further training in all aspects of OHS
Ensuring that safety compliance occurs e.g. wearing safety equipment
Ensuring safety representatives perform monthly inspection and reports are issued
Risk analysis is done

General Administration
To ensure that the archives function is effectively and correctly managed.
Objectives 2008/2009
•
•
•
•

Application for disposal for outdated archives
Obtain additional space to store security cabinets
Submit reviewed filing system to Provincial Archives
Improve efficiency and effectiveness of Council agendas and minute taking processes

Challenges
•

Records Management System is outdated and not up to standard and has deteriorated.
This has posed a danger to organization insofar as institutional memory is concerned.

•

No progress with Electronic Document System - Corporate Service Function

•

Capacity of the staff member placed in this strategic position requires capacity
development

Performance Management (Managed by the Municipal Manager’s Office with assistance of
Corporate Services
To ensure that a performance management system is applied at all designated areas and
within service delivery mechanisms, as per legislative requirements.
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Objectives 2008/2009
•
•
•
•

Performance Management System to be implemented effectively from top to middle
management
Implement PMS Policy
Introduction and implementation of Service Delivery and Budget Implementation Plans
of desired quality.
Establish an independent performance audit committee to assess performance of
Managers

Challenges and General Comments
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

The regulated PMS system was introduced and piloted; it was only affected for top
management – s57 Managers. – further customization is required (scorecards and the
like)
Scorecards were aligned to Service Delivery and Implementation Plan and scorecards
were aligned to national indicators.
SDBIP structure requires review (formatted to include national indicators and
performance service delivery targets so as to ensure that populated scorecards are
aligned to same
Capacity of and financial constraints remain a challenge.
Review and further customization of the system.
Phasing in of the system required
PMS Policy developed, workshopped and approved – communication strategy and
training required at all levels
Annual PMS evaluations conducted
Quarterly evaluations not conducted – no PDP`s in place
Annual PMS Reporting complied with in relation to annual performance evaluations of
s57 Managers - compliance issues require attention.
No formal auditing on PMS evaluation results undertaken

Corporate Governance
Ensuring that governance issues are processed correctly internally.
Objectives 2008/2009
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Review of By-Laws
Establish Internal Audit Committee – not established
Remuneration Policy – established
Fraud Prevention Policy – not developed - Fraud Prevention Policy to be developed
Establish Register of Interest – Developed
Internal Audit Committee not established. Negotiations with CHDM to share function
Capacity and funding constraints
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General comments and challenges
•
•

Satus quo remains - Eleven By-Laws reviewed and developed. Seven have been
gazetted.
Ward Committee established and functioning received training. CDW`s in each Ward

Transport/Fleet Management
Ensuring the provision of transport and a well-maintained roadworthy Municipal fleet –
enabling service delivery.
Objectives
•
•
•

Provision of roadworthy and well maintained vehicles
Optimizing vehicle availability by efficient monitoring – serving, repairs and vehicle
replacements and fleet/transport administration
Develop Fleet Management Policy

General comments and challenges
•
•
•
•
•

Fleet Management Policy in place – implemented
Capacity of staff member appointed to position
All passenger vehicles damaged in hailstorm not roadworthy – resultant effect on service
delivery – vehicles not maintained regularly
Driver education – no monitoring mechanism in place
Ageing Municipal fleet
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5.3. TECHNICAL SERVICES

DEPARTMENTAL MANAGER: S57: TECHNICAL
X MNTONINTSHI
Objective
The overall objective of the Technical Services Department is to supply efficient, effective and
economical services to the community, which it serves.

Key Focus Areas
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Electricity distribution – licensed areas only
Street lighting
Roads construction and maintenance – municipal and access roads
Stormwater and pavement construction
Town Planning – Building control, zonings, consolidations, sub-division, spatial
development
Municipal Planning – Integrated Development Planning and other planning in
conjunction with various departments
Water Provision – bulk, treatment and reticulation
Sanitation – Sewerage removal and treatment

The provision of water and sanitation services is in the urban areas only, as a Water Services
Provider appointed until June 2006 by the CHDM District Municipality, who are the Water
Services Authority.
The department is responsible for the ongoing operation and maintenance of the above
services, as well as capital projects undertaken. It should, however, be noted that water and
sanitation capital projects fall under the CHDM District Municipality.
The IDP review was completed and adopted within legislative requirements - no new IDP
projects were implemented during 2007/2008 financial year.
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FUNDING
The operation and maintenance costs are funded through the Municipalities internal
funding, which is derived from service charges, equitable share allocation under the Division
of Revenue Act and Rates and Taxes. Capital Projects are undertaken with internal
resources and Municipal Infrastructure Grants (MIG conditional grants).
The following projects have been registered with MIG in 2007/2008 and carried over to into
the 2008/2009 financial year:
PROJECT
Cala Grave Roads and Stormwater
Masibambane and old location construction of grave
Maxhongo Hoek Access Road Ward 2E
Cala Gravel Roads and Stormwater Phase 2
Upper Lufuta/Rolwest St., Phillips Access Road
Xonya to Macangceni Access Road
Bhobho Access Road
Bestekraal Access Road
Cala Reserve Community Hall, Ward 4
Cala Pass Community Hall, Ward 3
Old Township Community Hall, Ward 2
Polar Park Community Hall, Ward 1
Mbhenge Access Road
Kuthule Access Road
Ndum-Ndum Access Road
Mjikelo Access Road
Gareni to Upper Mnxe Access Road
Roma Spafeni Access Road
Manzamahle to Dolophini Access Road
Veris Access Road
Polar Park Access Road
Ncakula Access Road
Makhwesthubeni Access Road
NewRest Access Road
Delville-Qithi Access Road
Mnxe Mission Access Road
Upper Lufita Rowest ST Phillips
Mfamfengwini to Qolombeni Access Road
Bhobho Access Road
Besterkraal Access Road
Cala Reserve Community Hall
Kuthuleni Access Road
Ncalika Access Road
Xonya to Macangceni

DATE
10-09-2007
03-10-2007
14-11-2007
14-11-2007
14-11-2007
12-11-2008
12-11-2008
12-11-2008
12-11-2008
21-11-2008
21-11-2008
21-11-2008
21-11-2008
12-11-2008
21-11-2008
08-12-2008
12-06-2009
16-12-2008
21-11-2008
21-11-2008
12-11-2008
12-11-2008
21-11-2008
17-06-2009
17-06-2009
02-07-2009

VALUE
4,161,174.77
2,649,402.58
6,384,026.38
739,455.00
6,255,000.00
1,765,947.11
17,456,344.00
2,295,675.00
2,073,511.00
861,840.00
4,458,309.00
1,106,584.00
2,962,894.62
1,284,052.00
2,000,000.00
4,414,999.42
1,500,000.00
6,000,000.00
5,792,000.00
1,026,000.00
1,893,540.00
1,802,340.00
1,883,440.00
1,893,540.00
1,802,340.00
1,883,440.00
6 225000.00
2 649 402.58
739 455.00
2 295 675.00
1 802 340.00
1 026 000.00
1 765 947.00
2872 455.41

The appointment of a PMU Managers is required to fast - tracked as funding has been
claimed for this purpose since April 2008.The incumbent will manage the PMU Unit and
manage projects funded from MIG Grants – Procurement processes of a PMU Manager was
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started in 2008/2009 financial year but had not completed within in same year – i.e. by June
2009.
ELECTRICITY & STREET LIGHTING
During 2007/2008 financial year Africon carried out a independent technical audit on
business assessment and condition assessment on electricity distribution within Sakhisizwe
municipal area. The aim was at developing capacity within municipalities to achieve
sustained compliance with electricity service delivery standards That being said, it must also
be noted that the Service Providers had difficulty in auditing this, due to some deficiencies in
the recording of required data, which in most cases led to little or no data to support some
required evidence, this may have also contributed to misinterpretation in the Audit
evidence.
Summary of the Audit results revealed that:
Sakhisizwe Electricity has a maximum demand of 1.6 MVA, serving 527 customers. The
network consists of 22 kV medium and 400 V low voltage reticulation network. There are no
substations or mini-substations in the network. The estimated condition backlog is R2.2 m.
Gross revenues are not available.
Sakhisizwe Electricity Department’s overall business practices and systems fall far below
the recommended practice for a Municipality of it’s size.
The electrical network is approximately 38 years old. The 400V overhead lines are very old
and have lots of joints of which most are not properly done, which may affect the
reliability of the network. The 22kV overhead lines are generally in good condition.
Wooden poles of the 400V system need to be replaced due to age and the steel poles
need maintenance due to rust.
Section Objectives
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Provide electricity to +- 90% residential and commercial consumers, industrial and
smallholdings
Provide public lighting to Elliot and surrounds
New connections done on request in licensed areas
Ongoing maintenance of existing networks
The rural areas of Sakhisizwe Municipality are within the licensed area of ESKOM and will
remain so in the foreseeable future
Maintenance of existing public lighting
Extension of public lighting systems
Maintenance and renewal of public buildings electrical installations, when require
High mast lighting and electrical installations

Electricity challenges and general comments
•
•
•
•
•

Most households rely on paraffin and candles
Backlogs 49 820 and Indigent backlogs 39 200
Lack of efficient electricity – impact on environment due to harvesting of unrenewable
wood sources
Network ageing requires upgrade – current weak to cater for demands
ESKOM do not want to commit to project in the area
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•

Street lighting 90% functional and not maintained – do not have Cherry Pickers to
perform maintenance function

•

Availability of skilled staff

•

Adequate staff training are significant challenges. The Electrical Services Department’s
funding is limited to last year’s budget plus 5%.

•

Lack of commitment in terms of long term planning. The priority seems to be on
immediate service delivery issues.

•

Little control over electricity and copper theft this challenge

•

Improve on Asset management Culture – development asset management plan and
register (conversion to GRAP) was completed in 208/2009 FY and being managed by the
Budget & Treasury Office

•

Lack of adequate project funding and prioritisation - Develop a clear funding strategy
for growth, service level changes, asset maintenance and renewals

•

Electricity master plan needs to be updated. The compilation of a master plan that
addresses future demand/capacity, backlog eradication and refurbishment..

•

No safety management and several safety breaches – requires urgent attention – status
quo remains for 2008/2009 FY – plans to be put in implemented to address safety
breaches
Several transformers feeders were not protected with circuit breakers due to lack of
funds, which is totally unacceptable. This is a very high risk to the assets and represents
a serious safety issue for the public as well as Department staff.

•

•

•
•

In general the transformers in the network are old, with evidence of severe oil leaks,
and require proper maintenance. Several transformer feeders were not protected
with circuit breakers due to lack of funds, which is totally unacceptable. This is a very
serious risk to the assets and poses safety issues for the public as well as the
Department staff.
The wooden poles and cross arms of the 22 kV and 400 V network are old. Steel
poles and cross arms are rusted.
There are several joints evident in the overhead lines (400 V overhead), which reduce
reliability because some joints are not done properly

Major components in the distribution system network have relatively high condition
backlog:
•
Pole Mounted Transformers 19%
•
Overhead Lines
8%
•
Some transformers are seriously leaking oil and need attention.
•
Minor maintenance is required on the transformers that are rusted.
•
Transformers are not well protected because of missing surge arrestors
•
Allocation of funds for maintenance of the network to ensure a safe distribution
system.
•
The move away from reactive maintenance strategy to a preventative
maintenance strategy. It is recommended that the staff and funding needs be
addressed and solved in order to do this.
•
The lack of funds for the management of assets is a constraint for the
implementation of all asset management activities. The funding problems need
to be addressed first based on data from an asset register.
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ROADS AND STORMWATER
Section Objectives
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Maintenance and reconstruction of gravel and surfaced roads
Construction of sidewalks
Construction of Stormwater systems
Construction of bridges and river crossings
Maintenance of road furniture
Planning and design of new projects
Purchase of new plant and equipment
Rehabilitation of road – potholes
Resurface gravel roads

Challenges and general comments
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Road between Cala and Lady Frere has been resurfaced by Department of Transport
Department has had no Manager in place for more than 1 year
Stormwater drainage poor
Poorly maintained roads
Damaged bridges
Potholes
Lack of proper road network
Mainly gravel – muddy during rainfalls or snowfalls
Storm drainage canals blocked – contribute to road erosion. Low level bridges become
flooded due to pipes not scoured
The project of Cala Roads and Stormwater commenced after the year under review -commenced in September 2008.The project is currently sitting at 40 % completion – Job
will be created for approximately 40 local labourers in wards 3 and 5 – it planned that
project will be completed in the 2008/2009 financial year.

WATER
Section objectives
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

CHDM is the Water Services Authority – Sakhisizwe appointed on an agency basis to
reticulate until Section 78 process completed – completed after the financial year under
review
Water purification is undertaken at Elliot and Cala
Bulk water is supplied to Elliot and Cala
Outlying water is supplied by DWAF, Chris Hani District Municipality and Amatola Water
but reticulated by Sakhisizwe
Potable water is reticulated to 3 455 households within the Sakhisizwe area:
Masibambane1 763, Metered Elliot 865, Pholar Park 29, metered Cala 798
New connections are done upon application
Infrastructure is the responsibility of the Water Services Authority
Rural areas fall under Amatola Water, who were appointed by the CHDM
Maintenance of purification works and reticulation systems
Optimisation of treatment works and augmentation and expansion of distribution
networks to ensure adequate supply
Implementing preventative maintenance programmes
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•
•
•
•

Curb water shortages
Development water master plan
Purchase vehicles and equipment
Build dams and reservoirs and planned pipeline extensions

Challenges and general comments
•

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Water shortage – severe water shortages experienced due to major burst pipe in the
main line next to Tsomo resource dam -- however due to capacity and staff shortage
issues this matter was not reported or attended to timeously - this affected the hospital
and surrounding business in the municipal area.
Shortage of dams and reservoirs
Old aging infrastructure, vehicles and equipment
Skilled staff/qualified staff
Culture non payment remains – cuts off’s are implemented regularly
Water backlogs
Illegal connections and meter tampering – no fines implemented
Poorly maintained pumps
3 128 receive subsidies
Backlogs:

BACKLOGS
•

WATER
100 % Households with access to potable
water in Urban areas

•

Backlogs: 6720
Target; 6720
Customers reached during FY: 90%
Percentage achieved during FY: 90%

•

75% Indigents with access to free basic
services

•

Backlogs: 49280
Target; 49280
Customers reached during FY: 12%
Percentage achieved during FY: 25%

•

70% Clinics with access to potable water

•

•

50% Schools with access to potable water

•

•

0% households using buckets

•

Backlogs: 20
Target; 20
Customers reached during FY: 20
Percentage achieved during FY: 30%
Backlogs: 50
Target; 50
Customers reached during FY: 30
Percentage achieved during FY: 30%
Backlogs: 0

SANITATION
Section objectives
•

The Sakhisizwe Municipality is the appointed Water Services Provider by the Water
Services Authority (Chris Hani District Municipality) on an annual basis until the Section
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•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

78 process is completed and this includes provision of sanitation services in the
delegated areas of Elliot and Cala
The rural areas fall directly under the Water Services Authority
Infrastructure projects are the responsibility of the Water Services Authority
New connections are done upon request as there is no real backlog although a large
percentage are below RDP standards
Maintenance of ponds, conservancy tanks and reticulation systems
Waterborne households served: 2050; Cala 822
Conservancy tanks - 40
VIP’s 822; below RDP standard Cala 216; Pholar Park 26 – no infrastructure in Pholar Park
- addressed on completion of the upgrading of the waste Treatment by CHDM.
The urban communities are insisting on waterborne sanitation removal and are not
prepared to accept other methods
A political decision has been taken for waterborne sanitation in urban areas and VIP’s in
rural areas

Sanitation challenges and general comments
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Rural sanitation backlogs
Shortage of VIP toilet in rural area
Maintenance ponds – sanitation ponds needed in rural area – outstanding waterborne
1500; old aging infrastructure
Poor maintenance
Construction of oxidation ponds has commenced in Elliot Extension
Construction new treatment works has commenced in the Design stage
Backlogs

BACKLOGS
SANITATION
•

65 % Households with access to sanitation

•

50% Indigents with access to free basic
services

•

•

70% Clinics with access to sanitation

50% Schools with access to sanitation

•

Backlogs: 23 660
Target; 23 660
Customers reached during FY: 35%
Percentage achieved during FY: 35%

•

Backlogs: 49280
Target; 49280
Customers reached during FY: 12%
Percentage achieved during FY: 12%

•

Backlogs: 20
Target; 20
Customers reached during FY: 20
Percentage achieved during FY: 30%

•

Backlogs: 50
Target; 50
Customers reached during FY: 50
Percentage achieved during FY: 50%
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TOWN PLANNING AND BUILDING CONTROL
Section objectives
•
•
•
•
•

Application of legislative issues
Control of land use
Building safety
Environmental protection
Spatial development

Challenges and general comments
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Lack qualified staff
No building control carried out in the area
No policy on Building Control
Spatial development framework required
Zoning maps
Land issues required to be resolved
Land for development
Land management/settlement plan to be developed
No Building Control Officer in place
The appointment of a Building Control Officer to be prioritised and facilitated during
2008/2009 financial year – this could have result in increase in revenue.
9 Building plans were submitted and – increased revenue generated from this.

LAND USE APPLICATIONS
APPLICATION TYPE

ERF NO.

TOWNSHIP

REF.NO

SUBMISSION DATE

APPROVAL
DATE

ERECTION OF CELL MAST

UNDETERMINED

LANGANCI-CALA

N/A

13-Apr-09

19-Aug-09

SPECIAL CONSENT & BUILDING
PLANS APPROVAL, LATICE MAST
AND CONTAINER PLACEMENT

UNDETERMINED

LANGANCI

N/A

18-Nov-09

22-Jun-09

SPECIAL CONSENT CELL MAST

UNDETERMINED

NYALASA-HILL

T6784

19-Jun-08

22-Jun-09

CELL MAST

UNDETERMINED

MOUNTAIN SHADOW

T6308

16-Oct-08

22-Jun-09

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT

790 & 791

ELLIOT

0/790/791/EL

22-Jan-09

11-Mar-09

SUB & CON

471

NOOITGEDACHT FARMELLIOT

0/471/EL

May-08

23-Feb-09

SUBDIVISION

56

CALA

00/56/CL

19-Feb-09

29-May-09

SUBDIVISION

2569

CALA

00/2569/CL

31-Mar-09

16 Jul 09

CONTRAVENTION APPLICATION

294 & 295

ELLIOT

0/294/295/EL

Jun-09

16 Jul 09

Township Establishment

0

0

0

0

0

Removal of Restrictive conditions

0

0

0

0

0
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Disaster Management (Core function of the CHDM)
Integrated approach to the Management of Disaster
Development of a Disaster Management Plan
Challenges remain:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Lack of integrated approach – Lack of co –ordination - Lobby the CHDM for assistance
with Disaster management programme
Rehabilitation after disaster
Dedicated staff (capacity)
Establish database
Shortage of equipment
Financial constraints
Risks, e.g. droughts, earthquakes, etc
Awareness Programmes and Campaigns

General comments – Planned projects
•

Implementation of 85 disaster houses as per the IDP - rolled over --commenced during
2008/2009 financial year – continue in 2009/2010 all DORA stipulated guidelines will met.
The project is funded AND Administered by DPLG.

Challenges
No infrastructure development for the past three years - Infrastructure development has
been a constant challenge from a financial and resource point of view but we remain
remains focused, and development has occurred in many areas. progress has since been
made.
No records or financial information or other information available regarding the projects
(progress reports, service level agreements, ect) in 2006/2007 and partly in 2007/2008.
Notwithstanding, the concerns and administrative controls, governance, and financial
weaknesses that were highlighted in the AG`s report and these urgently required to be
addressed there has been an improvement with regard to recording and maintaining certain
records / administrative processes.
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5.4. BUDGET & TREASURY DEPARTMENT

CFO: DEPARTMENTAL MANAGER S57
P STEYN
The Budget & Treasury Department is responsible for the following:
Focus Areas:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Revenue Collection/Income Generation
Expenditure
Budgeting
Accounting and Reporting
Information Technology
Assets and Risks
Motor Vehicle Licensing
Supply Chain Management
Budget & Treasury

Overall objectives are to improve and refine functioning within each of these areas.
Key Performance Indicators
These will be examined under each subsection as follows:
REVENUE COLLECTION/INCOME GENERATION
This section ensures that the processing of monthly consumer accounts and the receipting
of all revenue is undertaken of the towns that fall within the jurisdiction of Sakhisizwe
Municipality.
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All these functions are supervised and supported from Elliot, from where meter readers
servicing the water and electricity meters are controlled.
The Key Performance Indicators are :
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Expand/enhance revenue base
Implement revenue management strategies – collections
Valuations and calculations of rates for all properties in the municipal area
Data Cleansing - done valuations new rate new values more than 50% accurate
Disconnect electricity and water in arrears
Upgrade and extend pay points for services -- only at municipalities
Set up customer queries and complaints procedure
Annual reconciliation of assessment rates
Annual billing of assessment rates
Do survey of infrastructure & services on farms
Monthly updating consumer database
Implement Credit Control and Debt Collection Policy and maintain
Maintain and implement financial policies and procedures
Free basic services and indigence subsidy support
Tariff
Rates
Credit Control and Debt Collection
Update Indigent database

Challenges and general comments
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Revenue collection rates 52.12%
Existence of a culture of non-payment – contributed high unemployment and poverty
Data cleansing implemented
Implement credit control procedures – cuts off’s performed regularly
Enhance / build community awareness
Disconnections electricity and water to be implemented – done monthly
Financial policy and procedure – achieved - reviewed annually
Develop relevant By-Law
Capacity of staff – dedicated to function
Financial control – improved immensely but still requires attention
Lack of statistic and financial records – limited reporting information
Indigent database outdated – updated during 2008/2009 FY
Meter reading done by Finance Department
Outstanding debtors dealt with Legal Advisors
Implement annual valuations - complete 5200 additional account raised increase
revenue
The total investments for July 2009 amounted to R16.9Million.

EXPENDITURE AND CONTROL
This function is situated in Elliot and is supported by three staff members who are
responsible for the payment of creditors, ordering of goods, services and materials,
processing the monthly salaries and allowances, compilation and control of budgets,
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controlling capital and other projects, processing of monthly and quarterly financial reports
and compilation of annual financial records and statements.
The Key Performance Indicators are:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Monthly reconciliation and payment of all creditors
Monthly controlling of purchases
Monthly processing of payroll
Monthly maintaining and updating of :
external DBSA loans; - water
internal revolving fund loans / advances
Annually update and maintain Council’s Insurance Portfolio
Monthly updating and maintaining Council’s investments
Update and implement financial policies and procedures
Supply Chain Management
Loans and contractual agreements
Assets management and insurance
Cash management, banking and investment
Implement Municipal Finance Management Act, No 56 of 2003 requirements related to
Expenditure
Payroll management and maintenance

Challenges and general comments
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

No dedicated staff member for Payroll function --- no
Capacity of staff
Excessive overtime payments
No internal control – checks and balance
Under- and over-payments
No procedures in place
Upgrade software and hardware -- Sebata
Late/non payment creditors -- no
Procedures not in place
Over-expenditure – no financial control
Supply Chain Management Policy developed but SCM Process requires implementation Supply chain Management policies and procedures are not appropriately applied and
require compliance.
Review, update and maintain Council’s Insurance Policy. Ensure all assets are insured in
terms of Insurance Portfolio -- done
Excessive telephone usage – no control ---- telephone management system in place
Cash management, banking and investment
Monthly selling and control pre-paid electricity
Monthly reading of water and electricity meters
Accurate monthly billing of accounts
Monthly delivery of consumer accounts
Daily receipting of all revenue
Daily banking of all revenue
Secure all revenue collected
Implement Municipal Finance Management Act, No 56 of 2003 requirements related to
Revenue collection
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•

Train and develop staff

BUDGETING
The annual compilation of Council’s operational and capital budget is the responsibility of
this department. It also provides the necessary inputs during the annual review of Council’s
Integrated Development Plan (IDP).
This department is also responsible for the determination of tariffs and maintaining a cash
budget. Actual expenditure to date is monitored monthly against Council’s approved
budget and reports are monthly submitted to all other departments informing them of their
expenditure to date.
The Key Performance Indicators are :
•
•
•
•

•
•
•
•
•

•

Compile and publish budget time schedule
Establish and public committees and consultation forums
Outreach programme to all wards
Review and prepare :
o Integrated Development Plan (IDP)
o Service Delivery Agreements
o Delegations
o Budget-related Policies
o Operational and capital budget
Determine rates and tariffs
Consult with established committees and forums
Table budget and supporting documents
Approve budget and supporting documents
Budget and supporting documents to :
o National Treasury
o Provincial Treasury
o Public and website
Service Delivery and Budget Implementation Plan (SDBIP)

Challenges and general comments
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

No analysis of creditors – debtors annual income total annual debt
Review tariff
Participation in budget process – all 7 wards participated which represented an
incredible improvement
Capacity issues and shortage of staff in the Budget & Treasury Department
Financial constraints
SDBIP Plans – linked to Budget/IDP –aligned –met during 2008/2009 financial year –
SDBIP requires alignment with national indicators and aligned to service delivery targets
Improved financial control
Policies in place – policies developed and implemented in 2008/2009 financial year
Service delivery agreements – CHDM x1 health x1 Department of Transport
Legislative compliance MFMA - GRAP and assets - achieved
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•
•
•

Budget and financial statement done within required timeframes as legislated -- during
2008 /2009 financial full compliance was achieved with the assistance of the appointed
service provider Delloitte
Delegations not in place – to be addressed in 2008/2009
Lack of interpretation/understanding budgets

Notwithstanding, having achieved the timeframes for submission of the financial statements
for auditing, (prior to 31 August 2008 as per the MFMA), the Auditor-General awarded a
qualified audit report and a disclaimer was received., every effort is being made to ensure
that these issues are correctly addressed.

ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Daily and monthly updating of accounting records
MFMA required reporting to :
National Treasury
Provincial Treasury
Accounting Officer
Executive Committee
Municipal Council
Monthly reconciliation of supporting registers
Funds
Loans
Assets
Banks
Investments
Debtors
Creditors and
Income & Expenditure
Compilation of annual financial statements
Compilation of annual report for Department: Budget & Treasury Service
Implement Municipal Finance Management Act, No 56 of 2003 requirements related to
Accounting and Reporting

Challenges and general comments
•
•
•

Updating of records and reporting not done regularly
Audit queries and Disclaimer received
Reconciled registers and supporting documentation

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
Information Technology
•

Provision of information management and technological support. This function is not yet
fully functional in both units. The units are not linked
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The Key Performance Indicators set are :
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Link offices in Cala and Elliot
Establish Internet email facilities – secure login facilities
Upgrade IT infrastructure
Develop IT Policy
Assist with Implementation of electronic (HR System and document management
system) (specifically linked to payroll and leave administration) – assistance provided to
Corporate Services Department - to be 2009/2010
Implement electronic leave management system on SEBATA – still to be achieved
Provided access to CSM on SEBATA system to administer and capture leave and access
to various enquiry screens for payroll administration – still to be achieved.
Maintain and upgrade of computer hard-and software
Secure computer hard- and software services
Training to all staff in utilizing IT systems effectively
Update General Plans (GP’s)
Update ownership/Title Deed information
Valuation information updated – 5200 additional accounts raised
Daily and monthly processing of records when required by other departments
Develop and maintain Municipal Website – launched during 2008/2009 FY – ongoing
maintenance.

Challenges and General Comments
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Skilled IT staff
Lack of access infrastructure
Funding constraints
Outdated equipment – hardware & software
DBSA initializing programme to link units
No progress with Electronic Document System - Corporate Service Function
IT Plan is being developed by SITA - awaiting proposal
DBSA supplied 3 computers to the Municipality
IT function not fully functional – young DBSA professional assisting
Upgrading of hardware and software - Achieved
Capacity
Financial constraints
Units not fully linked
Policy and control -- requires monitoring
Website development complete and launched and upgrade of the digital line to 512K
done in 2008 /2009 financial year
Unreliable Network

ASSETS AND RISKS
The existing manual assets register, as well as the inventory lists are now in the process of
being computerized by means of bar-coding all moveable assets. The Key Performance
Indicators set are :
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•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Develop asset management policy
Ongoing Stock take of asset – acquisition and disposal of assets
Recording and marking (bar-coding) of all assets
Updating and maintaining a comprehensive assets register
Compiling, updating and maintaining of inventories
Revalue fixed assets
Develop asset vote and asset management report
Convert and transfer transactions from IMFO/GAMAP ledger to GRAP
Comply with GRAP format immovable property
Reconcile assets – capitalize on Sebata System

Challenges and general comments
•

•
•
•
•

Annual financial statements are compliant with legislation - during 2008/2009 financial
service providers Delloitte were appointed to assist with conversion to GRAP and to
compile annual financial statements done. All old balances were cleared and all accounts
reconciled and annual financial statements were submitted as per legislated timeframe –
31 August 2009
System compliant
Movable assets and proper stock evaluations of assets done - GRAP compliant
Conversion and transfer transactions from IMFO/GAMAP ledger to GRAP - achieved
Continued Compliance with GRAP format immovable property.

Notwithstanding and having achieved the timeframes for submission of the financial
statements for auditing, (prior to 31 August 2008 as per the MFMA), the Auditor-General
awarded a qualified audit report and a disclaimer was received. Reference is made to the
Auditor-General’s Report (as detailed within Chapter 4).
Notwithstanding the timeous submission of the required financial statements and reporting,
certain qualifications were received from the Auditor-General’s Report and as per the Audit
Response, every effort is being made to ensure that these issues are correctly addressed.
Notwithstanding these qualifications, we must commend the Financial Department for the
great strides made within this section and their ability to improve their financial viability (a
move from R1.7 million year end investments June 2007 to R16.9 million as at June 2009).
Whilst it must be acknowledged that the contribution from DBSA and the appointment of
the mentor (Mr P McEwen) has resulted in tremendously positive steps being made within
the financial area of Sakhisizwe Municipality, it must also be acknowledged that it will be a
very likely possibility that a qualified audit report will be obtained during the following
financial year. Whilst every effort will be made to address the inherited problems and to
correct all identified problems, these are so vast, that in all likelihood it could take longer
than one year to resolve these issues in totality.
Our intention will be to ensure that we resolve the issues contained within the audit report
and that we try to obtain an unqualified audit report for 2009/2010 financial year. Again we
acknowledge Mr P McEwen who, together with DBSA backing, has assisted us in turning our
financial department around – never forgetting that this progress is still in its infancy.
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SAKHISIZWE MUNICIPALITY
OVERSIGHT REPORT FOR 2008/2009
1.

BACKGROUND
It is required in terms of the Municipal Finance Management Act, (Act 56 of 2003),
that Council consider its Annual Report and the degree to which the organisation has
performed in respect of the year under consideration. Based on the analysis and
evaluation of the said report, it will prepare an Oversight Report, which reflects the
analysis and evaluation of the Annual Report.
The Oversight Report for Sakhisizwe Municipality for the 2008-2009 periods is
presented below.

2.

ANALYSIS OF THE 2008/2009 ANNUAL REPORT
Sakhisizwe’s Annual Report for the 2008/2009 period has been examined against the
background of the Auditor-Generals report for the same period. The findings are
included within the remainder of this document together with comments on the
extent to which the strategic objectives for each department were met.
In providing detail regarding the years successes and challenges, performance will be
evaluated against the stated objectives for each of the four departments , namely:
-

Finance; (Budget & Treasury)
IPED;
Technical Services and
Corporate Services.

-

The status quo remains in respect of Community Services, as this position remains
vacant. As a direct result of this situation, functions within this department have
been divided amongst two other departments – (Community Services - now a
sub directorate of IPED AND Technical. This arrangement is a temporary measure
which was necessitated by the absence of a Community Services Manager for an
extended period of time, and this situation is set to continue until such time as
this position is able to be funded and filled.

2.1. Auditor-General’s Report on the Annual Financial Statements (ending June 2009)
Reference is made to the full Auditor-General’s Report, the Response to the AuditorGeneral’s Report, and the Audit Action Plan documents, which are contained within
Section 4 of this report.
In summary, it must be stated that the Auditor-General provided a disclaimer audit
opinion within the audit report, based on the issues, which are summarized as
follows:
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Generally and as stated within the report, the framework of accounting and internal
control mechanisms for reporting and monitoring were found to be seriously lacking.
In numerous areas, the content reflected within the financial statements could not in
any way be validated or verified and as such, no credibility could be found within the
content of the financial statements. In particular, lack of information and poor
record-keeping was found within the areas of:
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o

Bank balances and cash
Consumer debtors and provision for bad debts
Employee related costs and remuneration of Councillors
Property, plant and equipment
Creditors
Revenue
Expenditure
Unspent conditional grants and receipts
Long term receivables
Value added taxation (VAT)
Long term liabilities
Provisions
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure
Contingent liabilities
Unauthorised expenditure

There have also been extensive cases where there is non-compliance with
applicable legislation and these are detailed below as follows:
Municipal Finance Management Act, 2003 (Act No 56 of 2003) (MFMA)
The following sections of the MFMA were not complied with :
Section 79 (Delegation of Responsibilities); Section 62(1) (c)(i) which deals with
Financial Risk Management and Internal Controls; Sections 165 (2) and 166 (2)
(Audit Committee functioning); s68.87 of the MFMA (Strategic Plan); s121 (3)(c)
(Annual Reporting); .
Municipal Systems Act, Act No.32, OF 2000
The following sections of the MSA were not complied with:
S6 (Performance Management Systems); s45 (Internal Auditing of results of
performance measurement);
Matters of Governance
The following governance areas require suitable action :
•

The Municipality does not have an audit committee throughout the financial year, nor an
internal audit function and clearly these functions are not being performed as required.
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•

The Annual Report was not submitted for the Auditor for consideration prior to the date
of the Auditor’s report.

•

Significant difficulties were experienced during the audit concerning delays or the
unavailability of expected information and/or the unavailability of senior management

•

The prior year’s external audit recommendations have not been substantially
implemented.

•

There are no documented policies and procedures and control systems to ensure the
reliability of financial reporting.

•

There are no documented policies and procedures and control systems to ensure
compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

•

The information systems are not appropriate to facilitate the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material mis-statement.

•

The Delegations of responsibilities (Delegations Register) is not in place.

•

Supply chain Management policies and procedures are not appropriately applied.

•

Performance management system is functioning although areas of refinement and
issues around the auditing of assessment results are to be improved;

•

Performance bonuses are awarded according to assessments and approval by those
charged with governance.
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RESPONSE TO THE AUDITOR-GENERAL’S REPORT
The response to the Auditor-General’s Report may be summarized as follows:
• Every reasonable and practical effort will be made to address the issues raised within the
Audit Report and the commitment remains to regard this as a matter of priority.
• An Audit Plan has already been devised in order to address these issues and the critical
areas to be covered are highlighted as follows:
o
Internal controls
o
Structures for reporting
o
Policies and procedures
o
Risk Management
o
Assignment of roles and responsibilities to ensure reporting
o
compliance; and
o
Compliance to legislative prescriptions.
It is concerning to note that many of the areas identified for action within the previous audit
report have in fact resurfaced. We are every way committed to meeting these financial and
governance challenges and to ensure that outstanding audit issues are resolved. The Audit
Plan itself will ensure that the required direction is taken and that there is indeed
commitment to targets.
2.2.

Degree to which strategic objectives have been met

In the Oversight Report it is required that after examinations between the Annual Report,
the Auditor-General’s Report and the response to the Auditor-General’s Report, that
feedback on the ability of departments to meet the strategic objectives will be provided.
These will be examined under each department as follows:
2.2.1. Finance Department
The Finance Department carries with it a huge burden and challenge – that of ensuring the
financial viability of the departments and the municipality as a whole. Each area of focus will
be reported on as follows:
(a) Revenue Collection/Income Generation
The DBSA consultant, Mr. P McEwen acted as the Chief Financial Officer from July 2007 until
31 May 2008 with Mr P H Steyn having been appointed as Chief Financial Officer from 1 June
2008.
A year later we are still realizing the benefits of the time that Mr McEwen acted as Chief
Financial Officer. As a mentor and coach he was able to guide the department towards
significantly improved performance and the meeting of strategic objectives.
It must be noted that at 1 July 2007, this Municipality was unable to pay its creditors.
Following a VAT Audit and the recovery of R5 Million from SARS for incorrect claims,
together with an additional amount of more than R5 Million from water and sanitation
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claims from Chris Hani District Municipality, Sakhisizwe Municipality was in a position to
settle all outstanding amounts owing well within the 30 day prescription.
The total investments for July 2007 amounted to R1.7Million and as of June 2008, this figure
had grown to R16.9 Million. This financial turnaround is a tremendous achievement for
Sakhisizwe Municipality and the contributions of DBSA and its staff in ensuring this success
are duly noted and acknowledged.
Notwithstanding the existence of a culture of non-payment/poor payment, resulted in
initiatives being implemented which appeared to enhance public awareness regarding the
importance of developing a culture of payment for services received.
Revenue was increased through the conversion of the Billing System to include Sebata
Software and the number of revenue collections has increased. During this financial year
the revenue collection ratio was 52.12%. Notwithstanding, it remains advisable to appoint
dedicated staff to drive the debt collection function and to ensure that the Sebata System
becomes fully functional. Outstanding debtors are being dealt with by Legal Advisors.
The Municipality is currently involved in the completion of a data-cleansing project on
debtors. The purpose of this project is to ensure that all properties are billed, and to update
the Indigent Register of the Municipality.
Overall, credit control procedures are being implemented and so too the process of monthly
disconnections/cut offs.
Capacity of staff remains a challenge due to the department being inadequately staffed.
However, the assistance provided by DBSA staff (Financial expert, 2 young professionals and
an Intern from Provincial Government) has enabled many of the objectives to have been
met.
During 2008-2009 all properties were evaluated and 5200 additional accounts raised for
property rates (urban and rural) as of 1 July 2009.
Generally, financial record keeping and data maintenance and control remains a challenge.
Improvement within this sphere will assist in meeting the Auditor-General’s issues relating to
non-compliance.
The accuracy of Meter Reading remains a challenge – but has improved. Manual receipting
within Cala creates opportunities for misappropriation of funds.
(b)

Expenditure and Control

Within Expenditure and Control the following successes and challenges are noted:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

No dedicated staff member exists for the Payroll function
Capacity of staff
Excessive overtime payments
No internal control – checks and balance
Under- and over-payments
No procedures in place
Procedures not in place / implemented
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•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Over-expenditure – requires tighter financial control
Review, update and maintain Council’s Insurance Policy. All assets are insured in terms
of Insurance Portfolio
Excessive telephone usage – no control ---- telephone system in place
Cash management, banking and investment
Monthly selling and control pre-paid electricity
Monthly reading of water and electricity meters
Accurate monthly billing of accounts
Monthly delivery of consumer accounts
Daily receipting of all revenue
Daily banking of all revenue
Secure all revenue collected
Implement Municipal Finance Management Act, No 56 of 2003 requirements related to
Revenue collection.

(c)Budgeting
Successes and challenges are reflected as follows:
•

SDBIPs have been improved and these are now aligned with the budget and the IDP –
further refinement will be an ongoing.

•

Budget aligned with IDP

•

Assets MFMA and GRAP compliant

•

Lack of financial controls although policies and procedures have been developed

•

Outstanding IT Policy

•

Failure to conform in terms of all legislative compliance (to be fully addressed
2008/2009)

•

No delegations register

•

Budget and financial statements were submitted timeously

•

Increased public participation with the budget

•

No analysis of creditors – debtor’s annual income and total annual debt. These issues
will be required to be addressed via the Audit Plan.

•

Lack of interpretation/understanding the budgets.
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(d)Accounting and Reporting
This remains the weakest link within the environment of control – and as indicated within
the Auditor-General’s Report requires modification and development within all areas that
could amount to monitoring and controls.
(e) Assets & Risks
Challenges remain plentiful and it is has already been highlighted that this section remains
non-compliant in most areas.
GRAP compliance regarding Annual Financial Statements was achieved
Movable assets and proper stock evaluation of assets has been done
Immovable property moving towards full GRAP compliance
(g) Information Technology
•

Planned IT Plan developed by SITA is awaiting proposal

•

DBSA initializing programme link of Municipality to LGNET

•

All users have secure log in access

•

DBSA to integrate system

•
•

IT Training commenced
Website development has begun and this requires an upgrade of the digital line from
64K to 512K.

Challenges remain in terms of IT Infrastructure, non-cooperation between Corporate and
Finance in terms of functional splits; the network is not fully functional; leave records are
required to be computerized; there is no attendance register controller and no exception
reports are run.

2.2.2. IPED Department
This department covers a great number of subsections especially since the re-distribution of
Community Service functions.
Successes and challenges will be broadly highlighted as follows
2.2.3

IDP
•

No new IDP Planned projects have been implemented due to financial constraints
and existing projects (Grant funded / MIG funded) have continued to a degree.
IDP Planned projects can be found on pages 34 –44 – sector department projects
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can be viewed from pages 45 - 47 of this report
•

The following projects have been registered with MIG: in 2007/2008 and
carried over into the 2008/2009 financial year:

PROJECT
Cala Grave Roads and Stormwater
Masibambane and old location construction of grave
Maxhongo Hoek Access Road Ward 2E
Cala Gravel Roads and Stormwater Phase 2
Upper Lufuta/Rolwest St., Phillips Access Road
Xonya to Macangceni Access Road
Bhobho Access Road
Bestekraal Access Road
Cala Reserve Community Hall, Ward 4
Cala Pass Community Hall, Ward 3
Old Township Community Hall, Ward 2
Polar Park Community Hall, Ward 1
Mbhenge Access Road
Kuthule Access Road
Ndum-Ndum Access Road
Mjikelo Access Road
Gareni to Upper Mnxe Access Road
Roma Spafeni Access Road
Manzamahle to Dolophini Access Road
Veris Access Road
Polar Park Access Road
Ncakula Access Road
Makhwesthubeni Access Road
NewRest Access Road
Delville-Qithi Access Road
Mnxe Mission Access Road
Upper Lufita Rowest ST Phillips
Mfamfengwini to Qolombeni Access Road
Bhobho Access Road
Besterkraal Access Road
Cala Reserve Community Hall
Kuthuleni Access Road
Ncalika Access Road
Xonya to Macangceni
•

•

DATE
10-09-2007
03-10-2007
14-11-2007
14-11-2007
14-11-2007
12-11-2008
12-11-2008
12-11-2008
12-11-2008
21-11-2008
21-11-2008
21-11-2008
21-11-2008
12-11-2008
21-11-2008
08-12-2008
12-06-2009
16-12-2008
21-11-2008
21-11-2008
12-11-2008
12-11-2008
21-11-2008
17-06-2009
17-06-2009
02-07-2009

VALUE
4,161,174.77
2,649,402.58
6,384,026.38
739,455.00
6,255,000.00
1,765,947.11
17,456,344.00
2,295,675.00
2,073,511.00
861,840.00
4,458,309.00
1,106,584.00
2,962,894.62
1,284,052.00
2,000,000.00
4,414,999.42
1,500,000.00
6,000,000.00
5,792,000.00
1,026,000.00
1,893,540.00
1,802,340.00
1,883,440.00
1,893,540.00
1,802,340.00
1,883,440.00
6 225000.00
2 649 402.58
739 455.00
2 295 675.00
1 802 340.00
1 026 000.00
1 765 947.00
2872 455.41

No budget has been provided for the review of the some of the IDP and
related processes at the time.
In terms of Housing, the following comments are made:
Housing shortages for low-cost housing continue and the total backlog is
estimated at 4250 – DPLG are the Developers / Administrators and funders of
housing project and Sakhiszwe Municipality act as facilitators in same process.
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•

The beneficiaries’ database has not been accurately maintained.

•

Problems are experienced with contractors funding, poor access roads and
limited infrastructure (services)

•

Projects have been initially blocked by DPLG since these have been revived,
but are now the responsibility of DPLG.

LED, Tourism & Agriculture
•

In terms of the strategic objectives, it must be noted that the funding
constraints have prevented the implementation of any new projects.

•

Staff shortages within IPED are extremely challenging and staff have been
shared with the Technical Department.

•

LED Officer `s appointment is of critical importance.

•

The service provider appointed to develop the tourism sector plan does not
have the capacity to do so and has failed to meet required deadlines.

Traffic and related functions and Motor Vehicle Licensing
Many challenges exist and management, reporting and control is almost nonexistent. Challenges relate to infrastructure provision, staff shortages and the
training of staff on NATIS and in the testing station in terms management and
control .
Within this area, no improvement and no great strides have been made in so far
as to manage this section, the following challenges exist:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

No Control and supervision
No statistical records
No Recording keeping & filling
No operating manuals and procedures,
Quality control manuals are not updated
Traffic structures require review
Functions being carried:
•
Roadworthy of vehicles is occurring in a satisfactory manner
•

Learners License and drivers license figures have escalated

•

Challenges remain financial and the shortage of staff

Motor Vehicle Licensing
Many challenges also exist and supervision, reporting and control is almost nonexistent. Challenges relate to infrastructure provision, staff shortages and the
training of staff on NATIS and in the testing station in terms management and
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control.
Libraries
•

Libraries within Elliot and Cala have been improved by DSRAC.

•

Elliot Library is being renovated

•

Library week promotion is scheduled

•

CCTV camera has been installed

•

An intern has been appointed for 3 years at Cala Library as part of capacity
building

•

Government subsidy has been received for material purchases.

Community Halls
Existing facilities continue to be maintained and maintenance schedules are
planned and managed accordingly.
Health/HIV and AIDS
The following challenges and achievements are noted:
•

Shortages of qualified clinic staff, equipment, resources and medicines
continues

•

Buildings require rehabilitation

•

Reliable statistics regarding patients and community statistics are lacking

•

Approximately 5000 patients are attended to per month between the 3 Clinics
in Elliot and infrastructure appears inadequate to effectively service these
numbers.

•

The department has built three new clinics in Sakhisizwe Municipal area which
will improve service delivery in respect of health

•

The Ncedolwethu Clinic has been fenced was achieved during the previous FY
(2007/2008).

Cemeteries
The following challenges are experienced :
•

Elliot Cemetery is at full capacity
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•

Cala cemetery is at 90% capacity

•

2000 burials are concluded per year which translates to challenges in land
availability

•

Statistics reveal 106 burials are legal, and 90% are illegal

•

Tariff structures differ – requiring review of tariff policies

•

No proper statistics/recordings are in place regarding burials and plots

•

No pauper burial policy is in place and this will require attention.

Sports and Recreation facilities
The following achievements and challenges are noted :
•

Elliot has 1 facility (utilized weekly)

•

Cala has 1 facility with indoor facilities

•

IDP Planned new sportsfields and Equipment

•

Caravan facilities are sub standard and require maintenance

•

Staff shortages impede service delivery

•

No statistics are available regarding facility usage

•
•

Structures require review
Maintenance not performed regularly to facilitate effective maintenance
according to planning.

Parks & Public Open Spaces
The following challenges are noted :
• Functions are not managed and co-ordinated and are seated in incorrect
departments i.e. partially in IPED and partially within the Technical
Department.
• Shortages of staff are experienced as staff are shared with Technical Services
• Lack of equipment and funding – affecting service delivery
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Commonages and Pounds
•

It was required that commonages and pounds were fenced and stray animals
contained.

•

The tariff structure requires review

•

Overtime is required to be curbed

Waste Management: Solid Waste and Refuse
The following challenges are currently faced :

2.3.

•

Solid waste site not fully operational and is mismanaged

•

Illegal dumping remains

•

Land fill sites within Cala and Elliot are not being maintained.

•

Vehicle shortages hinder service delivery and so too financial constraints

•

No waste minimization education programmes are in evidence

•

Lack of staff results in the lack of control over refuse collection

•

No recycling facilities exist

•

Insufficient refuse receptacles in CBD

•

Environmental Management Plan is required to be formalized

•

EHO is seconded through CHDM to enforce cleanliness of premises

•

Job Creation is in evidence as 40 casual staff were appointed to assist in clean
up campaigns
Corporate Services Department
The challenges and achievements within the Corporate Services Department
are reflected as follows :
Human Resources
Within the Human Resources area, a number of challenges remain and these
are critical in terms of improving governance and the provision of internal
controls and systems.
•

As identified within the Audit Report, there remains a critical need for
internal policies, procedures and controls.

211

•

A Skills Audit/needs analysis is required to be conducted timeously and will
feed into the establishment of a Workplace Skills Plan – consultants were
appointed during 2007/2008 financial year to perform skills Audit but a
consolidated report is still outstanding; however a WSP and
implementation reports are being submitted as required

•

Procedure Manuals are required to be developed and implemented and
staff workshopped and trained.
Procedure manual developed for Recruitment & selection

•
•
•

Effective and efficient implementation of recruitment and selection
processes and procedures are required.
Recruitment & Selection Policy has been reviewed

•

Strategies are required to deal with scarcity of skills and retention of
skilled employees - Policy and retention strategy has been developed,
TOR for Scarce skills committee - the committee requires to be appointed
and the policy requires implementation.

•

The organisational structure requires urgent review in order to ensure
alignment with the IDP – underway but not completed in the year under
review.

•

Poorly hand written Job descriptions have been submitted to the PJEC for
evaluation and the Outcomes Report has been received ---yielding
relatively poor results.

•

Efforts have been made to educate all unit supervisors as to the Employee
Assistance Programme and to educate employees re HIV/AIDS – a Policy
on HIV /Aids is required to be developed and HIV/AIDS Co – ordinator
appointed.

•

Procedures and policies are to be reviewed and updated and
workshopped prior to adoption.

•

The report and submission of the approved Employment Equity Plan to
the Employment Equity Registry was not submitted as indicated within the
Audit Report.

•

Efforts are under way to implement an electronic Human Resources
System and document management system (specifically linked to payroll
and leave administration) – assistance provided to Corporate Services
Department from Budget & Treasury Department

•

Delloitte has conducted leave audit - same audit results still to be
reviewed by management of Sakhisizwe due to many exceptions raised.
A Leave policy and procedure has been developed and workshopped
The Implementation of an electronic leave management system on
SEBATA is urgently required and assistance will be required from Budget &

•
•
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Treasury Department
•

Access on the SEBATA system is required to administer and capture leave
and to access various enquiry screens for payroll administration in order to
improve this functioning.
Labour Relations
The following issues are noted :

•

Grievance cases, cases of negligence, theft and alcohol (2 cases) have
been experienced and 1 case of dismissal is noted. The number of
grievances laid would indicate the need extensive training in this area.

•

85 employees were dismissed for participation in an illegal strike – since
reinstated.

•

Disciplinary and Grievance Policy and procedure developed (in line with
SALGBC`s collective agreement) has been developed.
Senior staff and supervisors are to be trained in the implementation of
Labour Relations Policies.

•

Skills Development and Employment Equity
The following successes and challenges remain :
•

Skills Audit and needs analysis conducted by consultants;

•

Development programmes are in place and employees are attending
training programmes;

•

Several tertiary students have been assisted regarding internship training
and learning opportunities;

•

Attendance of ABET programmes remain a challenge;

•

Councillors have attended various workshops and training;

•

There is no EE Policy and no progress reporting in this regard. This is a
critical concern as failure to report could lead to a fine of R900 000.

•

Submissions of the EE Plan and progress report to the EE registry
2008/2009 (October 2008) did not occur as required.

•

Further development of procedure manuals

Occupational Health and Safety
•

Further training is required in all OHS related areas;
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•

Ensuring OHS compliance remains a challenge;

•

A Risk Analysis is required to be completed; and

•

Monthly inspections and related reports are required by Safety
Representatives.

General Administration
In respect of the general administration, the following challenges remain :
•

Records Management System is outdated and not up to standard and has
deteriorated. This has posed a danger to organization insofar as
institutional memory is concerned.

•

No progress has been made with the Electronic Document System as a
Corporate Service function

•

The capacity of the staff members placed within this strategic position
requires capacity development.

Performance Management (managed by the Municipal Manager’s Office with
assistance of Corporate Services)
The following successes and challenges are noted :
•

Performance Management System has been implemented effectively
at the s57 level in all respects .In keeping with policy, efforts have been
made to ensure application of this system to the designated s57
Managers. Performance Agreements, Scorecards and assessments are
conducted as required and it is merely refinement of this process that
needs to occur --- as per any standard review and update.

•

SDBIP’s are aligned to IDP require review / refinement --alignment to
national indicators and service deliver targets
Key performance indicators have been set for each of the development
priorities and objectives as set out in the integrated development plan.
Development priorities and objectives of the municipality's integrated
development plan are consistent with the budget although targets could
be more concise. Attention will be paid to setting more measurable
objectives.

•
•

An independent performance audit committee has not yet been
established to assess the performance of Managers systematically in order
to link results to performance bonuses and in order to manage
performance. This is currently managed by the members of the
Remuneration Committee
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Corporate Governance
The following achievements have been met:
•

Seven By-Laws were reviewed and developed. Five have been gazetted
under the year in review.

•

Ward Committee was established and functioning received training. CDW
in each Ward – not functioning at the desired level

Transport and Fleet Management
The following successes and challenges remain :

2.4.

•

Fleet Management Policy in place – not implemented

•

The capacity of the staff member appointed to this position requires
attention

•

All passenger vehicles damaged in hailstorm are not roadworthy and this
has had a resultant effect on service delivery – vehicles have not been
maintained

Technical Services Department
The following achievements and challenges have presented themselves :
MIG Projects
Due to financial constraints the following projects (funded through CHDM,
Sakhisizwe and MIG allocations have continued) :
These projects are listed as follows :

PROJECT
Cala Grave Roads and Stormwater
Masibambane and old location construction of grave
Maxhongo Hoek Access Road Ward 2E
Cala Gravel Roads and Stormwater Phase 2
Upper Lufuta/Rolwest St., Phillips Access Road
Xonya to Macangceni Access Road
Bhobho Access Road
Bestekraal Access Road
Cala Reserve Community Hall, Ward 4
Cala Pass Community Hall, Ward 3
Old Township Community Hall, Ward 2
Polar Park Community Hall, Ward 1
Mbhenge Access Road
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DATE
10-09-2007
03-10-2007
14-11-2007
14-11-2007
14-11-2007
12-11-2008
12-11-2008
12-11-2008
12-11-2008
21-11-2008
21-11-2008
21-11-2008
21-11-2008

VALUE
4,161,174.77
2,649,402.58
6,384,026.38
739,455.00
6,255,000.00
1,765,947.11
17,456,344.00
2,295,675.00
2,073,511.00
861,840.00
4,458,309.00
1,106,584.00
2,962,894.62

PROJECT
Kuthule Access Road
Ndum-Ndum Access Road
Mjikelo Access Road
Gareni to Upper Mnxe Access Road
Roma Spafeni Access Road
Manzamahle to Dolophini Access Road
Veris Access Road
Polar Park Access Road
Ncakula Access Road
Makhwesthubeni Access Road
NewRest Access Road
Delville-Qithi Access Road
Mnxe Mission Access Road
Upper Lufita Rowest ST Phillips
Mfamfengwini to Qolombeni Access Road
Bhobho Access Road
Besterkraal Access Road
Cala Reserve Community Hall
Kuthuleni Access Road
Ncalika Access Road
Xonya to Macangceni

DATE
12-11-2008
21-11-2008
08-12-2008
12-06-2009
16-12-2008
21-11-2008
21-11-2008
12-11-2008
12-11-2008
21-11-2008
17-06-2009
17-06-2009
02-07-2009

VALUE
1,284,052.00
2,000,000.00
4,414,999.42
1,500,000.00
6,000,000.00
5,792,000.00
1,026,000.00
1,893,540.00
1,802,340.00
1,883,440.00
1,893,540.00
1,802,340.00
1,883,440.00
6 225000.00
2 649 402.58
739 455.00
2 295 675.00
1 802 340.00
1 026 000.00
1 765 947.00
2872 455.41

Electricity and Street Lighting
Major challenges and achievements are reflected as follows:
•

An independent technical audit on business assessment and condition
assessment on electricity distribution was conducted within Sakhisizwe area.
Difficulties were experienced within this audit and in presentation of results.

•

Results reflected that Sakhisizwe’s infrastructure fell far below the needs as
reflected within audit.

•

There is a lack of efficient electricity provision

•

Infrastructure requires upgrades

•

ESKOM will not commit to projects within area.

•

Street lights are 90% functional and not maintained (lack of cherry pickers for
maintenance)

•

Inadequately trained staff

•

Funding for development extremely limited

•

Scarcity of skilled staff
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•

Staff training remains a significant challenge due to funding

•

Lack of commitment in terms of long term planning. The priority seems to be
on immediate service delivery issues

•

Little control over electricity and copper theft this challenge

•

Improve asset management – Maintenance of Assets

•

Lack of adequate project funding and prioritization – develop a clear funding
strategy for growth, service level changes, asset maintenance and renewals –
improved with growth in infrastructure development during the year under
review.

•

Electricity master plan needs to be updated. The compilation of a master plan
that addresses future demand/capacity, backlog eradication and
refurbishment.

•

No safety management and several safety breaches – requires urgent
attention – implement plan to address the breaches

•

Several transformers feeders were not protected with circuit breakers due to
lack of funds, which is totally unacceptable. This is a very high risk to the
assets and represents a serious safety issue for the public as well as
department staff.

•

In general, the transformers in the network are old, with evidence of severe
oil leaks and require proper maintenance. Several transfer feeders were not
protected with circuit breakers due to lack of funds, which is totally
unacceptable. This is a very serious risk to the assets and poses safety issues
for the pubic as well as the Department staff.

•

The wooden poles and cross arms of the 22kV and 400 V network are old.
Steel poles and cross arms are rusted.

•

There are several joints evident in the overhead lines (400 V overhead), which
reduce reliability because some joints are not done properly.

•

Maintenance of infrastructure is due and lack thereof has serious
consequences.

Roads and Stormwater
•

Road between Cala and Lady Frere has been resurfaced by Department of
Transport

•

The Cala Roads and Stormwater Project commenced in September 2008 and
is currently 40% complete and has resulted in job creation for Wards 3 and 5
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•

Department has had no Manager in place for more than two year – s57
Manager appointed in May 2008

•

Stormwater drainage poor

•

Poorly maintained roads

•

Mainly gravel – muddy during rainfalls or snowfalls

•

Storm drainage canals blocked – contribute to road erosion. Low level
bridges become flooded due to pipes not scoured

•

Damaged bridges

•

Potholes

•

Lack of proper road network

Water
The following challenges present themselves :
•

Water shortage

•

Shortage of dams and reservoirs

•

Old ageing infrastructure, vehicles and equipment

•

Skilled staff/qualified staff

•

Culture non-payment – cut offs not implemented

•

Water backlogs

•

Illegal connections and meter tampering – no fines implemented

•

Poorly maintained pumps

•

3 128 receive subsidies

Sanitation
The following challenges remain:
•

Rural / indigent insanitation backlogs

•

Shortage of VIP toilet in rural area
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•

Maintenance ponds – sanitation ponds needed in rural area – outstanding
waterborne 1500; old ageing infrastructure -- Inadequate wastewater
Treatment works -- resulted in an over population on the main sewer line

•

Poor maintenance

•

Funding constraints

•

Upgrade / Construction of oxidation ponds – funding constraints

•

Construction new treatment works had commenced during 2006/2007
financial year and still in progress to be completed in 2011

•

Only one funded IDP project 2008/2009 allocated to sewerage
/sewage/sanitation.

Remedial Action /Ways of meeting these challenges may include:
•

Apply for grant funding

•

Implement funded IDP Planned project/s as planned for in the IDP: R 300 000
Construction new treatment works

•

Implement maintenance programmes

Note: No infrastructure development had been implemented during for the past three
years. No records or financial information or other information available regarding the
projects (progress reports, service level agreements, act). During 2008/2009 there has been
an improvement in this regard, however this area requires urgent attention (this was raised
as an exception in the AG`s report).
Town Planning and Building Control
The following challenges are required to be addressed:
•

Organizational structure not functional

•

Technical Department `s Posts are dominated by “unskilled” staff

•

Lack qualified /skilled staff

•

No staff in the Technical services department have or are registered with an
accredited professional body.

•

No building Control Officer

•

No building control carried out in the Municipal area

•

Non compliance of citizens to Town Planning Legislation/building regulations
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•

No proper Stormwater drainage (WMP – not in place)

•

Non registration of property ownership – resulting in financial losses for the
Municipality

•

Non registration of property ownership – resulting in financial losses for the
Municipality

•

No policy on Building Control

•

No dedicated budget for Town Planning

•

Review of the Spatial development framework

•

Zoning maps

•

Land issues required to be resolved

•

Land for development Sakhisizwe

•

Land management/settlement plan to be developed

•

9 Land use applications were approved during 2008/2009 financial year

Remedial Action /Challenges addresses
•

The Building Control Officers position to be budgeted for and this position would
ensure enforcement of land use planning legislation & building control
regulations (facilitated by the appointment of the Building Control Officer)

•

The establishment of the PMU unit and the appointment of the PMU Manager
could in the interim assist with “technical “ issues related to Town Planning and
Building Control (this is currently in place – but not achieved in the year under
review)

•

The enforcement of land use planning legislation & building control regulations

•

The conducting of a land audit for verification of municipal owned land

•

Review of the Spatial Development Framework. Service Providers were
appointed to assist in the review of the Spatial Development Framework, during
the year under review (Umhlaba Consultants)

•

Development of the Land Use Management system

•

Ownership of environmental management plans (currently CHDM) and
enforcement of all implementation activities.
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3.

CONCLUSION
In concluding, reference is made to the Audit Report and the many references made
to the lack of formal reporting and records. As a direct result of this it must be noted
that while every effort has been made to summarize successes and challenges within
this Municipality during the 2008/2009 period, information presented has for the
most part been based on the “lack of formal record”, and reliable information.
While the reasons for these deficiencies are understood and certain allowances have
been made, it must be acknowledged that this lack of information will impact on the
current Annual Report. It is these issues that will form the basis of all further action
and the development of an Audit Plan.
Notwithstanding these issues it is recommended that Council adopt this Annual
Report as a reflection on activities, progress and issues for the 2008 -2009 financial
year.

4.

RECOMMENDED
That Council adopts the Annual Report for Sakhisizwe Municipality for the period
2008-2009, as reflected in the Annual Report attached for this purpose.

CLOSING SUMMARY
From the detailed chapters in this Annual Report, Sakhisizwe Municipality has been able to
report on all aspects of organisational performance, providing a true, honest and accurate
account of Council priorities and goals and our ability as an organisation to achieve these,
notwithstanding the many highlighted challenges that prevail.
Within Chapter 1 of this report, you were exposed to an overview of Sakhisizwe’s
geographic and demographic profile, as well as socio-economic factors that influence life
within this region.
Chapter 2 has highlighted the key successes and challenges experienced by the more high
profile service delivery departments. These have been examined by looking at the service
delivery approach adopted, the performance measures and key successes, as well as the
challenges and opportunities faced by service delivery currently.
Chapter 3 provides insight into the organisation structure and changes required to ensure
that Sakhisizwe Municipality is able to fulfil its developmental Local Government objectives,
through compliance at every level.
Chapter 4 represents an account of Sakhisizwe Municipality’s financial health and wealth
and includes all financial statements as public documents.
Chapter 5 provides comprehensive information on the functional areas of Sakhisizwe
Municipality, including overviews of functions and strategic objectives. All of these
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objectives are then tied directly back to the Integrated Development Plan and more
technically into the Service Delivery Budget and Implementation Plans for each department.
Sakhisizwe Municipality must be commended for their ability to improve dramatically under
the very dire and extreme circumstances with which they were faced. As indicated some
measures of success, growth and progress were achieved, particularly as a result of the
direction and support provided both by political leadership and DBSA (with the appointment
of the Municipal Mentor – Mr P Mc Ewen). While we can never negate the positive strides
and progress made, it is important to realize that this is really the “tip of the iceberg”. There
is so much more to be achieved and so many more challenges. However we can now tackle
these with enthusiasm and the knowledge that progress can and has been made with
concerted effort and commitment from all.
Finally, it must be noted that the Annual Report for 2008/2009 provides a realistic and
accurate account of the progress and extreme difficulties experienced by Sakhisizwe
Municipality and reflects the impact that all of this has had on service delivery.
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GLOSSARY
CBO
DBSA
DORA
DWAF
GAMAP
GDP
GRAP
IDP
ILGM
IMPRO
LED
LGSWETA
MFMA
MIG
NEPAD
NGO
SALGA
SMME
TLC
CHDM

Community Based Organisation
Development Bank of South Africa
Division of Revenue Act
Department of Water Affairs and Forestry
Generally Accepted Municipal Accounting Practices
Gross Domestic Product
Generally Recognised Accounting Practices
Integrated Development Plan
Institute of Local Government Management of Southern Africa
Institute of Municipal Public Relations Officers
Local Economic Development
Local Government and Related Services SETA
Municipal Finance Management Act
Municipal Infrastructure Grant
New Partnership for Africa’s Development
Non-Government Organisation
South African Local Government Association
Small, Medium and Micro Enterprises
Transitional Local Council
Chris Hani District Municipality
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